Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Democratic Services
Guildhall, High Street, Bath BA1 5AW
Telephone: (01225) 477000 main switchboard

Direct Lines - Tel: 01225 394358 Fax: 01225 394439 Date: 5 November 2014
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk E-mail:.  Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
To: All Members of the Council

Chief Executive and other appropriate officers
Press and Public

Dear Member

Council: Thursday, 13th November, 2014

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Council to be held on Thursday, 13th November,
2014 at 6.30 pm in the Council Chamber - Guildhall, Bath.

The agenda is set out overleaf.

Refreshments will be available for Councillors from 5pm in the Aix-en-Provence Room (next to
the Banqueting Room) on Floor 1.

Yours sincerely

!EIE%EI
=] .
Jo Morrison

Democratic Services Manager

for Chief Executive

Please note the following arrangements for pre-group meetings:

Conservative Brunswick Room, Ground Floor
Liberal Democrat Kaposvar Room, Floor 1
Labour Small Meeting Room, Floor 2
Independent Independent Group room

If you need to access this agenda or any of the supporting reports in an alternative
accessible format please contact Democratic Services or the relevant report author
whose details are listed at the end of each report.

This Agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper




NOTES:

1.

Inspection of Papers: Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or a list of the
background papers relating to any item on this Agenda should contact Jo Morrison who is
available by telephoning Bath 01225 394358.

Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained
by contacting as above. Papers are available for inspection as follows:

Public Access points:- Reception: Civic Centre - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, The Hollies -
Midsomer Norton. Bath Central and Midsomer Norton public libraries.

For Councillors and officers, papers may be inspected via Political Group Research
Assistants and Group Rooms/Members’ Libraries.

Recording at Meetings:-

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and
recording by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.

Some of our meetings are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is to be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast,
please make yourself known to the camera operators.

To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or
guardians before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to
the camera operator

The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast An archived recording of the proceedings will also be
available for viewing after the meeting. The Council may also use the images/sound
recordings on its social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

Spokespersons: The Political Group Spokespersons for the Council are the Group
Leaders, who are Councillors Paul Crossley (Liberal Democrat Group), Tim

Warren (Conservative Group), John Bull (Labour Group) and Dave Laming
(Independent Group).

Attendance Register: Members should sign the Register, which will be circulated at the
meeting.

Public Speaking at Meetings: The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to
make their views known at meetings. They may make a statement relevant to what the
meeting has power to do. They may also present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a
group. They may also ask a question to which a written answer will be given. Advance
notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting. This
means that for meetings held on Thursdays notice must be received in Democratic
Services by 5.00pm the previous Monday. Further details of the scheme can be
obtained by contacting Jo Morrison as above.

THE APPENDED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ARE IDENTIFIED BY AGENDA ITEM
NUMBER.



8. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the
designated exits and proceed to the named assembly point. The designated exits are sign-
posted.

Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.
9. Presentation of reports: Officers of the Council will not normally introduce their reports

unless requested by the meeting to do so. Officers may need to advise the meeting of new
information arising since the agenda was sent out.



Council - Thursday, 13th November, 2014 at 6.30 pm in the Council Chamber - Guildhall,
Bath

AGENDA

1. EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chairman will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out
under Note 7.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to
complete the green interest forms circulated to groups in their pre-meetings (which will
be announced at the Council Meeting) to indicate:

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare.
(b) The nature of their interest.

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of
Interests)

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer before the meeting
to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

4. MINUTES - 11TH SEPTEMBER 2014 (Pages 9 - 16)
To be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair(man)

5. ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL OR FROM THE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

These are matters of information for Members of the Council. No decisions will be
required arising from the announcements.

6. TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN

If there is any urgent business arising since the formal agenda was published, the
Chairman will announce this and give reasons why he has agreed to consider it at this
meeting. In making his decision, the Chairman will, where practicable, have consulted
with the Leaders of the Political Groups. Any documentation on urgent business will be
circulated at the meeting, if not made available previously.

7. QUESTIONS, STATEMENTS, PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

The Democratic Services Manager will announce any submissions received under the
arrangements set out in note 5 above. The Council will be invited to decide what action



10.

11.

12.

it wishes to take, if any, on the matters raised in these submissions. As the questions
received and the answers given will be circulated in written form there is no
requirement for them to be read out at the meeting. The questions and answers will be
published with the draft minutes.

GETTING AROUND BATH - A NEW TRANSPORT STRATEGY FOR BATH (Pages
17 - 84)

A new Transport Strategy for Bath was approved by Cabinet for consultation in May
2014. The Strategy has been well received and supported by the majority of those
who responded and is now recommended for Adoption by Council.

LICENSING ACT 2003 - REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S STATEMENT OF LICENSING
POLICY (Pages 85 - 190)

Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act’) requires a Licensing Authority to
prepare and publish a statement of its licensing policy every five years. Such a policy
must be published before the Authority carries out any function in respect of individual
applications made under the terms of the 2003 Act. During the five year period the
policy must be kept under review and the Licensing Authority may make any revisions
to it as it considers appropriate. The Council last reviewed it’s policy in 2010.

This report identifies the findings of the consultation exercise carried out on the
proposed revision of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the introduction
of a Code of Best Practice for Licensed Premises.

LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME (CTS) 2015-16 (Pages 191 - 336)

To consider a proposal for continuation of the Local Council Tax Support scheme
(LCTS) into its third year, with the policy to incorporate uprating of national personal
allowances and benefits as necessary.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MONITORING REPORT TO 30TH SEPTEMBER 2014
(Pages 337 - 352)

In February 2012, the Council adopted the 2011 edition of the CIPFA Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice, which requires the Council to
approve a Treasury Management Strategy before the start of each financial year,
review performance during the year, and approve an annual report after the end of
each financial year.

This report gives details of performance against the Council’'s Treasury Management
Strategy and Annual Investment Plan 2014/15 for the first six months of 2014/15.

MOTION FROM THE INDEPENDENT GROUP - HOUSES IN MULTIPLE
OCCUPATION (Pages 353 - 356)

An officer briefing note is attached.



13.

14.

15.

16.

MOTION FROM THE LABOUR GROUP - LIVING WAGE (Pages 357 - 358)
An officer briefing note on this issue will follow.

MOTION FROM THE LABOUR GROUP - FINANCIAL TRANSACTION TAX (Pages
359 - 360)

REFERRAL FROM RESOURCES POLICY DEVELOPMENT & SCRUTINY PANEL
(Pages 361 - 372)

Resources PDS Panel considered a call-in on 29" September 2014 on the policy loan
for Wilmington Farm solar array. The call-in was dismissed. The Panel asked for a
report to go to Council on the Panel’s deliberations, for information only.

An officer briefing note and the Panel's minutes are attached.

QUESTIONS, STATEMENTS, PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS FROM
COUNCILLORS

The Democratic Services Manager will announce any submissions received. The
Council will be invited to decide what action it wishes to take, if any, on the matters
raised in these submissions. As the questions received and the answers given will be
circulated in written form there is no requirement for them to be read out at the
meeting. The questions and answers will be published with the draft minutes.

The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Jo Morrison who can be contacted on
01225 394358.



Protocol for Decision-making

Guidance for Members when making decisions

When making decisions, the Cabinet/Committee must ensure it has regard only to relevant
considerations and disregards those that are not material.

The Cabinet/Committee must ensure that it bears in mind the following legal duties when
making its decisions:

e Equalities considerations

e Risk Management considerations

e Crime and Disorder considerations

e Sustainability considerations

e Natural Environment considerations

¢ Planning Act 2008 considerations

¢ Human Rights Act 1998 considerations
e Children Act 2004 considerations

e Public Health & Inequalities considerations

Whilst it is the responsibility of the report author and the Council’s Monitoring Officer and Chief
Financial Officer to assess the applicability of the legal requirements, decision makers should
ensure they are satisfied that the information presented to them is consistent with and takes
due regard of them.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4
BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL

MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING
Thursday, 11th September, 2014

Present:- Councillors Simon Allen, Patrick Anketell-Jones, Rob Appleyard, Sharon Ball,
Tim Ball, Colin Barrett, Cherry Beath, David Bellotti, Sarah Bevan, Mathew Blankley,

Lisa Brett, John Bull, Neil Butters, Bryan Chalker, Anthony Clarke, Nicholas Coombes,
Paul Crossley, Gerry Curran, Sally Davis, David Dixon, Peter Edwards, Michael Evans,
Charles Gerrish, lan Gilchrist, Francine Haeberling, Alan Hale, Katie Hall, Liz Hardman,
Nathan Hartley, Steve Hedges, Eleanor Jackson, Les Kew, Dave Laming, Malcolm Lees,
Marie Longstaff, Barry Macrae, David Martin, Robin Moss, Paul Myers, Douglas Nicol,
June Player, Vic Pritchard, Liz Richardson, Manda Rigby, Caroline Roberts, Nigel Roberts,
Dine Romero, Will Sandry, Brian Simmons, Kate Simmons, Jeremy Sparks, Ben Stevens,
Roger Symonds, David Veale, Martin Veal, Geoff Ward, Tim Warren, Chris Watt and
Brian Webber

Apologies for absence: Councillors Douglas Deacon, Paul Fox, Andrew Furse,
Terry Gazzard, Loraine Morgan-Brinkhurst MBE and Bryan Organ

24 EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chairman drew attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out on
the agenda.

25  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Eleanor Jackson declared an ‘other’ interest in item 10, “Youth Justice
Plan 2014-2015” as trustee of the Radstock Youth Partnership.

26 MINUTES - 10TH JULY 2014

On a motion from Councillor Paul Crossley, seconded by Councillor Tim Warren, it
was

RESOLVED that the minutes of 10™ July 2014 be approved as a correct record and
signed by the Chairman.

27  ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL OR FROM THE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Chairman made the customary announcements regarding mobile phones and
the meeting being webcast.

He also asked the Council to stand in silence as a mark of respect following the
recent death of former Councillor Alan French.

28 URGENT BUSINESS - KELSTON ROAD LANSLIP REPAIRS - UPDATED
POSITION

19
Council- Thursday, 11th September, 2014

Page 9



29

The Chairman informed Council that, following consultation with Group Leaders, he
had agreed to take as an item of urgent business, a report concerning the funding of
remedial works at Kelston road.

He explained the reason why he considered it necessary for the report to be dealt
with at this meeting so that the necessary funding, over and above the approved
budget, is identified and the necessary commitments made. This would ensure that
the revised programme of works could be commenced without delay and the project
completed at the earliest opportunity.

During debate, Councillors wished to pass their thanks to Kelvin Packer and his
team for their work on this challenging project.

On a motion from Councillor Paul Crossley, seconded by Councillor Tim Warren, it
was

RESOLVED

1. That a virement of £0.66m from the Bath Transport package capital budget to
the Kelston Road Capital budget be approved, taking the total approved
budget for this project to £2.66m;

2. To instruct the Cabinet to continue to lobby government directly, and through
our local MPs, for funding to help with the repairs of Kelston Road; and

3. To amend and replace paragraph 3.3 of the report to read;

‘As part of the management of Approved Capital Programme, all existing
scheme programmes will be reviewed to establish if there are any further
potential underspends that could be utilised to reduce the need for
Corporately Supported Borrowing for this project. This review should not
delay, cancel or impact on any projects within the 2014/15 Transport Capital
Programme or Structural Maintenance Programme. The Council should also
continue to seek financial assistance from Government for the repair work
required to reopen Kelston Road, even if retrospectively.”

[Notes;
1. Resolution 2 above was proposed by Councillor Caroline Roberts and accepted
into the substantive motion by the mover and seconder.

2. Resolution 3 above was proposed by Councillor Charles Gerrish and accepted
into the substantive motion by the mover and seconder.

3. The resolutions were passed unanimously.]
REPORT OF CHIEF OFFICER URGENT DECISION

On a motion from Councillor Paul Crossley, seconded by Councillor Tim Warren, it
was

20

Council- Thursday, 11th September, 2014

Page 10



RESOLVED to note that, in accordance with the rules within the Constitution
concerning Chief Officer’s action (Urgency, Part 4G, rule 3), the Chief Executive has
taken the following decisions since the last meeting of Council;

1. To approve an increase from 217 million to 229 million of the authorised
borrowing limit for 2015/16 and from 183 million to 195 million of the
operational budget for 2015/16 to enable the Council to be in a position, if it is
considered to be financially beneficial, to finance an element of the capital
costs of the enhancement of the Council’s leisure facilities; and

2. To approve the virement of £800,000 of capital funding from the approved
capital contingency for the Keynsham Development Project to enable the
acquisition of land and rights over land to facilitate future redevelopment at
Manvers Street.

[These decisions were taken following consultation with Political Group Leaders, the
Chief Financial Officer and the Monitoring Officer.]

30 QUESTIONS, STATEMENTS, PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS FROM THE
PUBLIC

A question had been submitted by Nicolette Boater. The question and response can
be viewed in the attached document.

Statements were made by the following people;

Marian McNeir MBE, Co-Chairman of the Bath Area Cultural Forum, made a
statement on behalf of the Forum and the Child Friendly City Steering Group asking
for Council support in seeking UNICEF accreditation for Bath and North East
Somerset as a Child Friendly city/area. In response to a question from Councillor
John Bull about the parish and town councils’ roles in children’s facilities, the need to
work with them and yet the title having the word ‘city’, Mrs McNeir responded that it
was a tricky one as the UNICEF title was ‘city’ but the idea was clearly to encompass
the whole of the Authority. The Chairman referred the statement to the Cabinet
Member for Early Years, Children and Youth. A copy of the statement has been
linked to the online minutes and placed on the Council’'s Minute book.

David Redgewell made a statement regarding various transport issues. In response
to a question from Councillor Eleanor Jackson about cuts in bus services to Paulton
and Writhlington, Mr Redgewell responded that they did need to be reviewed with
officers costing options for continuity of service. The Chairman referred the
statement to the Cabinet Member for Transport. A copy of the statement has been
linked to the online minutes and placed on the Council’'s Minute book.

Peter Duppa-Miller, Secretary of the B&NES Local Council’s Association, made a
statement in support of the work done thus far by the working group on the Bath
community governance issues and offering assistance from the Association in any
relevant aspects of its future work. The Chairman referred the statement to the
Leader. A copy of the statement has been linked to the online minutes and placed
on the Council’'s Minute book.

21
Council- Thursday, 11th September, 2014

Page 11



31

32

Nicolette Boater made a statement on the Bath community governance issues. She
suggested various aspects of approach that the working group should incorporate to
progress its future work. The Chairman referred the statement to the Leader. A copy
of the statement has been linked to the online minutes and placed on the Council's
Minute book.

OPTIONS TO STRENGTHEN COMMUNITY REPRESENTATION AND CIVIC
GOVERNANCE WITHIN BATH

The Council considered the interim report of the working group established to
consider options to strengthen community representation and civic governance
within Bath.

On a motion from Councillor Paul Crossley, seconded by Councillor Tim Warren, it
was

RESOLVED

1. To note the interim report of the working group to strengthen community
representation and civic governance within Bath and thank its members for
their work so far;

2. To agree that the working group continue its work, based on the next steps
set out in paragraph 5.8 of the report, to provide an evidence base for the
newly-elected Council in May 2015 to determine this issue; and

3. To agree to extend the life of the working group, as currently comprised, to
deliver the remit set out in 2 above.

[Notes; The above resolution was passed with one abstention from Councillor Nicholas
Coombes, all other Councillors voted in favour.]

YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN 2014 - 2015

The Council considered a report presenting the Youth Justice Plan 2014-15, which
sets out work to be undertaken to prevent youth offending and re-offending across
Bath and North East Somerset.

On a motion from Councillor Dine Romero, seconded by Councillor Michael Evans, it
was

RESOLVED

1. To agree that the Youth Justice Plan fulfils the requirements of the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998 and can therefore be submitted to the national Youth
Justice Board;

2. To agree that the Youth Justice Plan is adopted as part of the Council’s Policy

and Budget framework and can be accommodated within the Council’'s
budget; and

22

Council- Thursday, 11th September, 2014

Page 12



3. That the relevant Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel oversees progress
and performance.

33 CORPORATE AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT

The Council considered the annual report of the Corporate Audit Committee which
details its work over the last year. Members thanked the Committee members and
service officers for their work on this Committee.

On a motion from Councillor Gerry Curran, seconded by Councillor Dave Laming, it
was

RESOLVED to note the annual report of the Corporate Audit Committee.

34 REFERRAL FROM WELLBEING POLICY DEVELOPMENT & SCRUTINY PANEL
- "HALVE IT" CAMPAIGN

The Council considered a referral from the Wellbeing Policy Development and
Scrutiny Panel on 25" July 2014 on this issue.

On a motion from Councillor Vic Pritchard, seconded by Councillor Sarah Bevan, it
was

RESOLVED to sign up to the Halve It campaign to reduce the proportion of people
undiagnosed, or diagnosed late with HIV, through policy reform and good practice.

35 MOTION FROM THE CONSERVATIVE GROUP - PUBLIC TOILET CLOSURES
On a motion from Councillor Tim Warren, seconded by Councillor Geoff Ward, it was
RESOLVED as set out below;

This Council:

e Welcomes investment to modernise public toilet provision within Bath and
North East Somerset as part of the contract with Healthmatic, but has a
number of serious concerns about some of the planned changes as set out
below.

e Believes that the closure of a number of public toilets within Bath and North
East Somerset, as well as the planned reductions in capacity in many of the
Council’s remaining public toilets, has been handled in a way which has
caused unnecessary and avoidable anger and opposition amongst many of
the communities impacted.

e Is concerned that the Cabinet have denied the public any opportunity to have
their views heard on this matter, with no consultation on the planned closures
and alterations to public toilets with service users or residents.

e |s deeply concerned at the way in which the Cabinet has ignored the requests
contained within a number of petitions which have called for the Council to

23
Council- Thursday, 11th September, 2014

Page 13



36

rethink the reductions in toilet cubicles, in particular in parks and busy family
areas.

Is deeply concerned at the lack of democratic accountability which has
surrounded the process of toilet closures and alterations, with no Cabinet
decision relating to the closure of public toilets that can be democratically
challenged and called-in by Councillors.

Strongly disapproves of the way in which Cabinet has acted in a manner
which is not in the spirit of the February Budget resolution, which included
£120,000 to meet the cost of delaying the reduction in public conveniences for
up to a year ‘to provide further time to consider opportunities for alternative
provision’, as well as a further £100,000 of capital expenditure to ‘develop
concessionary opportunities alongside public toilets to increase use of Council
assets, minimise liability and retain local toilet provision’.

Believes that through its actions, the Cabinet has demonstrated contempt for
the views of residents on this matter and has shown a complete unwillingness
to listen to alternative points of view.

Council resolves:

1. To place on record its strong disapproval for the way in which the closures
and changes to public toilets have been undertaken to date.

2. To request that Cabinet instruct Healthmatic to pause any further
alterations to public toilets which it is responsible for, whilst an up-to-date
review is undertaken of the toilet capacity needed at each location, this
time including a full consultation which takes into account the views of
residents and users of the public toilets, and that similar reviews and
consultation exercises are undertaken at locations where a reduction in
cubicle numbers has already taken place.

3. To request that Cabinet hold further discussions with Healthmatic to seek
options to increase toilet capacity at locations where the consultation
mentioned in (2) reveals it to be necessary.

4. That in the case of toilets recently shut by the Council, Cabinet is asked to
revisit and abide by the resolutions contained within the Council motion
passed in September 2013 in relation to public toilets (which was passed
unanimously by Council), as well as the subsequent Budget resolution of
February 2014.

[Note; The above resolution was carried with 33 Councillors voting in favour, 26
against and no abstentions.]

QUESTIONS, STATEMENTS, PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS FROM
COUNCILLORS

Councillor Cherry Beath made a statement supporting the Child Friendly City
initiative. She invited Councillors to an event on 1% October and to contact her for

24

Council- Thursday, 11th September, 2014

Page 14



further information. The statement was referred to the Cabinet Member for Early
Years, Children and Youth. A copy of the statement is attached to the minutes
online and has been added to the Council’s Minute book.

The meeting ended at 7.25 pm

Chairman

Prepared by Democratic Services

Council- Thursday, 11th September, 2014
Page 15

25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Agenda Item 8

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING | Council

MEETING | 13" November 2014

TITLE: Getting Around Bath — A New Transport Strategy for Bath

WARD: All Bath Wards

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Getting Around Bath Transport Strategy
Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings

1 THEISSUE

1.1 A new Transport Strategy for Bath was approved by Cabinet for consultation in
May 2014. The Strategy has been well received and supported by the majority
of those who responded and is now recommended for Adoption by Council.

2 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That the Council adopt the Getting Around Bath Transport Strategy as approved
by Cabinet at its meeting 12" November 2014.

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

3.1 The Getting Around Bath Transport Strategy will support the growth proposed in
the Council's Adopted Core Strategy and the Master Plan for the Bath City
Riverside Enterprise Area. Its implementation will draw on a number of funding
sources and decisions on individual projects will subject to the Council’s annual
budget process. In addition the development of individual sites including those
within the Enterprise Area will contribute to the Strategy by being part of an
integrated/co-ordinated development to reduce the impact of traffic on the city
and where appropriate, making financial contributions to particular infrastructure
needs.

3.2 The Getting Around Bath Transport Strategy will be delivered through a wide
range of projects which will be funded from various funding sources principally,
but not exclusively, the Integrated Transport Capital grant (received annually
from Government) and bids for additional monies from the Single Growth Fund
managed by the West of England Local Enterprise Partnership; importantly the
strategy will ensure that other funding opportunities can also be targeted.
Funding associated with other key strategies which support the actions within
‘Getting Around Bath’ may also be targeted, if approved through the annual
budget process.

Printed on recycled paper Page 17



3.3 Council in February gave provisional approval to £5.2m for the development of a
new Park & Ride to the east Bath funded by Corporate borrowing. This £500k is
the first element of the £5.2m. The annual profiling of expenditure is different
from originally anticipated and this is reflected in the sum requested.

3.4 There is a small revenue reversion risk in the case that a capital project does not
go ahead.

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL

4.1 Equalities, Sustainability equalities, planning, human rights and public health.
5 THE REPORT
5.1 Introduction

5.2 The Cabinet at its meeting in April 2013 agreed that a new Transport Strategy
should be prepared for Bath in the light of the housing and economic growth
proposed in the Council’'s Draft Core Strategy and the emerging Bath City
Riverside Enterprise Area. The strategy is needed to support this growth
agenda but also to improve the environment within the city itself which is
damaged by the impact of traffic and congestion. The Strategy is designed to
set out an agreed long term vision for Transport which will have broad and
enduring agreement. The longevity of the Strategy is key to providing a
consistent vision for the city and to accommodate the ambitious housing and
jobs targets set out in the Core Strategy. The Transport Strategy is being
prepared in tandem with the Placemaking Plan in light of the interrelationship of
the two initiatives.

5.3 The Strategy was subject to public consultation during the early summer, details
of the results of this consultation have been independently analysed by Mott
MacDonald, who prepared the Strategy, and are summarised in Appendix 1. The
public consultation was launched by Sir Peter Hendy, chair of the Bath Transport
Commission on 26™ June. The strategy had been reviewed by the Transport
Commission at several meetings and has received their support. Sir Peter
Hendy has offered to provide an endorsement for the Strategy which could be
included as a Forward when published.

5.4 The Strategy builds upon existing initiatives including:

e the Bath Transport Package such as the expanded Park and Ride Sites and
Variable Message Signs;

¢ the Better Bus Area funding by introducing further bus priority measures; and

o the opportunities offered by Network Rail Electrification of Great West
Mainline.

5.5 Vision: The Strategy encompasses the following vision for transport in Bath:

“Bath will enhance its unique status by adopting measures that promote
sustainable transport and reduce the intrusion of vehicles, particularly in the
historic core. This will enable more economic activity and growth, while
enhancing its special character and environment and improving the quality
of life for local people

Printed on recycled paper Page 18



5.6 This vision was well received during the public consultation and it is not
recommended that this is changed.

5.7 The Strategy has considered, in broad terms, the impact of the growth in the
Core Strategy and taken forward in the Enterprise Area. It recommends a co-
ordinated approach to manage the growth in travel which is going to take place
over the next 20 years. Robust parking standards and improvements to public
transport will be important in accommodating this growth. Key to this will be
accommodating the increase in commuting into the city from surrounding areas.
Both the Metro West project, which will improve local rail services, and the
electrification of the Great Western Mainline, which will improve regional
services, will provide improved public transport into the city. This will be
complemented by other measures such as new and expanded Park and Ride.

5.8 Within the city walking and cycling with improved bus services will be priorities.
Off-street parking will remain important to supporting a strong city centre
economy and a balanced approach is recommended. The Strategy proposes a
review of public off-street parking to ensure the proposal to retain 500 parking
spaces is sufficient to maintain the vitality of the city centre economy and to
encourage modal shift.

5.9 The majority of the recommendations within the draft Strategy were supported in
the consultation (see Appendix 2). The following are the main changes that
Cabinet are asked to endorse in agreeing the final Strategy.

5.10 Access for All:

5.11 The Strategy proposes that we establish an expert panel to provide advice on
how those with special needs can be accommodated in through the transport
Strategy. This issue will continue to emerge as elements of the Strategy are
brought forward and have been considered in detail in the recent designs for
Stall Street and Seven Dials. Part of this work will involve an independent
review of how the city centre is accessed, building on best practice from York.

5.12 Air Quality: Improving air quality will be key to the future of the city. Almost all
of the measures within the Strategy should help with this objective. The Strategy
recommends we continue to investigate the potential for a Low Emission Zone.

5.13 Walking and Cycling: One headline in the Strategy is that we aim to make the
city of Bath Europe’s most walkable city and this will be one of the most
important messages we will need to promote. In addition, cycling will be an
essential element of this aim. Sustrans have recently completed a review of
cycling routes within the city and the proposed routes for improvement have
been incorporated into the Strategy. This study will be used to prioritise future
expenditure on cycle network and will be integrated into projects as they emerge.

5.14 Coaches: The Strategy recognises that Coaches are an essential part of the
transport network which services the city. An interim coach park is
recommended at Weston Island to allow the North Quays redevelopment to be
taken forward. There are 2 outstanding areas of work which will still need to be
concluded. A longer term permanent coach park and an alternative coach drop-
off within the city centre.

Printed on recycled paper Page 19



5.15 Environmental improvements: The Strategy suggests that we develop a
programme of environmental improvements to reduce the impact of traffic within
the city centre building on the approach set out in the Public Realm and
Movement Strategy and developed subsequently.

5.16 P&R: The Strategy confirms the need for a new Park and Ride to the east of
Bath as an essential complementary measure to accommodate the increased
demand for travel from within the Enterprise Area. The Strategy recognises that
there are many advantages to a rail based Park and Ride but the time that this
might take to be brought forward may mean that an interim bus based Park and
Ride may be necessary. Work to identify if this is the case is currently underway.
In addition the traffic modelling and environmental work to establish which site
could be brought forward and how many spaces it might contain is also in
progress and the budget to finance this is identified in the previous sections of
the report. This will allow a preferred site to be identified during the summer of
2015 and promoted through the Placemaking Plan.

5.17 There may, in addition, be a need to expand the existing Park and Ride sites at
some point in the future should demand continue to grow and be required and to
minimise the impact of traffic generated by the development proposed by the
Core Strategy and within the Enterprise Area.

5.18 Through Traffic: The inadequate nature of the national road network east of
Bath has long been recognised and the Council has a long standing wish to
remove ‘through traffic’, and in particular HGVs, from the city. The Air Quality
benefits of this simple measure are well understood. The Strategy recommends
that the Council work with Wiltshire Council and the Highways Agency to
develop a solution to the problems of through traffic. This work is already
underway as well.

5.19 Off Street Parking: As already mentioned a balanced approach is
recommended regarding the off-street car parks within the Enterprise Area.
Business interests recognise the benefits of other improvements recommended
in the strategy but do not want these introduced at the expense of maintaining an
adequate supply of parking for shoppers and visitors.

5.20 Other measures: The strategy recognises the important role of travel plan, city
car clubs and other measures, many of which are being implemented by the
Council at the moment. There are specific recommendations for taxi. Finally the
Strategy highlights to potential to use the river more.

5.21 As proposals emerge to deliver the outcomes identified by the Strategy they will
be subject to a detailed appraisal (which will include a funding analysis) on an
individual basis.

5.22 Rail: The Strategy recognises that the increase in the capacity of both local and
regional rail, delivered by the Metro West project and the electrification of the
GW Mainline respectively, will provide improvements to the public transport
network. These improvements, particularly the 2 hourly services to Oldfield
Park, will support the development of the Enterprise Area making it accessible to
non-car users. The Council has recently received a report on the feasibility of re-
opening a railway Station in Saltford which could provide a more sustainable way
for residents to travel into Bath. Officers are still considering this work which will
be reported to a future Cabinet meeting.

Printed on recycled paper Page 20



6 RATIONALE

6.1 The draft strategy has emerged following extensive research and discussion with
stakeholders last year. It has built on the representation made at the initial
conference held in September 2012. The proposals are based on current
policies and the approach contained within the Joint Local Transport Plan. The
authority now wishes to approve the strategy to inform and support both the
Enterprise Area Masterplan and the Core Strategy and other key initiatives.

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

7.1 The strategy has emerged following extensive research and consultation which
considered a wide range of options. A report on the consultation is attached to
the report for information and the background report is available as a
background document.

8 CONSULTATION

8.1 Strategic Management Team, Section 151 Officer, Cabinet member for
Transport, PTE Scrutiny, Stakeholders and the Bath Transport Commission. In
addition there was a period of public consultation in June/July this year the
results of which are summarised in the final Strategy itself.

9 RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management

guidance.

Contact person

Peter Dawson 01225-395181

Sponsoring
Cabinet Member

Councillor Caroline Roberts

Background papers

Supporting Strategy Report revD Oct14

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an

alternative format

Printed on recycled paper

Page 21




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Bath & North East
Somerset Council

A Transport Strategy for Bath
Final Draft
November 2014

“W X 2

Mott MacDonald

Bath and North East Somerset —

Tiie place to live, work and visit




Tl CONtEXE.. . e 5
1.2 The VISION ... e 5
1.3 ODbJECtIVES ... 6
I 0 o) V- - Vo TSSO 6

ENQagement.. ... e aa 7

Adopting a Structured AppProach ... 9
31 K@Y ISSUES ... 9
3.2 Reducing the Impact of Vehicles...................cciiii 9
3.3 Walking — a Walking-Friendly City.................ccccoiiiiie 13
3.4 Access for People with Mobility Impairments .......................ccccooo. 15
3.5 Traffic Management and Improving Air Quality....................coccoii. 16
3.6 Cycling — Building on Potential ..................ccccciiiiiiiiiiiiie 18
3.7 Development Requirements — Promoting Sustainable Development .... 20
3.8 Car Parking — Managing SUPPIY ...t 22
3.9 Park and Ride — Providing Long Stay Parking Capacity ......................... 25
3.10 Bus Services — Making Better Use of Services.............ccccccuvviiiiiininnnnns 26
31 Travel PIans..... ... 28
3.12  Taxis and RiVer TaXiS .......ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e e e e e 29
3.13 Rail — New Services and Opportunities .....................ccoeevviiiiiiiiieeeeeenns 30
3.14 Coaches — Supporting the Economy ..................cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie 31
3.15 Freight Movements — Better Management.....................ccccooooiiiiiiinnnnnn. 32
3.16  River and LeiSUre USEeS..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiee e e e 34

Delivering the Strategy ..... ..o 35
4.1 Priorities and Programme ................coooiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 35
4.2 Monitoring and Key Performance Indicators....................cccooee 35
4.3 OULCOMES ... 36
4.3 Targets and Supporting Indicators.......................ccooei 36
4.4 Deliveryand Funding..............ccooo i 37

Page 2

Page 24



Foreword

Getting about is important to all of us. This document, ‘Getting Around Bath’, sets out the
Transport Strategy for the city following a high level review of existing transport policies and
commitments carried out by Mott MacDonald in the light of the Council’s commitment to
housing and economic growth within the city. It develops a set of policies to support this
growth.

‘Getting Around Bath’ sets out an agreed long term vision for transport which needs broad and
enduring agreement. It will cover the period up to 2029 to reflect the period for the Council’s
agreed Draft Core Strategy. It will support the preparation of the Council’s Placemaking Plan
and the Master Plan for the Bath City Riverside Enterprise Area.

The aim of the Strategy is to support this growth agenda and also improve the environment
within the city itself, both of which can be damaged by the impact of traffic and congestion.
The longevity of the Strategy is key to providing a consistent vision for the city and to
accommodate the ambitious housing and employment aspirations.

The Strategy builds upon existing initiatives, including those delivered through the Bath
Transport Package (such as the expanded Park and Ride Sites and Variable Message Signs),
the EU funded Civitas Renaissance programme (such as the Urban Freight Consolidation
Project and Better Bus Area funding), whilst also recognising the importance of Network Rail’s
electrification programme for the Great Western Main Line.

Following a period of consultation, broad agreement has been reached on the following
vision:

“Bath will enhance its unique status by adopting measures that promote sustainable
transport and reduce the intrusion of vehicles, particularly in the historic core. This
will enable more economic activity and growth, while enhancing its special character
and environment and improving the quality of life for local people”.

The strategy is also driven by the Public Service Board vision which is:

“Bath and North East Somerset will be internationally renowned as a beautifully
inventive and entrepreneurial 21" Century place with a strong social purpose and a
spirit of wellbeing, where everyone is invited to think big — a ‘connected’ area ready to
create an extraordinary legacy for future generations”.

The reduction of the impact of vehicles is vital in this unique UNESCO World Heritage city
and will require a combination of measures. These can be summarised as follows:

e A walking/cycling strategy to make Bath the UK’s most walkable city;
e Improved accessibility for people with mobility impairments;

e A parking strategy to support the economic growth but at the same time reducing the
amount of off-street spaces within the city centre;

e Supporting greater use of public transport to reduce the number of cars entering the
city;

e Continue to expand our existing Park & Ride sites where we can to help reduce the

demand for parking spaces within the city;

Page 3
Page 25



e Better management of Heavy Goods Vehicles within the city;

e Finding a new location for coaches to park once they have dropped visitors off in the
city centre.

The Council wishes to particularly thank those who have responded to the engagement
process and have helped the Council to develop this key strategy for the City of Bath.

The Council would also wish to acknowledge the work of the Bath Transport Commission
chaired by Peter Hendy. They Commission considered the emerging strategy on several
occasions giving valuable advice and guidance to help its development.

We need to put the foreword as quotes from Caroline and the Leader and put their
photos at the end

We also need to get the endorsement from Peter Hendy in here as well

Page 4
Page 26



Vision

1.1 Context

Transport is fundamental to the successful economy and wellbeing of the city, its residents
and visitors. It also contributes to the unique environment of the city but the volume and
impacts of vehicles are undermining the fabric of buildings and air quality. Consequently, the
historic core of Bath and key arterial routes are suffering from the intrusion of cars and the
quality of life throughout the city is being adversely affected.

The strategy is needed to provide the framework within which individual proposals can be
considered and assessed against the objectives. A number of initiatives have been delivered
including three Park and Ride sites, an ongoing parking strategy, Local Sustainable Transport
Fund measures and using Better Bus Area funding. The strategy will also support delivery of
the Core Strategy, enabling growth. It will also build on the policies and measures included in
successive Joint Local Transport Plans.

This report outlines the proposed strategy and the evidence that lies behind the proposals is
included in a separate report.

1.2 The Vision

There are some strong issues that are shared by the key stakeholders in that they all
recognize the importance of transport to the local economy and the wellbeing of the city, its
residents and visitors. It is also evident that inappropriate traffic levels are eroding historic
buildings and adversely affecting air quality and consequently the quality of life.

In developing a vision, it is important to set it in the context of progress made to date through
various initiatives promoted through successive Joint Local Transport Plans and other funding
sources. In addition, the emerging Core Strategy reflects the changes in the planning system
manifest through the National Planning Policy Framework that supports the principles of
sustainable development.

A strategy needs a vision, in effect a statement that outlines the main aims. In this context,
the proposed transport vision reflects the wider vision for a healthy, prosperous and unique
city:

Bath will enhance its unique status by adopting measures that promote sustainable
transport and reduce the intrusion of vehicles, particularly in the historic core.

This will enable more economic activity and growth, while enhancing its special character
and environment and improving the quality of life for local people.

Page 5
Page 27



1.3 Objectives

There is considerable common ground evident from the documentation available and
discussion undertaken. This provides a good starting point for the strategy. There appears to
be a shared view on the following which provide the objectives:

Supporting and enabling economic growth, competitiveness and jobs;

Improving air quality & health, reducing vehicle carbon emissions

Promoting sustainable mobility;

Widening travel choice;

Widening access to opportunities: jobs/learning/training;

Safeguarding and enhancing the unique historic environment and World Heritage Site
status; and

e Improving the quality of life in the city.

1.4 Coverage

The strategy covers the city of Bath and its immediate environs (but not the whole of the Bath
and North East Somerset administrative area). For the purposes of this strategy, the central
part of the city is regarded as being the area from The Circus (north) to the river (south) and
from Charlotte Street (west) to London Street (east).

Parking in particular is a key issue and progressive reductions in the supply of public on- and
off-street parking to support a shift to the provision of long stay parking at Park and Ride sites
have been implemented in recent years. This policy needs to be strengthened and extended
to create more long stay capacity at the periphery, in tandem with further constraints on
parking in the central area. Some reductions in capacity will occur as a result of flood
alleviation but parking policy is an essential element of delivering the Enterprise Area. The
consequences are better air quality, less vehicle intrusion (noise and street impacts),
maintaining the built environment, better visitor experiences, accessibility for people with
mobility impairments and a healthy economy.

Page 6
Page 28



2. Engagement

2.1 Key Findings

Following the publication of the Draft Transport Strategy for Bath, consultation was
undertaken with members of the public and stakeholders to explore opinions of the proposals
set out within the document.

A total of 208 responses were received to the consultation questionnaire, with 156 online and
52 paper based submissions. From these responses, the consultation report produced by Mott
MacDonald, identified the following Key findings:

The Strategy

Over two thirds of respondents agreed with the vision for Bath underpinning the Draft
Transport Strategy (67%)

There was strong support for increasing sustainable transport options within the city of Bath,
including walking (93%), train (91%), bus (89%) and cycling (81%).

Reducing Congestion in Bath

Over three quarters of respondents (77%) agreed with the development of a Park/Rail and
Ride facility to the east of Bath, with a view to reducing congestion in the city.

Reducing the Impact of Heavy Traffic

Over three quarters of respondents (76%) also felt that the development of a new road linking
the A4(Batheaston Bypass) with the A36 would be a good way of reducing through-traffic
within Bath.

The majority of respondents (86%) felt that preventing HGVs from entering the city centre
during peak hours, and the use of a Freight Consolidation Centre with electric vehicles, was a
good idea.

Over 80% of respondents (83%) also indicated that they would support the redirection of
vehicles from London Road and Cleveland Bridge in order to address issues of congestion on
these key through-routes within the city.

Simplifying Road Layouts

Almost two thirds of respondents (65%) felt that the removal of selected one-way road layouts
within the city was a good idea in order to simplify road layouts and reduce the impact of traffic
on nearby buildings.

Rail Travel

There was significant support for improvements to rail services including cheaper fares (91%),
more frequent services (90%) and better trains (89%).

Page 7
Page 29



The majority of respondents (83%) also agreed that proposed developments in Bath,
particularly surrounding Oldfield Park Station, and consequent enhanced service provision
would make travelling from this station more attractive to potential rail users.

Parking

Around three quarters of respondents (74%) agreed with plans to increase Park and Ride
facilities in Bath.

Walking and Cycling

The implementation of pedestrian schemes, in line with the strategy’s objective to make Bath
the UK’s ‘most walkable city’, was supported by the majority of respondents (85%).

Three quarters of respondents (75%) supported the prioritisation of cycling along the river
corridor, with radial routes into the city centre.

Tackling Air Quality

Around three quarters of respondents (74%) supported proposals to increase facilities for
electric vehicles within the city.

Buses

Around three fifths of respondents (58%) thought that increasing the number of bus lanes
within Bath was a good idea.

Coaches
Around 80% of respondents supported proposals to find new locations for coaches to drop off
visitors before parking elsewhere (81%) and to expand park and ride sites to include coach

waiting areas (78%).

Just less than half of respondents (47%) agreed with the proposal to develop a new site within
close proximity to the city centre where coaches could park.

Page 8
Page 30



Adopting a Structured Approach

3.1 Key Issues

A number of key issues have been identified; these have complex inter-relationships but some
common strands have been used as the basis for a transport strategy that will enhance the
city and maintaining its attractiveness whilst supporting economic growth. Each of the key
strands is set out below together with an indication of the data sources. A large amount of
data has been compiled as part of the process of developing the Strategy and this has been
used as supporting evidence.

Bath has all the pre-conditions to be an exemplar sustainable transport city with strong public
transport, a cycling culture (taking into account the topographical constraints) and a high
proportion of walking trips. This, coupled with the unique built environment and development
site potential, presents significant opportunities to transform the city from one where
sustainable transport takes a dominant role and where traffic movement is managed more
effectively. This does not mean that the Strategy is anti-car but instead rebalances transport
options against the economic and environmental needs of the city. Car use will continue to be
important and in some cases the only option but containing the number of journeys made by
car will benefit everyone in terms of health, environment and local economic activity. A range
of measures are proposed which, in combination, will address the objectives of the strategy.

The strategy needs to be durable in that delivering measures will be longer than any single
administration and hence it should be supported by all political interests. It is important as it
enables the Core Strategy to be delivered and is vital for the Enterprise Area which is likely to
take many years to complete.

3.2Reducing the Impact of Vehicles

Bath has a unique city centre environment of World Heritage status. This attracts substantial
numbers of visitors but has many constraints. These constraints are accentuated by too many
cars in the central area. A key strand of the Strategy is to reduce the impact of vehicle
movements through a combination of measures including better traffic management,
comprehensive parking controls, expansion of park and ride and enabling people to walk,
cycle and use trains and buses. All these contribute to reducing in car journeys and
addressing the problems manifest in the Air Quality Management Area.

Parking in particular is a key issue and progressive reductions in the supply of public on- and
off-street parking to support a shift to the provision of long stay parking at Park and Ride sites
have been implemented in recent years. This policy needs to be strengthened and extended
to create more long stay capacity at the periphery, in tandem with further constraints on
parking in the central area. Some reductions in capacity will occur as a result of flood
alleviation but parking policy is an essential element of delivering the Enterprise Area. The
consequences are better air quality, less vehicle intrusion (noise and street impacts),
maintaining the built environment, better visitor experiences, accessibility for people with
mobility impairments and a healthy economy.

Page 9
Page 31



A good starting point is the mode share — how many people move by which means. Some
data is available on this from Census journey to work figures and local monitoring as shown in
Figure 3.1

Figure 3.1: Mode Share

Figures 2.1 and 2.2.

80%

70% M Live outside Bath/Work in
Bath 2001

60%

H Live outside Bath/Work in
50% Bath 2011

20% H Live in Bath/Work outside
Bath 2001

0,
30% M Live in Bath/Work outside

20% Bath 2011

10% - Live in Bath/Work in Bath
2001

0% -

? o . . Live in Bath/Work in Bath

& &P 2011
>

< A & o

The increasing and high proportion of walking of around 44% for journeys to work by Bath
residents working in Bath, shows that walking is a primary means of travel in Bath and
indicates the potential to expand and improve walking opportunities further, substituting some
short car journeys.

Traffic levels have been declining consistently over a number of years, evidenced by the traffic
count data collected at various locations around the city (see Figure 3.2). While some of this
may be attributable to the wider economic situation, it demonstrates that traffic reductions
occur and provide the opportunity to accommodate additional traffic from development sites if
required. Some count data is available to show the composition of traffic, indicating that much
of it is cars and that the proportion of heavy vehicles is comparatively low.

Some data on traffic distribution is also available from recent counts, indicating that around
12% of movements in the city centre are through trips i.e. do not have an origin or destination
in the centre.

Page 10
Page 32



Figure 3.2: inner Cordon Daily 12hr Traffic Flows 2004 to 3013

120000
100000 -
mM/C's
80000 -
H Cycles
60000 - M Bus/coach
B HGV's
40000 - mLGV's
M Cars/Taxis
20000 -
0 -
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Source B&NES count data

Minimising the volume of vehicle movements entering the city centre will contribute to
improved air quality (and therefore health) as well as reducing congestion. It will also address
the intrusion of traffic in the historic setting — noise, visual intrusion and severance (particularly
affecting people with mobility impairments) — all of which contribute to the visitor experience
and economic vitality.

Air quality is important for health with particular impacts on respiration-related ilinesses. Much
of this can be attributed to vehicle emissions but also emissions from rail rolling stock and
other sources. A number of locations in the city currently exceed legal nitrogen dioxide levels
as shown below. Particulates and other pollutants also affect the Bath stone used for much of
the city’s built environment.

An Air Quality Management Area has been declared for the city centre and its approaches,
reflecting the effect that road traffic has on the built and natural environment and the health of
people in the city. Slow moving traffic is a particular concern while reducing the levels of
traffic would help improve the problem. Air quality data is collected continuously but relating
changes to traffic conditions is difficult. However, monitoring is important in relation to the
AQMA, even if the designation is removed through changes in the legislative requirements, to
understand how addressing transport issues can help improve community health and help
preserve the fabric of the city.

The results of Nitrogen Dioxide monitoring show that in 2013 the annual average objective
was exceeded at the following locations in Bath:

e Argyle Terrace e Dorchester Street

o Bathwick Street e Gay Street —Top

e Beckford Road e George Street

e Broad Street e High Street/Guildhall
e Charlotte Street e James Street West
o Cleveland Place West e Lambridge

Page 11
Page 33



Lansdown Crescent
Little Stanhope
London Road
Manvers Street
Morley Terrace
Newbridge Hill
Newbridge Road
Paragon

St James’ Parade

Upper Bristol Road

Victoria Buildings

Walcot Terrace

Wells Road

Wells Road/Upper Oldfield Park
Widcombe High Street

Windsor Bridge Road

Overarching Policy GABP1: That a strong emphasis should be given to reducing the impact
of vehicles by supporting trips that are made by means other than car, particularly walking
and cycling with more people using improved bus and rail networks.

Page 12
Page 34




3.3 Walking — a Walking-Friendly City

Walking is central to the Strategy. Many people choose to walk because it is relatively direct
and quick and the city’s layout is conducive to good walking experiences. However, the
infrastructure needs to be improved — better footways, crossings, public spaces and higher
priority than at present. The scope for daytime pedestrian priority can be considered, enabling
vehicle access at other times.

Walking journeys are reliable in that they have predictable journey times, promote healthier
living, reduce traffic levels (many car journeys are short enough for walking to substitute) and
promote social interaction and vibrant communities.

Adopting a strategy based around walking is entirely appropriate for a constrained, historic
city. Promoting Bath as a highly walkable city is a radical move, delivering walking as a
priority with appropriate levels of investment in infrastructure to improve the walking
experience. This can include better street lighting, surfacing, road crossings, seating, signing,
etc. Enabling more people to walk more often also involves an element of information to
identify suitable and safe routes and to understand the options available. The health benefits
are likely to be considerable both directly to individuals and also collectively, contributing to
fewer car journeys and better air quality.

The Public Realm and Movement Strategy provided a helpful framework for improving the
walking experience in the city centre and highlighting the importance of streets and spaces.
These principles could be extended to the whole city, focusing on core walking routes and
overcoming conflicts with vehicle movements, identifying pleasant and safe routes.

Accessibility for people with mobility impairments (walking difficulties, visual and hearing
impediments) should feature when walking routes are considered. Improvements should
include level surfacing, dropped kerbs at junctions, careful consideration of street furniture,

effective lighting and clear crossing arrangements.

Shared use of space by walking and cycling should be encouraged. This is necessary in
some locations due to the limited space available but creates a good ambiance with minimal
signing and road markings. There is no evidence to suggest that sharing space generates
accidents and cycle speeds will be low where pedestrian levels are high. Best practice from
Europe supports shared use applications.

Walking routes are often rendered difficult by one or more specific locations, such as a road
crossing, unlit route or poor surfacing. Many people do not realise that journey times can be

Page 13
Page 35



short and routes are attractive when compared with other options. Evidence has been
obtained from the Public Realm and Movement Strategy, discussions with stakeholders and
on-street observations.

An improved walking network will decrease the number of pedestrian casualties recorded and
support a shift towards walking from motorised modes.

To achieve a walking-friendly city, the strategy will:
e Enable walking to the centre and within the city;
e Define the walking network — utility and leisure routes
o Effective maintenance;
o New infrastructure: crossings, shared space, lighting;
o Contribute to health and accessibility;
e Engender a cultural shift to walk as the first choice for many journeys.

Walking

Policy GABP2: That walking be given highest priority in the strategy. It creates a healthier
population, an ambience to the historic core of the city and reduces the number of local car
journeys. Bath should be an exemplar walking city demonstrating commitment to sustainable
transport at a European level.

Action GABA1: Review pedestrian network and in particular the quality of the routes
Action GABA2: Develop a programme for environmental improvements in the city centre

Action GABAS3: Continue to follow the principles of the Public Realm and Movement Strategy to guide
improvements for individual streets.

Page 14
Page 36



3.4 Access for People with Mobility Impairments

A significant proportion of people have some form of mobility impairment, either some form of
infirmity, visual or hearing problems and others, such as those with shopping or pre-school
children, may encounter difficulties walking around the city or using other transport such as
buses. Improved engagement with organisations representing these groups will be important.

Potential measures will include:

e Undertaking an access audit on key walking routes;
e Reducing street clutter

Inclusion and access for all

Policy GABP3: That consideration for the needs of people with mobility impairments is
regarded as a core element of the strategy and the measures included within it.

Action GABA4: The needs of disabled people will be proactively considered whenever policy
decisions are taken

Action GABAS5: Establish an expert panel on disability issues to guide policy decisions

Action GABAG: Commission an access and inclusion audit of the city centre to recommend
reasonable adjustments to our plans for movement including transport in the city

Page 15
Page 37




3.5 Traffic Management and Improving Air Quality

Traffic management does not necessarily imply more engineering. Making traffic flow more
easily may involve new approaches with fewer junction controls and a subtle approach that
suits the settings. However, managing traffic is also linked with where people want to go for
which parking is a key determinant. Hence rearranging the supply of parking will influence the
decision to drive. Additional parking in the core of the city is not really an option because
space is scarce and more traffic would be undesirable. Instead, parking within walking
distance of all the main destinations should be available. The Council have shown that a
comprehensive approach to parking is effective and forms a sound approach for future
measures.

Many of these measures, as with others in the Strategy should have a positive impact on Air
Quality which continues to be one of the most serious issues facing the city. We will continue
to lobby the Government to give us the appropriate powers to address this problem.

Measures to restrict traffic, such as that using Pulteney Bridge, can be highly effective. Such
measures need to be considered in the wider context to understand the implications for other
parts of the city. Accordingly, a Traffic Management Plan for the city centre is proposed that
will provide the context for management measures and to co-ordinate individual initiatives.
The Plan will set out co-ordinated measures including traffic signal control, parking
management through signing and the parking policy of reducing the supply of central area
spaces, accommodating walking and cycling more conspicuously and other measures to
improve traffic flow while deterring vehicle movements for which an alternative is available.

Through traffic is perceived to be a problem. This includes traffic with both an origin and
destination outside the city which has no purpose in Bath and should use other routes. There
is also an element of internal through traffic i.e. vehicle movements that start on one side of
the city and finish on another and so use the city centre, estimated to account for 12% of all
city centre traffic. These journeys contribute to congestion and some could be made by other
means.

For streets to function effectively, enforcement of regulations needs to be effective. This
includes loading and parking controls and ensuring that Blue Badge holders can access
designated parking spaces.

Technology can be deployed to direct motorists to parking spaces (extending the existing
variable message signing), to manage traffic signals in a coordinated way and to inform
transport users about current conditions on trains, buses and roads. Managing information
can be a useful tool, particularly when there are events such as sports fixtures.

Page 16
Page 38



Car sharing can be initiated through workplace travel plans. This reduces the number of
vehicle movements, reduces pressures on parking and reduces travel costs for individuals.

Traffic delays occur where demand exceeds the road space available and is often associated
with motorists seeking parking spaces, an obstruction or similar incidents. Some detailed
junction analyses have been undertaken which show the delays incurred to traffic and other
road users, particularly pedestrians. Improving options to avoid driving into the central area
will help to reduce traffic levels.

In the longer term additional road links could be considered to overcome the limited options
presented by the current road network. . A comprehensive approach to traffic management
will help make journeys more reliable, evidenced through traffic speed data and user
satisfaction surveys.

Measures will include:

Development of a city centre traffic management plan;
e Setting principles
o Removing gyratories ;
o Removing traffic signals where possible;
o Creating shared spaces ;
e Addressing strategic and local ‘through traffic’ (around 12% of volume) especially
heavy vehicle enforcement; and
e Traffic management related to development sites e.g. Enterprise Area.

Traffic Management and Air Quality

Policy GABP5: Vehicle movement should be better managed to reduce traffic impact and
emissions, particularly in the city centre where there is less space available.

Action GABA10: Develop options for a Low Emission Zone to improve air quality in the city and
press Government for appropriate enforcement powers to make such a zone effective if
implemented.

Action GABA11: Continue to support car clubs and other measures to encourage alternatives to
car use particularly in the city centre.

Action GABA12: Develop a programme to remove traffic from the central areas of the City and
reduce its impact in other areas e.g. Queen Square, Manvers Street, Dorchester Street.

Page 17
Page 39



3.6 Cycling — Building on Potential

Cycling is having a huge resurgence across the country. There is a network of routes around
the city which need to be coordinated to form a coherent network, ironing out conflicts with
vehicular traffic and attracting new cyclists. The topography of parts of the city is a deterrent
to some would-be cyclists but many corridors are more conducive to regular cycling. It is also
a healthy means of travel which also contributes to improved air quality if cycling can
substitute for car journeys. A riverside route through the Enterprise Area would be very
suitable for cycling.

Figure 3.3 below shows cycle routes identified by Sustrans that should be considered as
priorities for improvement, to complement the existing routes and those being implemented, to
create a basic network of high quality routes. This work will need to be reviewed as individual
proposals are brought forward and subject to consultation.

Figure 3.3 Proposed Cycle Routes

B&NES Strategic Cycle Network Review Lm0
Proposed routes in Bath metres |

%

Proposed Routes
— Bath South Quays
« Bath Western Riverside Rapid Transit Corridor
Bathwick Hill
@ & &« Bloomfield Link
Foxhill Link
Green Park (Riverside Path)
= Kennet & Avon Canal
@ & = & Lansdowne Link
s LOndon Road
London Road to Grosvenor Bridge
o |_ower Bristol Road (A36)
= ~  Newbridge Hill
. Newbridge Road (A4)
North-south corridor
. Rl corTidor
Sion Hill

|
Station to Riverside Path e
Victoria Bridge @
Weston Road
« =« = Widcombe Link 2
Key Strategic Routes 4 D
"
Currently open cycle routes > ﬁ'/_
Printed 23/05/2014
oy o c e oz 0005615

Measures to increase the number of cycling trips and to improve quality of the cycling
experience include schemes at specific junctions, designated routes, direction signing, secure
cycle parking and training for new or returning cyclists. In addition, the provision of shower
facilities at workplaces as travel plan measures will support regular cyclists. The use of cycles
to access other modes is becoming increasingly important. Extensive cycle parking is
available at Bath Spa station but is less evident at other stations and security is a key issue.
Enabling cyclists to use secure parking at bus stops should also be considered; this would
extend the journey possibilities for many who do not wish to cycle longer distances or for
whom it is impractical to do so.

Page 18
Page 40



The number of cyclists is increasing (shown by mode share surveys) but journeys can be very
individual. Improvements need to involve route audits where appropriate and local knowledge
from users, building on the dialogue that is taking place and developing an extensive network
of routes. Further mode share surveys, user satisfaction surveys and casualty records will
indicate the effectiveness of the measures proposed.

Specific measures will include:

e Linking together existing and planned cycle schemes to give a basic network of high
quality routes in the short term e.g. A new bridge at linking North and South Quays,
and a reopened pedestrian/cycle bridge at Roseberry Place to link Bristol to Bath and
Two Tunnels National Cycle Routes

e Develop the network in the medium to long term, taking into account the recent review
undertaken by Sustrans;

e Overcoming problem locations e.g. junctions where cyclists are vulnerable;

e Reducing traffic levels on certain routes to create an environment that is conducive to
cycling;

Cycling

Policy GABP4: That cycling be promoted through better cycling routes with appropriate
infrastructure where needed, building a cycling culture for people of all abilities.

Action GABAY: Build on the recent Sustrans review of cycling routes and develop a programme to
enhance the network.

Action GABAS8: Develop segregated cycle routes where possible, particularly along the river corridor
where a safe and welcoming riverside walk would complement the Skyline Walk

Action GABA9: Develop opportunities to enhance the existing walking and cycling network e.g. A
new bridge linking North and South Quays (through developer contributions), and a reopened
pedestrian/cycle bridge at Roseberry Place (through planning the redeveloped site) to link the Bristol
to Bath and Two Tunnels National Cycle Routes.

Page 19
Page 41



3.7 Development Requirements — Promoting Sustainable Development

A number of development options are being presented. The emerging Core Strategy is
identifying the locations where development can take place, refining this through the
Placemaking Plan to specific sites. These can be designed to add to the economic success
of the city and reflect its heritage. Inevitably, there are concerns that new development will
generate more traffic but this is not necessarily the case; other means of travel are available,
travel demand can change and some journeys will involve relocation. New activities can be
the stimulus for better transport, particularly if they make buses more viable and add to the
walking and cycling options.

The Enterprise Area (EA) is a major opportunity to develop sustainable transport by design,
linked to the city by walking routes, cycling routes and bus links and containing the demand
for travel by car. This is likely to focus on walking as the prime means of access to
employment at the city centre parts of the area, supported by new river bridges. Bus access
will also be needed along the east-west axis (possibly linking to parking at the periphery) and
a network of cycle routes will help people to make journeys. Containment within the site or
within the city, enabling people to live and work within one community, will reduce the demand
for longer distance travel, particularly by car, although this will depend on the type of jobs
available. Transport is a fundamental consideration in the delivery of the Economic Strategy.
Without coherent and attractive transport links, Bath will not be an attractive location for
development. Striking a balance between car use and other access will influence the design
of developments and there is a strong case for proposing high quality mixed development with
a strong emphasis on access by walking, rail, bus and cycling. This would be appropriate in
the Bath context and offer office, retail and residential accommodation that is different in
quality and experience from locations elsewhere.

The process of master planning for the EA is at its early stages but discussions have taken
place regarding its likely form and content. Evidence from previous Transport Assessments is
helpful and further technical analysis will help to define the development in terms of the
number of trips that it is expected to generate, their distribution and the modes of transport
that could be expected to provide access. Evidence will be obtained from traffic flows,
surveys of the number of pedestrians, cyclists and bus users and the extent to which travel
plans have been effective. The planned EA includes a variety of land uses including office,
retail and residential. It is expected that the office component will be at the eastern end of the
site nearest the city centre, enabling many journeys to be made by walking or cycling to the

Page 20
Page 42



centre and Bath Spa rail station, adding to the walking network and becoming part of an
extended central area.

As other development takes place along the river, notably housing, the creation of riverside
walking and cycling opportunities and new crossings of the river will create new connectivity.
A new bus service will connect those parts of the EA furthest from the centre. Developing the
office and employment activities initially would help establish the area as part of the city centre
and hence its timing is closely related to that of Park and Ride expansion. Determining the
wider parking strategy with the creation of additional Park and Ride spaces is an essential
requirement for the EA. Developing housing progressively within the EA will allow travel
patterns to develop incrementally.

Specific measures will include:

e Ensuring that development sites have sustainable transport options through design,
planning conditions such as travel plans and limited car parking;

¢ Designing for sustainable transport in the Enterprise Area: strong and attractive
walking and cycle routes to the city centre and Bath Spa and Oldfield Park stations,
secure cycle parking, good links to bus services;

e Integrating new sites within the city by incorporating routes that link to established
routes and destinations;

e Proportionate and complementary parking provision in new developments: link to off-
site P&R capacity; and

e Developing appropriate parking standards.

Enterprise Area

Policy GABP6: The Enterprise Area is developed as part of an integrated approach with strong
sustainable transport links to the city centre and rail stations. The development will focus
initially on office and related development at the eastern end of the site and have limited car
parking. Subsequent housing development will also focus on accessibility by non-car modes.

Action GABA13: The Master Plan for the Enterprise Area will develop proposals for a network of
walking and cycling links from surrounding communities into the city centre.

Action GABA14: Access to Bath Spa and Oldfield Park Station will be reviewed and improved to
maximise the use of these facilities by those working and living in the Enterprise area.

Action GABA15: Effective travel plans will be developed to deliver reduced traffic from the enterprise
area and this will be a key feature of the Master Plan. This approach will be followed when considering
other developments within the city.

Action GABP16: Traffic generated by developments in the Enterprise Area will be managed by effective
parking standards to minimise the impact of traffic on the network

Page 21
Page 43




3.8 Car Parking — Managing Supply

Parking is a key determinant of journeys and can be managed accordingly. It is proposed to
continue the progress made in Bath to relocate long stay parking at Park and Ride sites, thus
reducing vehicle movements into the constrained city centre. This underlies the efforts to
reduce the impact of traffic and, while Park and Ride alone will not provide the solution, it is a
valuable component of the wider strategy. It enables long stay spaces to be relocated at the
periphery which creates options for the central area — converting long stay to short stay
spaces or reducing capacity in favour of other land uses while reducing traffic levels. This
works in favour of economic activity and is a more efficient use of scarce space in the centre,
presenting opportunities to improve the walking environment. The overall supply of parking
can be maintained with increases in Park and Ride capacity offsetting reductions elsewhere.

A large number of parking spaces have been taken away or relocated from the city centre
over the years, with complementary expansion of the Park & Ride sites. This includes over
3,000 long stay on-street spaces as part of the residents parking schemes introduced in
2000/2001 and the 320 spaces at Royal Victoria Park no longer being available for free all-day
parking (introduced in 2013).

This has not been detrimental to the local economy and has helped to reduce traffic levels and
shows that parking resources can be managed more effectively. It will be desirable to
withdraw more off-street spaces over time in tandem with expansion of the Park and Ride
offer. The closure of Avon Street car park will mean that over 600 spaces are displaced,
whilst the reduction in the city centre could be higher if other car park sites are developed as
part of the Enterprise Area.

The increase in parking demand in the future has been estimated based on the predicted
number of additional jobs and houses that will created in the city. The calculation of demand
is outlined in Table 3.1 which is based on estimating the increase in car commuting trips into
the centre.

Table 3.1: Estimated Increase in Commuter Parking Demand

Bath Residents External Total
trips

New housing 3,000 4,000 7,000
Employees per dwelling 0.9 1.03
Residents who work in centre 69% 32%
New employees in centre 1,863 1,318 3,819 7,000
Car mode share to centre 12.4% 24.6% 63.8%
New car trips to centre 231 324 2,436 2,992
Travel to work on average day 80% 80% 80%
Parking demand 185 259 1,949 2,393

Allowance has also been made for an increase in non-commuting parking demand in the
future (retail, tourist and visitor trips). Car park surveys in 2009 showed that around 13% of
vehicles using city centre car parks and 43% using Park and Ride were commuters. By

Page 22
Page 44



applying these figures to the total transactions for each type of car park, an estimation of the
number of spaces occupied by commuters was made as shown in Table 3.2 (based on
interview surveys and assuming that all commuters would be parked at the time of peak
occupancy).

Table 3.2: Existing Peak Weekday Occupancy (November 2011)

Location Total Users Spaces used by Spaces used by Total
Commuters Non- Spaces used
Commuters
City Centre 3,380 439 1,346 1,785
Park & Ride 2,496 1,073 643 1,716
Total 5,876 1,513 1,988 3,501

If a 10% increase in non-commuting demand is allowed for, this results in the demand for an
additional 199 spaces, giving a total expected increase of 2,592 spaces.

However, it is expected that increased use of non-car modes, will reduce the overall parking
demand in the future. Allowing for a 10% reduction in the additional future demand (259
spaces) and 10% reduction in existing commuting demand (151 spaces) gives an estimated
net increase in demand of 2,182 spaces.

From the November 2011 parking surveys, the maximum occupancy was higher on Saturday
than on weekdays, with a total of 3,998 spaces occupied (in the centre and at Park & Ride)
representing 87% of the available capacity. By comparison, the maximum weekday
occupancy was 3,482 spaces. Ifitis considered that the figure for Saturday represents the
effective capacity of the car parks, there is spare capacity of 516 spaces on a weekday (when
car parks operate at over 85% of capacity, congestion starts to occur due to vehicles
searching for a space).

Since 2011, increased capacity has or will be provided by expansion of the existing Park &
Ride sites:

390 spaces at Lansdown (completed February 2013);

230 spaces at Odd Down (completed November 2012);

248 spaces at Newbridge (planning permission received November 2013);
868 additional spaces in total.

However, as part of the planned redevelopment of sites for the Enterprise Area some city
centre parking spaces may be displaced. Their replacement in the city centre will need to be
considered within the strategy as a whole.

With the possible reduction in city centre parking capacity, greater use of Park & Ride will
need to be made and encouraged, particularly for those staying three hours or more.
However, good provision for shorter stays should remain in the city centre, whilst aiming to
reduce traffic levels in the centre itself. All car trips into the city centre requiring parking could
then be directed to the nearest car park on the edge of the centre, based on their incoming
route:

e Southgate for trips from the south and east;
e Podium for trips from the north; and

Page 23
Page 45



e Charlotte Street for trips from the west.

With the above system, the need for traffic to pass through and circulate around the city
centre should be reduced.

It may also be desirable to support ‘informal’ Park and Ride where car users can park at
peripheral locations and use existing bus services to complete their journeys. This could be
developed through workplace travel plans to inform people about the options, working with the
owners of potential car parks such as pubs or supermarkets where spaces may be available
during the day and gaining the support of bus operators.

Other parking issues include enforcement of regulations, a necessity to avoid obstruction of
streets and to ensure that spaces are available to as many users as possible. Residents’
parking schemes also form part of the picture.

Car park user surveys have been used to provide origin information and also show qualitative
aspects of the parking offer. These have covered both central area car parks and Park and
Ride and indicate the origins of users and their views on the parking offer. This baseline data
can be compared with future survey data to assess the impacts of the parking strategy,
particularly in terms of user satisfaction.

Off Street Parking

Policy GABP7: Car parking is a central feature of the strategy, enabling other components to
take effect. The policy of reducing central area public parking and expanding long stay
capacity at Park and Ride sites should continue, enabling greater emphasis to be given to
walking, cycling and bus services in the historic core and on key corridors. Reduction of city
centre parking will not take place until alternatives are in place.

Action GABA17: Undertake a further analysis of parking requirements to ensure that the proposal to
retain 500 public parking spaces within the Enterprise Area is sufficient to maintain the vitality of the
City Centre economy and to encourage modal shift.

Page 24
Page 46



3.9 Park and Ride — Providing Long Stay Parking Capacity

Park and Ride is well-established with three sites in operation for the city. These are popular
as evidenced by high levels of use and help to reduce vehicle movements into the city centre.
Relocating long stay parking from the centre to park and ride is achievable although there is a
revenue implication if Park and Ride is priced at a lower level than central area parking and
the supply of the latter declines. A site to the east would complete the picture, allowing people
to choose not to drive into the centre and thus contribute to a better city environment. Data
shows that many trips originate from the east and that some motorists choose to use the Park
and Ride facilities at Odd Down and Lansdown in the absence of a facility to the east. A
designated site will need to be adopted, enabling bus and/or rail links to serve the city centre.
The three existing park and ride sites may need to be expanded further; work has recently
commenced on the expansion of the Newbridge facility. There may be scope to reassess
journey patterns, for example taking account of the expanded Newbridge provision, orientating
some Park and Ride services to the hospital (as the Odd Down P&R buses do) or other
destination rather than or in addition to the city centre.

The established Park and Ride sites are well used and often full. Data shows that most users
use the site nearest to their approach to the city but that some may divert from Lansdown and
Odd Down to a new site to the east if available. Users comprise commuters and
visitors/shoppers and collectively account for around 1.2 million vehicle trips every year (to
and from the city centre). Evidence has been obtained from surveys of current Park and Ride
users including identification of their journey origins. Traffic count data has been used to
assess the effects of Park and Ride on radial routes. It is suggested that further work is
needed to identify how the additional demand can be accommodated.

Park and Ride

Policy GABP8: Establish the need for increased Park and Ride capacity as part of a wider
parking strategy and to undertake a detailed assessment of sites to the East of the City, with an
initial bus based facility if needed while a railway site is developed.

Action GABA18: Identify need for increased Park and Ride capacity and detailed assessment of sites
through the ‘Placemaking Plan as part of a wider parking strategy.

Page 25
Page 47



3.10Bus Services — Making Better Use of Services

Bus services in and around the city are numerous and generally of good quality. The new bus
station provides a focus for a wide range of services and many buses are accessible to
everyone. Improving bus services is about much more than the buses themselves — it is
about understanding how, when and why people travel and providing buses to meet those
needs. One bus can substitute for many car journeys in the city. Working with bus operators
will determine the most appropriate ways to build the market through straightforward ticketing,
new information provision and services that meet the needs of local people during the day and
into the evenings.

The apparently declining core market for buses is a concern which will need to be addressed
given that bus is the most realistic option for many journeys beyond reasonable walking or
cycling distance, or for those people who unable or unwilling to walk or cycle. The Greater
Bristol Bus Network is a concerted effort to generate growth in bus use through improved
services supported by new infrastructure, the principles of which could be applied to Bath.

A number of initiatives have aimed to improve the quality of bus services in terms of journey
reliability and punctuality but problems of unpredictable traffic conditions and high fare levels
persist alongside negative perceptions of the bus offer which will need to be overcome if
demand is to be stimulated. Measures that can help include the widespread availability of real
time service information and journey planning tools. Funding from the Department for
Transport’s Better Bus Areas scheme is enabling the introduction of measures to help bus
movements in the London Road corridor. There are also plans to introduce a bus lane on the
A36 Lower Bristol Road on its approach to Windsor Bridge Junction. The recent experimental
changes in Dorchester Street are designed to ensure that buses are not delayed entering and
exiting the Bus Station. The widespread adoption of smartcard and other forms of easy
payment will help show how bus travel can be made more attractive and also provides
valuable data for operators about users’ travel habits.

The number of bus users has remained relatively constant in recent years — based on data for
the number of users — but the number of concessionary users has increased. This indicates
that the number of regular fare-paying users has declined, despite the improvements to
services and infrastructure introduced through the Bath Transport Package.

Page 26
Page 48



Specific measures will include:
e Bus network improvements including infrastructure e.g. evening services;
e Better multi-media service information (joint initiative between operators, the Council
and users);
e Smart ticketing, as being introduced currently and mobile phone ticketing;
e Revised fares structures, especially for inter-urban services; and
Scope for additional priority measures e.g. at junctions.

Bus Network

Policy GABP9: Improved bus services, with ticketing and other improvements and measures
to improve reliability, will provide alternative travel options to car use, promoted through
travel plans and comprehensive marketing.

Action GABA19: Prioritise funds to improve the reliability of bus travel and continue to engage with
bus companies.

Action GABA20: Build on the improvements implemented by the Bath Transport package and
support Real Time Information, Smartcard and review of bus routes to develop enhanced and more
frequent services with the aim of an %2 hourly service on cross city routes.

Action GABA21: Provide new dedicated facilities for buses when developments allow e.g. from Bath
Riverside adjoining Green Park Station into the city centre.

Action GABA22: Encourage bus operators to adopt Euro 6 standard engines and take opportunities
to run electric or hybrid buses.

Page 27
Page 49



3.11Travel Plans

Travel plans can contribute to people understanding their travel options and moving towards

sustainable modes. Workplace travel plans for major education and workplaces including
those in the Enterprise Area will need to identify sustainable transport options. This may

include better travel information to widen choice, changing the opening times of shops, offices

and businesses to help spread peak demand and measures to enable the uptake of public
transport use.

The impact of travel plans can be demonstrated by lasting changes in travel behaviour,

supporting sustainable travel choices and reducing peak time car travel. Information has been

obtained regarding existing travel plans and experience from other parts of the country
indicates how travel plan initiatives can be successful in reducing car dependency. For

example, the University of Bath’s travel plans show a reduction of 7.5% in staff sole occupant

car trips in two years.
Specific measures will include promoting travel plans through a travel forum:

Workplaces;

Education establishments;

Healthcare and Royal United Hospital catchment issues;
Rail stations/neighbourhoods.

Provide additional secure cycle parking at workplaces, leisure facilities, rail stations,
city centre locations; and

¢ Workplace shower facilities; and an inclusive training programme

Travel Plans

Policy GABP10: Travel plans will be promoted for all main activities in the city to support a
move from car use to other means of travel and will be built into the planning process;

Action GABA23 Existing plans will be refreshed for workplaces, universities and other education
establishments;

Action GABA24: Travel need for healthcare, particularly the Royal United Hospital will be
considered,;

Action GABA25: Travel plans will be developed working with transport providers: train and bus
operators, cycle shops, etc.

Action GABA26: Support implementation of school travel plans to reduce impact of ‘school run’

Action GABA27: Continue to develop and promote its own travel plan to be one of the best in the
district.

Page 28
Page 50



3.12Taxis and River Taxis

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles are a vital part of the available public transport
network. They provide an immediate and flexible option for all users and are particularly
important in providing a service that is not covered by conventional bus or rail services.
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles can and do assist the rail and bus networks by
acting as feeder services and by providing a fall back service in the event of rail or network
issues, thereby providing a vital link in the chain of available public transport. They provide an
essential door to door service, which can be a vital lifeline for people with mobility
impairments, or persons who need a flexible transport solution. Hackney Carriages and
Private Hire vehicles are also used extensively by the local authority to provide a transport
solution for schoolchildren and social care clients.

Licensed vehicles are a valuable asset for tourists and visitors to the local area who are
unfamiliar with the location and rely on the specialist knowledge of the local drivers to deliver
them to their required destination. They provide an invaluable contribution to the vibrancy of
the night time economy of the area and are often the only form of local public transport
available in the early hours of the morning. Hackney Carriages and Private Hires’ are a key
element of the overall public transport framework and as such the Council recognises their
value and contributions to transportation throughout the area of Bath & North East Somerset
Council. The Council will continue to support the licensed trade by providing Hackney
Carriage Stands where demand and space allows and will continue to review the Hackney
Carriage fare structure annually. The Council will continue to support Private Hire Operators
through the licensing regime to allow businesses to deliver an effective and competitive
transportation package.

Taxis and River Taxis
Policy GABP11: Maintain the taxi network as part of the wider range of transport options

Action GABA28: Review the location of taxi ranks within the city to distribute them to more effective
locations.

Action GABA29: Encourage low emission vehicles for Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles

Page 29
Page 51



3.13Rail — New Services and Opportunities

Options for train travel are expected to widen as changes are made to rail infrastructure and
services. For journeys to Bristol, the Wiltshire towns and beyond, rail will be a more attractive
option. Improved access to the local stations will become more important. Consequently
existing provision within Bath will need to be reviewed to determine if it can meet potential
future need and is accessible.

Given the scope of the rail network, it is possible that improvements outside the area will
support more train travel such as the creation of new stations in Wiltshire (including Corsham)
or the Bristol area, enabling people to access rail services more easily.

The timing of changes to the rail network is critical in that electrification of the Great Western
Main Line from London to Bristol and beyond presents the opportunity for future options to be
included, provision for which will not be possible subsequently. Given the high cost of rail
infrastructure, plans need to be fully justified and robust. Changes to routes with two trains
per hour diverted from Bristol Temple Meads to London Paddington via Bristol Parkway and
two per hour via Bath Spa opens up new capacity. In addition, the proposed MetroWest
network envisages the upgrading of services across a wide area with more frequent trains
between Bath and the Bristol area. Rail and ride opportunities need to be considered as part
of this process

Continued co-operation between local authorities will help maximize the benefits of the
substantial changes to the rail network. Improved links with the Bristol area will support the
growth of Bath while working with Wiltshire Council and train operators will help to improve
services between Bath and Bradford on Avon, Trowbridge, Warminster, Chippenham and
Westbury.

The number of rail users is at an all-time high and more people can be expected to use the
local network when wider journey options become available, such as the West of England
Metro for which some information is available. Business cases including demand and
revenue forecasts will be needed to justify proposals on the rail network.

Specific measures will include:

e Improved walk/cycle/bus access to Bath Spa and Oldfield Park, including from the
Enterprise Area;

e Service improvements and journey opportunities on electrified main line and
MetroWest network;

e Increasing capacity of existing trains e.g. Trowbridge line;

e Further work is required to examine the potential for new stations and rail and ride
options or improvements to existing stations; and

e Station capacity management e.g. event days.

Rail

Policy GABP12: The growth in rail capacity and the range of services available as part of the
Great Western Main Line electrification scheme and the development of MetroWest will support
significantly more rail journeys to Bristol. Better services will be promoted to link Bath with the
west Wiltshire towns. Access to local stations need to be improved and new stations may be
appropriate.

Action GABA30: Continue to support and develop the introduction of MetroWest services.

Action GABA31: Continue to investigate how improvements to the rail network to the east could help
with the development of a Park and Rail facilityage 52

Action GABA32: Support extending improved services to Westbury and reopening of Corsham Station




3.14Coaches — Supporting the Economy

Visitor coaches are a strong contributor to the economy. The Roman Baths is a key
destination with over 350,000 visitors arriving by coach each year. The need to close the
Avon Street coach park requires both a short term solution and a permanent solution. This
also needs to consider options for loading/unloading coaches in the city centre. Orange
Grove has been altered to create a high quality public realm and accommodates some bus
services including tours hence is no longer available for large numbers of coaches

The Bath Christmas Market attracts visitors in considerable numbers, many of whom arrive by
coach; the summer season also sees a rise in the number of coaches visiting the city. Over
80 may arrive in a single day and accommodating this number has been difficult. With the
relocation of the coach park, ample space needs to be available to accommodate peak
demand or other options will need to be considered such as the suspension of on-street car
parking bays in some locations to enable overflow coach parking at certain times.

Many coaches originate in London/South East as shown by survey data and all require access
in the city within a short distance of the main attractions. Avon Street coach park has
insufficient space for the number of coaches arriving and at least five bays are required in the
city centre. Dialogue with visitor attractions indicates that coaches are a major component of
their success but that an easily accessible unloading point in the city centre is essential, which
is linked to a more remote coach parking facility where coaches will park up after dropping the
visitors within a City Centre location.

Specific measures will include:

Identification of City centre coach set-down/pick-up facilities;

Identification of replacement coach parking facilities;

Management of pre-booked arrivals;

Peak demands for market / festivals / events may need additional capacity.

Coaches

Policy GABP13: Coaches will continue to be promoted as an important means of bringing
visitors to the city. The use of Weston Island as an initial alternative to Avon Street Coach
Park is supported pending the development of a more permanent solution.

Action GABA33: A replacement coach park should be provided at either Weston Island or Odd
Down Park and Ride site.

Action GABA34: Develop an additional site where Coaches can drop off visitors e.g Manvers
Street/Avon Street.

Action GABA35: Find an additional coach parking site near to the city centre to complement the
use of Weston Island.

Action GABA36: Investigate measures to restrict coaches from driving into the city without
contributing to the local economy.

Page 31
Page 53



3.15 Freight Movements — Better Management

Freight movements are essential to keep the economy moving. A consolidation centre has
been established for city centre retailers which has reduced vehicle movements dramatically
but more businesses could be involved which would enable it to operate without subsidy.
From the initial involvement of around 30 businesses, several hundred will be needed to make
the scheme a commercial proposition. This could be supported through further dialogue with
potential users but also an understanding of possible traffic management and enforcement
changes such as restrictions on loading and unloading, emissions standards or vehicle
size/weight limits. Electric delivery vehicles and cycle delivery of parcels could be promoted
for the city centre.

Loading and unloading restrictions are in place but are contentious — businesses cannot
always specify delivery times or incur additional costs to meet the on-streets constraints.
While many businesses operate with specific delivery arrangements, problems can result from
smaller delivery vehicles, notably the expansion in parcels and courier services and also one-
off activities such as builders’ vehicles which can cause obstructions. These are difficult to
manage but a permit scheme limiting access to pre-defined times and locations may be
desirable if the problem becomes widespread.

Food and other retail deliveries are becoming more popular as internet access increases.
This has generated delivery van activity but not necessarily a reduction in visits to shops as
people view potential purchases before the transaction is made from home, particularly for
one-off purchases. However, the timing of retail visits may be changing as internet shopping
becomes more widespread.

Although overall the number of heavy vehicles is small, their impact can be considerable so
enabling the use of smaller vehicles has significant benefits. Evidence has been sought from
city centre management, representing retail activities in particular. However, large vehicles
such as those on London Road do not wish to negotiate the city’s streets unless they have a
particular need to be there.

Specific measures will include:

More cycle deliveries;

Consolidation centre used for more businesses;
Possible out-of-hours deliveries;

P&R retail collection points;

Working partnership with businesses and operators;

Page 32
Page 54



e Press the Highways Agency to take measures to remove heavy lorries from the city
and,
e Restricted unloading hours with enforcement.

Heavy Goods Vehicles

Policy GABP14: That freight movements be considered more fully, particularly to promote
consolidation of deliveries and reduce the impact of HGV’s.

Action GABA37: Work with the Highways Agency, Wiltshire and other authorities to develop
proposals and strategies to remove through traffic and HGV'’s in particular, from Bath.

Action GABA38: Work with businesses and operators to better manage loading and unloading
arrangements.

Action GABA39: Continue to support Freight Consolidation Centre and review potential for
additional centres.

Action GABA40: Develop ‘Leave & Collect’ points for shopping, with drop offs at P&R sites.

Action GABA41: Consolidate home delivery services

Page 33
Page 55



3.16 River and Leisure uses

The river is an underused resource within the city. The Enterprise Masterplan will put this
resource at the heart of the regeneration of this part of the city. Transport on the river will not
deliver particularly quick journeys however its use could enhance visitor experience and
provide a new ‘offer’ for the city. The Transport Strategy will allow the continued development
of the River to enhance the city for residents and visitors.

River

Policy GABP15: Allow the continued development of the use of the river for
tourism, and leisure uses and other uses e.g. Taxi services.

Action GABA42: To support initiatives to improve access to and use of the river.

Page 34
Page 56



4. Delivering the Strategy

4.1 Priorities and Programme

The Strategy is intended to generate significant changes in travel behaviour and mode share.
It also needs to be deliverable. Generating major benefits for the economy, community and
environment is achievable in the spirit of the vision and offers the potential to make Bath an
exemplar city for sustainable transport.

Walking is a major component of the strategy with widespread benefits and requires an
extensive programme of works including signing, lighting, footpath and footway improvements,
better lighting and improved crossings. Parking and traffic management measures will require
a phased approach while development sites may take many years to complete.

Ideally all proposed measures should be progressed together. However, some proposals are
easier to deliver than others and will involve more procedures such as Traffic Regulation
Orders or planning consent. Some proposals may have long lead times which require
extensive planning. However, some have been given a high rating for priority, reflecting their
extent of their expected benefits. Detailed costings are unavailable at this stage but some
schemes will have wide coverage even if the component schemes are relatively small; for
example, a programme of walking route improvements may involve a large number of small
schemes throughout the city.

4.2 Monitoring and Key Performance Indicators

A comprehensive set of base data will need to be collected prior to any measures being put in
place in order to allow detailed before and after studies to be undertaken. The impacts of the
strategy will need to be measured on a regular basis and assessed for their contribution
towards the objectives. A comprehensive series of data will need to be collected on a regular
basis that will indicate changes over time, although more specific assessments may be
needed in response to particular measures.

Specific KPIs will include:

Number of vehicles/delays/traffic growth;

User satisfaction;

Air quality;

Increases in walking, cycling and bus and train use;
Parking demand and distribution; and

Successful delivery of development sites.

A Delivery Plan has been developed with a five year profile against which continuous
improvement can be demonstrated (see Appendix 1). This will be subject to annual review
and the complementarity of measures will also be considered.

Biennial Report

Action GABA43: A biennial report should be prepared of actions and projects implemented in the
delivery of this strategy.

Page 35
Page 57



4.3 Outcomes

Delivering this Strategy will address the defined objectives through improved travel choice to
reduce the number of car journeys, hence reducing the impact of traffic and improving air
quality. The local economy will be enhanced through easier access on foot and cycle and to
improve the visitor experience. Quality of life will be improved with a more attractive city,
supporting a culture of sustainable travel enabled by a comprehensive programme of
community engagement. This will enable investment and development to take place, building
on sustainable travel throughout the city.

All the measures outlined above need to be delivered in combination to address the strategy
objectives — there are no individual or simple solutions.

If delivered effectively, it will achieve the following:

Improved travel choices;
e More business opportunities and higher productivity;
Fewer car journeys, healthier lifestyles;
Reduced carbon emissions, addressing climate change;
Better air quality, improved safety and health;
Sustainable development and delivery of Core Strategy — Placemaking Plan; and
Improved experience for residents and visitors

The implementation of the measures proposed will influence Bath in a positive way over a
number of years — changing the culture of the city to be a leading proponent of walking and
sustainable transport is a shift requiring behavioural change. However, the effects could be
transformational with a new emphasis on the historic fabric and layout of the city, enabled by a
strong walking tradition supported more cycling and better use of trains and buses. The city
pre-dates cars but vehicles have gradually come to dominate the streets to the detriment of
the environment and the economy. Bath should be Europe’s prime example of a sustainable
transport culture.

4.3 Targets and Supporting Indicators

Setting targets requires confidence that the measures planned will be delivered and that
they are realistic ambitions. Given the continuing growth in sustainable transport modes, it
is reasonable to assume levels of walking, cycling, bus and rail use will in increase by 2020.
The target for each of these modes is shown in Table 4.1 below.

Table 4.1 Targets

Target Comment
Walking 8% Increase by 2020 from
2015 baseline
Cycling 22% increase by 2020 from Using annualised index
2015 baseline (B&NES wide)
Bus passengers 2.5 % increase by 2020 from | Growth in patronage
2015 baseline (B&NES wide)
Rail passengers 16% increase by 2020 from ORR data for Bath Spa and
2015 baseline Oldfield Park Station usage
Page 36

Page 58



Table 4.2 sets out our 5 Supporting Indicators. We will measure our performance in improving
bus satisfaction and it is also important to monitor our progress on tackling congestion,
improving air quality, reducing CO, emissions and availability of car parking in city centre and
park and ride sites.

Table 4.2: Supporting Indicators

Congestion (B&NES wide)

CO, emissions (B&NES wide)

Air Quality in Bath City Centre AQMA

Bus satisfaction (B&NES Wide)

Traffic reduction crossing Bath central cordon
Availability of parking in Central Area and P&R sites

We will use a traffic light system for monitoring our indicators. Green means performance is
improving, amber no change whilst red means performance is slipping. This is a simple but
cost effective approach providing direction of travel.

Our indicators and targets will help track how our schemes are doing. Where progress looks
to be falling short we will consider what additional prioritisation and/or measures will be
appropriate to get it back on track.

Benchmarking our performance with neighbouring authorities will be undertaken using
National Highways and Transport Public Satisfaction Survey data.

44 Delivery and Funding

The delivery of the Bath Transport Strategy will be dependent on available resources from
Council own budget, private developments through Community Infrastructure Levy, bids to
Government and other resources particularly the Local Enterprise Partnership. In addition the
planning of the city through the Core Strategy should help delivery many elements of the
strategy and area or sites come forward for redevelopment. The Bath City Riverside
Enterprise Area Masterplan will be key to delivering many aspects of the Strategy.

The following chart shows, for the current financial year (2014/15), how the Council is
spending its budget of £20.2m on transport improvements.

Page 37
Page 59



Additional funding (s106), 1%

London Road including cycling, 3%

Local Sustainable Transport Fund
75% on cycling, 4%

Page 38
Page 60



Getting Around Bath:
Consultation Findings

A Transport Strategy for Bath
October 2014

Bath and North East Somerset Council

“W X N

Mott MacDonald
Page 61



Page 62



Getting Around Bath:
Consultation Findings

A Transport Strategy for Bath

October 2014

Bath and North East Somerset Council

Mott MacDonald, Stoneham Place, Stoneham Lane, Southampton, SO50 9NW, United Kingdom
T +44 (0)23 8062 8800 F +44 (0)23 8064 7251 w www.mottmac.com

Page 63



Page 64



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings

Mott MacDonald

Issue and revision record

Revision Date Originator Checker Approver Description
A Aug14 Laura Donovan  Steven Marsh Sean Finney Draft Report
B 13 Oct 14 Laura Donovan  Steven Marsh Sean Finney Draft Report

Information Class: Standard

This document is issued for the party which commissioned it
and for specific purposes connected with the above-captioned
project only. It should not be relied upon by any other party or
used for any other purpose.

329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014 Pa
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Transport Strategy\

We accept no responsibility for the consequences of this
document being relied upon by any other party, or being used
for any other purpose, or containing any error or omission
which is due to an error or omission in data supplied to us by
other parties.

This document contains confidential information and
proprietary intellectual property. It should not be shown to
other parties without consent from us and from the party
which commissioned it.

e 65

eport\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings - Rev B.docx



Page 66



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath
Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

Contents

Chapter Title Page

Executive Summary i

1 Introduction 1
1.1 Draft Transport Strategy — Vision and Objectives 1
1.2 Consultation 1
1.3 Report Structure 2
2 Methodology 3
2.1 Consultation Design 3
2.2 Consultation Questionnaire 3
2.3 Consultation Events 4
2.4 Response 4
2.5 Data Processing and Analysis 4
2.6 Additional Stakeholder Responses 4
3 Profile of Consultees 5
3.1 Location 5
3.2 Age 6
3.3 Gender 6
3.4 Disability 6
4 Main Findings 7
4.1 The Strategy 7
4.2 Reducing Congestion in Bath 8
4.3 Reducing the Impact of Heavy Traffic 11
4.4 Simplifying Road Layouts 15
4.5 Rail Travel 16
4.6 Parking 17
4.7 Walking and Cycling 19
4.8 Tackling Air Quality 21
4.9 Buses 22
4.10 Coaches 23
4.11 Additional Comments 25
Appendices 26
Appendix A. Consultation Questionnaire 27
Appendix B. Additional Stakeholder Comments 28
329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014 Page 67

P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Transport Strategy\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings - Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath
Mott MacDonald

Key Findings

Following the publication of the Draft Transport Strategy for Bath, consultation was undertaken with
members of the public and stakeholders to explore opinions of the proposals set out within the
document.

The key vision underpinning the Draft Transport Strategy for Bath is that:

Bath will enhance its unique status by adopting measures that promote sustainable transport
and reduce the intrusion of vehicles, particularly in the historic core.

This will enable more economic activity and growth, while enhancing its special character and
environment and improving the quality of life for local people.

A total of 208 responses were received to the consultation questionnaire, with 156 online and 52 paper
based submissions. Key findings to emerge within these responses included:

The Strateqy

Two thirds of respondents agreed with the vision for Bath underpinning the Draft Transport Strategy
(67%)

There was strong support for increasing sustainable transport options within the city of Bath,
including walking (93%), rail (91%), bus (89%) and cycling (81%)

Reducing Congestion in Bath

Over three quarters of respondents (77%) agreed with the development of a Park/Rail and Ride
facility to the East of Bath, with a view to reducing congestion in the city

Reducing the Impact of Heavy Traffic

Over three quarters of respondents (76%) also felt that the development of a new road linking the A4
(Batheaston Bypass) with the A36 would be a good way of reducing through-traffic within Bath

The majority of respondents (86%) felt that preventing HGVs from entering the city centre during
peak hours, and the use of a Freight Consolidation Centre with electric vehicles, was a good idea

Over 80% of respondents (83%) also indicated that they would support the redirection of vehicles

from London Road and Cleveland Bridge in order to address issues of congestion on these key
through-routes within the city

Simplifying Road Layouts

Almost two thirds of respondents (65%) felt that the removal of selected one-way road layouts within
the city was a good idea in order to simplify road layouts and reduce the impact of traffic on nearby
buildings

329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Transport Btagﬁy%port\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings - Rev
B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Mott MacDonald

Rail Travel

There was significant support for improvements to rail services including cheaper fares (91%), more
frequent services (90%) and better trains (89%)

The majority of respondents (83%) also agreed that proposed developments in Bath, particularly
surrounding Oldfield Park Station, and consequent enhanced service provision would make
travelling from this station more attractive to potential rail users

Parking

Around three quarters of respondents (74%) agreed with plans to increase Park and Ride facilities in
Bath

Walking and Cycling

The implementation of pedestrian schemes, in line with the strategy’s objective to make Bath the
UK’s ‘most walkable city’, was supported by the majority of respondents (85%)

Three quarters of respondents (75%) supported the prioritisation of cycling along the river corridor,
with radial routes into the city centre

Tackling Air Quality

Around three quarters of respondents (74%) supported proposals to increase facilities for electric
vehicles within the city

Buses

Around three fifths of respondents (58%) thought that increasing the number of bus lanes within Bath
was a good idea

Coaches

Around 80% of respondents supported proposals to find new locations for coaches to drop off
visitors before parking elsewhere (81%) and to expand Park and Ride sites to include coach waiting
areas (78%)

Just less than half of respondents (47%) agreed with the proposal to develop a new site within close
proximity to the city centre where coaches could park

329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath TransporF@g@;ﬁ@sport\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings - Rev
B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath
Mott MacDonald

Following the development of the Draft Transport Strategy for Bath', a consultation exercise was
undertaken to gauge public and stakeholder opinions on this document. This consultation was co-ordinated
by Bath and North East Somerset (BANES) Council, with Mott MacDonald technical staff on hand to
provide information on the proposals set out within the strategy. The findings from the consultation were
independently analysed by Mott MacDonald’s Public Consultation Team and are presented within the
following report.

1.1 Draft Transport Strategy - Vision and Objectives

The Draft Transport Strategy for Bath sets out a long term vision for transport in and around the city of
Bath, with proposals set out to improve and address key transport issues facing the city over the next 15
years, up to 2029.

In addition to addressing practical transport issues such as connectivity, accessibility and sustainability, the
strategy also links to wider city ambitions of growth and development.

The document recognises the vital role that transport plays for both local residents and visitors, with the
latter a fundamental aspect of the local economy. The historic nature of Bath, and the need to preserve this
in the interests of both residents and visitors, is also acknowledged and emphasised throughout the
strategy document.

Considering these points, the core vision underpinning this Draft Transport Strategy is that:

Bath will enhance its unique status by adopting measures that promote sustainable
transport and reduce the intrusion of vehicles, particularly in the historic core.

This will enable more economic activity and growth, while enhancing its special
character and environment and improving the quality of life for local people.

In order to achieve this vision, the strategy document has a number of key objectives, including:

Supporting and enabling economic growth, competitiveness and jobs;

Promoting sustainable mobility;

Widening travel choice;

Widening access to opportunities: jobs/learning/training;

Improving air quality & health, reducing vehicle carbon emissions;

Safeguarding and enhancing the unique historic environment and World Heritage Site status; and
Improving the quality of life in the city.

1.2 Consultation

A consultation exercise was undertaken with local residents and stakeholders in order to evaluate the
content of this Draft Transport Strategy document and to ascertain whether the proposals made within this
meet the long term needs of the city and surrounding areas. The methods used within this consultation and
the key findings to emerge from this are explored within subsequent sections of this report.

1 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Transpﬁag@t?@\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath
Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

1.3 Report Structure

This report is structured as follows:

= Chapter 2 — Methodology

= Chapter 3 — Profile of Consultees

= Chapter 4 — Main Findings

= Appendix A — Consultation Questionnaire

= Appendix B — Summary of Additional Stakeholder Comments

2 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trand@agﬁra?e&y\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath
Mott MacDonald

This section of the report outlines the research methods employed within the Draft Transport Strategy
consultation exercise.

21 Consultation Design

The consultation questionnaire was developed by BANES Council in order to capture public and
stakeholder views on the Draft Transport Strategy for Bath. This was administered in both a paper and
online format, to enable maximum participation in the consultation process. A copy of this questionnaire is
provided in Appendix A.

The consultation was live for around one month from late June to late July 2014.
2.2 Consultation Questionnaire

The consultation questionnaire contained questions relating to the following key areas which are covered
within the Draft Transport Strategy and invited respondents to provide their views.

Key topics within the questionnaire included:

The Strategy - The core vision and key objectives underpinning the strategy, particularly sustainability
and the increase of walking, cycling and public transport use

Reducing Congestion in Bath - Park/Rail and Ride proposals and potential usage

Reducing the Impact of Heavy Traffic - Link road proposals, changes to HGV access to city centre
and vehicle redirection from existing through-routes

Simplifying Road Layouts - Proposals to remove one-way restrictions on selected city roads

Rail Travel - Rail service improvements and impact of local developments on how attractive rail
services are to passengers

Parking - Proposals to increase Park and Ride facilities around the city of Bath

Walking and Cycling - Proposals to implement pedestrian schemes, how these schemes should be
delivered and the introduction of priority cycling routes along the river corridor with radial routes into the
city centre

Tackling Air Quality - Proposals to increase facilities for electric vehicles

Buses - Proposals to increase bus lanes and establishing what would encourage respondents to use
bus services more often

Coaches — Proposals to improve existing coach facilities, including the introduction of drop off
locations, inclusion of coach waiting areas within Park and Ride sites and introduction of new coach
parking facilities near to the city centre

Additional Comments - Any further comments on the proposed strategy

Demographics — Home Postcode Location, Age, Gender, Disability.

Paper copies of the questionnaire were distributed at consultation events and a link to the online survey
was available on the Council’s website, as well as being printed on consultation materials such as
leaflets.

3 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Transpﬁag@t?@\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath
Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

2.3 Consultation Events

A series of events were held in order to engage with the public and stakeholders, to present relevant
information relating to proposals and obtain feedback on the Draft Transport Strategy. These events were
publicised on the Council’s website, plus through word of mouth amongst stakeholder groups. Details of
the full programme of consultation events are outlined in Table 2.1 below:

Table 2.1:  Programme of Consultation Events

Event Date Venue Attendance

Stakeholder Workshop Thursday 26" June 2014 Bath Royal Literary and 49
Scientific Institute

Public Exhibition/ Monday 30™ June 2014 - Bath Royal Literary and 19

Consultation 6pm-9pm Scientific Institute

Public Exhibition/ Friday 11™ July 2014 - Guildhall 57

Consultation 2pm -5pm

2.4 Response

A total of 208 responses were received to the consultation questionnaire, comprising 156 online and 52
paper based submissions.

2.5 Data Processing and Analysis

Responses received to both the online and paper based questionnaire were collated and analysed using
SPSS, a specialist statistical analysis software.

Open text comments received in response to the consultation questionnaire (Questions 1a, 4, 5a, 6a, 7a,
8a, 11a, 12a, 12b, 13a, 14a, 16, 17a, 17b, 17c, 18) were thematically coded to capture emergent and
recurring themes within the data.

2.6 Additional Stakeholder Responses

In addition to the consultation questionnaire, stakeholders were invited to submit any additional comments
both during consultation events and via email. A summary of key points contained with the 19 additional
comments received can be found within Appendix B of this report.

4 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trand@tagﬁra%@y\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath
Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

3 Profile of Consultees

The following section of this report outlines the demographic profile of those who completed the
consultation questionnaire.

3.1 Location

Figure 3.1 below indicates the home postcodes of respondents:

Figure 3.1: Home Postcode Locations of Respondents
e L T
-.‘\\BHESTOL .
S hedand] (f §
\‘? < \”F‘Sl )

S

@ Crown copyright and database right 2014 aan

Base: 156 valid addresses (138 unique postcodes)

Most respondents can b ocated in and around the city of Bath, with a small number living in
surrounding areas such as od, Frome, Paulton and Midsomer Norton.
5 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014

P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Transf@@fjextda#\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

3.2 Age

Respondents were asked to indicate which age category they belonged to, as outlined in Table 3.1 below:

Table 3.1:  Age

Age Category %
18 - 24 years 5%
25 - 34 years 7%
35 - 44 years 15%
45 - 54 years 16%
55 - 64 years 30%
65 years plus 28%
Base: 198 valid responses

Over half of the sample was aged 55 or over (58%).
3.3 Gender

Of the 188 respondents who provided details of their gender, a greater proportion of males (69%) than
females (31%) responded to the consultation questionnaire.

3.4 Disability
The majority of respondents indicated that they did not consider themselves to have a disability (89%).

Those who indicated that they did consider themselves to have a disability (11%) were then asked to
provide details of this, as outlined in Table 3.2 below:

Table 3.2:  Nature of Disability

Physical/mobility impairment 16

Speech, hearing or eyesight 5

Ability to recognise physical danger 1

Learning disability 1

Other 4
Base: 27 valid responses (some responses indicated more than one disability)

Over half of respondents who considered themselves to have a disability indicated that this was a physical
or mobility related impairment (16 respondents).

6 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trandﬁagﬁra?@y\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath
Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

4 Main Findings

This section of the report presents the main findings from the consultation questionnaire.
4.1 The Strategy

As previously outlined, the Draft Transport Strategy has a vision for Bath, which is that:

Bath will enhance its unique status by adopting measures that promote sustainable
transport and reduce the intrusion of vehicles, particularly in the historic core.

This will enable more economic activity and growth, while enhancing its special
character and environment and improving the quality of life for local people.

Respondents were therefore initially asked whether they felt that this vision was right for the city of Bath:

Figure 4.1: Is [the Draft Transport Strategy vision] right for the city?

EmYes @No

Base: 169 valid responses

Over two thirds of respondents (67%) agreed with this proposed vision for the city.

7 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trans@agtelﬂ@\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

The strategy also contains objectives to increase a range of sustainable transport options; including
walking, cycling, bus and train use. Respondents were asked whether they agreed with each of these
objectives:

Figure 4.2: Increasing Public and Sustainable Transport Objectives — Do you agree?

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

10%

0%

1. Level of walking 2. Level of train use 3. Level of bus use 4. Level of cycling

Base: 1:203; 2: 203; 3: 202 4: 203 valid responses

The majority agreed that increasing walking (93%), train (91%) and bus use (89%) should be key aims of
the Draft Transport Strategy.

4.2 Reducing Congestion in Bath

The introduction of a Park/Rail and Ride service to the East of Bath is a key proposal within the Draft
Transport Strategy in relation to reducing congestion in the city. Figure 4.3 overleaf presents the extent of
agreement with this proposal amongst respondents:

8 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trand@agﬁraﬁﬁy\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath
Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

Figure 4.3:  The strategy proposes that there should be a new Park/Rail & Ride to the East of Bath. Do you agree?

Base: 204 valid responses

Over three quarters (77%) of respondents agreed with the development of a new Park/Rail and Ride

facility to the East of Bath.
Those who would use a Park/Rail and Ride to the East of the city were asked to indicate where they would

be travelling from to access this site, as presented in

9 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trans@agtelﬂ@\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -

Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

>

Table 4.1 below:

10 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath TrandBaggaTﬁ@y\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

Table 4.1:  If you would use a Park/Rail and Ride East of Bath could you indicate where you would be travelling
from?

4
o

Location

Batheaston

Bathampton

London

Corsham

Colerne

Bathford

Melksham

Surrounding A roads (A46/A4/A36/A383)
Bear Flat

Biddestone

Northend

Temple Cloud

Keynsham

Weston

Newbridge
North St Philip
Bath Spa
Dorset

a A A alalalalaaaladDMwwldoo

Base: 32 valid responses
4.3 Reducing the Impact of Heavy Traffic

The negative impact of heavy traffic upon the historic city of Bath, and the need to act in order to reduce
this, is recognised within the Draft Transport Strategy. A number of ideas and solutions to this are outlined
within the document, including a new road linking the A4 Batheaston Bypass with the A36. Opinions
relating to this particular proposal were sought within the consultation questionnaire, and are presented
within Figure 4.4 below:

11 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trans@agtet&Q\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

Figure 4.4: Would a new road linking the A4 Batheaston Bypass with the A36 be a good way of reducing city through
traffic?

Base: 199 valid responses
This proposal was supported by over three quarters of respondents (76%).

Amongst those who disagreed with the development of a new link road, key reasons for this objection
included:

Increase in traffic due to new road (15 respondents)

Environmental concerns (9 respondents)

Preference for alternative solutions (9 respondents)

Cost (7 respondents) and;

Negative impact upon the local area (6 respondents)

Some respondents who did agree with the proposal also provided additional comments, which included:
= View that this scheme is essential (7 respondents)
= Use of bypass should be mandatory for HGVs (5 respondents)

Preventing heavy goods vehicles (HGVs) from entering the city of Bath during peak times, and the use of
an alternative Freight Consolidation Centre with access to electric vehicles is another proposal within the
Draft Transport Strategy aimed at reducing the impact of heavy traffic and preserving the city’s heritage.
Respondents’ views of this proposal are presented in Figure 4.5 below:

12 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trand@agﬁra&iy\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

Figure 4.5: The Draft Transport Strategy proposes that HGVs should be prevented from accessing the city centre at
busy times and businesses encouraged to use a Freight Consolidation Centre which used an electric vehicle. Do you
think this is a good idea?

Base: 204 valid responses

The majority of respondents agreed with this proposal to divert deliveries out of the city centre during peak
business hours (86%).

Of those who disagreed with this proposal, key reasons cited included:
= Negative impact upon independent retailers (6 respondents)
= View that HGVs should be prevented from entering city entirely (4 respondents)

A number of respondents who supported the proposal also provided additional comments, such as:
= Need for integrated depot and freight consolidation (8 respondents)

= View that HGVs should be prevented from entering city entirely (6 respondents)

= Positive view of plans/plans should have been implemented sooner (5 respondents)

Problems caused by vehicles using London Road and Cleveland Bridge as a through route are also
recognised within the Draft Transport Strategy, and respondents were asked whether they would support
measures to redirect this traffic elsewhere, as presented in Figure 4.6 below:

13 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Transpﬁagtelt&g\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath
Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

Figure 4.6: The Draft Transport Strategy recognises that the use of the London Road and Cleveland Bridge as a
through route creates serious problems for the city. Would you support measures to direct these vehicles to use other
routes?

Base: 206 valid responses

The majority of respondents indicated that they would support such measures to redirect vehicles away
from London Road and Cleveland Bridge (83%).

Of those who did not support such proposals, key reasons for this included:

= Lack of suitable routes in the city centre (12 respondents)

= Proposals would cause congestion on other routes (7 respondents)

= Should introduce congestion charges instead (6 respondents)

= Routes are necessary/there is a reason people are using congested routes (5 respondents)

Whilst agreeing with the proposal, some respondents provided additional comments in relation to this,
which included:

= Need to carefully consider alternative routes (6 respondents)

= [ssue resolved when A46 link built (6 respondents)

14 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trand@agﬁra&@y\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

4.4 Simplifying Road Layouts

The simplification of road layouts, namely the removal of one way systems to reduce the impact of traffic
on nearby buildings is another key proposal for the city suggested within the Draft Transport Strategy.
Respondents were asked whether they felt this proposal was a good idea or not, as presented in Figure
4.7 below:

Figure 4.7: The Draft Transport Strategy proposes that some one way road layouts (e.g. Pines Way and around
Avon Street Car Park) should be removed to reduce the impact of traffic on nearby buildings. Do you think this is a
good idea?

Base: 187 valid responses

Whilst around two thirds of respondents agreed with the removal of one-way systems within the city (65%),
this received less support than other measures previously explored within the consultation questionnaire.

Of those who disagreed with this proposal, key reasons cited included:

= Preference to leave both routes as they are at present (12 respondents)

= Proposals would increase pollution (9 respondents)

= Don’t have enough information/uncertain about plans (6 respondents)

= Impacts on surrounding buildings overestimated/not relevant (6 respondents)

Amongst those who did support the proposal, key additional comments included:
= Agree if proposals include Queens Square (4 respondents)
= Agree provided scheme is planned and reviewed properly (3 respondents)

15 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Transﬁagteltgﬂ\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

4.5 Rail Travel

Rail services were identified as playing a key role in the future, with improvements to inter-city and local
trains expected to have a positive impact upon travel by this mode. Specific improvements to services
operating to the West Wiltshire Towns were explored within the consultation questionnaire, and
respondents’ views on these are outlined in Figure 4.8 below:

Figure 4.8:  How should services to the West Wiltshire Towns be improved?
100%

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

10%

0%

1. Cheaper fares 2. More frequent services 3. Better trains

Base: 1:176; 2: 178; 3: 166 valid responses

Each of the proposed measures for improving rail services to the West Wiltshire towns received similar
support, with around 90% of respondents agreeing that cheaper fares (91%), more frequent services
(90%) and better trains (89%) would improve these.

The impact of local developments and enhanced service provision on the use of rail services running from
Oldfield Park Station were also explored within the consultation questionnaire:

16 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trand@agﬁra%y\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

Figure 4.9:  With the developments proposed in Bath, Oldfield Park Station will become a new focal point for rail
travel. Service provision will be greatly enhanced. Would this make the service from this station more attractive to
users?

Base: 190 valid responses

The majority of respondents (83%) agreed that nearby developments and enhanced service provision from
Oldfield Park Station would make the service from this station more attractive to users.

4.6 Parking

The reduction of city centre parking, and subsequent increase in Park and Ride facilities on the outskirts of
the city, was another key proposal of the Draft Transport Strategy, with a view to preserving the city’s
historic built environment, plus decreasing congestion and improving air quality to contribute to an overall
improved city ambience. Respondents were asked whether they agreed with this approach, as presented
in Figure 4.10 overleaf:

17 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Transﬁagtelt&ﬁ\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

Figure 4.10: The Provisional Strategy is proposing increasing Park & Ride. This will help to reduce congestion and
potentially improve air quality creating an improved city centre ambience. Do you agree with this approach?

Base: 205 valid responses

Just less than three quarters of respondents (74%) agreed with proposals to increase Park and Ride
services.

Those who did not agree with increasing such facilities in the area provided additional comments to explain
their objections, which included:

= Proposals would encourage more cars (12 respondents)

= Should aim to encourage completely car free journeys (11 respondents)

= Park and Ride not available in evenings/require later services (5 respondents)

Those who did agree with this proposal supported their view with additional comments including:
= Need for residents parking within city centre (5 respondents)
= Support for Park and Ride facility to the East of Bath (3 respondents)

18 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trandﬁagﬁra&ﬁy\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath
Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

4.7 Walking and Cycling

The Draft Transport Strategy outlines ambitions to make Bath the UK’s ‘most walkable city’. Greater
emphasis on walking and improving mobility provision, achieved through the implementation of pedestrian
schemes, was therefore one proposal related to this objective which was explored within the consultation
questionnaire:

Figure 4.11: The Draft Transport Strategy is proposing that greater emphasis is placed on walking and improving
mobility provision. This will be achieved through pedestrian schemes e.g. Stall Street. Do you agree with this
approach?

Base: 201 valid responses

Such proposals to encourage an increase in walking in the city were strongly supported amongst
respondents, with the majority agreeing with the implementation of pedestrian schemes (85%).

Those who agreed with this approach were asked to provide reasons for this view, within which the
following key themes emerged:

= View that pedestrian zones are more pleasant to walk around (14 respondents)

= View that pedestrians should have priority (12 respondents)

= Makes city safer (7 respondents)

= Encouraging walking is good for local shops/businesses (5 respondents)

19 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014

P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Transpﬁagteltgﬂ\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath
Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

Respondents who agreed with proposals to facilitate greater pedestrian access within the city were also
asked to identify what they would like to see delivered in order to achieve the strategy’s objective of
making Bath the UK’s ‘most walkable city’. Key suggestions included:

= Permanent pedestrian zones (24/7) (27 respondents)

= Segregated cycle lanes within city (17 respondents)

= Roads through city centre should be closed during day (10 respondents)

Of those who objected to such proposals, key reasons cited included:
= Plans not helpful for those who are mobility impaired (5 respondents)
= More important to deal with congestion (3 respondents)

Prioritising cycling along the river corridor, with radial routes into the city, is another proposal made within
the Draft Transport Strategy with a view to increasing the use of sustainable modes. Respondents were
asked to indicate whether they agreed with this approach, as presented within Figure 4.12 below:

Figure 4.12: The Draft Transport Strategy proposes that we prioritise cycling along the river corridor with radial routes
into the city. Do you agree with this approach?

Base: 204 valid responses

Three quarters (75%) of respondents agreed that cycling should be prioritised along the river corridor, with
radial routes into the city centre.

20 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trand@agﬁre@@y\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

Of those who disagreed with this proposal, key reasons provided included:
= Plans shouldn’t proceed until cyclists are segregated from pedestrians/vehicles (21 respondents)
= Too dangerous (8 respondents)

Amongst those who agreed with the proposals, key supporting comments also included:
= Support for proposals provided that cyclists are segregated from pedestrians/vehicles (21 respondents)
= The need to ensure safe cycling routes/infrastructure (6 respondents)

The shared focus on safety amongst both those who agreed and disagreed with the cycling proposals set
out within the Draft Transport Strategy highlights the importance of safety for both cyclists and non-cyclists
within the city.

4.8 Tackling Air Quality

The improvement of air quality is another key focus for the city of Bath which is recognised as requiring
action within the Draft Transport Strategy. The increased use of electric vehicles, and the provision of
necessary facilities to support this, is one possible solution to this which was explored within the
consultation questionnaire, with respondents asked to indicate whether the finalised strategy should
include this as a proposal.

Figure 4.13: Should the strategy propose that we support more facilities for electric vehicles?

Base: 198 valid responses

21 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trans@agtelt&ﬁ\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

Almost three quarters (74%) of respondents agreed that the finalised Transport Strategy should include
support for increased facilities for electric vehicles in Bath.

Those who disagreed that this should be incorporated in the Draft Transport Strategy indicated that this
was due to:

= Electric vehicles not helping to reduce congestion (13 respondents)

= Not enough demand for electric vehicles (12 respondents)

= Future usage of electric cars not clear (7 respondents)

Respondents who did agree with this approach emphasised the following points to support this:
= Pollution is a serious problem in Bath (5 respondents)
= Preference for focussing on electric buses (3 respondents)

4.9 Buses
One proposal for the improvement of bus services in the city of Bath made within the Draft Transport

Strategy is the introduction of more bus lanes; an idea which respondents were asked to consider within
the consultation questionnaire:

Figure 4.14: The Draft Transport Strategy proposes that we help improve bus services by introducing more bus lanes.
Do you think this is a good idea?

Base: 196 valid responses

22 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trandﬁagﬁra@iy\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

Respondents expressed a more divided opinion of the introduction of more bus lanes to the city, with
almost three fifths agreeing with this proposal (58%), whilst the remaining two fifths of respondents did not
agree with this approach to improving bus services.

Respondents were then asked to indicate what would encourage them to use bus services more often. Key
initiatives to encourage greater bus usage included:

Cheaper fares (98 respondents)

More frequent/reliable buses (61 respondents)

Electronic tickets (e.g. smartcards/oyster cards) (21 respondents)

Improvements to bus routes from city centre to surrounding areas (13 respondents)

4.10 Coaches

Whilst recognised as a key mode of transport for visitors to the city, and therefore central to the local
economy, the challenge of accommodating high numbers of coaches is another key consideration within
the Draft Transport Strategy.

Respondents were therefore asked their opinion of three key proposals in relation to coaches within the
city, namely finding new drop off locations, the expansion of Park and Ride sites to include coach waiting
areas and the identification of a new site close to the city centre for designated coach parking, which are
presented within Figure 4.15:

Figure 4.15: Coach Proposals
100%

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

10%

0%
1. Find new locations where 2. Expansion of park and ride sites 3. New site within close proximity
coaches can initially drop visitors to include a waiting area for to the city centre where coaches

in the city centre before they go coaches can park

and park elsewhere

Base: 1:201; 2: 200; 3: 187 valid responses

23 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trans@agtelt&ﬂ\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath
Mott MacDonald

Finding new drop off locations for coaches (81%) and the expansion of Park and Ride sites to
accommodate a coach waiting area (78%) received the most support from respondents. Creating a new
site close to the city centre where coaches could park was the least popular proposal, with over half of
respondents disagreeing with this approach (53%).

For each of the outlined proposals relating to coach use within Bath, respondents were asked to provide
reasons for their support or objection, as outlined below:

Finding new locations where coaches can initially drop visitors off before they go and park
elsewhere:

Amongst those who disagreed with this approach, key reasons cited for this included:
Scheme should integrate with Park and Ride facilities (16 respondents)
Preference for coaches dropping visitors off at periphery of city (15 respondents)
Lack of coach parking would increase number of coaches in city centre (10 respondents)
Should discourage coaches along with other traffic (4 respondents)

Of those who agreed with this proposal, and provided supporting comments, key themes echoed points
raised by those who disagreed with the idea, including:

Preference for coaches to dropping visitors off at the periphery of the city (6 respondents)

Scheme should integrate with Park and Ride facilities (2 respondents)

Expansion of Park and Ride sites to include a waiting area for coaches

Those who disagreed with this approach raised points including:
Preference for coaches dropping visitors off at periphery of city (9 respondents)
Scheme should integrate with Park and Ride facilities (7 respondents)
Without a coach park, proposals would increase number of trips into city centre (3 respondents)

Similar themes were highlighted by those who agreed with the proposed scheme:
Preference for coaches dropping visitors off at periphery of city (12 respondents)
Scheme should integrate with Park and Ride facilities (11 respondents)
Without a coach park, proposals would increase number of trips into city centre (8 respondents)

New site within close proximity to the city centre where coaches can park

Those who objected to this proposal cited key reasons including:
Preference for keeping coaches away from the city centre (30 respondents)
Preference for using existing Park and Ride (17 respondents)
Lack of space (13 respondents)
Preference for coaches to drop off, rather than park up (9 respondents)
Negative view of pollution caused by coaches (9 respondents)

Those who did support the proposal highlighted points including:
Agreement with proposal providing site is properly managed (3 respondents)
Preference for sites on outskirts of city (2 respondents)

24 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trand@ragﬁ@@y\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath
Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

4.11 Additional Comments

Respondents were invited to provide any additional comments relating to the proposed strategy. Key
themes within these additional comments included:

= Plans should be wider in scope/more radical (11 respondents)

= Support for building link road (A46-A36) (11 respondents)

= Support for encouraging more sustainable transport (e.g. walking/cycling) (11 respondents)
= Preference for segregated cycle lanes (10 respondents)

=  Would like to see more integrated transport systems (9 respondents)

= Buses cause congestion (8 respondents)

= Remove central traffic (7 respondents)

= Positive view of overall strategy (7 respondents).

25 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trans@ag@t%\ﬂeport\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

O

Appendices

27

Appendix A. Consultation Questionnaire
28

Appendix B. Additional Stakeholder Comments

26 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trandaagﬁr%y\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -

Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

Appendix A. Consultation Questionnaire

Q
N

27 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Transﬁagelt%\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath
Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

Appendix B. Additional Stakeholder
Comments

In addition to the consultation questionnaire, stakeholders were invited to provide any additional comments
they had regarding the Draft Transport Strategy for Bath via email. A significant number of comments were
received from a range of stakeholders groups, such as residents associations, transport groups and local
council representatives, and individual respondents. These are collated and summarised in Table B.1
below, together with the proposed action for amending or developing the Transport Strategy.

28 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trand@a@@ﬁy\Report\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



3IOM JayLINy JO Lied Se palapIsuod aq I

ABajelis oy} ul spew aq ||Im siseydws Jayun4

3JOM JN]N} Ul PBIBPISUOD 8 ||IM
yioq — oijely jo 1oedwr ayy Buionpal o} sayoeoidde
1UBJaYIp 8Je SBUO0Z 93l) Jed pue sadeds paseys

UOI}0B OU — SBAJ9SWaY} Ul 8A1198[go Uk Jou

ale Inq (paJapIsuod aq [|im pue) BulpAo Buibeinoous
0] UOIIN|OS B aJe S8IN0J 8|04 palehalbag

uonoe

ou — BuioAo 01 oy10ads Jou uiebe 0s ‘uoqied adnpal
0] djay [im sepouw a|qeulelsns ul sjuswaAoidul |y

uoljoe ou — Bupjjem pasealoul
01 014198ds 10U S| pUB WIE ||BJSAO UB S| UoNonpalz0D
Pa1apISU0D 8q ||IM ,S8U0Z 98} JeD, SAOQE SY

uonesiuelsapad

Jayuny Buipnjoul ‘Jayuny paiapisuod

aq |[Im s8Jo1yaA Jo 10edwi ay} Buionpal jo shkepn
pappe aq ||Im

sjebie] s,1ouUN0D Byl O} S82UBIB8I INQ BAI0S[qo ue
SB papn|oul S SUOISSIWS UogJed 9|dIyaA Buionpay

uoIsIA 8yl 01 1xa1 Buioddns
By} Ul UoIIoNPal UoQIBD O] SpBW 8 ||IM 92UdI9}0Y
uonay pasodoud

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d 62
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

ABa1ells Jopim Ul pasn pue padojanap aq p|noys pue pawodjam si Aloeded
apIy pue Yed pasealoul 10} pasu Bulysi|qeisa 10} 1aselep [euonippe se Buljjspow UogJed Jo 8s) e

apiy pue jled

sjebie] uodNPaI 2N PUE JUBWSIOMUS BaIY Juswabeuepy
AHEND Jiy 4O swud} ul suonouisal Jybialy 1oy uoliqwe pue uo siseydws Jojealb aney pnoys e
$9]0A0 pue ABojouyoal
9]01YdA 21109]8 J0 asn Jalealb yum Ajeroadse ‘uonelado a.iusd uonepijosuod yoddns Ain4 e
sjuawanoly 1ybiai4

S8UO0Z |BJJUSD 991} JBD IO} UOISIA JOIBD|D 189S e
Sa1110 Jay10 woly saidwexa Buisn — saoeds paleys inoge aiow Aes o) AiunuoddO e
jyuswabeueypy oiyea]

sJalnwiwod
10} A1IAI10BUUOD PaSBaIdUl 810J818Y) puB Saln0J 8]0A0 palehalbas 10} 9A108IQ0 apnjoul pINoYS
pasiubooai Ajo1dxe aq pinoys ‘sduy Jeo Buioejdas ybnouy) ‘uoilonpas uogien) e
anisod si skauinol BuipAo Buiseasoul jo uoiubooay e

Buijoho

1X81u00 ueadoin3 ui ‘|9AeJ] S|qBUIEISNS 0} UOHIPPE Ul ‘UoiONpalZ)) 90Udidjal PINoYS e
Jap|og 8q pInoys {841udd AND Ul SBUOZ 991} JBD 0} 9oUBIBJA) UDIdXS 8q p|NOYS e
ABajesis ajoym 01 [B4jud9 se pasiseydwa Apybu pue sWoOdBA\ e

Buniiem

Sluswanow a|o1yan Jo 1oedul, 8y} 8anpal isnl1ou - pIOXQ pue YIOA 69
S0 210ISIY Jayio ul pajuawaldul A||nyssaoons se — AJ10 8y} WOl SIeD 9A0WSI O} WIB PINoysS e
196.e] UoONPal 20D DDSJ O} BoUBIBYBI BC PINOYS e
ABareus uiyim aAoalqo Jes|o B Se papnjoul 89 0} SUOISSIWS UogJed Buonpay e

saAoalqo
uollonpal uogied aduaialal 10U S80pP UOISIA ° uawn_ [1ouUNno)
UOISIA 12207

sjuswpedag/sdnoiy |19uUno) 8207

SJUSLILIOY J9P|OYaXEIS [BUONIPPY ' S|qeL

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 98



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d

peo. yull & Jo Aujiqeln/Anjigisesy

[enualod a8y} uo uoiewIOUl 810W BpIA0Id O}

[10UN0Y 8y} AQ PBUOISSILIWIOD USdQ SkyY YoM Jayun4
‘uonoeal ongnd ay) abneb

0} aJleuuolisanb ay} ojul pappe sem ing Juswnooq
ABarens sy} Ul papn|oul Jou Sem PeOI XUI| 97Y/9EY UY

Aioeded yyd

pasi[eao), 1o} [ennualod syl Uo pappe ag |IM 810U Y
uoljoe OU — d|geIA 8q 0] AjyIjun

os ‘Ajjealb s}s09o Buiieliado asealoul pjnom sanol

snq Aouanbauy ybiy omy Buiuuni Ing 1ONIISUOD 0} BUO
J9b1e| auo uey) Jadeayd aq Aew SalIS YR |[EWS OM |
uonels

pauado-al 9|qissod e Sk pajou aq [|IM WeYsIoD

‘uondo yoea Jo Ajjigein pue Ajljiqises) 8y} 1opISuod
[IM SIYL "JIOM Jayuny Japun paiapisuod Buiaq aie
8lIS Y8 d Mau B 10} SUONN|OS pased-|ieJ pue snq ylog

palou SMaIA

uolloe ou — UoISIA Wodsuel] e Jo} areudoidde
paJepIsuoo jou aJe Buies adeospue| 0] seoualajey

uonoy pasodoud

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

Y102 100 €1 9/€0/011/dL1/8,562¢€

adeospue| SHM uieg o AD/aNOV SPIOMSI0D) 8y} pue AJlUSWE [BUOIIBSIOS ‘SaIJIUNWWOD
yreg Jo i1se3 uo 1oedwi Buneisessp, oAy PINOM YdIym ‘pPeol Yull 9yY/98Y Alisn[ 01 8seD ON o
SIY} 0} UOIIN|OS US| PBOI YUl| 9¥V//9EY |99} {SUIadU0d A8y uoin|jod Jie pue uoisabuo) e
(0661) Ainbui o11gnd 1B pBUWBPUOD,
Alsnoinaid sem yoiym ‘swisyos peos yul| 9yy/98Y 10 uonodalinsal Aq pakewsip, dnoit) e
Wy} uo paseq sooiue ssald [Bo0] pue SiaA))
uonosla-Aq Buipesisiw, ybnoiyl papiroid Ajjusiind S| 8WBYIS 8y} UO UOIBWIOJUI B|gB[IBAB AlUQ e
uswnoop ABajelis ul papnjoul
10U UBYM ‘aireuuoilsanb UOIEYNSUOD UIYLIIM PBOJ MUl| 91Y/9EY 4O UOISN|oUl 1B pauladuod dnoty) e
olyel] Aneay jo 1oedwj ay) Bulonpay

|leYy pue 3ied 8y} 8sn pjnom ysued UOUBAB|D WoJy suoAue aledioljue Jou seop dnots) e
‘BaJe aJIYS]|IM 1SS M 81 Ul 8pIY pue Hled
gny Jo sa2IAI8s snq Builsixa Uo SuoIIe0| Jualayip 1 Aloeded apiy pue yied pasijeso] o
uoido anisuadxa sS9| B 8Q p|N0D SIS [[ewsS
om} — (ebeuoured yinog/ise 10) BUO pue YLON 10} duQ) uondo apiy pue yied yidg o
uonels Aemjiey weysion jo buiuadoay ©
:Buipnjoul suondo Jayio jo uoissiwo e pajuioddesiq
uondo a|geIA paJapISU0D JouU 8pIY Pue |ley/Mled
aWBYos |ley pue yied Joj abeuosied pajoadxs suoiisanb osje dnoir)
yreg ui uonsabuoo oyyell 10 uoinjod Jie uodn 10edWi OU JO 1| BABY PINOM |IBY PUB Yied
ABoajelis oy} ul UOISSNOSIP
10 uolew.oul punoByoeq ou si 818y}l INq ‘uondo aAISUSdxd pue xa|dwod B S| |leY pue yied e
ABajens uodsuel] yeiq ul papnjoul
10U INQ 8JIeUUOIISSNb 8y} Ul UOIIBYNSUOD Ul 8pIY PUB |IBY/MJEd JO UOISN|OUl JB PBUISdUOD) e
yleg ui uonsabuos Buionpay

saA109[qo asay) yim seaibe dnoi) e
asn sng pue uiel] ‘Buljoho ‘Bupjep paseasou|

BMIS JO JuBWadUBYUS pue uondaloid 0} payull Algeouxaul si Bunles adeospue| JO UOIOBJ0Id e
Bumes
adeospue| sl pue SHA UO SJUSWNIOP [ED0| PUB [BUOITBU ‘[BUOIIBUISIUI Ul INO 18S SB ‘SHM
yreg jo Al ayi jo Bumas adeospue| ayl 1098104d 0} uonebiiqo SNYG 01 90UBIB)) SHOB| UOISIA e
AbBajens ayy

pauijino seae
ul lJuawdojaaap Jayuny sy woddns 01 Addey aq pjnom pue ABsjesiS Lodsuel] yleg oswWOd|op\N e

2 ELYe)

0¢

dnoin
[1ouno)
|e20]

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 99



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d LE

p8lou SMBIA

pBlou SMBIA

p8lou SMBIA

‘sdnoJb

JUBAS|3J UM UOIjB}NSU0d pue ubisap pajieiap o}
108[gns aq pjnom sewayds Aemiooy/81940 paseys Auy
“J1ay1aboye

pauueq 8q p|NoYs e} JI pUe Sewayds jJuswanoidwi
Bupjiem Jo s|ielop sy} JopISUOD ||IM HJOM JayHN-

palou SMaIA

p8loU SMBIA

Jayuny siyl ansind [jim [10UN0D
ay} INq 8ABIYDE 0} JNDIIP 89 0} Al SI YdIyMm [1oUNnoD
alIYS]IM woly [eacsdde aainbal im 0GEY 9yl Jo s

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

Y102 100 €1 9/€0/011/dL1/8,562¢€

aJjuad
A19 8y} Ul SIOUSIA JJo dop UBD SBYOBO0D 8Jaym SUOIIBO0| Mau puly 0} [esodoud yum seaibe dnolt) e

sayoeon

S92IAI9S SNQ JO SN B1BNWIIS PINOM S8} SNQ JOMO| PUB SBJIAISS Juanbal) aIo)y e
SOUB| SNQ 8J0W JO UoIdNPOoJIUl 8y}l Woddns jou seop dnolt) e
sasng

[SETgle]
|le1al Jed pue suolels |o41ad 0} paloliIsal 8q pINOYS S|0IYSA dU109|0 10} suonels Bulbieyd e
Aupenp iy Buippoe

A2 By} OJUI SBIN0J [EIPEI PUE JOPLIOD JOAL B}
Buoje sainol 8|0Ad asn Ajojes os|e ued suelsapad eyl 8iNsud O} udye} 8q isnw aie) o
ENIED
AU UIYHIM SPBOI ||BWS UIBLISD SS92B 0} PasU YDIYM SSJOIYdA JO Jaquinu |jews Bunsixe
ay1 Bunouisal Inoyum paaaiyoe aq ued uoisinoid Aljigow pue Bupjiem paaoidw) o
JONOMOH e
(g1 pue g} suonsanp) sjesodoud BuloAd pue Bupjem sswooem dnoit) e
Bunyied

(01 uonsenp)
BAIlOBINIE 8I0W UONBIS YJBd PIBLPIO YEW [[IM uoISIrncid 801n8S paoueyus Jeyl paalbe dnolt) e

(6 uonsany) pauoddns ase S82IAISS |1BJ 0] Sjuswaroidwi palsabbns saiyl ||y e
113

(8 uonsen) (Med JeD 1eang
UOAY punole pue Aepp sauld ‘6°8) sinoAe| peos Aem auo awos Bulnowal Jo InoAe} ul dnour)

[ ]
sinoAe peoy BulAjjduig

0sevY
8q p|NOYS Uo1IeISPISUOI 10} 81nos Arewnd Ing ‘8InoJ MUl 94/9EY B 9pN|dul 10U 1SNW S8|OIYaA
10811paJ 0] sainseaw Jeyl |98} ‘a1048i9y] "9ey wol) Buneuibuo sADH jo uoiuodoid jews Ajuo
yum ‘sjuswianow ybnoiyi-uou s 83nos syl Buisn oeli 1sow eyl Moys Saipnis dljjell JoAsmoy
‘(£ uonsenp) abpug puedAd|D) pUeB PEOY UOPUOT WOJ} SBIOIYSA JO uonoalipal syoddns dnoit) e
(9 uonsenp)
9[0IYdA D11108]8 UB S8SN YDIYyM 81jud)) uoliepljosuo) 1ybiai4 e asn o} pabeinoous sassauisng
pue sawi} Asnqg e a1juad Ao a8y} Buissaooe woiy SADHH luaaaid 0} [lesodoud yim seaibe dnoi) e
[1oUNOD 8JIYSHIA Ylim uolieloqe||od ul
‘SADH [ney Buoj Jo} 81noJ aAieuIs)e U SB (0GEY dojaASp 0} 89 P|NOM UOIIN|OS [EJIl0RId BIO)N e
Bumes

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 100



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d z2¢
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

Jayuny siy1 ensund |jim |1ouno)
U} Ing 9ABIYJE 0} NOIYIP 8 0} A[dXI| SI YdIyMm [IDUN0Y
allysyIM wouj reaocidde asinbal |Im 0GEY @Yl Jo asn

sjoedwi [BJUSWIUOIIAUS JO UOIJRISPISUOD

SPNOUl [[IM YI0OM SIY] "8YS Y8 ulolseq

ue osfe Ing peo. yul| e jo Aljiqeln/Aliqisesy [enusiod
8y} UO uoiewIojuUl 8iow apiroid 0} [1oUnoD 8y}

AQ PBUOISSIWIWOD USAQ SBY YIOM JaylN} ‘9A0QE SY
uonoy pasodold

suollepuUBWIWIODA)
1se1e| 8y} pue ApniS 737 9y 0} 8oual9)al
apnjoul 0] palepdn aq [m juswnooq Abarens ayl

uonoy pasodo.d

palou SMaIA

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

Buioddns aio0joq siesodoid uo uonewioul Jayuny

paau p|nom Ing suoln|os 8|qissod ale 9y\/9Ey USYUNS pue apiy pue |ledMied uapply Ajgbie
swuoliAug a8y} Bunosloud jo anjep

swaj|qoid oijel) s,yieg o1 uoin|os Jayaqg aonpo.d

Aew ‘ggy oy} uo ainssaid aAd||aJ 0} OGEY 9} JO JusWdo|oAdp SB YINs ‘SjuaWald [euldIxg
S8NSS| 8S8Y] SSAIPPE PINOD HIOM 81niny pajielap alow leyi |njodoH

peoy uopuo Buofe moj} oiyel

paonpai Jo sabejueApe [BJUSWUOIIAUS PUB JlWou09a ybiamino sioedul [ejuswiilap eyl |994
ureg jo als abelluaH pHOAA 8y} Jo Bunies ay) pue UoOHBABID

pue uoydweyieg ‘piojyreqg ‘uoiseayieq J0 JuswuoIAuUS uodn 1oedwi [BIUBWIISP SABY PINOM
9S8y} |99} Janemoy ‘ewisyds ay} ul papnjoul suondo uodsuel) Jofew jo siysuaq asiuboosy
suondwnsse pue s}oadse Juaiayip

usamlag yorewsiw o} Buipes| — jJuswdojansp ABajells ojul Indul [B20] JO YOB| IN0ge PauIadu0))
padojanap ate Aayl yoiym

Aqg sessao0.4d ay] pue sawayds JodSUEl} JO S109Yd |BID0S PUB [BJUSLIUOIIAUS JSAO UIBOUOD)
$S9204d UOIB}NSUOD YLM SBNSS|

Arewwing [inH puk uodsy Aiewwng pasuspuo)) ApniS Ajljiqises suoz uoIssiug mo7 payoely

€€ Ul |d) e se Ayrenb Jie jo

uoISN[oUI 8Y} PUE |"|"g UOI08S Ul Biep Buliojuow pue YINDY 9yl 0} 90Ud18}8) Sawodam dnols
WIoOMIaN ainoy Alewilld ayl

0} Buiiejas sanssi pue s}nsas Buijjopow uo paseq BaJe [BJJUSD B UO SNJ0} B SpUsWWo9dal Apnig
weoniubis aiow aJe suoissiws ul sebueyd jeuoipodoud ‘palsa) suondo

woJy Bunnsal ‘gON 40 suonesuaduod ul sabueyd aiqibifau smoys Apnis 1sjiym eyl asiseydwg
yowra.q uj pue s|qein punoy ji SINPG Ul bunoyid ‘payoesiq buieq

81B ZON 40} S8n[eA Jiwi| 818Yym SUOHBI0| Ul SUOISSIWS JNd 0] SBUOZ SUOISSIWT MOT JO Yiomjau
Japim e buidojersp Lioddns o) anuijuod pjnoys 443 pue podsuel| Joj Juswiiedsd 8y,
:Jey} pajels uonow passed Juaday

S9UO0Z UOISSIWS MO| JO UoealD

paJojdxa aq 1snw (a11udd A110 8y} 01 8s0|0

8]IS MdU pue apiy pue yied Bunsixs -6-8) jjo doip Jousia pue Buysed yoeood Joy suondo |y
punoy} aq 0} 8ABY ‘9104848Y} ‘PINOM S]IS SAIJBUIBYE PUB YJEd YoB0D

BpISIBAIY JO SSO| Ul }NsaJ pjnom juswdojanap sAenp yieg pue ealy asudisjug pasodoid

dnoip
[19uno)
|eo0]

1deq j19uno)n
|eoo]

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 101



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

aniosalqo
Aoy e sI sniels a1g abelisH PlIOM PUB JUSWUOIIAUS
ouoisiy anbiun ayy Buroueyus pue Buipsenbajes

p8lou SMBIA

pa1ou SMaIA
uonoy pasodold

palou SMaIA

Jayuny siyl ansind ||im

1oUN0D 8y} INq 8ABIYDE 0} YNDIIP 89 0} |8l SI YyoIym
[1I0UNOYD BJIYSHIAM Wol) [eaosdde aainbal [m (SINBY
JO 9PISINO S8IN0J JBYI0 I0) OGEY By} JO 8sn ‘9n0qe Sy

uo Pa}NSuU0d pue
pauue|d Aj|njaseo AloA 8q 0] peau p|NOM SBLIBAIIBP
uo suonouisal Aue jey) pasiubodal siJl — Palou SMaIA

BA0QE SY

"8lIs Yed uislseq

ue os[e Inq peos yul| & jo Aljigein/Aniqisesy [epjusiod
8U} U0 uolewlojul 8iow apiaoid o} [1ounod sy}

AQ paUOISSIWILIOD UdBQ SBY YIOM Jaylin] ‘OA0ge Sy
uonoy pasodoud

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

abejisH PO BUl Jo Builas 8y} uo pue uopaAe|D pue uoldweyleg ‘piojyieqg ‘uoiseayleq jo
JUBWIUOJIAUS 8U] UO S108)j8 [eluawilap Alybiy pey aAey pjnom ydiym Jo ‘smopes|y uoidweyleg
9y] SS0.0. 10 Ul Sjuswdojanap 8[eos abie| papnjoul aAey psemio) Ind Ajsnoinaid sewsyos e
sBuipjing o} sbewep pue uonnjod Jie ‘sawi}
Aaulnol ‘uonsabuod peos paonpal J0o SWId} Ul ‘peol YUl 91Y/9EY UB pue apiy pue |rey,ied
B ‘awayds sy} ul papnjoul suonido podsuel) Jofew syl Yiog Wolj Jysuaq pinod sjuspisey e
SUOISN|OU09 snoignp AlaA 0}
Buipes| ‘suondwnsse pue Ss}oe} 1081100Ul BWOS 0} pue S}0adSe JUuaIalIP SH Usdamiaq Yojewsiw
Buiwaas e 01 ps| sey yoiym ‘uswdojansp AbBalelis Jo ssao0id ay) 01 Indul [ED0] JO OB e
padojanap aie Aayl yoiym
Ag sass820.1d 8y} pue SBWaYDS Jodsuel} JO S10940 [BID0S PUB [BJUSWUOIIAUS BU} JOAO UISJUOD) e
Luoneynsuog, 10u s| ‘sjuswasiuanpe Jadedsmau pue ‘UoIasUl BlISqaM Yy e

asuodsal paJapIsuod Ajjn} e apinoid 0} J8pIO Ul SUMO} SIIYSHIM
10848 pjnom siuswanoidwi syl moy pue 1098(oid SIy} JO S109dSe JOPIM JBPISUOD 0] POSN e

Iled

Bunnos aaneulsye pasodoid sy} ojul Juswaalibe
pue uolneynsuod ‘uonebisaaul [N} INoylm uonelidse yons Aue 8soddo 0} anuiUOD PINOAA e
uolne|siba| Jo yoeauq
B 9g p|nOM 8SIMIBYI0 ‘SaljlIoyINe pajoaye Yim paalbe aq Isnw Sainol sAljeuld)e S|0BlINS e
piaydn sem yoiym ueid siyy 1suiebe pajeadde Ajsnoinaid e
. uonsanp — abplg pueaas|) pue peoy UopuoT wodj sa|91yan bBunoalipay

BaJE JopIM Ul sanss| Buisned
‘101s A1aA118p J1BY} [IUN 843Uuad A1ID JO BPISINO JIBM 0] 8S00UD ABW SBIISAIISP JBY] UISOUOD) e
-olews|gqold aq pjnod S8IOIYSA JBj[ewS JO uonuaraid
[eba] ay1 pue sewi Aiaaep Ajoads sAemfe Jouued sassauisng Janamoy ojdiouud ul 8aiby e
9 uonsanp — anua uonepijosuo) WYbidI4/SADH

pO0ISIBPUN PUB PaJapISuod Ajn; aq
0] pasu pjnom seousnbasuoo pue sjoedwi Japim ‘Paonpal aq A|paignopun piNom oIl ISIIYM e

G uonsanp — (9gv/vv) peoy yui

swsalbe/uoiuido Bulwioy 8108Q [IBlop 940W PAdU PINOA\ e
sytom AemybBiy jueoyiubis pue auj|
jres Aingisapn jo luswubieas ay) pue Aiaaiap jo Aixaidwood pajybiiybiy aaey SaIpnis SNOINSI e
pasodoud Ayjioey jo 8dAl pue uoneoo| uo Juepuadeq e
€ uonsanp — (yleg o i1se3) apiy pue yied

€e

dnoun
[1ouno)
|eo0]

dnoun
[1ouno)
|e20

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 102



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d

palou si sjuswanow sADHH jo 1oedwi aanebau ey

sisAjeue
118U8Q-1s09 0} 103lgns aq pjnom sawayos Jolejy

ABoress ayl ulylm palepisuod are
pasiel Sanss| 8y} JO ||e — 8SI0U0D 8q 0} Sey UOISIA
uonoy pasodo.d

p8loU SMBIA

uonoy pasodoud

Jayuny siyl ansind |jim

1oUN0D 8y} INg 8ABIYDE 0} YNDIYIP 8q 0} K|Sl SI YyoIym
[10UN0D) BJIYSHIA WOl [eaosdde aanbai im (SIN%SG
JO 9PISINO S8IN0J JBYI0 J0) OGEY dYl JO 8SN ‘BA0Qe Sy

sjoedwli [elusWUOIIAUS Bulpnjoul ‘8IS Ywyd ulaise]
ue osfe Ing peo. yul| e jo Aljiqein/Aliqisesy enusiod
3} U0 uonBWIOUI dJ0W 8piAcid 0} [1I9UN0D By}

AQ PaUOISSIWIWOD UBQ SBY YJOM Jayun} ‘9noqe Sy

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

Y102 100 €1 9/€0/011/dL1/8,562¢€

ou01s1y uo 1oedwi aanebau Buiney sajoiysa Areay jo moj) Jusnbaiy Ag pasned suoneiqin
sonjjod Aued pusosuel) pjnoys yoiym ‘Aojjod uodsuel; [euly

S$,|10uUN0D 8y] OluUlI pajesodiodul 8q 0] sBuipuly uolBYNSUOD - Yyoroidde aAleI0ge||00 SWODB M
paaibe aJe ue|d uoneluswaldw Jo ABalells 810j8q SISA|euR 11}ouUaQ-1S0D 10} paaN

suolelapisuo) Aay

slasn
pue salluNWWo9 ‘sassauIsng Jo spaau Buibueyd o) puodsal siauue|d pue siapinoid Lodsuel |

Aujigeurelsns pue Alayes o} anp BuloAo pue Bupjem ‘uodsuel) olignd Bunoaeq
Jed Aq apew sAauinol oys 1ema} Jo ainyn9

Ssylomiau

paulejuleW-[joM puB BAI108Yd pue uoieAouul ‘Aljigeploye ‘ABojouyoal ‘Alijenb Joj umouyy
yyesay o} seinquiuod

JUBWIUOJIIAUS S}0adsay

asn 0] Ase]

Spaau s,8uokIansd Ss}@awy/|e 10} saiunuoddo

ymolib o1wouoos suoddng

Jodsuel; a|gelja. pue pajelbaiul ‘ajes

Ainqisseooy

UJ8oU0D [B8l B BJe ‘Way] 0} sjuswaAcidwi UBy) Jaylel ‘S8dIAI8s SN( [BO0] JO SSOT

edJe SINvd auyl
jo sabe||IA Jaj0Wwal 8y} Jo Juswilep ayl 0} aJe Ing yieg jo aidoad ayj 4o} poob aJe sueld asay |

SADH Aq pasneo
asouy} Apenoiued ‘swajgqoad oyyel) s,yieg o} uonn|os Janaq Ajuediiubis e aonpold pinom ‘9ey
8y} uo ainssaid aAdI84 0} OGEY 9yl 0 JuswdojaAap SE Yons ‘Sjuswa|d [eusaixs eyl aq Aew

uone}nsuoo

ay} ul pJemuoy Ind suonsabbns panwi| 8yl jo Buisiwold 1sow sy} ase peos Jul| 9Y/9EY
ua)unNs B pue apiy pue |reyied uspply Ajable| e 1ey) swaas 1 SeAljeuls)|e Jo 80uUdsqe sy} u|
wawabpnl Jes|d Aue 0] 8WO0I 0] 8|ge|IeAR 8W099q

0] paau pjnom sjesodoud pajielap pue anjea jJueoliubis B sey jJuswuoliAud ay) Bunosjoid
sawayos snoinald yim pajeloosse abewep [eluawuUOoIIAUS SS0I6 8y} 8onpal 0} pasN

peoy uopuoT Buoje moj} dijel} paonpal

© JO sebejueApe [BJUSWUOIIAUS PUB J1LIOU028 8y} ybiamino Ajjuediiubis syosye [euswuiaq
yied Jo 8l

dnouy
Buniop
uodsuea]
Aued
|ednjod

UOISIA
sdnouy podsuel)
o dnoip

[1ouno)
. |eso

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

14>

Page 103



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

ABareng pasodoud ayi jo ued si sy

ue|d lJuswabeueyy oujel |
8y} JO Led Se palapIsuod aq [|IM SIXE} — PBJOU SMAIA

ABareng ayy jo ued si sauaniep Buibeuepy

p8loU SMBIA

sjoedwil [BJUBWIUOIIAUS JO UOIBISPISU0D Buipn|oul
‘alis Y d uieisex ue jo Ayjiqein/Ayiqisesy enualod
9y} UO uofewlOjUl diow dpiaoid 0} 1oUNoD ayl

AQ pPBUOISSIWIWOD US3Q SBY YIOM Jayun} ‘9node Sy
ABarens ayi jo ued |eibajul ue sI Yyd pepuedxy

palou SMaIA

anss| Aoy e se pajou s Buipung

sjuawanoidwi Bunjiem Aue jo ped jeibaiul
ue a9 [|m pairedw Ayjigow Joy ssedoe panosdul|

uoisabuod ssalppe pue Allold Jo senss| pa|ielep
Jopisuoo 0} pasodoid si ue|d Juswabeuepy olel]

palou SMaIA

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

UOIBWIOJUI BWI}-edl
pue Bunayon ‘Aousnbaly ‘seinol ‘seoIyaA Buipnjoul sSadIAIes snq 0] sjuswaAoldw|  ©
asn snq Jajealb buibeinooug o

syuel Ixe]l 6o sanoe) Ixe} paaosdw|  ©
SUOISSIWS IXE] paoNpPay  ©

$901MI9S AJIBAII9P BWOY PalepI|oSu0d
pue 109]|00 pue aAe9), "B e suondo AlaAljop SAllBUIBYE PUB SBIOIYDA DLID9|D
J0 asn Buibeinoous ‘sinoy 18s 1e sauaAlep Buipnjoul ueid AloAljep el 8onposiu]  ©
CETPETNIETq]

soul| asisep "B saoualsjeld pue sjuswalinbai ueuisepad Buisiuboosy  ©
SUOI}08UU0D pUE dJNnjonJiseljul uelisepad 0] sjuswanoidw|  ©
suelsapad

SIOJISIA 108.Ip
0] abeubis ajeudoidde yum pue Si010e} [BIJUSWIUOIIAUS BULIBPISUOD BlIS JO UON0B|8S  ©
saply pue yied papuedxs
‘6 8 sanleula)e a|geIn Aq paiuedwodoe aq 0] Buped aiiuad Ao ul uononpay  ©
Bunjied sjuapisoy-UoN

0€0z2 Aq Ajpusuy ueisapad aiow a4uad Lo axeN
SOUO0Z UOISSIWS MO| JO UOIIONPOJIU|
puewap dujel] paonpul 1suiebe arebin

Ao wouy ‘spADH Auenoiued ‘oujel) Jo [eAOWd) 8SIIOUd  ©
100]ep\ pue peawsbury ‘Aaqqy — anuan Al1n

O O O

suoljepuswwoosay oloadsg

sdiysiauped Jojoses areaud pue o1gnd dojaasp pjnoys |1Iouno)

a|ge|ieAe si Buipuny uaym aoejd axe} ued yoiym sjoslosd aininy uejd o} pasN

ABaresis ulyum

SjuaW|d/saWaYds Jo (018 Buipuny |19UN0 ‘s824N0Ss Bulpuny [BUISIX8) Bulpuny JO UCKBDIIIUSP|
Aujgow paywi 4o sanijigesip yim ajdoad 10} s$809€ anaoidwll 0] pasN

Auo ay) Bunslus woly pabeinoosip AjoAioe aq pnoys SADH

uonsabuod sbeuew 0] pajedo|e pue pasioud Auesj aq

0} Spaau 89eds 19a11s palwl| Jo asn — yieg uo Buppom pue Buinl ajdoad Jo Jaquinu ul 8SE8I0U|
ABajeiis Lodsues |

yreg uiyum pue aJlysyip/puelbus jo 1sepn uiyim ABajedis [euoibal Japim Jo Led se Je payoo|
aq 0} spaau anss| ‘suonedldwi yieay aanebau — uonn|jod Jie 8onpas 0} pasu pue Auenb Jiy
yreg uiyum sbuipjing

Ge

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 104



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d 9¢
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

auoje Buloho Ag pateaidp Aj@1e|dwod aq 1ou |im Ing
— saAnoalqo Abalells ayl 109)48. S8|qBISAIIBP 8Say L

papnjoul 8q |im
pauoIIUSW S8POW || 0} SjuawaAoiduwil — palou SMBIA

uonoy pasodolid

palou SMaIA
p8loU SMBIA

palou SMaIA
palou SMaIA

sasodind ainsig| 40} Jejndod
aq 01 A|9y1] Ajuo uodsued) J8Al YyBnoyle ‘palou SMaIA
palou SMaIA

ABajens pasodo.d sy jo ped si syl

Abareng pasodoud ayi jo ued si sy

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

JUBWUOIIAUS JBjes
Buiall Je1yyesH

:Apunwwos ajoypp 10} AbBajeals Jo sajqeranlaq Aay

Bupped 19a11s-u0

Jodsuel) Jojow JO Swoy Jayi0
uodsuel; o1gngd

Sis1194D

suelisepad

AydiesalH 1asn peoy pasodoud

Suo1eoo|
ouolsiy Apenoiued ‘adoing pue yn wouy ao1oeld 1S8q WOU) Uled| 0} Y99S pjnoys  ©
Julea] suossaT uo pjing

Buppiom
[eluswnedap-1aiul J8llaq yim Buoje pawodjam yoeoudde [Iounod suo, SpJemMO)} A0\  ©
|1I9UNo0) BuQO

SO INEEY
1ybiom ssa00k "Bre saousyo diyell Buinow Jsuiebe 9210jud 0] ¥88S pPINOYS |1DUN0Y) O
S$32UaJO dijea] Buinop

siseq osed-AQg-aseo e uo sjsenbai 0] puodsay ©
auoz bunjied pajjoliuo)

uoinelodsuel) 1oy JaAll 8y} Jo
asn Buipnjour ‘sebus|ieyo Lodsuel] s,yleg 0] SUOIIN|OS SAIIBAOUUI ¥88S P|NOYS [IoUn0y)  ©
Hodsuel] Jo sapoyy 18410

ABajelis podsued) Japim Jo Led se padojaasp ued Juswebeuew yoeo) o
sayoeon

3001s pue saljioe} |ies Builsixa 0} sjuswanoidw|  ©
ures} Ag Auo ayi 01 ssaooe Buinoidw|  ©

113,
AND UIYIM YJ0MmIBU 81040 panoidwil pue pspusixy ©
BuijoAo ebeinoous 0} ue|d pajeleq ©

Buijoho

~a Yo

dnoun
yodsuea]

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 105



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d /€
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

pUB SUIBOUO0I [BIUBLLLOIIAUS ‘AJO SSO0JOB pue sqny pooyinoqublau usamiaq AliAzo8uU0D ‘S8luNLILOD
/BO0] U0 BuISSNo0) Yleg JO Al 10) JUBWSIE]S UOISIA S,dNoJD!- Juswalels uoIsiA Alewwing :payoeny

palou smal/,  “9N[eA O} SIONSIA PUE SN 1O} PUE, PPE PINOM — MIOM pue dAl| 0} 8oe(d jeaib e s} Bulnsua isjiym
A9 8y} JO JUBWUOIIAUSG B} J8lJe Y0Oo| 1snw am — AlD abelusH PO Jueuodwi ue st yleg, e
UOISIA }O Julod Aoy

A0 ay) Buusius

SJaylo pue sieinwwod Aemybiy Aq pasned uonsabuod gpoe) 01 paubisep sainseaw Jaylo
pue apiy pue yied uo Bulkjai se |[am se suaziio Aq paresauab uonsebuod aonpal o] jJuepodw| e

suonoele

aJ1uad Al yum Apre} aiow a1adwod 0] SaAlellul Ssauisng dojaaap 0} uondo ue gny ayl Buiaib

18|iym ‘pooynoqybiau ayl ul apud pue diysiaumo [oo] usyibualls pjnoo yoeal Buijoho/Bunem
Asea uiyum ani| sjuapisal jo Aluolew ay) aseym Alsianip Jeoeleyo gny Buuemodwy e

sAauinol Loys 1o} |oAel] Jo

SWLI0} SAlJBUIB)E 0} JBO WOJ) JIYS [BPOW B 9)BW 0} 8|ge |98} 0} Saiunwwod gny Buibeinosus
Joj ayisinbalaid B pue [B1lUSSSa SB U83S MOU ALIAIIOBUUOD-I9IUI QNY SAISS 0} HIOMIBU SNg e

Me
sessauisnq pue ajdoad [B20| O Hyauaq 8y} 404 AJjIQEIA JILLOUOIS Uleldl O} Juspuadap-iajul SqNH
A1 ayj 1noybnoayl sgny pooyinoqybisu 8AlI0e JO uolBoyuUSp| e

yleg 10} Juswajels UoISIA

AbBajes)s podsuel)

e ul Ajreoioads papnjoul are Aay) alojeq Aoijod
[1ouno) paalbe ‘lepim e Jo ued aq 0] pasu pjnom
pue 1deouo9 Bunsalaiul ue ate sgny pooyinoqybioN

sdnoub abe ||e ssoloe suazio
10} 81| Jo Alfenb paoueyus A|gesiubooal e [aA8] 1984]S 1B puB SSaullj pue yijesy
10 s|oAd| panoidwl ‘Ure Joueao ojul Saje|suel} eyl — uolisabuod oujel) pue uoinjjod
JIe ‘suoISSIWa |njwJiey Jo uononpal [eaJ saldwi yieg Jo} yiomawelj uojeuodsuel] o
PoJOU SMOIA uaaLp a|doad aJe jeyl SaIIUNWWOD d|geulelSNS
10 Buip|ing 8y} 86eIN0oUS 0] SI WIE 8SOYM ‘JUSWSAO|N SUMO| UOIlISUBL] JO Jaqudw s dnoi) e
A110 B|gEY|EM 1SOW S,MN Yl 8W028q 0} yieg abeinoosus
palou SMaIA 0} pue uonnjod Jie ‘uonisabuod aonpaJ 0} pasu B }Sses| AlaA ay] Je ajelisuowap Asy} analaq dnouy ueqin
uonoy pasodoud pue ABajesiS podsuel] yeiq 8y} JO SWie Palels Y} JO UONOBIIP [[BJOAC SBWO0dom dnoly) e /Modsues)

speoJ urew uo BuloAd 1o) 8oeds palosloid

shwi| paads ydw (g J0 Juswadliojuy

olyjeJy Jojow ybnoiyl enoway

PaJoU SMAIA s91n0J 9]9A0 BuIlSIxe uleluleW 0] PadN

O O O O

:senssi J18y10

so|qelanlop asayl Buiaaiyoe Jo sueaw Aay se pasiubooal BulpAD e
uonsabuod paonpay e
Aenb se Joneg o

PIDUO@IDW HOW
| O U W yreq Joj ABajens uodsuel | v - yreg punoisy Bumen

Page 106



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d fels)
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

p8lou SMBIA
palou SMaIA

aJeysS JBo/UIRll/SNQ/B|0A0 M IEM

O} JIys [epow sapnjoul |4y dioads v

ABarenis uodsuel] sy ul oAoslqo Aay

B Sl syul| Jodsuel; alignd 03 A11j1qISS820e pasealdu|

9A1103[q0 A8 B SI SUOISSIWS U0QgJeD

aJo1yan Buronpal ‘yyesy g Alenb are Buinoidw)
AlIAIOB 21LIOU0DD

[e00] 1jBuaq |Im Jed Aq apew sAsuinol Jo Jaquinu
ay} Bulureluod ey} JuswINO0p 8y} Ul Palels si i
uonoy pasodoud

‘paJinbai s}S00 8injonJiselul

pue juswdojansp abny ay} 01 anp yleg Jo azis ay}
A110 © 10} 8|geIA 8q 01 A|oYIun sI Buibieyd uonsabuon
‘Areuonels aJe sasng 1eyl sawi sy} 8onpal o} Abajelis
8y} Jo yed aJe spieopewS "wayl yum diysisuped

Ul JJoM UBD INQ SB2IAISS [BIDJaWwWo Buipiebal
sJojelado snq JOAO |0J3UOD OU SBY [IDUN0YD By |

ue|d uswabeue|y oiel ]

pasodoud ay} Aq paidn0d g |[Im SBNsS] paielap yong

uonoy pasodo.d

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

Sepow Lodsuel) 8|geuIRISNS alow SpJemo} Jiys Buness|eooe ue abeinoduy e
A9 a8y Jo seale ||e 0] uaAlb aq isnw uonuaye pue siseydwa enbg e
sajdiouiid jessuan

pooylnoqyBiau Jisyl Ul SassauIsng [B0] J0 asn Jajealb ayew o} sjuapisal abeinoouy e
papiaoid ag 1snw syul| Jodsuel) [BUOIIBU 0} SS820Y o
uodsuel; ongnd pue BuljpAo ‘Buiyjiem spiemol J1ys [epow B aAsIyoe 0} alisinbal
-01d [enuassa ue s| ‘suoleoo| Ay s,A110 ayi Jo Aliolew sy} 0] pue a43udd Ao ay} 0] ‘Alo ayl
ulyIm sgny Jayio o1 gny pooynoqybiau Jisy) wouj 186 ued sidoad alaym ‘A0 palosuUU0D-IBIU| e
8q 0} Juem pue
paau Aayl a1aym 0} 186 0} sjdoad a|qeus 0} ABaje.is Lodsuel) [eoIpel B 10} sY00|q Bulp|ing A8y e
sqny pooytnoqybiaN

suolesauab aininy pue JuaLInd Jyjeuaq o} eseomoys Abejelis
yodsuel) B 8W099Q pINod yieq ‘sniels abelioH puop OOSINN S,.uyled Jo Ued Se pamain gl e
sanunyoddo

wswAhodwaun pue Aljenbaul ‘Aliaaod se 4yons SuIaou0d [BID0S SB ||9M SB ‘SUOISSIWS
|njwuey Jo s|aas| Buisu pue ‘uoinjod ‘asn pue uoneald Abisus Buipiebal sebusjeyn) e
su199u0)
(epew aue Aayl moy pue epew ale
SUOISIOBP YOIYM UO) 1S} SBSSBUISNQ [BO0] pue sjuspisal s)i sind 0] spaau yoiym Ao e siyieg e
sanjep

S92IAISS |IeJ pue sng Loddns 0] sabieyo sy Buisn pue Buibieyd uonsabuod Japisuo) e
‘uonsabuog Jo

asneo jueoyiubis e aJe ydiym sasng parejnoie aseq Buo| Jo aoeld ul Sasnq Joxy08p 9|gnop 8S e

S9SN 10NJ1SqO S9J0IYaA alaym suone|nbal Buipeo| jo Juswadloug e

suonounlybi-oyjel; 1e Aluoud snq aiopy e
sasnq Areuoljels Aq pasned uoionisqo

90NpaJ pue uolesl|iin sng aAoJdwi 0} UOIID8||09 aJe) sng-yo ul ajedioiued o] siojesado sng e
s}@alis molleu

uo suol1eo0| dois snq JapISuod pue s}oalis mosreu uo/siuiod-youid e Buppied 19241S-U0 UQIYOld e

sjesodoud uo 1ybi A1aA s1 1 Ing s821IAI8s snq Buinoadwi yium 9216y e

Ao ayj 1noybnouy) spooyinoqybiau aaljoe buijsixa jo dew jenjdasuo)) -

yoroudde ansijoy e bundope pue uoneynsuoo jo souenodwi ‘uodsuel) 8|qeuie}sns

dnoun
podsuea]

dnouy
yodsueua]

yreg Joj Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoldy bBuijen

Page 107



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d 6¢

ABajesis ay) Jo Led esbajul ue si Siy]
palou SMaIA

p8loU SMBIA

a|qeljes a1ow sAsuinol ayew djay

[I!m Juswebeuew oyjel; 0] yorosdde aaisusyaidwod v
sbBuluana ayj ol pue Aep ay) Buunp

9|doad [e00] J0 Spaau Y} 198W 1By} S8OIAISS pue
uoisinoid uonewlojul mau ‘Bunexon psemiopybiells
ybnouy) 1oxew ay; pjing o1 sAem ajeudoidde

1SOW 8y} duIWId1ap |IM siolesado sng yim Buisiop

ABajenis ay) 01 [esuad aJe BuloAd pue Buep

ABajelis ay) 0} [BJIUBD S| SepoW
podsuel) usamiaq pue 0} Alljiqissadoe paroidul|

palou SMaIA

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

Y102 100 €1 9/€0/011/dL1/8,562¢€

A1 sy inoybnouyl pwodsuel; ognd pue BuloAd ‘Bunjiem 1o} seioeded syl 0} sjuswaoiduwi
yum paja|ieled aq osje isnw yieg uiyum abesn Jed Aiessadauun Jjwi| 0} S2INSes) e
abueyd |eluswiaiou|

plaom 8y} inoybnoay}
pue adoin3 punoJe sa2inos AlaLIeA B WOJ) UMBIP 80USPIAS pue a9i1oeld poob uo asieyde) e

aouanadxa wouy buluiea]

sabueyo
Aue ulejlurew pue poddns ‘adeys 0] uolB|NWIO) BAPI JO 84]UD 8y} 1B 8Q 1SNW SISp|oysyelS e
siapjoyayels pue sjuapisal yum bunjnsuo)

Jed e BUIUMO INOYIIM SBDIAISS 0} SS920B
ureb 01 Jeo e asn 0] pasu oym ajdoad 0} 89IAIBS |BJINSU 1S0/UBIDIS UR apIAoid ‘Sainol
Aoud pareubisap 01 $S8908 YlIM ‘UBD Sawayds Buleys Jed pue puewsp-uo ‘sqnjo Jed ‘sixe| e
sqny Jodsuel) ongnd A8y 1B sewi] J8jSukl} 8yl SSIWIUIW pue
Aljigelas anosdwi ‘sawy Asuinol yoInb ainsus 0} [elluasse os|e aJle sainseaw Ajjoud alnoy e
HIUS [epow aA8IYoe 0} Uoieolioads wnwiuiw
B sjuasaldal ‘uolewloul a|gelawi} 81nuiw-ayl-0}-dn Se [|om Se ‘SadIAIBS ||B UO 9|gesn SI
1ey) Bunaxon pueisispun-o0l-Ases yum ‘walsAs uodsuely olignd ajgepioje pue pajeibaul-A|inyy e
Buueys-1ed pue sixe} ‘Lodsuely d1jqnd

81| Jo Aurenb Jaiyyeay e sjuspnis
Bullayo ‘sueld |aAeI} B|qBUIBISNS JOAIIBP 0] S|00YDS d|ay PINOM YIOM}BU POAIBOUOD-||OMY e
uodsuel; ongnd
UlIM Yul] pue 100} uo uels 0} sAsuinol abeinoous Aay] “seinos pajebaibas Jo/pue pajeubisep
apim-A110 Aq paisisse Bulaq yioq ‘Ayatelaiy ay) jo dol ayl je aJe SISIjOAD pue SuBLISOpPad e
BuijoAo pue Bupjiep

wepodwi ae ‘sanssi Aljigow yim ajdoad 1o} ss890e poob pue Al19jeS e
91BWI|O [BI00S JuklqIA B 86BIN0DUS 0] [BlIA
s1 a1ua9 A1 8y} pue suoneodo| Asy ‘sqny pooyinoqybiau usamiaqg ANIAIIOBUUOD JO [9A8] pooB Y e
aoe|d o} aoe|d woly Buipay

$s900® AlljIgesIp pue sjuswalinbai Alaaljep sseauisng apisbuoje paouejeq aq isnw (Aloud
e uodsuely o1gnd pue BuioAo ‘Bunjiem yum) Ayosessiy uonenodsuel) ayl Jo Juswabeuew ay] e
Algepioye pue Ajayes ‘Apoinb 1noge 186 03 a|qe ale ajdoad 1eyl
anjesadwi - Aouspisal pue abelsy ‘@ousiiadxs JOYSIA ‘@insig| ‘uswAholdwae jo gny Alewd e
anuas Ayn

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 108



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d 0¥
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

p8lou SMBIA

pBlouU SMBIA

‘papinoid aJe
By} S921AI8S 4810 JO asuadxa sy} Je — [1ounod ay}
AQ papuny g 0} paau p|nom Saiey Snqg Ul SuolonNpay

urewal |im Bunjied Aeis Loys — anoqe sy

pesiseydws aq [|Im Siy} —
paulelal Buied Aels Loys ajenbape yum ‘ajusd ay}
ul Bupped Aels Buo| asiwiuiw 0] syaas Abajens ay |

palou SMaIA
uonoy pasodolid

palou SMaIA

paJlinbal 1509 aJnjonJiseljul pue jJuswdojanap

abny ay} 0} anp yieq jo azis sy} Ao e 1oy

a|qelA 8q 01 Aj@yun sI Buibreys uonsabuod ‘enoqe sy
uonoy pasodoud

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

Aiunuoddo
passiw, — 1oedwi 8A198||09 JO [BNPIAIPUI JIBY} JO JUBWISSSSSE 9pN|oul Jou op sjesodold snouep e
uodsuel; ognd Aq 10 100} U0 paaooid ued aiaym
WIoJ} SUIMSINO 8y} Uo uoNeo0| paaibe ue Je jo siabuassed doip 0} wayl 40} uoisincid 8q pINOYS e
uonnjjod Jie pue uonsabuod 0} ppe Ing ‘Lodsuel] JOYSIA Se
asay} Jo souenodwi asiubooas — a1judd A110 a8y} ul seyoeod Buibeinoous 0} pasoddo Ajjuewepy e
sayoeo)

S1s11940 Jo Aluoulw
e A|paniwpe Ag UMOYS UOIIBISPISUOD JO YoB|, UBAID ‘uladuod e suellsepad pue sisioho Buixiy e
aoedg paieys

asn snq Jajealb abeinoous
0] passaJIppe 8q 0] spasu — ,ybiy Ajpwaiixa, SI UOISSEOUOD INoYlIM Lodsuel) o1ignd JO 1S0D e
uodsueu] d1qnd

sdnoub asay) Joy noiip Bupnjiem sexew yleg
10 Aydesbodo] — sweid yum sisylow BunoA pue sjuapisal Aiap|d Jo Jaquinu 8siubooss 0] pesN e

Bunjiem

ssed o] ynoip 3 puly Apealje oym sjuspisal uo 1oedwi aanebau — Bupped Buionpay e
Bunyied

ue|d Modsuel | /ABajens uodsuel] pspeasu yonw
9OUBAPE 1,US80(] "UMOUY Apealje sjulod sajelalial — juswnoop Abajess yum juswiuioddesiq e
eaJe
ay1 ul syuspisai Jo Aluoud Buipluaao s yoiym ‘Aljenb e uo siseydws Jajeal useaq aney pjnom
‘0s JI — ABajesS podsuel] e 0 uoionpoad ul PaYNSUO0D JOU SUOIBIDOSSE SJUBPISal [BO0T] e

S}I| ©)Iq puUe SIed 9|ged — suonsebbng e
aJ1uad ANo ojul eaJe siyl wodj sAsuinol jo 1oedwr ayl snid ‘Ao jo Led eyl
Bunoaye suonnjos Buinoddns ul 1salaiul {|Iyxo4 ul uonelsushal pue JUSWAO|9ASP UO SNJ0H e
suonn|os Jodsued] (aaneuibewn) sbuipul pue saAi08[qo yons yum [1ouno)) uoddns 0} Jajy0 e
Auo ay) ojul Bulwos asouyy 10}
soAljeuId) e aAoeINe Buipuny abieyd uonsabuod -B-8 A110 sy} ur anneuibewl Ajjeas Buiylowos
10} siseq ay} apinoid pinod saAloalqo 1exon Biq, Jo Jaquinu ews e INoge AlUeD [eay e
SjuUsWWOY) [eUoIppyY

uoIeId0SSY
sjuapisay

uonesiuebip
BuisnoH

sdnoux) sjuapisay/buisnoH

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 109



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d LY
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

palou SMaIA
Jayuny syl ensund |[im

1oUN0D 8y} INg 8ABIYOE 0} YNDIYIP 8q 0} K|Sl SI yoIym
[1oUN0D) BJIYS]IA WOl [eaosdde asinbai im (SINSY
1O 8pISINO0 S$8IN0J J8Y10 10) OGEY Ul JO 8sn ‘@noqe Sy

sawayos [enusiod jo sjoedwl [BJUSWUOIIAUS
BU1 JOPISUOD ||IM PBUOISSILIWOD YIOM Jayun} ay |

"8IS H9d Mau pue peol sul| e jo Aljiqelin/Aljigisesy
[enualod 8y} uo uoiewloul 810w BpIroid O}

[19uUNo0) 8y} AQ PBUOISSIWIWIOD USSQ SBY YI0M Jayln4
‘uonoeal o1ignd ay} abneb o} alreuuonsenb

8y} ojul pappe sem uondo |ieJ 8yl "paseq-|ies Jo -snq
Jaylie se papnjoul Sem 4y d UISISE] UB ‘9A0Qe Sy
uonoy pasodoud

'SJuUBWdOBASP MBU U0} SUB|d |oABL] Sapnjoul ABajens
(paseq-snq Jo/pue -|ies)

8lis Ygd uieise3 ue jo Aljigqein/Aniqisesy [ejusiod
3} U0 uonBWIOUI dI0W BpiAcid 0} |1I9UN0YD By}

AQ pPaUOISSIWIWOD UBQ SBY YJOM Jayun} ‘9noqe Sy

"anss| juepodwi

Kian e se pasiubooal si uonn|jod “swajqold apim-Alo
e pawie sI } jeyl asiseydws o} Juswnoop Abalens
uonoy pasodoud

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

aWBaY2S PeOJ YUl 9%Y/9EY dU1 JO |IeY pue ied ayl Jaylie Hoddns jou seop alojaiayl dnoln
uolnjos a|geonorId ai0W Se Udas - SADH |Ney

Buo| 10} 81N0J BAITRUIS)E UB SE [I0UN0D 3JIYSHIA YHIM UOIBIOQE||0D Ul 0GEY JO Juawdojanaq
Aunnios o11gnd j0 aa169p 1seybiy, spasu —

.9EY alenbapeul pue a|geisun, 8yl Uo dljeJ} 810w sabeinodus Yyoiym swsayds Aue JOA0 UIBdu0D
8IS JO JuswadueyUS pue uonosjoid 01 payull A|lgeouixaul si Buljies adeospue| Jo U0I108]04d
Bumes

adeospue| sl pue SHAA UO SJUSWNDOP [BDO0| PUB [BUOITBU ‘[BUOIIBUISIUI Ul INO 18S SB ‘SHM
yreg Jo Al ay Jo Bumes adeospue| ayj 199104d 0} uonebijqo STNYG 01 9ouUaiajal SHIB| UOISIA
JuBA9|a) Surewsas yoiym (066 1) Ainbui o1ignd 18 pauwspuod, Ajsnoirsid swayosg

juswinoop

ABore.is oyl ul pajielap 1usi [esodoid usym aileuuolisanb ur awayods JO uoISn|dul e PauIadu0)
anisuadxa Ajpwalixa

pue Asl1on0Jjuod yieds 0] punog, pue xa|dwod Ajabny si yoiym sawasyds uodsued) Jolepy

peoy yulq 9vv/9ev

siesodoid uo JusWwwoo

J0UUBD 8104818} — yleg JO 1Se] 0} apiy Pue yied 10} PaIapISuod aq 0} SaNIS JO S|ielop ON
asuodsal

jnyBuiueaw spinoid pue uojuido wioj o} aignd moje pjnom jeyl ABarelis ayi Ul UOISSNISIP

10 uolnew.lojul punoibyoeq jo yoe| e Addeyun — aaisuadxs pue xa|dwod swayos |ieyY pue yied
Jusawnoop

ABalens ayl ul pajielap 1,usi [esodoid usym alreuuollsanb ur swayos Jo UoISN[ouUl 1B pauIdadu0”)

9piy pue |led/jied

(sewnjon oI} pasealoul 0] pes| yoiym) siuswdojansp

Buisnoy mau 1oy Buluue|d uiyim uswsalinbai Buiuue|d ol Jo yoe| — sjuswdojansp BuisnoH
(InH Jexo0uysselg BIA) 98V % 01 1 €9 WOJ) SMOJ) Oiyel) 8onpad Jybiw uoisiacid 819Aa1g Buipnjoul
SS90k [duun] OM} 8pew-Apeal Jo asn Bupjew 8y01S Aajdwi Jeau apiy pue yied |lewsS
100[01d abpug xog '6°9 s82IAI8S [RUOIPPE PUB 018N

|01sug Buisn uondo yu| jies se paidepe aq pinod Yyoiym apis 1sabbns — apiy pue yed ulaise]

ISJuUsWWOY JdY10

passalppe jou Buljjopow oujel |
anss| uonnjjod sajewisalapun
ABarens apim-A110 € JO0N

;juawinodo( Jo swsionu) Aay

dnoin
sjuapisay
|e20]

uolnelo0ssy

sjuepisay

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 110



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d 2y
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

paJapisuod Buieq si 737 Inq
a|qelA aq 01 Ajyun si Buibreyo uonsabuod ‘enoqe sy

palou SMaIA
AbBarens
ay1 Jo ued [eibajul ue si Al1oeded Yed pasealou|

JIoUN0Y 8yl JO |0J1U0D
8y} OpISINO 8JB SaJe) SNQ pue |kl Jadeayd aA0ge Sy

paloayje sjuapisal [eo0|
j0 fiuolew ayy Aq Juswaaibe 0} 108lgns ‘pasea.oul
8q ued sauoz Bupped ,siuapisay Jo Jualxa ay |

ABorens uodsuel |
e J0 8doos a8y} apiIsino aJe sjelidsoy 01 sabueyd yong

palou SMaIA
uonoy pasodolid
Abarens ayi jo ped

[eibajul ue si asuad Alo ayi ul Auenb Jie Buissalppy

palou SMaIA
uonoy pasodoud

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

sinoy yead Buunp yieg Buldlus S|dIYaA [BI2ISWWO0D

pue Jojow abeIN0ISIp 01 8UOZ UOISSIWS MO| pue abieyd uonsabuoo/bulold peos 8onpoJiu|
yreg ui suonesiuebio abie| Joyio yum uoneloge|joo snid j1ounod

Aq paidope aq pjnoys yoeoidde — sanssi 10edwi [BJUSWUOIIAUS A0S 0} SaNbluyds) WalsAg
uswabeue| [BJUBWUOIIAUT JO 8SN SB1EJ0APE Yyoiym ABaleas Lodsuel] yeaq ul BuiyloN
aJeys Jeod Jo

uodsuel; ognd asn 0} sieinwwod abeinoous o} — sabieyod Bupied Jed Jakojdwa pue 188.11s-uQ
SIS 8pIY PUB YJed UMO] JO 1IN0 JO Aoeded asealou|

SJ9]NWLWOJ |01SIIg pUe yleg o} S1ay0l} UOSEaS |lel pue snq pasipisgns/iadeay)

SUOIIN|OS JO SISA[eue Jjouag/3sod pue AWouodd yleg uo uosabuod aujels Jo 1s0D

s1abie) Buipnjoul ‘uonn|jod Jie pue JUSWUOIIAUS UO SNO0-

010z Aening

Bupied uolsap) pue abpugma Woly suolepuawiwodal Juswa|dwi pue ysiignd o} [1ounon
uolsap B 9bpugma 0} sauoz Bupped Sluspisal JO UOISUBIXT

sooeds o|ge|ieAe Jo Jaquinu Bunesipul apiy pue yied 1e subis 21uotjos|3

[endsoH paiun [eAoy o}

S80IAIBS |elidsoy sulley 1S Jo [elaulp [eAoy ayl Buinow Jo sisAeue 11jouaq/1sod pue Alljiqises
sng ajunys ajesedss apinoid Jo ‘[elidsoH palun [eAoy 1e dojs 0} sesng apiy pue yed |V
Bured oj9A0 aiow apinoid ‘sjuswoned

90BJINS paIeYS pue Saue| 8040 — SB|OIYSA Jolow wod} S1S119A0 ajebalibas ‘a|qissod aiaypp
Bpiy pue yed asn asea|d ‘uonnjod Jie pue uonsabuoo

aonpai djay 01, 01 ,9pIY pue Mied asn spouad Asng Buung, wouj subis apiy pue yed puswy
sJanLp Buueys Jed 0] uaaib Alioud

Spasu JaALp

pajgesip 1unodoe ojul Bue; ‘sieadls Buiddoys auad A11o Auew asiueLisapad Ajaaissaibold

Aurenb e anoidwi 01 usye) aq 1snw sdals — Alenb Jie woly 1SoW JayNns sjuspiIsal a1uad Al
sjuapisal 0] payedo|e aq pjnoys Bunjed 18813s-Uo a4uad A1 a0

sjesodo.d Bunuswa|dwi

ul ssaiboud Jo yoe| B UBSQ SeY 818y} Ing — slodal snoinald ul Juapine sjesodoud Auepy
S9OIAISS BpIY PUB Yied [BUJBIXd pue dujell ybnolyl jo uononpal

‘a1jud9 Alo Ul sjurelisuod Bupped ‘senijioe) paleloosse Jo juswanoidwi pue BuloAo pue Bupjem
Ul 8SeaJoul ‘asn Jed paonpal Apenailed — Lodal Jo suolepuawwodal pue sajdioulid uoddng

sasuodsay
Sluapisay
pale|j0d

uolnelo0ssy
sjuapisay

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 111



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d oy
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

Aujioey Bupped yoeoo sjowal alow e
0] payul| ‘[enluassa s| a4juad A9 ayy ul Juiod Buipeojun
9|qISS909k AjIses ue Jeyl ABajelis ayl ul palou S|

pBlou SMBIA

p8loU SMBIA

palou SMaIA

palou SMaIA

palou SMaIA

p8loU SMBIA

ABore.is sy} ul 8A1108[q0 Aoy B SI SUOISSIWS U0QIBD
aJo1yan Buronpal ‘yyesy g Aljenb are Buinoidw)

9J]U89 8102 3y} UlyIM diel} ybnolayl aonpal 0}
ABaje.is ay] Ul paulllopun aJe saInseaw Jo Jaquinu Y
uonoy pasodoud

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

(eaJe [enuUapISal
10U) 1S9S0|0 9y} 1e BaJe [BJIUSD By} JO 8bpa ay} uo spulod jjo-doiq -a4udd Ao 8yl ojul
1ybnouq aq 1ou pjnoys pue ‘yieg ul uoiisabuod diyjel} 0] UOIINQUIUOD Jofew B 8YEW SBYJEOD) e
L1 uonsanp

S90IAIS Juanbal) aiow ‘sase) jadeay) e
91 uonsanp

sdnoub wsunol Aq
10} pred ‘sasnoy 1sanb pue s|aloy oy} BuiAies ‘SI0NSIA 1YBIUIBAO 10} SBI2IYSA 9|qelNS JO 8IAIS
a[INYS B 8q p|NOYS 848y "92IAI8S SIYl YIM SI0YISIA 1yBiuiano pue Buiuans apinoid 0} pesN e
Bunpred ybiuieno ainoss
yum ‘yoam e sAep / 1o} ale| [nun a1esado pinoys sygd "Aloedeo Buiseasour inoge isnfjou sl e
LL uonsanp

S]USPISa) PUE SIOJSIA JO} JUBWIUOIIAUS paAoidwil yonwl
By} JO 8SNBO3Q PaALY] SABY PUB SS800B ADHH Pa||04U0d d9ABY SaNli0 ueadoing a|qesedwod
Auep\ ‘sassauisng uo 1oedwi 8SI9ApPE PIOAE 0] A||njaled pebeuew aq 0} posu PNOM SIY] e
9 uonsanp

91N0J DAIJEUJIS}E MBU B JO 90UaSge dy] Ul yleg woJj paiieq aq Jouued aljell
eyl papn|ouod yoImyleg 1e liwi| ADH UE U0 UOISIoap i Juadal - AlI0 8y} wolj paAowal aq 0} Si
Jl}Jel] J8Y10 /(SBUUO] G/ JBAO0 SB|DIYDA A|e1oadsa) ADH aouelsip Buo| JI [BIIUSSSD SI PROI YUY e
G uonsanp

A110 8Y] JO 1SBD BY) 0] 8pll % 1Bl 10 YRd e uoddns AjBuons e
€ uonsanp

Arenb sie poobBiuswuolaiaus Aljenb ybiH -
ajoym e se AJ19 8y} Ul dijel} paonpay -
sooeds olgnd JueIqIA -
pajuswa|dwi ABalelS JUBWSAO pue wieay dlgnd -
2.1ud9 A0 9a.y oiyyel Ajobie -
;9] 99S 0} USIM SOWOOIN0 Aay] e
ue|d podsuel] 8A1108)48 UB JO sueaw
Aq sawnjona oyyes) Buionpas Ag suop aq 0] sey - Ajsnouas uonnjjod Jie apjoe) 0] pasu ‘Uwi| [eb9)
1ua1IND 8yl Mojaq S|aAd) 1B (G gINd) Saieinoied auly JO S10810 Yl|eay 8SI9AP. UO SUISoU0D) e
(192413 Momyyeg pue peoy
uopuoT) sease palsabuod Jayio ul uoinjjod Jie PaleId0SSE By} PUE Jljjel} 8oNpal 0} PaaU 0S|y e
9109 2lI0ISIY
ay1 ul Ajje1oadsa s9|01yaA JO uoisSniul pue diel) ayl Bulonpal Jo aAjoalqo Asy yum salby e
SuJaouod doj — | uonsanp

uoneId0Ssy
sjuepisay

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 112



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui{ uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodeay\Abaleng wodsuel] yieg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoidweyinos\:d a2
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

sjuswireduw
Aujgow yum ajdoad asoyy 1oy syul apiaoid
0} ABalelis 8yl Ul paIsapISU0d aIe |aARI)] JO Sioadse ||y

uieay pue
[9ABI] JO SBPOW BAIOB USaMIa( Mul| 8y} U0 Sayonol
(Sdd) ABerens Juswaopy pue wieay d1jgnd

palou SMaIA
uonoy pasodoud

a|ge|iene
apew Buiaq Buipuny 0} 108[gns aJe sue|d [aABI ]

p8loU SMBIA

pasodoid si ue|d lJuswabeueyy oijel] pajelsp v
palou SMaIA

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

ued — BuloeINs Jualayip ybnoiyl ainjoniseljul bupjem pue BuljoAo/peoljuswaned usamiaq
uolnenuaiayip Jes|o ‘ebeubis Jo asn poob — sade|d Ajpusii4-enusweq 6-8 sdnoib senoed

1o} punoie 186 01 Ases aue ey} seoe|d Jo Juswdojansp Buioddns ainjessy Jo Apoq Buimoln)
saljigesIp Buluies| yum asoyi pue

eluawap yium asoy) ‘ajdoad Jap|o ‘eidoad BunoA ‘ualp|iyo — pauoiusw aq pjnoys sdnoib Jayio
palapisuod aJe sjuawiredwi Aljigow yim ajdoad 1By} 88s 0] aAllisod — BUOAIBAS 10}

Jaises yieg .punote Bumab, ayew o} wie am Jes|d 1 Bupjew Aq pausyibuaiis 8q pjnod UOISIA
Uijeay pue |9ARI] JO SOPOW SAIJOB UdaMIaQ Hull Inoge Holjdxa se aq pinod Ji |nydjay

— Buiagiem pue yyesay paroidwi pue Ajjenb sie pasoidwi usamiag yui| Inoge Joljdxe Absrens
safoLd Se 1IN0 19S [9ABJ} JO SBPOW UOQIBD MO| pUB dAI10R 88s 0} Buibeinoou]

i1 uonsanp

alleuuonsanp uoijelnsuo) o} Buiegy sjuswwon

Bulagjiem pue yijeay 1o} 1s8q Si leym pueisispun o} (oueusds Buiyiou

op, Buipnjoul) sjesodoud Jayio 0} pasedwod Suonn|os Jo sjoedwi Yyjeay puelsispun 0} pasN
ABarens uodsues |

yeiq ul pajosjjal se ‘syiomiau poob Buunsus pue paosuuod ajdoad Buidasy jo aourpodw|

ul 8|04 Aoy sAejd Lodsuell yoiym — ssauljsuo|

uo uonoe Buipnjoul ‘saiuNWWo9 pue ajdoad [Bo0| Jo 8oualIsal Buisealoul 0} pajiWWod pieoqg
sooe|d a|qeulelsns pue Ayjesy Buiieald pue Bulaq|em pue yjesy [enpiaipul JO Swidl

ul Aejnoied ‘sanoalqo umo s pieoq yim ul sail — ABajesis syl uiyum uodsuel olgnd pue
BuioAo ‘Bunjiem Buisnuioud pue yyeay ‘Aljenb are 0} 8ousaiajal sewodjem pieoq ‘Jenaied u)
yreg o Auo ay)

ul Wodsuel} 10} UOISIA Wid) Buo| e uo Jay1abol yiom 0} pue Buisq|iem pue yjesy Jo siueulwialap
Japim ssaippe 0} wsiueyosw Aay e se ABojesig Lodsuel| Jo JuswdojsAsp SaWod|am pieog

‘way} Juswajdwi

0] papodU $82IN0SaJ pue Loysd 8yl Aq pauoddns Jou a1ep o} dn 1day Jayliou ale asay}

1nq suejd [9ABI} DABY MOU S|O0OYDS 1SOJ\ "S|9A3] dljjeJ] uo 10edwi Jofew e Sey unJ [00yds ay |
‘Juswdojaasp ealy asudiaiug ayi yoddns

0} paJlinbal si JaAl 8U} JO YINoS 9gY Uy} 4o} ue(d pajeifalul uy "palapisuod ale sjuswdojansp
Jolew uaym 1no pauled ate saipnis Buljjopow diyel] aAisuayaidwod Jeyl [Bluassa Si i

SeaJe Joyl0 puB a4]uad 8y} Ul SBWN|OA e} Buionpal je pawie Al ay}

Jo} ue|d uswabeuew oduyjel] e Buipnjoul smainal ssalboid [enuue yum ‘syebpng pue sajeassawil
yum s1o9(oid pajielsp Jo 18s e Buiurejuod ueld Lodsuel) e Aq pamoj|o} 8q 0} spedu S|

sjuswwo? Ivdylo

sAauinol Jo Jaquinu ay} Buiaey ‘AlD 8yl 0lul SNg Y d 9yl 8.l pinod siabusssed
yoeon "Ajoedeo Jusiouns si 848y} papinoid 9]qISuss SI 43 d dU}l 1 Saydeod Joy ealse Buiiem y

dnoun yyesH

sdnouy yjjesH

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 113



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d Gy

MM 90849 1B ulewal pjnoys
wiod dn yoi1d/umop 18s a.juad AJ10 8y "8lls aply pue

}ied umoQ ppO IO PUE|S| UOISBAA Jaylie e papiaoid
aq p|noys yJed yoeod juswade|dal B papuswiwodsy

plq ealy sng Jaleg,
ay] ulyum Abejesis wodsues] eyl uiyim pesodo.d

p8loU SMBIA

palou SMaIA

sjuana Alunwiwod
10} Anoedeo [euonippe Buipinoid / s[eAnss) / 19xyiew
1o} spuewap yead 1o} pasn 8q 0} PapUSIWOI8) HBd

Iounog 8yl Ag pasipisgns
0] 9ABY PINOM S8Je} SNQ puk |iel Jadeayd ‘dnoqe sy

p8loU SMBIA

sjuawdojonap mau pue Saoe|dyJOM 10} SuB|d [9ARI ]
ybnouy) pabeinoous si INoineYaq |9AeI} Jo 8buey)

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

Y102 100 €1 9/€0/011/dL1/8,562¢€

aply pue yed ‘6o sjosse Bullsixo Jo 8sn e
Bulaqiem pue yiyesay ajowoid 0] pasn aq p|NO YdIym Sals aJiuad
A0 J0 8sn as1woIdwod 10U SB0P INQ ‘JBD ISA0 |9ARI] YOB0D Sabeinodus ydiym uoinjos yoddng e
/] uonsanp

I4-IM 60 ,81ep 01 dn, SI YoIym 199]} SNQ Y| PINOM SISPOYSHEIS
19| uonsanp

¢oxe1dn Jaybiy pue abueyo inoineysq
abeinoous 0} pasinbal sjuiod Buibieyd pue saijioe) [ewndo jo Buipuelsiopun 818yl s| e
S9A 7L uonsand

anuao Aj10 pue spooylnoqybiau usamiag se ||am se spooylnoqyblou ssoioe
‘spooyinoqybiau pue salls usamiaq AlAnoauuod Buinoidwi jo soueuodwi ybiybiy 1sebbng e
spooyJnoqybiau 9|qISSa09e ‘JueIgIA
Hoddns 0] djay — Jayioue auo 0} SaluNWWOod syul| yoiym yoeoisdde pooyinoqyblou € 0S|y e

yreg
1O 1IN0 puUB Ul S8IN0J [BIPBJ YUIM ‘I0pLLI0D JaAl Buofe Bunjiem pue BuloAo jo uonesiuoud pyoddng e
€1 uonsanp

(Buiaqjiom [eluaw osje pue) Alanoe jeaisAyd
Buiroidwi jo Aem e se sawayos uelsepad spoddns yoiym aseq aouapine poob siaiay] e
SaA : gl uonsanp

(-o18 sanianoe ainsig|/Bunred Joy pasn aq Asayy pinod ‘lybiu e Buiso|o
uey} Jayiel "6°8) 19SSE AUNWIWOD B SB Pasnh aq p|nod aply PUe YJed MOY puBiSIapun 0} pooy) e
SO :LL uonsand

;apew
8q P|N09 1By} JUBWHWWOD B 8Jay} S| — Sale} 80npas 0} uoioe Buiyel 0} JWwod ,usaop INg Siy}
suonusw ABsjelis — ueuodwi Aion aq 01 A|9y| saie} Jadeayod a10ja4ay) ‘ybiy st BUIAI JO1SOD e
16 uonsand

"010 S|9A8| SS8.1S Jamo| ‘(snq wouy/o1 Bunjiem) Alanoe [eaisAyd aiow Buibeinoous i
yljeay Joj poob pue sepow a|qeulelsns aiow Loddns se apiy pue yied Jo aAluoddns Ajjejsusr) e
g uonsanp

panalyoe aq p|nod Siyl moy pue (uodsuel; oljgnd Buisn/Buljoko/Buijiem ajdoad

196 03) siousIA pue sjuapisal isbuowe abueyd Jnoireyaq 40} pasu asiseydwd P|NoyYs UOISIA e
1sonba. uodn uonewlioyul Jayun; apinoid

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 114



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d 9y

SIY1 |'B1ap ||IM JusWINd0p

Buiuoddns ajelredas e — ABajeI1S BYI UIYIM SOUBPIAS
1o} pasAjeue pue pasn usaq Sey UOBWIOUI duljoseg
pauleIqo BIep 8yl UIYIM patapisuod

aJe Ing podal 8yl uiyim Ajjeonioads pajielsp 10N

pajou SMaIA
wawdojanap aininy jo Buuueld

pue ABajens 8109 ayl 01 paxull Apoauip si Aberens

ABoresis vodsuel | pasodoud sy} SI luswnooqg
uonoy pasodold

MIOM Jayuny
Ul PaJapISu09 a4 [|Im Slulod pajielsp pue palou SMaIA

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

Y102 100 €1 9/€0/011/dL1/8,562¢€

SIU} Yom 0} 8|qissod ag p|nom 1l A3118q S\ "PAlEPOIWIOIE A|[edlisi|eal 8q Ued eyl puewap

1O [8A3] BY1 O} Jwl| B SI 818y} ‘@ouanbasuod e se pue ‘Alioedeod aliuly B Ajuo sey yiomiau
uodsued; s,A11D ayi Jo apis Aiddns ay} 1Y) JUBWINDOP 8y} Ul Pale|nNdIue AlJes|O 8q 0] SPeBN e

padojanap aq ued ABajells 8y} Ydiym WO} UOIIBWIOJUI SUI|SE] [BIIUSSSS [|E SI SIY]

"0]0 sAemialem pue JaAl By} ‘SBdIAISS SNq Jo 8BBISA0D By} ‘syul| |led 8y} ‘speol Jo Aydieialy
oy} "ol (apis A|ddns ayy) jjosi yiomlau Lodsuel) [enjoe 8yl JO S 8yl Ul SISAjleuB OU S18J8Y] e

uopJO2 JBuUI 8y} SSOIOE S3|1}0Id MOJ} JUBIBYHIP SY} JO YaaM By} JO SAEP JUSIBYIP UO |aABI}
‘sasodind dui ay} ‘01 Buiob 4o wouy Buiwod are sduy 8yl 8Jaym JO UONBIIPUI OU SBAIB S| By e

sisAjeuy - ABaje.}s e 10} paau ay|

puoAaq eaJe ¥I0M-0}-[9ABJ} 8y} pue Alo a8yl jo sabully 8yl ‘esiusd ayl Buipunouns eale uegqin
dy1 JO 8|0J 8Y] 0] 90UBIBJBI B[1II| SBYEW PUB Yleg JO BaJe [BJUSD Y] UO PASNJ0} 001 SIS 8yl e
[lelap ua1oiins ul BuidAod si 11 ease olydelboab syl saulsp AlJesjo 1,Ussop 0SB S| 8yl e
V ¢°018 uB|d Modsuel] [B007 ‘ABaiens saniunwwon)
s|qeuleisng yreg 6e 1ounod ay} Jo saibajells Jaylo ay} YUM Ul i} S| 9y} SS0p MOH e
1x91u0)

1081100U1 Aj[enixaluod pue Ajleonewwelb s yieg punoly Bumen), Buipeay ayl ‘uonippe u; e

¢M3IA8I B 10 Jodai Bunsal suondo sjue}jnsuo’n
ue ‘ABejesiS 1odsuel] [enoe 8y il S 4B9|0 10U S| 8JNONJIS PUB UOBOISSE|O JUBWNJO0Q e podsuela]
SJUSWIWOD |eIHU| |e20]

sassauisng |20
BlUSWSP pue sainouip Buiules| yum
89S0y} J0} SS820E 8pN|oul 0} pauspeolq 8q 8dods P|N0d — dNOJL) SS8IJY JO UOIIBIO SWIOJON e
"0} sassauisnqg uo 1oedwi ‘Ao ojul 186 ejdoad moy uo 10edwi sy} 10jid 0} pue el
0] S1981]S 941udd AlD JO 8INSO|0 [eluswadxa 10} yoddns Buosis ‘AN Ul JUSAS UONBYNSUOD Y e
(joned} aAnoe pue a|qeulelsns "9°1) S8210yd |9ABI} panoidw) ippe —p2d e
(1oAeu)} JO sapow
aAloe pue djqeulelsns Buipnjoul) salis Juswdojansp Jo AIdAIIBP |NJSS82INS :ppe - 22'd
¢ybnous Buibus|eyoyle; siyl si — sueld |aael |
|9ABI) OAIIOB, UOJJUBW OS|E — UOI08S [9ARI] 9|qeulelsnNS
paonpaiJ a4 ||IM SIYl MOY PUB D1jjel] |[00YDS JO SWN|OA Uo AlE|D
sduy Bupjiem 1oy sasodind ainsis| pue Ayjin Jo uoniuaq
9010y0 Ases aJe BuloAo/Bunjiem "6 SOpOW SAIOB d19yM SBIIUNWWOD Palodsuu0)
pasiiiond ase sajnos Buijiem |00Y9S ainsus pinoys — salnoJ Bujiem Aay jo uoniuyeqg
Bureys Jed abeinodus 0] alow oQg
JeAe1) Jo sapow aAloe pue g|qeurelsns Bunowoid, ppe — g} 8A19a[q0
aJI7 10} 114 B o saibalels Aoy Jaylo yum syuil Absresis usyibuais e
ISjUBWWOY) [eUOIPPY

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 115



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d /vy
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

A0 sjoym ay} 1noybnouy
$S9]N0J 8109 0} ABd]RIIS JUBWSAO)\ pue Weay
211qnd @y} Jo sajdiouud ay} puaixa |im ABajelis ey

pa1ou SMaIA
uonoy pasodoid

palou SMaIA

SaWl} JAY10 1B SS8d0. 9[OIYdA
Buliqeus ‘passpisuod aq ueo Ajuoud ueuisepad
awinAep 4o} dods ayl jeyl Lodal sy} ul paless S|

palou SMaIA

wawdojansp

a|qeurelsns Jo sa|diouud syl suoddns jeyi yiomawel
£o1j04 Buiuue|d jeuonen ayl ybnoiyl 1sayuew
wlsAs Buiuueld syl ur sebueyd ayy sioapas Abarens
2100 Buibiaws a8y} 1By} JUSWNJOP 8y} Ul PBJEILS S|

palou SMaIA

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

aJaymas|e wajgqoid ayl aaow isnl |jim 31 snedaq A0 ay) ul sueulsapad 10}
JUSLUBAOW JO 9SBS JO 8NSS| JOPIM BU} SSBIPPE A|[eaJ ,USS0p Il pUe ‘UoiIqWE S} Ul PalwWi| 00} S|

Z1 uonsanp

S8AI1108[q0 |[BJ9A0 8BS0y} 1suleBe suonnjos pasodoid sy} Buunsesiy-

asn/puewap Jeos buiiwi -

AlD 8y wouy/0} JuswaAow Jo ase] -

AUD 8y} UIYHIM JUBWBAOW JO 8SET -

:sg|dipuud Lodsuely oiberens

JO 9SUBS [eal Aue S| 1s1l} 8] ‘|oA9| 21681eI1S B 1B SOAI108lq0 Yor| 0} swaas Abajelis ay |

L uonsanp

yleg Joj peidope ale sainseaw sii pue Abajelis ayl eyl
wepodwi s 1 Aym 0] se Juswnbie aaisensiad e apinoid Jou op S| 8yl Ul N0 18S S8WO0IN0 8y |

Abajens ay} 1o} Loddng

puoAaq eaJe YIOM-0}-|oAeI] S)I pue ALID 8joym 8y} JOA0D

pPINOYS 'S 8y} Jo Weay ay} e 8q 0} Spasu ‘sadIAIes snq 8y} Jejnoiued ul pue ‘Lodsuel; olignd
BOUEISIP papwl]

e Jo sAauinol 1o} a|gelins Ajuo si Siyl Janamoy ‘Bujiem punose paljuad si S| ayl oy |994

A}1D 8y} OJUI SBIN0J PUB SIOPLIOD BY} UO 8q PINOYS S8INSESW UOIIUBAIS}UI

oljel ay -onewsjgold si aAsleg am yoiym ‘Al ay} Jo BaJe [BJjuad sy} uo Ajlsow si S 8y
Auo ay} 4o} ABajesis Lodsuel) [[elano 8y} 0} Led [eibajul ue aie Aay)

ey} ajeJISUOWISP 0} }NDIIP 8J0W yonw aq [|Im I ‘punolB ay} uo wayl JaAldp o} Bulkly 0} sawoo
1 UayMm ‘gS | Uyl Ul papn|oul 10U aJe SaWayds / SaJnseaw o1y10ads JI 1y Ysu [eal e S| alay |
"0]0 J9||9Akl] Jo adA} ‘[aaed] Jo swi ‘esodind du) ‘@ouelsip

1onel] "6 8 yreg ul |oael) Jo sadA} Juaiayip 01 81nquiuod ybiw Aayl moy o} se paure|dxs Jou Si }
Ao1j0d jeuoneu 108381 Aay) se g|geindsipul 8q p|NOYS yodiym

‘uodsued) o11gnd pue BuloAo ‘Bunjem Bunowolud se yons ‘sainseaw pasieiauab Auew 00|

AbBajelis Juaiayon

yiomiau palelbsiul ue se aresado ybiw Asyl moy jo uoiiubooal Inoyim pue sawibal
Buneisado jualayip aAeY (B 018 Sjeoq ‘sulel] ‘sasng ‘speod :Jodsuel] JO SOpoW |[e usamlag-
"Hodsuel} @ouaNjUI [[B [[IM S82IAI8S AHUNWIWIOD PUB SB2IAISS |BID0S

‘uonessusbai pue Buluueld Juswabeuew 8)sem ‘UoleoNpPs :SsjJuswyeda [IDUN0Y usamlag-
yiomawely Ao1jod jeuoifal Se ||om Se [euoljeu J8pIM Y] -

'SMO||0} SE S|SAS] [BIBASS 1e pajelbalul 8q 0} spesu S| 8yl

uoneibajuj

puBWSP 8] UIRJISUOD 0] 198 YOIYMm ‘)i 01Ul Sainod paliwi| Ajuo sey A11o ay) se Ino

ssauisng

eIpaj 12907

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 116



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d oy
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

sannouIp ANjIqow yum pue Jooj uo asoy Joj Bunybi|
pue aoeds paieys ‘sbuissosd Buipnjoul ainjonJiseljul
Mmau apinoid 03 Aluoud Aay e se paliuap|

pajou SMaIA
sjuswuredw

Aljigow yum asouy} 40} syull apiaoad o} Abajells

dU1 Ul PaJIapISU0D aJe |9ABI] JO S109dSe || ‘noge Sy

p8loU SMBIA

HIUS [BpOW UIYIM paIapISuod S| aleys Jen
2.1uao Ao By} ulylm payoune| Apealje sey oyIq IXaN,

suoisinoid BuloAo aining
Jo} 8doos pue Aurenb ayl sywij ease ay) jo Aydesbodol
[e00] “Janamoy ‘sduy BuljoAo Jo Jaquinu 8y} 8sealoul o}
ABareJ1s sy} UIYlIMm Pajou SaINSBaW [BI9ASS dJe 8Jay |

palou SMaIA
paJlinbal 1509 ainjonJiseljul pue jJuswdojanap

abny sy} 0} anp yieq jo azis sy} Ao e 1oy

a|qelA 8q 01 Aj@yun sI Buibreys uonsabuod ‘enoqe sy

[1DUNOYD) 8Y] JO [0JJU0D
ay] epISING aJe Sale) sNq pue |l Jadesyd ‘anoge Sy

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

wa|qo.d siyi ploAe 0} sadeds yons Jo ubisap |njaied pasp "ajes |89} Jou op
Aayl se saoeds yons pioAe sjuswiredwi [BNSIA YlIIM 8SOU} 1By} 108} 8y} S108|48) SIUSPIOJ. JO 3O
— sueu)sapad pue s)s1j0A0 Aq 89eds J0 8sn pateys Jo sebejuenpe Jusaiedde sydeooe Abalens

aoedg paleys

BUOAIBAS 10} JuBWUOIIAUS Bunjem ajes e spewl

s yleg leyi buunsus 0} juiod Builels e se suolesiuebio JUBAS|SI YIIM UOIE}NSUOD 10} PaaN
(2002 ‘wodsuel] jo Juswuedaq) aonoead 1s8q yum auj| ul ‘subis a)11oe} pue

a|qipne Jo asn ayl Aq ayes spew sBuIss0.0 pa|j04uod pasu Ing ‘|nydjay s1ea.is Ajuo uelisapad
spodu x3|dwod pue paleA aAey sjuawliedw Aljiqow ylim asoyl ey

108} 8y} JO lunoook Jalealb ayel 0] spasu AbBajesis Inqg ‘Bunjiem o} Ayuoud 1saybiy Buinib poddng

alay Juspuadapul 8q 0} 9|ge 0s ‘uswuiedw [ensia sey Jajybnep — A10 a|geyem
pue 10edwod, e Buieq 0} enp 0S|e pue Ssaijudawe pue AIneaq, Yyloq 10} yieg o0} panow Ajjusdsey

paJapIsSuod
aq ybiw Jaal ay} Buoje sadlAIas IXe] JO asn 8yl ‘Uodsuel) Jo poylew B Se Way} asn 0}
pabeinoous aq Jybiw ssauIsng :palapIsSuod aq p|noys uonn|os |elualod e se sAkemiaiem s,yieg
Bunped Jadesayd ‘saue| snqg buueys ‘Ba ‘Ag Buisianuadul ;pauonusw jou si Buueys Jen

24]ud9 a8y}

10} suonnjos adA} ,8y1q suog, Japisuod pinoys "ybnous Apuediiubis ainjes) Jou saop Bulohkn
[enualod

[IN} SU sanalyoe pue Aep Jo 1ybi| 8yl s8as siyl 1eyl Buunsus ul 437 oyl woddns o1 aq pjnoys
Awoud ay] -10edwi Jarealb yonw Ajenualod pue ‘Alunuoddo Jalealb ‘enjea Jajealb sey yleg
10 1se3 8y} 0} 109(0.4d 1S9 \\018N Bl INg ‘DA1103[00 B|IUMULIOM B 1B aJIYSHIA O} SHUI| S|ie 8y
9pISINO WOJ} 843u8d 8y} woJj pue o} Bumeb jo joedwi sy} uo siseydws ybnous Buioeld jou

pue ‘aJjuad AuD syl apIsIno senss| Lodsued) Buissiw - pasnooy aJjuad AuD Alan st ABajelis ay )
saJe} snNQ 1D pue SadIAIas snq aAoidwl 0} S821N0sal apiAoId pinom

yloq voddns pjnom abreyd uonsabuod a1uad A9 e se yons

SUOIN|0S UdY} ‘SaAnoalqo Aay ase A1) 8yl woJ)/0) JusWSAOW JO 8SBS puke puewap Jed Buiiwi j|

Bunjiem

asuodsay
i lenpiAlpu]

sasuodsay [enpiAlpuj

sjuswwo? Idylo

H%d 8y} 01 shAeuinol Jeo 1oy
paau ay} BuiploAe ‘yleg apISINO SUOIEBIO| WOJ Saley pue uoisiroid sng uo siseydws Jayealn)
SaJe} JoamoT

91 uonsanpd

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 117



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uoday\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\ML\uoldweyinos\:d 6V
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

palou SMaIA
palou SMaIA

Aujioey Bupped yoeoo sjowal alow e

0] payul| ‘|enuassa s a1juad A0 sy} ui juiod Buipeojun
9|qISS992k A|ISES UE JBY} JUSWINJOP 8y} Ul Paje}s SI ||

KloAnosye alow pabeuew aq ued S82IN0Sal
Bupped 1eyl SMoys Yoiym JO ‘S|aAd| d1jel} aonpal

0} pad|ay sey pue AWou02a [BO0| 8y} O} [BIUBWILISP
uaaq jou sey Aiddns Buibeuew Buied Jed snoinald

p8lou SMBIA

[IOUN0YD 8y} JO [0JJU0D
8y} opISINO aJB Saie) SNQ pue |l Jadesyd ‘9A0ge Sy

S]9]10] pUB BaJE 1S4 ISALIP
e Buipnjoul ‘sanijioe) paaosdwi yonw apiaoid isnw
uolels yoeod mau Aue pue ayenbapeul ale sanijioe}
wa.no Jeyl bunels ‘ABajels syl uiyim pajuswsduw)
palou Smalp

p8loU SMBIA

p8loU SMBIA

Aupoey Bunied

yoBO0D 8]0WAaJ 8J0W B 0} payul| ‘[enuassa sl auad Ao
ay} ul iod Buipeojun 9|qISS829E A|ISEa UR -SS820NS
J18Y} Jo Jusuodwod Jofew e aie saydoeoy "SuolloeIle
Jousia yim anborelp eia ABsjeils ay) uiyim paynuspj

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

(Bunped jusweaned/bunied signop Buipioae) asjuad Ao

ay) ul swajqo.d Bupped Buionpal a1usd A110 8y} Jo SUINSINO 8y} Uo payied aq 01 SIed [euolippe
10 Jaquinu abJe| B 8|qeud 0] Yied Je) 19a.1S anopey) Buisixa ay) JoA0 A8101S puodas B ppy
Jeo 8y} Jo sjoAd| uonnjjod ayi uo paseq sesa) Builed Sjuspisal Jo BWaYIS B 8oNpoJlU|

puej 1011819p Uo Yed 0] Aeme aA0W pue a41udd AlID 8y} 8pISINo

1sn[ sease Buibels aiow 1o auo Je siabuassed Jisy) 8b1eyodsip 0] spew 8q pnoys sayoeon)

{Slaul

UIYHIM UOIJBIBPISUOD OJUl UdYE] SiedA Buiwod JOA0 $82In0s [an} Jed 0] sebueyd Aoy Aue aiy
A9 8y} ul ousIadxe Jowo}sno

WIS1INO} pUE |1elal 8y} 4si pinod A1o sy ul Buiied 19841s 1J0 9oNnpal 0] uoiudlul pajels ay |

)Sl Je 10198s siy} Bumnd jou ale sonoe) pue yoeoudde

o1691e41S 8Y] 1Byl aInsud 0} A110 8y} USIA OyM sjuapisal yieg uou yum abebus o) Aanins

B 1onpuo9/Awouods yleg ayl Jo Juawbas 1SN0} pue |1elal 8y} uo anjea Alejsuow e ind 0} pasN

UaJIp|Iyo Joj Saiey SNg paonpal JSpISUoD 0] pasN

SpIsIaAlY Je salll|ioe] 18]10]
wauno Buiprebal Jureldwod — (saniioey Buows pue 19]101) SISALIP 10} SB1I|I0B) 1S81 8pN|ou|
AlInjoed Aian paiapisuod aq 0} spasu sa|oiyan abie| jo Buuansouew ayes — Bupped yoeon

fuoud e
8q p|noys (a|qissod }I ‘Saydoeoo pue) sasNq d1108[d pue plugAy 0} uonisuel) pidey -abesn Jed 0}
uolippe Ul ‘yreg ui sjaaa| uonnjjod ybiy o1 Joinguiuod Juediubls aq isnw sasng pue sayoeo)

uonnjjod

aininy 8y} Ul pajgesIp ay} Joj sBuissoio
Jajes Jayo Aew sadinap pa|j0auod Aouanbaiy oipel -6 8 ABojouyoal Jo asn Jajealb poddng

ABojouyoda

a11uad Al1o 0} Ajwixoid 8sojo ulyum salljioe) Buied yoeoo Joy pasu ON
'$8U0B09 J0} BaJe ue Buipnjoul ‘AlI0 8y} JO 8pISINO S8lIS aply pue MYied Jo uoisuedxa 1o} hoddng

9pIy pue ied

juspuodsay
lenplalpu]

juspuodsay
IenplAlpu]

juspuodsay
lenplAlpu]

juspuodsay
lenplAlpu]

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 118



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d 0S
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

p8lou SMBIA

pa10U SMaIA

sBuiuans ay} ojul

pue Aep ay) Buunp ajdoad |e20] JO Spasu 8y} 198w
eyl saoi1nIas apinoid 0] sAem ajendoidde 1sow ay)
auIwIBlap ||Im siolerado sng yum Bupjiom ‘enoqe sy
ABajelis ayl ul ulylm snooy Aoy B ale 8109 J1I0ISIY
pue sbuipunoins anbiun syieg jo uonealesaid ay|
paJapIsuod ale sjuswliiedw!

Ajjigow yum asouy} 40} AljIqISSad0e ‘9noge sy

(sesnq se yons Lodsuel}

Jayjo Buisn 4o A1D sy} punoue Buiyjiem sainoiIp
Jajunooua Aew ‘ualp|iyd jooyos-aid 1o Buiddoys

ylIM 89S0yl Se yons ‘siaylo pue swajqoid BuLieay

J0 [ensIA ‘Alwiul JO WO} SWOS JBYND) PaIapISuod
aJse sjusuwuredw Ajjigow yum ajdoad Joy Aljiqissaooy

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

uonnjjod Jre ssaippe o0} Alioud e aq pjnoys sasnq 211199|9/pUgAH

aJ1ua9 A110 ay} ul Buiyied yoeod Iy pasu ou aq p|noys

-sBuISS010 Pa||0JIJU0D

alinbai yoiym 1ybis o} palejas Aenoiued uawareduw Ajjiqow Jo Swo} [|e 10} J81ed 0] pasN

peOI MUIl 9%V//9EY 8y} uo sajonb jualayip moys (102 |udy paroidde yioq) uoneynsuo)
- Hoday pleuoon HOW pue Bunasiy Jouigqed eyl ‘Peod 3ul| 9¥V/9EY Yl INOGE UOISSNISIP
e apnjoul 0} Buneaw ay} aouls pabueyd usaq sey uodas Bunes|y 18uige) panoidde ay

sAauinol is1j0A0/ueLiIsepad

J0 Jaquinu abie| e aAeY pue suelsapad Joj snosebuep ale ylog "AlisiaAiun sy} wolj pue o} Aem
Y] U0 pueasdoD pue ||IH 8qWIOOPIAA BIA S1S1194D 10 suelisapad 0} usAIb SI UOBISPISUOD ON
(uoness yied

uaalL) BIA 843U A0 8y} ojul pue syled Jed s,Aingsules pue aseqawoH ‘saAeH weybnoig

BIA YJed PIRURIO) Ao 8yl ul sainos ueuisapad 1saisng ay} J0 suo aloubi sainos Bupjiem Aoy
%)

pue 100} Aq sAauinol jo abejusoiad sy} 8SeaIOUl 0} SLOYS S,[IDUN0D Y} JO U080} BYl 1B 8q

01 palapIsSuod aq p|noys - yieg ul Apog uspnis ay} 0} USAIB UOIIBISPISUOD OU }SOW|e SI 8Jay ]

yreg

j0 fineaq [eanjeu ay) Buinowal auj 8yl Buoje suojAd AIBn aanpouiul |Im Aem|ies paijiloge uy
*241u890 A10 8y} ul Bupped Jed urelulew o} pesN

Apepje oy} 4oy areudosddeul

s A119 Jauul 8y} sueaw os|e sajnoJ Bujiem uiew ay} Buoje Buneas Jo yoe "suonoeal

JBMO|S YlIM 8S0U} 40} snossbuep ale sasnq abie| pue sayiq 1s|iym Aliolew ay) Joj areudoidde
Ajuessaoau jou si eapl A110 Bupjiem, siyl os pue Bupjiem Anouip aaey sjdoad pjo Auepy

Aliepje ayi-

SSau||l [elUBW-

(siopjoy ebpeq enjq) Anjigow-

(syons auym/sbop apinb) Aiosuss -

:]e 00| 0} SaAljoadsiad § ale a1ay] ‘||e O} 8|qISS800. 8JE YdIYM SBIN0J pue sgqny Je 3007

19211g 9610985 OJUI UMOPSUEBT UMOP BUIMOY} SI J1jjEJ} 1S[IUM PEOY UMOPSUET]
olul Yo| uin} 0} 188.1S 8bioax) Buoje oiell punogises Buimole Aq sjeubis jo Aloedes anoidw)

juspuodsay
lenplalpu]

juspuodsay
IenplAlpu]

juspuodsay
lenplalpu]

juspuodsay
lenpiAlpu]

juspuodsay
lenpiAlpu]

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 119



xo0p g A8y - sbuipui4 uoneynsuo) Absjens uodsuel| yreg\uodey\Abaleng wodsuel] yleg 8/662€\s1oaloid\\M L \uoldweyinos\:d LS
7102 100 €} 9/€0/011/d11/8,562€

sBuluana ay) ol pue Aep ayl Buunp

9|doad [e00] J0 Spaau Y} 198W 1By} SBOIAISS pue
uoisinoid uonewojul mau ‘Buiexon piemiopybiens
ybnouyy 19xew ayi pjing o1 sAem ajendoidde 1sow ay}
aulwialap [|Im siojerado sng yum Bunjiom ‘enoqe sy
AjoA1oaye alow pabeuew aqg ued saainosal Bupped
eyl SMOYUS U2IYm JO ‘S|9A3| dljel} 8onpal 0} padiay
Sey pue Awouo2d [BJ0| 8y} O} [BJUBWILISP USSQ 10U
sey Ajddns Buibeuew Bupped Jeo snoinaid ‘enoge sy
(€102 Ul paonpoJul) Buiyed

Kep-|ie 984} 10} 9|qe|ieAR Bulaq Jabuo| ou yed BUOIJIA
[eAoy e sededs 0gg 8yl pue 10/0002 Ul PEONPOIIUI
sawayos Bupped syuspisal ay) jo Led se seoeds
198.1s-u0 Aels Buo| 0O0‘S JOA0 SBPN[OUI 8OUBPINT
auoAiane Jyduaq ||Im Jed Aq epew sAsuinol

40 Jaquinu 8y} Buiureluod g juepodwi 89 0} SNURUOD
[lm @sn Jed — AlD 8y} JO SPaau [EJUSWIUOIIAUS

pue 21Wou09s 8y} Jsuiebe suondo podsuel} aoueeq
-24 0} BulA1} s1 pealsul Inq Jed-lue jou si Abajesis ay

PIDUOQ@ID HOW

| O @ &

A9 8yl ssouoe pue sapu pue yed ayl o1 186 o1 Buikiy ,si1auuni 1ed, Ag

pasned oljel} pasealoul a1aym sqingns Jaino/sabelin BulA[INo uo 10848 UOo Yoouy [eluswlag
JuawdojaAap 891410 Mau Aue JO SS829NS Y}

Hwi| pue sJ1a1dnooo [enualod 0] 1saiajul i lwl| [|im Baly asudiaiug ayy ul Bupyed Jed Buiiwi
apeJ) Buiuans uo Ajal 1ey) sessauisng jo Bulaqgjiem

2lLWOU028 81NNy 8y} 0} snosabuep si 1l [eonoeidwi Ajuo jou si Buied eale |esjuad Bulonpay

¢ MO} olyel) padjay osfe pue AWouU09d [BJ0| 8y} 0} [elusWIIap

uaaq Jou dABY sawayos Buiyied Juadal jeyl Aes 01 818y] S| 90UBPIAS 1BUM - G|'g UOND8S
9oUdpING

psey Ag dn payoeq a8q 0} Wass jou op Jeyl Hodal 8y Ul SjUsWIL]S JO Jaquinu e ale a1ay |
uoisia ,ueidoin, e Buinaiyoe uey) Jayiel [eonoeld aq 0} spasu Loday

uodai 8y} ul usyel 8q pinoys yoeoidde paouejeq aiow B pue Jed 1jue 00} 8q 0} Al ay} Jo
Buiagjiem olwouoos sy} 0} snosabuep 00} S| siyl— asn Jed Buidnpas uo pPasndo} 00} S| Lodas ay |

juspuodsay
lenplalpu]

yreg 4o} Abajesis uodsuel] v - yieg punoly bBuijen

Page 120



Getting Around Bath - A Transport Strategy for Bath

Consultation Findings Mott MacDonald

O

52 329578/ITD/ITQ/03/B 13 Oct 2014
P:\Southampton\ITW\Projects\329578 Bath Trandaagﬁra]eﬂﬁReport\Bath Transport Strategy Consultation Findings -
Rev B.docx



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 122



Agenda Item 9

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING/
DECISION | Council
MAKER:
MEETING/
DECISION | 13" November 2014
DATE:
Licensing Act 2003- Review of the Council’s Statement of Licensing
TITLE: .
Policy
WARD: All

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Annex A- Copy of the responses to the online consultation exercise on the proposed
Statement of Licensing Policy and Code of Best Practice for Licensed Premises

Annex B- Copy of the proposed Statement of Licensing Policy and Code of Best Practice

for Licensed Premises, including amendments from the consultation (in red)

Annex C- Night Time Economy evidence for Bath and North East Somerset

1 THEISSUE

1.1 Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”) requires a Licensing Authority to
prepare and publish a statement of its licensing policy every five years. Such a
policy must be published before the Authority carries out any function in respect of
individual applications made under the terms of the 2003 Act. During the five
year period the policy must be kept under review and the Licensing Authority may
make any revisions to it as it considers appropriate. The Council last reviewed it's
policy in 2010.

1.2 This report identifies the findings of the consultation exercise carried out on the
proposed revision of the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy and the
introduction of a Code of Best Practice for Licensed Premises.

2 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 The Council adopts the Policy and Code of Best Practice provided in Annex B,
having had regard to the responses received following the consultation exercise
(set outin Annex A),

Printed on recycled paper Page 123



2.2 The Council is also asked to recommend the continuation of the existing
Cumulative Impact Area in Bath City Centre.

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

3.1 There are no financial, property or people implications presented by the adoption
of this Policy and Code of Best Practice.

3.2 Costs for the licensing function will continue to be met from current licence fees.
Fees are reviewed on a periodic basis to ensure that they are set at a level
which covers costs only.

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL

4.1 The basis for this report stems from a statutory duty on the Council to review its
Statement of Licensing Policy every five years.

5 THE REPORT

5.1 The Council have completed a thirteen week consultation on the review of its
Statement of Licensing Policy in relation to the 2003 Licensing Act. For the first
time a Code of Best Practice for Licensed Premises has been created to provide
practical ideas on how licensees can achieve best practice with respect to the
promotion of licensing objectives. The opportunity has also been taken as part of
the consultation to review the area of the Cumulative Impact Policy which was
introduced by the Council in 2007.

5.2 The report brings the findings of the consultation exercise together with officer
comments and recommendations. An online consultation tool was used via the
Council’'s website and respondents were requested to answer questions and
provide general comments. 17 people/organisations responded to the online
consultation and an analysis of their comments is provided in Annex A.

5.3 Copies of the amended Statement of Licensing Policy and Code of Best Practice,
which includes the officer recommendations, is provided in Annex B.

5.4 The consultation included those listed below:
e The chief officer of police for the area;
e The fire and rescue authority for the area;
e Persons/bodies representative of local holders of premises licences;
e Persons/bodies representative of local holders of club premises certificates;
e Persons/bodies representative of local holders of personal licences;
e Persons/bodies representative of businesses and residents in the area;
e All Ward Councillors, Town Councils and Parish Councils;

e All 3™ tier Council Officers:

Printed on recycled paper Page 124



5.5 The Act states the above persons/bodies should be consulted and the Statutory
Guidance states their views should be given appropriate weight when the policy is
determined.

5.6 The Government’s guidance also states;

e All statements of policy should begin by stating the four licensing
objectives, which the licensing policy should promote

e While statements of policy may set out a general approach to making
licensing decisions, they must not ignore or be inconsistent with provisions
in The Act

e No statement of policy should override the right of any person to make
representations on an application or to seek a review of a licence or
certificate where provision has been made for them to do so in The Act

e Policies should make it clear that licensing is about regulating licensable
activities on licensed premises, by qualifying clubs and at temporary events
within the terms of The Act

e The conditions attached to various authorisations will be focused on
matters which are within the control of individual licensees and others with
relevant authorisations

e The statement of policy should also make it clear that licensing law is not
the primary mechanism for the general control of nuisance and anti-social
behaviour by individuals once they are away from the licensed premises

e Statements of licensing policy should include a firm commitment to avoid
attaching conditions that duplicate other regulatory regimes as far as
possible

e Statements of policy, should express the intention to establish protocols
with the local police and the other enforcing authorities

Further information regarding what should be contained in a Statement of Licensing
Policy can be found in Home Office guidance issued under section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003. The link for this guidance is replicated below:

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/2095
26/1167-A_Licensing_Act 2003 2 .pdf

5.7 With regard to the existing Cumulative Impact Area (CIA) in Bath city centre,
research was commissioned from the Council’'s Strategy and Performance team
on the occurrence of incidents of anti-social behaviour within the Cumulative
Impact Area since its introduction in 2007. A report summarising the findings of
this research are found in Annex C. Comments were sought from Avon and
Somerset Police on whether the geographical area of the CIA should be amended
in light of this data, especially as there appeared to be a reduction in the incidence
of anti-social behaviour in and around the Walcot Street area.

5.8 The view of Avon and Somerset Police is that Walcot Street continues to be a
location for calls about anti-social behaviour and the street also serves a footway

Printed on recycled paper Page 125 3



out of the city for those members of the public who are not taking taxis home.
Therefore, their recommendation is that the geographical area of the CIA should
remain the same. This recommendation is endorsed by officers and the Licensing
Committee in its meeting on 6™ October 2014.

5.9 Both the proposed Statement of Licensing Policy and Code of Best Practice has
been discussed and endorsed by the Licensing Committee in its meeting of 6™
October 2014.

6 RATIONALE

6.1 The rationale for this report stems from a statutory duty on the Council to review
its Statement of Licensing Policy every five years.

6.2 The policy also links to the Council’s duty to reduce crime and improve the public
realm.

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

7.1 Advice has been sought from the Council's Legal Services, the Council’s
Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer (Resources Director). All have had
the opportunity to input to this report and have cleared it for publication.

8 CONSULTATION
8.1 A consultation process has been carried out involving the following groups:

¢ all statutory consultees;

Licensing Committee,

Planning, Transportation and Environment Policy Development and
Scrutiny Panel,

North Somerset Council

Visitors to the Bath City Conference

Student Community Partnership

Night Time Economy Group

Alcohol Harm Reduction Steering Group

Midsomer Norton Community Alcohol Partnership

8.2 In addition a stakeholder workshop was held on 17" July 2014 which was
attended by representatives from Responsible Authorities, Resident’s
Associations, the Bath Business Improvement District and Councillors.
Presentations were delivered by Avon and Somerset Police, the Council’s Public
Health Team and the Abbey Resident’s Association. Approximately 25 people
attended and overall feedback indicated that 60% of attendees considered that
the workshop fully met their needs.

Printed on recycled paper Page 126



8.3 This report has not been sent to the Trades Unions because there are no staffing
issues resulting from it.

9 RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management

guidance.

Contact person

Cathryn Humphries, Licensing and Environmental Protection
Team Manager (01225 477645)

Background
papers

None

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an

alternative format

Printed on recycled paper

Page 127




Printed on recycled paper Page 128



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

Question 1: Respondent (by type)

In what capacity are you responding to
the Licensing Policy consultation?

7

6 -
5 -
4 -
3 -
2 -
1 -
0 -

Local resident of  Licence holder of Responsible Ward/Parish/Town Other
B&NES B&NES Authority Councillor of
B&NES

(The sum of the respondents exceeds 17 as some respondents ticked 2 options e.g. local resident
and licence holder. The respondents in the ‘other category included the Bath Improvement
District, the Wine and Spirit Trust and Residents Associations).

Question 2: Promotion of licensing objectives (crime and disorder):

Do you think that the revised policy will help the
Council to promote the licensing objective of
crime and disorder?

60
53%

50 -

40 -
29%

30 -
18%

20 -

10 -
0%

Yes Partially No Did not respond

Page 129



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

Question 3: Promotion of licensing objectives (public safety):

Do you think the revised policy will help the
Council to promote the licensing objective of
public safety?
60
53%
50 -
40 -
29%
30 -
o,
0o 18%
10 -
0%
O n T T
Yes Partially No Did not respond

Question 4: Promotion of licensing objectives (preventing public nuisance):

Do you think that the revised policy will help the
Council promote the licensing objective of
preventing nuisance?

50
45 -
40 -
35 -
30 -
25 -
20 -
15 -
10 -

Yes Partially No Did not respond

Page 130



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

Question 5: Promotion of licensing objectives (protection of children from harm):

Do you think that the revised policy will help the
Council promote the licensing objective of
protecting children from harm?
%0 53%
50 -
40 -
29%
30 -
20 i 180/0
10 -
0 T T 0% T
Yes Partially No Did not respond

Question 6: Do you have any suggestions on how we could improve the section on the
licensing objectives?

The following responses were received; where necessary, the response from the Licensing Team
follows in blue:

‘“Dont hand out licences -analyse before more diligently”

Licences are issued according to a statutory process and can only be refused when a relevant
representation is received and only then by a Licensing Sub Committee.

“Maybe a) levies should be raised on any extension to ‘normal’ licensing hours. And b) more 'pro-
action' by authorities to clamp down on any breaches”

The Licensing Act 2003 moved away from ‘normal’ licensing hours, allowing terminal hours to be
staggered to minimise the effects of all premises closing at the same time. There is no
mechanism to raise levies on extensions to what would be termed ‘normal licensing hours’.

Every complaint received by the Licensing team is investigated; there is also successful multi-
disciplinary Licensing Enforcement Group comprising of representatives from the Police, Fire
Service and other Council teams which carry out intelligence-led out of hour's visits to licensed
premises. This group typically completes one operation per month and any actions arising from
visits are agreed jointly by the Licensing Enforcement Group.

Page 131



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

“Section 3.9 could be strengthened to emphasis the role the B&NES Licensing Policy plays in
supporting the public health agenda in B&NES, in particular the aim of helping people to stay
healthy through reducing levels of alcohol misuse in the population. It also contributes to the
B&NES Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy aim of preventing the harm arising to individuals,
families, and society from excessive drinking and to promote a culture where drinking is seen as
an adjunct to having an enjoyable and sociable time and not as an end in itself”.

This paragraph will be amended to take these comments into account.

“Para 3.6 concerning the Licensing Authority being added to the list of Responsible Authorities.
The wording gives a negative view of what the licensing authority can and should do and does not
reflect what the s182 Guidance says. This should be reworded”’.

It is not intended that this paragraph provides a negative view of the role of the Licensing Authority
in submitting representations. The Guidance advises that whilst Licensing Authorities may make
representations they are not required to do so, neither are they required to make representations
on behalf of others.

Question 7: The impact of the Cumulative Impact Policy:

In your opinion has the Cumulative Impact Policy
achieved its aim of reducing public nuisance and
crime and disorderin the areaidentified?

41%

Yes Partially No Did not respond

Question 8: Please provide any other comments you have about the Cumulative Impact
Policy

The following responses were received; where necessary, the response from the Licensing Team
follows in blue:

Page 132



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

“We do not seem to have relevant problems in Ubley”

Thank you for this comment.

“Too many premises, too few Police Officers and B&NES Enforcement Officers”

The Licensing Team reiterate the previous comment about the work of the Licensing Enforcement
Group in responding to complaints.

‘Evidence shows a drop in crimes relating to the Night Time Economy over the last 5 years in
B&NES which is encouraging and mirrors a national trend. We will continue to lobby for a Public
Health Objective in the Licensing Act to enable a population approach to the availability of alcohol
in an area which would also include off sales’.

In the course of revising its Statement of Licensing Policy the Council held an Alcohol Scrutiny
Inquiry Day in October 2013, which brought together 68 key stakeholders including Local
Councillors, voluntary and community sector partners and Council officers to debate how best to
reduce alcohol misuse in our area. Participants felt strongly that there needed to be more
emphasis on the prevention of alcohol harm through national policy and in particular called for the
protection and promotion of public health through the licensing process.

For this to be effective there would need to be a change in primary legislation and the creation of
statutory guidance to assist Licensing Authorities and local Health Authorities.

“The CIP policy assists all parties within the night time economy. It concentrates applicants
considerations to make minimum impact on local residents in respect of all the licensing
objectives. For the responsible authorities it provides a process of proportionate conditions being
added to a licence where applicants clearly know what measures are expected of them, and
furthers the measures in the operation of well managed premises. It provides a strong tool for
committee when deciding on applications. The data provided supports this policy’.

No further comments.

Page 133



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

Question 9: The Code of Best Practice

A Code of Best Practice for licensed premises has been developed to accompany the statement of
licensing policy. This contains voluntary initiatives which will assist licensees in the successful
operation of their business.

In your opinion, does this Code help licensees
better achieve the licensing objectives?

Yes Partially No Did not respond

Question 10: Do you have any suggestions on changes we could make to improve the
Code of Best Practice?

The following responses were received; where necessary, the response from the Licensing Team
follows in blue:

“We would suggest the following additions:

The Licencing Policy includes numerous references to risk assessment and we believe the Code
should offer some guidance about how these should be done.

It is important to make door security staff feel part of the team and to ensure they understand the
ethos you are trying to promote.

Hold regular meetings with your local residents association to discuss your future plans and hear
their concems.

Have the duty manager regularly go outside the premises to see and hear what it looks and
sounds like to passers-by and neighbours.”

Page 134



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

Thank you for these above comments, all of which will be incorporated into the Code of Best
Practice.

“Give the nearest noise sensitive premises a contact number so that they can call to alert you to
the fact that nuisance is occurring.”

Licensed premises should not be reliant on nearby residents to inform them they are causing
noise nuisance. Premises should be proactive in ensuring they have an effective noise
management plan so as not to cause nuisance and leave them liable to action under the
Environmental Protection Act 1990.

“More and forceful enforcement”

The Licensing Team reiterate the previous comment about the work of the Licensing Enforcement
Group in responding to complaints. When necessary the Licensing Authority has taken
enforcement action resulting in, for example the revocation of a number of Premises Licenses on
the evidential basis of crime and disorder and the protection of children from harm

‘Include best practice examples from other areas to showthe benefits of these initiatives. Include
details of the local alcohol treatment and support services for staff who may have alcohol misuse
problems.

Encourage premises to display alcohol units literature and details of alcohol support services
available locally.

Encourage premises to participate in Designated Driver scheme promotion and drink drive
messages”

‘Include the importance of reqular training for all staff concerned in the sale and management of
premises.

“For larger premises to have a dispersal policy to minimise the effect on local residents and
prevent mass exodus from premises’.

Thank you for these above comments, all of which will be incorporated into the Code of Best
Practice.

‘I wvelcome the Code of Best Practice. | suggest this document is regularly updated as and when
new successful initiatives and ideas are recognised. | would suggest the inclusion in the Code of
Practice of the SWERCOTS scheme No Proof of Age - No Sale’.

Thank you for this comment. The intention is for the Code of Best Practice to be available on the
Council’'s website so that it can be updated regularly when new information/best practice comes to
light. The No Proof of Age- No Sale scheme will be included.

Page 135



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

Question 11: Additional mandatory conditions:

Do you think that the policy should include adding a condition to a licence
around minimum unit pricing, high strength alcohol and/or irresponsible
promotions, where the evidence suggests this would be appropriate?
60
53% 53%
0
. 47%
40
B Yes
29%
30 e — = No
18% 5 # Did not respond
20 "-'
0 -
Minimum unit pricing? High Strength alcohol Irresponsible promotions?
restrictions?
% respondents |

Question 12: If you answered "Yes" to any of these, please suggest how this should be
worded to comply with the current legislation?

The following responses were received; where necessary, the response from the Licensing Team
follows in blue:

“Use the Newcastle Council wording (this is a reference to the wording used by Newcastle City
Council in their Statement of Licensing Policy’.

The additional licence conditions relating to minimum unit pricing, high strength alcohol restrictions
and irresponsible promotions can only be applied if a relevant representation is received
supported by evidence of the issue. If this criterion is satisfied the Licensing Committee may
impose conditions.

In response to the suggestion about the wording provided in the Newcastle City Council Statement
of Licensing Policy, Section 2 of the draft policy will be amended.

‘Don't overdo it. Less Alcohol and less weekly units consumption = clearer heads and a happier
liver 11I”

No further comments.

Page 136



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

“All these measures are highly desirable but become a legal and operational difficult area to
enforce and administer. The wording of such conditions if considered would require legal input’

This is accepted and agreed.

Question 13: The role of the policy in reducing alcohol related harm:

In this revision we have emphasised the role the licensing policy has in helping to reduce alcohol
related harm.

Do you think that the policy effectively
emphasises the role that licensing plays in
helping to reduce alcohol related harm?

35%

Yes Partially No Did not respond

Question14: Any suggestions on how this area could be improved?

The following responses were received; where necessary, the response from the Licensing Team
follows in blue:

‘Role in relation to Alcohol Related Harm is acknowledged. Main focus for this is in the Code of
Best Practice for Licensed Premises which encourages License Holders to address a range of
issues linked to responsible trading to prevent harm.

No further comments.

Page 137



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

Question 15: How to make a complaint and contribute to a licensing review:

Do you think that the policy makes it clear on
how residents can make a complaintand
contribute to a licensing review?

35%

Yes Partially No Did not respond

Question 16: Any suggestions on how this area could be improved?

The following responses were received; where necessary, the response from the Licensing Team
follows in blue:

“The section on 'How Complaints will be dealt with' gives some guidance on how to make a
complaint however the document would probably benefit from a distinct section called 'How to
make a complaint or contribute to a review which lays out the steps - or a link to the website that
gives this information.”

“‘With regards to the question about how clear the policy is with regards to residents making a
complaint or contributing to a licensing review, | would suggest there is a need to raise awareness
that a process actually exists in the policy rather than just focusing on the wording of the policy
itself.”

The section will be amended to take these comments into account.

‘Residents need to be made clearly anare of their responsibility in highlighting and reporting any
breaches.”

The Licensing Team would encourage any resident who is experiencing problems with licensed
premises to contact them so the matter can be investigated. An online form is available on the
Council's website to enable you to report such issues - www.bathnes.gov.uk/forms/licensed-
premises-complaint-form

10
Page 138



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

Question 17: Is the policy easy to read and understand?

Generally, was the policy easy to read and
understand?

41%

Yes Partially No Did not respond

Question 18: Any suggestions on how this could be improved?

None received.

Question 19: Do you have any other comments you would like to make about the draft
policy?

The following responses were received; where necessary, the response from the Licensing Team
follows in blue:

“We have a village hall that has a licence to sell alcohol and most of our events are village/ hall
committee arranged functions, private parties and once a year a beer festival. All are organised
around the legal maximum number of people who can be in the hall at any one time.

The beer festival is the largest event that the hall committee deals with in terms of numbers of
people attending. The local police are always informed and may have a presence at the event.

We obviously comply with current requirements, but most problems addressed by the policy are
not evident in our village at events.”

No further comments.

‘too many drinking places in the centre of Bath”

The location of licensed premises is dictated by the planning regime for which wide ranging
consultation is undertaken.
11
Page 139



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses
“We think the introduction should include a statement explicitly acknowledging the role of the local

authority in balancing the legitimate aspirations of business in the Night Time Economy with the
rights of residents in the areas where they operate.”

The Statement of Licensing Policy will have a foreword by Clirs David Dixon and Simon Allen
which emphasises this.

“Paragraph 2.4 says It is expected that when promoting low priced alcohol, all premises will be
considerate of the effect such promotions are having on our large student population, as well as
being mindful of the negative effect promotions aimed at females often have. We are not clear
what effect the Licencing Authority expects this to make in practice? How do they expect premises
who had read this sentence to behave differently from premises that had not?”

It is the expected that all premises will read and understand the Council’'s aims and objectives set
out in the Statement of Licensing Policy together with the Guidance issued in relation to the
mandatory conditions. It is further expected that premises will operate in a professional manner
and more importantly operate in accordance with the terms of their Licence to avoid any
detrimental effects that their operation may have on those using the premises and the wider
community.

“Paragraph 3.6 is, as drafted, very defensive. We believe this policy statement ought to include a
statement of when the BANES will use its new status as an interested party not just when you will
not.”

This paragraph will be amended to emphasise that the Licensing Team will use its status as a
Responsible Authority on a case by case basis, when other Responsible Authorities have chosen
not to act and a view is taken that there is a need to do so.

“Paragraph 6.17; is far too prescriptive particularly in relation to the Environmental Protection Act.
There are a number of situations in which noise generated by licensable activities is significantly
undermining the licencing objectives but cannot be effectively dealt with by the provisions of the
Environmental Protection Act for instance when the noise is regular but intermittent or the noise
level is not above statutory limits but is still causing nuisance. In these situations it is necessary
that the licencing authority act to support the objectives being undermined and officers and
members should have the freedom under this policy to make that judgement.”

The Environmental Protection team are a Responsible Authority in their own right and have their
own set of powers which Licensing must not duplicate. Whilst the Police and Anti-Social
Behaviour Act 2014, when it becomes fully effective, will create new powers which may apply in
the circumstances described, these will be dealt with outside of the Licensing regime.

“Paragraph 17.2. Howwill the Licencing Authority encourage all the excellent things mentioned in
this paragraph? For this to be meaningful, not just motherhood and apple pie, there must be some
reference to mechanisms?”

The mechanisms are referred to in the non-exhaustive list and are supported through Licensing
Enforcement Group visits.

12
Page 140



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

“Paragraph 17.3. Whom does the licencing authority see as its key partners? What form will these
partnerships take for instance does the policy envision formal partnering agreements and
structures?”

Our key partners are the licence holders and Responsible Authorities. The way in which the
Licensing Authority works with these partners is has been formalised in the Enforcement Protocol
last reviewed in June 2014.

“Paragraph 21.2. We see no justification for enforcement being graduated; particularly when a
premise has been in business for some time there is no excuse for breaches particularly
minorones. Enforcement is a major issue for residents; examples of failures to comply are far too
frequent suggesting premises do not respect the current enforcement policy. Enforcement
resources are very limited which means warnings and cautions are often not followed up
effectively.”

The Licensing Authority takes enforcement very seriously and works within the Service
Enforcement Policy which advocates a proportionate approach. There is a balance between
enforcement and supporting businesses to help them achieve compliance without the need for
formal, costly Council intervention. When necessary, however, the Licensing Authority has taken
enforcement action resulting in, for example the revocation of a number of Premises Licenses on
the evidential basis of crime and disorder and the protection of children from harm.

“Paragraph 21.4. What is the Authority’s policy on the level of resourcing it will provide for
enforcement activities requiring the involvement of BANES officers? What is its policy on out of
hour provisioning?”

The Licensing Authority takes its enforcement functions very seriously and Officers undertake ‘out
of hours’ visits as part of Licensing Enforcement Group. This Group carried out over 90 visits in
2013 with a Licensing Officer present on each occasion.

“Paragraph 35.5. As a statement of policy this is very unclear.”

This paragraph will be deleted.

“Section 36 focusses primarily on harm to children on licenced premises. The policy needs to
acknowledge harm potential off site for example children whose sleep is disturbed by rowdy
drinkers, exposure to drugs paraphernalia, exposure to advertising in premises window and street
flyers which use foul language or glorify the consumption of alcohol and drunkenness.”

The Policy can only refer to the protection of children from harm on the licenced premises to
ensure compliance with the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.

“Section 37.1. The policy statement needs to recognise that it is often a very daunting prospect for
residents to approach the proprietors of licenced premises with complaints. The policy should
include referring complainants to organisations that could help them in approaching proprietors,
such as residents associations, or the licensing authority itself being more proactive in acting as a
mediator.”

The section will be amended to take these comments into account.
13
Page 141



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

“One of the frustrations objectors often experience is that applicants make assertions about how
their business will be run or promises about what they will do which the committee acknowledge
has influenced their decision but which do not or cannot get turned into conditions on the licence.
It would be useful if the licencing authority maintained a register of these influential assertion and
promises so that at subsequent hearings the committee can get a sense of the integrity of the
applicant.”

Whilst the comment is acknowledged, each contested application must be dealt with on its merits
and on the evidence presented by the Applicant, Interested Parties or Responsible Authorities.
The Licensing Authority as determining body cannot gather and produce information with a view to
influencing the outcome of any decision. It will be reiterated to the Committee Members that
consideration should be given on how any ‘promises’ made by an applicant during the course of a
hearing can be made into clear enforceable, conditions which are appropriate for the promotion of
the licensing objectives.

“Other authorities when making CCTV a condition of a licence go beyond specifying the number
and siting of cameras and specify minimum technical standards that must be met.”

This is a matter for the Licensing Committee as it feels appropriate.

“The policy should include a commitment about how quickly applications will go up on the
Council’s web site.”

The Council endeavours to do this as soon as possible and typically applications are processed
and on the Council website within 2 working days.

“I think we need some kind of TENS light for very small scale alcohol sales on a not for profit basis
eg the local WI having a glass of wine at a meeting and charging enough to cover the costs or an
art show with the offer of a glass of wine alongside tea and cake. It is hard to know how this could
be designed to avoid abuse - but the current admin (although small) and fee puts users off and in
fact this style of alcohol as a refreshment rather than a means of drinking to oblivion is surely what
we would prefer. | am sure the professionals at BANES would know of examples where this has
been successfully applied.”

The point being made here about Temporary Events Notices is appreciated however there would
need to be a change in primary legislation to achieve this.

‘It vas great meeting today and having a chat about The Licensing Policy and Code of Best
Practice. As someone on the frontline selling alcohol, it was useful for me to talk to someone from
Licensing and get their take on things.

I've just read the Code of Best Practice, it was easy to read and understand and as we discussed
earlier a lot of the content is common sense! Having the various websites and contact details in it
for relevant/helpful organisations is a great idea as well.

If there is anything else | can help with in the future then please don't hesitate to contact me.”

Thank you for your comments.

14
Page 142



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

“TENs are unnecessary for small resident's associations get-together /parties etc”

The point being made here about TENS is appreciated however there would need to be a change
in primary legislation to achieve this.

“There is clearly a need to educate all local residents to their responsibilities on reporting anything
which causes problems in their area. If the population is unaware of where to complain they will
not complain”

Details of how to complain and instigate a review are available on the Council's website together
with an online form which enables residents and businesses to report matters to the licensing
team. Licensing Officers will always readily advise persons reporting licensing issues via more
traditional means such as letter, telephone or through any of the One Stop Shops.

“Para 1.3 Surely the aim should be to encourage law-abiding and sober establishments, and to
discourage ‘boozers’? We suggest adding “dance halls” (for example) after ‘restaurants’, and,
“while discouraging those which serve alcohol-only and which disregard the licensing rules” after
‘evening.”

This paragraph will be amended to state ‘similar establishments’ rather than dance halls.

“Para 2.3 The vulnerable are not the only people affected by binge drinking. After “families.” add
“(and not just those doing the drinking — neighbours, residents and passers-by too)”

This paragraph will be amended to take account of this comment.

“Para 16.5 The B&NES website is quoted here, but not the relevant part of it. This website is huge.
It would be helpful to guide the reader more specifically.”

A specific file path will be provided www.bathnes.gov.uk/licensing

“Paras 35.5 and 35.6 There is a non-sequitur here. The two paragraphs should be amalgamated.”

Paragraph 35.5 will be deleted.

“The process of consultation and involvement in the development of this policy statement has
been very inclusive and to be commended. We have welcomed the Licensing Teams efforts to
include a Public Health perspective in the document, given the confines of the existing Licensing
Objectives and the subsequent development of a voluntary code of best practice for Licensed
Premises.”

Thank you for this comment.

“The draft policy within the constraints is a good document that reflects all matters within the
process.”

Thank you for this comment.

15
Page 143



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

“Housing Services operate schemes for the licensing of houses in multiple occupation (HMO). |
propose that this policy includes a reference to HMO licensing and that this is a requirement in
Oldfield, Westmoreland and parts of Widcombe. The purpose is to help ensure that shared
housing is safe and well managed. Contact B&NES Housing Services for more information (01225
396444).”

This policy is made under the Licensing Act 2003 and cannot take account of other licensing
legislation such as housing.

“While you cant make it mandatory for clubs and license premises to attend pub watch and night
watch meeting, attendance and CSR should be looked on favourably and strongly from the
licensing authority within this policy statement.

| guess this is the reason why you have produced the code of best practice? Some licensed
premises have it as a condition of their licensing agreement to attend a pub watch scheme but this
is rarely enforced. Some national breweries make it of a condition of their staff employment
contract to attend pub watch style meetings. Anything which strengthened attendance and get
pubs working together will reduce issues and engender a sense of community amongst the licence
trade.”

The Licensing Team is supportive of the Nightwatch Scheme and we encourage licensees to
attend. However, in the experience of Licensing Officers it is very difficult to enforce a condition
making it mandatory for a licence holder to attend such meetings. Therefore, we have publicised
the Nightwatch scheme in the Code of Best Practice.

“Page 36 — Point 45 Late Night Levy. | think the business community would like a stronger
statement than ‘kept under review. The option of introducing such a levy at present is not
economically viable particularly when other schemes are in place that contribute to the evening
economy such as the Bath BID levy. (my guess is you are giving yourself an option to use it in the
future) but we would not want you to do so because of the reasons outlined in the attached
paper. A late night levy is more pertinent to metropolitan areas with a high concentration of late
night premises.

In the Government Review of BID, the response from the industry states “There are real concerns
developing from many BID areas around the country with regard to the potential of multiplicity of
levies through the imposition of a late night levy and or a TBID on top of the existing BID. The
nature of the traditional BID model is such that there is a direct relationship and correlation
between those paying the levy and those benefitting and the proximity of activity makes the
outcome visible to those focal’ businesses.” A late night levy would not achieve this and so
should be avoided in Bath.

There is no immediate plan to introduce a late night levy, but the Council reserves the right to
introduce one if the circumstances dictate.

“Page 1 — 1.5 Bath and North East Somerset Council in collaboration with the Business
Community through the Bath BID was the first area in the South West to be awarded a ‘Purple
Flag’ in January 2010. The award was granted by the Association of Town and City
Management and is the new ‘gold standard’.... Note ATCM name change in full. As a member of

16
Page 144



Annex A
Statement of Licensing Policy- 2014 Consultation Responses

ATCM we were a driver of Purple Flag for Bath. Please can this be acknowledged alongside
B&NES. Thank you.”

This paragraph will be amended to take account of this comment.

“Code of Practice for Licensed Premises

This is a positive step forward and welcomed. For your information — The scheme in Bath is now
known as Nightwatch.

Page 2 Security could the following be added:

- Ifyou are a licensed premises in Bath, please patrticipate in the Bath BIDs Nightwach radio
scheme that connects licensed premises with the Police, CCTV and other Licensees.

Page 3 Door Staff

- Ifyou are a licensed premises in Bath, Fluorescent Jackets for Door Staff are provided free
to Licensees through the Bath BIDs Nightwatch Scheme

- To ensure door staff carry an approved radio that connects them to CCTV, The Police and
door staff colleagues throughout the city

Page 6 Smoke Free

- To provide a receptacle for the disposal of cigarette butts and keep the public area around
your premises clean and welcoming.”

Thank you for these comments which will be added to the Code of Best Practice

A letter was received from the Wines and Spirits Trade Association in response to the
consultation. This letter and the Council’s response follow:

17
Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 146



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

INDEX

Page
Statement of Licensing Policy 1
1 Introduction 1
2 Purpose 2
3 Licensing Objectives 3
4 Licensable Activities 5
5 Types of Authorisations 5
6 General Principles 4
7 Consultees 6
Legislation, Policies and Strategies 7
8 Legislation 7
9 Relationship with Planning Policies 7
10 Relationship with Building Control 8
11 Provisional Statements 8
12 National Strategies 8
13 Local Strategies and Policies 8
14 Integrating Strategies 8
15 Regulated Entertainment 9
16 Cumulative Impact Policy 10
17 Control of Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Disorder away from Licensed 14

Premises

Administration of Licensing Functions 15
18 Applications 15
19 Licensing Hours 15
20 Conditions 16
21 Enforcement 17
22 Drugs Policy 17
23 Operating Schedules 18
24 Premises Licences 19
25 Provisional Statements 19
26 Club Premises Certificates 20
27 Variations 21
28 Personal Licences 22
29 Designated Premises Supervisors 23
30 Temporary Event Notices 23

Page 147



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

31 Transfer of Premises Licence
32 Interim Authority Notices

Licensing Objectives

33 Prevention of crime and disorder
34 Public safety

35 Prevention of public nuisance

36 Protection of children from harm

Complaints About Licensed Premises
37 How complaints will be dealt with
Decision Making

38 Licensing Committee Terms of Reference

39 Allocation of Decision Making Responsibilities
40 Relevant Representations

41 Other Considerations

42 Reviews

43 Appeals
Fees
44 Fees

Late Night Levy

45 Late Night Levy

Table of Delegations of Licensing Functions

Map Outlining the Cumulative Impact Policy for Bath City Centre

Further Information

Page 148

24
25

25

25
27
28
30
32
32
33

33
33
33
34
34
35

35
35

36
36

37

38

39



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

Foreword/Executive Summary- To be included

Page 149



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

Statement of Licensing Policy
1 Introduction

1.1 Bath & North East Somerset Council (the Council), is the Licensing Authority for
Bath and North East Somerset under the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act). This
means the Council is responsible for granting Premises Licences, Personal
Licences, and Club Premises Certificates, in respect of the sale and/or supply of
alcohol and the provision of regulated entertainment and late night refreshment.
It is also responsible for receiving Temporary Event Notices.

1.2 The Licensing Authority aims to facilitate the development of a healthier
economy in Bath and North East Somerset that feels both safe and offers
diverse cultural activities to enable a broad age range of people to enjoy
themselves whilst at the same time improving the quality of life of residents and
increasing the attractiveness of the area to visitors.

1.3 In partnership with other agencies and interested parties, the Council as the
Licensing Authority, seeks to develop the area with a view to increasing the
number of establishments, including coffee shops, restaurants and other similar
establishments, which are open and available to the public in the evening.

14 It is hoped that realisation of this goal will reduce fear of crime, including alcohol
related crime and anti-social behaviour, and consequently encourage greater
use of facilities throughout the district and in the evening by people of all ages,
all income groups and all social groups.

15 The significant role the city centre plays in Bath’'s night time economy, has been
recognised by the prestigious Purple Flag Award.

Bath & North East Somerset in collaboration with the Business Community
through the Bath Business Improvement District was the first area in the South
West to be awarded a Purple Flag in January 2010. The award was granted by
the Association of Town and City Management and is the new "gold standard"
that recognises safer and more appealing town and city centres at night. The
Purple Flag status also provides external recognition for cities that offer a great
diversity of entertainment and hospitality to a wide range of age groups. This
achievement highlights the effective multi-agency work in place to enhance the
night time economy of Bath, and therefore the need to maintain these standards
through sustained partnership working in the future. In 2013 the city received
the Purple Flag accreditation for the third year running, which was granted in
recognition of the outstanding quality and variety of Bath's evening economy.

[1]

Page 150



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

2.1

The Council has worked in partnership to bring to Bath a modern shopping
destination at Southgate, with classic Georgian-style open streets, and public
spaces. Southgate Bath has a wide variety of retail stores, eating and
entertainment establishments and residential properties.

The Act requires the Licensing Authority to publish a ‘Statement of Licensing
Policy that sets out the principles the Licensing Authority will generally apply to
promote the licensing objectives when making decisions on applications made
under the Act. This Statement of Licensing Policy has been prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and having regard to the Secretary of
State’s Guidance (the Guidance) issued under s.182 Licensing Act 2003 (the
Act).

Licensing is about regulating the use of premises, including qualifying clubs, for
licensable activities and temporary events within the terms of the Act.

Any conditions which are attached to the various authorisations will be focused
on matters which are within the control of individual licensees and others in
possession of relevant authorisations on licensed premises. Accordingly,
these matters will centre on the premises being used for licensable activities
and the vicinity of those premises.

Purpose

The primary purpose of this policy is to assist and inform those involved in the
decision making process and those who may be affected by such decisions.

1. This policy will provide the decision makers with parameters under which
to make their decisions.

2. This policy will inform applicants of the parameters under which the
Licensing Authority will make decisions, and therefore how a licensed
premises is likely to be able to operate within Bath and North East
Somerset. Each case will however, be determined on an individual basis.

3. This policy will inform residents and businesses of the parameters under
which the Licensing Authority will make licence decisions, and therefore
how their needs will be addressed.

4. This policy will provide the courts with the basis upon which decisions
were reached.

5. On occasion where particular circumstances justify such a decision, the
Licensing Authority may decide to depart from its Statement of Licensing

[2]

Page 151



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

22

2.3

24

25

Policy when considering an application. The Licensing Authority will on
such occasion give reasons for this departure.

The Authority is mindful that when hearing an appeal against any decision
made by the Authority, the Magistrates’ Court will not take into account
anything in this policy that is unlawful, disproportionate or beyond the
power of the Licensing Act 2003 (ultra vires).

6. This policy will be regularly reviewed by the Licensing Authority in
accordance with the requirements of the Act (at least every 5 years) or as
the Authority deems necessary.

This policy aims to set out the Authority’s expectation that all persons involved
in the licensing process will act with a view to promoting the licensing
objectives and all premises whether licensed permanently or on a temporary
basis, will operate responsibly and in full compliance of their authorisation.

The Authority is also keen to encourage and support where appropriate, any
voluntary initiatives premises may adopt to help reduce alcohol harm within our
communities particularly as irresponsible consumption of alcohol is a key factor
in fuelling late night anti-social behavior, crime and disorder. Such initiatives
may include the removal of cheap, super-strength beers, ciders and lagers
from the sale or, the display of alcohol in a manner that will not unduly
encourage people to drink irresponsibly. The Authority acknowledges that
whilst the majority of people drink responsibly, the “drink until you’re drunk” and
“binge drinking” culture adopted by a minority is having a detrimental effect on
many vulnerable members of our communities and their families. It also has a
detrimental impact on residential communities.

When considering any relevant representations to an application for a licence
orin respect of a review of a licence, where there is a clear causal link between
sales promotions or price discounting and levels of crime and disorder or public
nuisance in or near the premises, the Licensing Authority may consider
imposing conditions prohibiting irresponsible sales promotions at the relevant
premises, but not so as to duplicate the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003
(Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2010.

It is expected that when promoting low priced alcohol, all premises will be
considerate of the effect such promotions are having on our large student
population, as well as being mindful of the negative effect promotions aimed at
females often have. Premises are reminded that the mandatory conditions
relating to irresponsible drinks promotions must be adhered to. Premises are
expected to carefully risk assess such promotions to ensure they do not
encourage individuals to drink alcohol excessively or rapidly.

[3]

Page 152



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

26

3.1

3.2

3.3

34

3.5

3.6

3.7

The Authority encourages all establishments who sell alcohol to be more
vigilant in respect of persons who are purchasing, or maybe attempting to
purchase, alcohol on behalf of persons who are already drunk, or who are
under age.

Licensing Objectives

Section 4 of the Act provides that it is the duty of all Licensing Authorities to
carry out their various licensing functions with a view to promoting the four
licensing objectives laid down in the Act. The licensing objectives are:

= The prevention of crime and disorder;
= Public safety;

= The prevention of public nuisance;

= The protection of children from harm.

Each objective is of equal importance.

These four licensing objectives are to be of paramount consideration at all
times. There are no other licensing objectives.

In the event the Government introduces any further licensing objectives, the
Authority will amend this policy accordingly.

When considering applications/representations the Licensing Authority will have
regard to these licensing objectives. Where appropriate the Licensing Authority
will make exceptions to its own policies and give reasons for doing so.

Since the Statement of Licensing Policy was last published the Licensing
Authority has been added to the list of “Responsible Authorities” enabling it to
make representations supported by evidence, in respect of new and variation
applications, and to call for the review of an existing premises licence or club
premises certificate. In accordance with the Secretary of State’s Guidance, it
will not act on behalf of those who are capable of making representations or
calling for a review in their own right. Therefore, inferences should not be drawn
on such occasion when the Licensing Authority remains silent in respect of new,
variation or review applications. The Licensing Team will use its status as a
Responsible Authority on a case by case basis, when other Responsible
Authorities have chosen not to act and a view is taken that there is a need to do
SO.

The Licensing Authority will ensure there is a clear distinction between those
officers submitting a representation or review application, and the officers
responsible for the administration of the application or review process.

[4]

Page 153



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

3.8

3.9

41

5.1

6.1

The Director of Public Health has been added to the list of Responsible
Authorities and may now make representations in respect of applications, and
call for the review of a premises licences or club premises -certificate.
Representations will be relevant if they illustrate how the applicant’s proposals at
the specific premises will undermine at least one of the licensing objectives.

The Licensing Authority recognises that excessive alcohol consumption leads to
poor health which, in turn, places burdens on local health services. The
Licensing Authority supports initiatives to reduce the misuse of alcohol for
example, supporting Trading Standards colleagues to carry out under-age sales
operations. The negative effects relating to alcohol misuse will be more widely
addressed within Bath & North East Somerset’'s Alcohol Harm Reduction
Strategy.

Licensable Activities
The term “Licensable Activities” is defined by the Act. Licensable Activities are:
1. the sale by retail of alcohol;

2. the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a
member of the club;

3. the provision of regulated entertainment; and

4. the provision of late night refreshment (i.e. the provision of hot food and/or
hot drink between 23:00 hours and 05:00 hours).

Types of Authorisations

This policy will be taken into account by the Licensing Authority when carrying
out its licensing functions under the Act in relation to any:

=  Premises Licence

= Club Premises Certificate

= Personal Licence

= Temporary Event Notice (TEN)
General Principles

Decisions

Many minor or routine matters may be determined by the Licensing Officer;
other decisions will be referred to the Licensing Committee for determination.

[5]

Page 154



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

These decisions are made in accordance with the table of delegated functions
found at page 36 of this Policy.

The Licensing Committee is not a court of law and may seem informal in
comparison with such proceedings. For example, the rules of evidence do not
normally apply and evidence is not taken on oath. Nevertheless, in
determining licensing matters the Committee will follow judicial principles to
ensure a fair and orderly hearing is given to each application/representation.

Each case will be considered on its own merits and nothing in this Policy shall
undermine this principle.

The review of a Premises Licence or a Club Premises Certificate can be
requested by a Responsible Authority and any other person subject to
conditions as indicated in paragraph 42 (Reviews).

Applicants for Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates will be
expected to set out how they intend to promote the Licensing objectives and
what measures they intend to employ to ensure compliance with them.

In order to avoid duplication with other statutory regimes the Licensing Authority
will seek to use the most appropriate method of dealing with a particular issue.
Subject to the provisions of paragraph 20 (Conditions) the only conditions which
should be imposed on a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate are
those which are necessary, proportionate and reasonable for the promotion of
the licensing objectives.

Accordingly if other controls are available because the law already places
certain statutory responsibilities on an employer or operator of premises (such
as in relation to Health and Safety) it cannot be necessary to impose the same
or similar duties on the premises licence holder or club. For example,
conditions relating to noise nuisance would not normally be necessary where
the provisions of byelaws or of other legislation such as the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 protect those living in the Vvicinity of the premises in
question. Where adequate protection is not available conditions subject to the
provisions of paragraph 20 may be considered appropriate.

Applicants may suggest, and are encouraged to suggest, appropriate conditions
in their operating schedules.

Where the Act provides for mandatory conditions to be included in a Premises
Licence the Licensing Authority has a duty to include those conditions on the
licence.

[6]

Page 155



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

6.10  Subject to paragraph 40 (Relevant Representations) anyone wishing to make
representations in respect of an application will be required to relate their
objection to one or more of the licensing objectives before the Licensing
Authority will be able to consider it.

6.11  There is a statutory presumption that an application will be granted unless
relevant representations are received.

6.12 Where appropriate and necessary, the Licensing Authority will seek advice
about safeguarding issues from relevant Council officers to ensure that any
safeguarding issues are effectively addressed.

7 Consultees

71 Before determining this policy the Licensing Authority has consulted with
various stakeholders including, but not limited to:

1. All Responsible Authorities;

2. Representatives of local holders of Premises Licences and Club Premises
Certificates;

3. Representatives of businesses and residents of the area;

4. Al Ward Councillors and Town and Parish Councils.

Legislation, Policies and Strategies
8 Legislation

8.1 In undertaking its licensing function under the Act, the Licensing Authority is
also bound by other legislation, including:

1. Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1988;

2. Human Rights Act 1998, with particular regard being given to Article 6,
Article 8 and Article 1 of the first Protocol;

3. Equalities Act 2010.

8.2 The impact of this policy will be monitored through the Council's equality

policies.
9 Relationship with Planning Policies
9.1 The Licensing Authority recognises that Licensing and Planning are separate

regimes. Where an application is granted by the Licensing Authority which
would require planning permission this would not relieve the applicant of the

[7]

Page 156



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

need to obtain that permission. It will still be necessary, for the applicant to
ensure that he/she has all the necessary permissions in place to enable them to
run the business within the law.

9.2 There will, however, be a clear separation of the Planning and Licensing
regimes to avoid duplication and inefficiency. Therefore, any decision made
under the Licensing Act will not take into consideration the need for planning

permission.

9.3 The Licensing Authority recognises that licensing applications should not be
seen as a re-run of the planning application process as different considerations
will apply.

94 In addition, if an application is granted by the Licensing Authority which involves

a material alteration to a building, this would not relieve the applicant of the
need to apply for planning permission.

10 Relationship with Building Control

10.1  The Licensing Authority recognises Licensing and Building Control are separate
regimes. Where an application is granted by the Licensing Authority which
involves a material alteration to a building, this would not relieve the applicant of
the need to obtain building control approval.

11 Provisional Statements (and the relationship with planning policies and
building control).

111 Further guidance is given below and in paragraph 25 regarding Provisional
Statements generally.

11.2 Inrelation to planning and building control it should be noted that any decision
of the Licensing Authority on an application for a provisional statement would
not relieve an applicant of the need to obtain any necessary planning
permission, listed building consent or building control approval before any
development takes place.

12 National Strategies

121 The Licensing Authority will have regard to Government strategies, so far as
they impact on the licensing objectives. These will include, but are not limited to:

1. Action Plan for Tackling Alcohol Related Crime, Disorder and Nuisance;
2. Professional Guidance as to best practice on test purchasing;

[8]

Page 157



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

3. Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy;
4. Safer Nightlife Guidance.

13 Local Strategies and Policies

13.1  Where appropriate, the Licensing Authority will take into account local strategies
and policies. These will include, but are not limited to:

Sustainable Community Strategy;

Community Safety Plan in alignment with the Police Crime Commissioner;
B&NES Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy;

Bath’s Cumulative Impact Policy;

Community Alcohol Partnership.

abhwbd=

14 Integrating Strategies

141 The Licensing Authority will (where appropriate) integrate national and local
strategies and encourage vibrant, sustainable communities in line with Bath &
North East Somerset’s Vision and Priorities.

15 Regulated Entertainment

15.1 In its role of implementing Council cultural strategies, the Licensing Authority
recognises the need to encourage regulated entertainment such as live music,
dance and theatre for the wider cultural benefit ofthe community.

15.2 When considering applications for such activities, and the imposition of
conditions on licences, certificates or notices, the Licensing Authority will do
what is appropriate and proportionate in the promotion of the licensing
objectives.

15.3  The Licensing Authority will ensure that only appropriate, proportionate and
reasonable licensing conditions are attached to such authorisations.

154  As a matter of general policy the Council intends to continue to seek Premises
Licences from the Licensing Authority for public spaces within the local
community, in their own name. This may include Vvillage greens, markets,
promenades, community halls, parks, Council owned art centres and similar
public spaces. In this instance performers and entertainers would require the
permission of the Council as the Premises Licence holder rather than a
premises licence.

15.5 Performances of live music have been further encouraged following the
implementation of the Live Music Act in 2012. Amplified live music performed on

[9]

Page 158



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

15.6

15.7

15.8

15.9

16

16.1

16.2

premises licensed for the sale of alcohol by a premises licence or club premises
certificate, or performed at any unlicensed “workplace”, is no longer regarded as
being “regulated” under the Act, when the performance takes place:

= Dbetween 08:00 and 23:00 hours; and
= before an audience of no more than 200 people.

The performance of unamplified live music has also been deregulated within
these given time limits, although there is no restriction in respect of the size of
the audience.

When live music is performed at any licensed premises in accordance with the
above criteria, any conditions relating to ‘live’ music as detailed on the premises
licence or club premises certificate, will be suspended. However, should the
music have a detrimental effect on the licensing objectives, the Licensing
Authority may lift the suspension following the review of the premises licence or
club premises certificate and the performance of live music will be treated as
though it is a regulated activity, allowing for any existing conditions to be
re-instated or new conditions to be added.

The provision of background music, whether live or recorded, will not be
regarded as being regulated when it is of a level that does not predominate over
other activities.

When entertainment is ancillary to a main event, which in itself is not a licensable
activity, the entertainment will not be regulated by the Act. An example would be
live or recorded musical accompaniment at a fashion show.

Cumulative Impact Policy

The concept of Cumulative Impact, although not specifically mentioned in the
Act, is found in the Guidance to the Act. It concerns the potential impact a
significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one area, may have on
the promotion of the licensing objectives. The Guidance acknowledges that
this is “a proper matter for a licensing authority to consider in developing its
statement of licensing policy”.

Where the number, type and density of premises selling alcohol for
consumption on the premises are unusual, serious problems of nuisance and
disorder can arise in the vicinity of those premises. The problem can be
compounded where a number of licensed premises, grouped together, are
situated near residential areas. The distribution of late night premises may be
such as to warrant special action by the Licensing Authority to combat
exceptional problems of crime and disorder and public nuisance over and above

[10]

Page 159



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

the impact of individual premises.

Steps Taken in Considering a Cumulative Impact Policy

16.3

The steps that this Licensing Authority has taken in considering whether to
adopt a cumulative impact policy within the statement of licensing policy are
summarised below:

1. Identification of the concern about public nuisance and crime and disorder.

2. Consideration as to whether there is good evidence that public nuisance
and crime and disorder is occurring, and is caused by the customers of
licensed premises, or that the risk of cumulative impactis imminent.

3. Identification of the boundaries of the area where problems are occurring.

4. Consultation with those specified in section 5(3) of the 2003 Act and,
subject to the outcome of the consultation,

5. Inclusion and publication of the details of a cumulative impact policy to be
included in the Statement of Licensing Policy.

Evidence of Cumulative Impact

16.4

16.5

Originally the Bath and North East Somerset Community Safety and Drugs
Partnership (CSDP) collated information which demonstrated that, in Bath City
Centre, “a defined temporal and geographic area experiences a significantly
greater degree of alcohol related crime and disorder than the remainder of the
authority area” and that Bath City Centre can be defined as experiencing a
significant amount of alcohol related crime.

At the meeting on 18 January 2007 the Council considered the report from the
CSDP.  After considering the available evidence the Council resolved to
consult on the proposed area outlined in Appendix 1 of the CSDP’s report.
Having consulted with those individuals and organisations listed in section 5(3)
of the 2003 Act, the Council resolved, on 13 September 2007, that the evidence
contained within the report was sufficient to justify the preparation of a
cumulative impact policy for inclusion in the Council's Statement of Licensing
Policy. At a meeting on 20 April 2009 the Licensing Committee considered a
report on the review of the cumulative impact policy and resolved to continue
with the policy. A copy of the reports, together with the Minutes of the meetings,
can be seen at any of the Council’s libraries, or on the Council's web site at
www.bathnes.gov.uk/licensing

[11]

Page 160



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

16.6

16.7

Prior to publishing this revised Statement of Licensing Policy, the Council’s
Strategy and Performance team re-assessed the evidence in support of the
existing Cumulative Impact Policy and found it sufficient to justify including this
special policy within the Council’'s Statement of Licensing Policy. The Licensing
Authority will continue to monitor the impact of this cumulative impact policy to
assess whether itis still required, or needs to be modified or expanded.

The area identified for the cumulative impact policy is outlined on the map on
Page 38 of this document (the Cumulative Impact Policy Area).

The Effect of a Cumulative Impact Policy

16.8

16.9

16.10

16.11

16.12

The adoption of a cumulative impact policy creates a rebuttable presumption
that applications for new premises licences, club premises certificates or
variations relating to “on trade” premises situated within the Cumulative Impact
Area, will be refused if relevant representations are received. In this context, ‘on
trade’ means the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises. Currently,
the Council's evidence base in relation to the Cumulative Impact Area does not
relate to off-sales of alcohol and late night refreshment. In order to rebut this
presumption, applicants must demonstrate that the operation of the premises
will not add to the cumulative impact already being experienced.

The Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to address the issues
surrounding cumulative impact within their operating schedule. See paragraph
16.17 below for suggested conditions.

This presumption does not relieve Responsible Authorities or any other persons
of the need to make a relevant representation. The Licensing Authority may not
lawfully consider giving effect to its cumulative impact policy in the absence of
relevant representations.

After receiving representations in relation to a new application or a variation of a
licence or certificate, the licensing authority will consider whether it would be
justified in granting a licence or variation in the light of the individual
circumstances of the case. The impact can be expected to be different for
premises with different styles and characteristics.

The Licensing Authority will consider the individual merits of any application,
together with the relevant representations made. Where it considers the
application promotes the licensing objectives and would be unlikely to add
significantly to the cumulative impact, the Licensing Authority will grant the
application.

[12]

Page 161



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

16.13

16.14

16.15

If the Licensing Authority decides that an application should be refused, it will
stil need to show that the grant of the application would undermine the
promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives, and that the imposition of
conditions would be ineffective in preventing the problems involved.

If there are no representations, the Licensing Authority must grant the
application as applied for, in terms consistent with the operating schedule.

Where an application for a review is received by the Licensing Authority, the
cumulative impact policy will not be used as a ground for revoking an existing
licence or certificate. A review must relate to individual premises and by its
nature, cumulative impact is related to the concentration of many licensed
premises in one area.

Suggested additions to operating schedules

16.17

16.18

If an application for a licence is made for a premises within the defined area of
the cumulative impact policy the Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to
demonstrate, in their operating schedule, the steps that they will take to prevent
problems relating to nuisance and public safety and the steps to be taken to
promote the reduction of crime and disorder.

The measures the Licensing Authority would wish to be included on a premises
licence application within the cumulative impact area will depend on the
nature and type of the premises. The measures would need to be individual

to that premises. Examples are:

CCTV at the premises to be properly maintained.

Security Industry Authority (SIA) door staff.

Toughened or plastic glass, no bottles.

Free calls to taxi firms for departing customers at the end of the night.

Outside areas to be cleared at a reasonable time (time to be stated).

Signs to be displayed at each exit to encourage patrons to minimise noise

and not to congregate in the street at close.

To be a member of the local Pubwatch/Nightwatch (or any other similar

scheme).

8. No open containers of alcohol to leave the premises.

9. To supervise entry and exit of the customers from the premises at busy
times.

10. Facilities for people to dispose of cigarette ends and provisions for
reducing noise from people smoking outside the premises.

11. Alimit on the number of customers permitted on the premises at one time.

12. A requirement that the public spaces in the premises should be

ok wh=

N

[13]

Page 162



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

16.19

16.20

16.21

17

171

17.2

predominately seated.

This list is not exhaustive, and is only intended to provide a brief description and
guide to applicants.

The Bath Nightwatch scheme is the result of the Bath Business Improvement
District (BID) team, Bath & North East Somerset Council, Bath Pubwatch group
and the Police, working together as one co-ordinated stakeholder to promote
the four licensing objectives and improve issues of alcohol-associated
anti-social behaviour in and around the city centre.

The Licensing Authority will expect all licensed premises within the Cumulative
Impact Area to take a socially responsible approach to selling alcohol and to
managing their premises effectively by participating in schemes like 'Bath
Nightwatch' or similar.

The Licensing Authority also encourages all premises outside the Cumulative
Impact Area, to take a similar approach to improve the issue of
alcohol-associated anti-social behaviour outside the city centre at night.

Control of anti-social behaviour, crime and disorder away from licensed
premises.

Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general control of nuisance
and anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are away from the licensed
premises and beyond the direct control of the individual, club or business
holding the licence, certificate or authorisation concerned. Nonetheless it is a
key aspect of such control and will always be part of a holistic approach to the
management of the evening and night-time economy in town and city centres.

The licensing authority will encourage the use of other mechanisms for
controlling problems caused by customers behaving badly and unlawfully once
away from licensed premises. For example:

1. Planning controls.

2. Positive measures to create a safe and clean town centre environment in
partnership with local businesses, transport operators and other
departments of the Council.

3. The provision of CCTV surveillance in town centres, ample taxi ranks,
provision of public conveniences open late at night, street cleaning and
litter patrols.

4. Police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and anti-social
behaviour, including the issuing of fixed penalty notices for relevant
offences.

[14]

Page 163



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

5. The prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff at such
premises who is selling alcohol to people who are drunk.

6. The confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in designated areas.

7. Police powers to close down instantly, for up to 24 hours, any licensed
premises or temporary event on grounds of disorder, the likelihood of
disorder or noise emanating from the premises causing a nuisance.

8. The power of the police, other responsible authorities or any other person
to seek a review of the licence or certificate in question.

17.3 The Licensing Authority will endeavour to work in partnership with others to
promote common objectives.

Administration of Licensing Functions
18 Applications

18.1 Incomplete applications will not be accepted. Applications will only be
considered where the relevant documentation and the fee accompany them.

18.2  The operating schedule will form part of the completed application form for a
Premises Licence and Club Premises Certificate. It should include information
which is necessary to enable any Responsible Authority or other person to
assess whether the steps to be taken to promote the licensing objectives are
satisfactory.

18.3 In preparing an operating schedule, the Secretary of State recommends that
applicants should be aware of the expectations of the Licensing Authority and
the Responsible Authorities about the steps that are necessary for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.

18.4  Liaising with interested parties prior to submitting applications is good practice.
The Licensing Authority recommends applicants discuss any new proposals
with neighbours or any relevant community group such as a local residents’
association, or where the application is in Bath city centre, Pubwatch or other
such groups as may be appropriate.

18.5 The Licensing Authority actively encourages applicants to liaise with relevant
Responsible Authorities such as the Police or Fire Service prior to submitting an

application. This will allow the applicant to address any concerns raised within
the operating schedule.

[15]

Page 164



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

19 Licensing Hours

19.1  With regard to licensing hours the Licensing Authority will consider each case
on its individual merits.

19.2  The Licensing Authority recognises that fixed closing times in certain areas can
lead to peaks of disorder and disturbance on the streets when large numbers of
people tend to leave licensed premises at the same time. Longer licensing
hours regarding the sale of alcohol may therefore be considered as an
important factor in reducing friction at late night food outlets, taxi ranks and
other sources of transport in areas where there have already been incidents of
disorder and disturbance.

19.3 The Licensing Authority will give due regard to the Guidance in relation to
terminal hours and would not wish to inhibit the development of safe evening
and night-time local economies.

194 It is not intended that the Licensing Authority’s overall approach to licensing
hours will include any form of zoning. Experience in other areas shows that
this can lead to the significant movement of people across boundaries in search
of premises opening later, and puts greater pressure on communities than is
necessary.

19.5 However, if presented with evidence of serious alcohol related crime,
disorder or anti-social behaviour within a specific area, which cannot be
attributed to one specific premises, the Licensing Authority may consider
making an Early Morning Restriction Order (EMRO) to further the licensing
objectives.

19.6  Shops, stores and supermarkets should generally be permitted to sell alcohol
for consumption off the premises during the normal hours they intend to open
for shopping purposes. However, where relevant representations are
substantiated in respect of individual shops, a limitation on licensing hours may
be appropriate.

20 Conditions
20.1  The Licensing Authority may not impose conditions on, or refuse to grant/vary a
Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate unless it has received a

relevant representation in respect of the application.

20.2  If no relevant representations are received, the application must be granted on

the terms sought, i.e. consistent with the operating schedule submitted, and
subject to the mandatory conditions specific to the type of authorisation applied

[16]

Page 165



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

for. No additional conditions may be imposed.

20.3 Conditions may only be imposed on licences and certificates where they are
appropriate for the promotion of one or more of the four lice nsing objectives.
Conditions may not be imposed on licences and certificates for any other
purpose.

204 One of the key concepts of the Act is for conditions to be tailored to the
individual style and characteristics of the premises. The Licensing Authority
acknowledges this concept of “bespoke” licensing and will only impose
conditions that are both proportionate and appropriate to the business,
organisation, or individual premises concerned. There will be no standard
conditions.

21 Enforcement

21.1 Enforcement will be in accordance with the Public Protection and Health
Improvement Service Enforcement Policy, which is based around the principles
of consistency, transparency and proportionality, as set out in the Government’s
Enforcement Concordat.

21.2 The Enforcement Policy (available on request) proposes that a graduated
response is taken where offences against legislation are found, or where
licence conditions have been contravened. An isolated administrative offence
such as failing to maintain records may be dealt with purely by way of a written
warning. More serious offences which have either been committed over a
period of time, or which jeopardise public safety, may result in the issue of a
Formal Caution, or a referral for prosecution.

21.3 The Licensing Authority will seek to work actively with the Police in enforcing
licensing legislation. The Licensing Authority expects the Police to share
information about licence holders and licensed premises, under the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998 and its common law powers, and to consult closely with the
Licensing Authority when any enforcement action may be required.

214 The Licensing Authority will employ officers to investigate allegations of
unlicensed activities and to ensure all conditions are fully complied with.

22 Drugs

221  The Licensing Authority recognises that as more licensed premises host the
types of events at which people are likely to take drugs, it is imperative to
ensure the safety of all those attending such events.

[17]

Page 166



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

22.2 Where appropriate, the Licensing Authority recommends applicants should
have regard to “Safer Nightlife”, an updated version of the “Safer Clubbing”
guide published by the Home Office in 2002. It provides clear, comprehensive
advice on key issues such as preventing drugs being brought on to licensed
premises, minimising the risk associated with drug taking and how to structure a
drugs policy.

22.3 Where appropriate, applicants for Premises Licences or Club Premises
Certificates should be able to demonstrate that they have had regard to the
“Safer Nightlife” Guide in preparing operating schedules. Although the
implementation of a drugs policy is not a legal requirement, it demonstrates a
commitment to safeguarding the welfare of both customers and staff.

23 Operating Schedules

23.1 Applicants for Premises Licences, Provisional Statements and Club Premises
Certificates should be aware of the guidance issued by the Licensing Authority
in relation to Operating Schedules when submitting their applications.

23.2  The Licensing Authority considers the effective and responsible management of
the premises, including instruction, training, and supervision of staff and the
adoption of best practice to be amongst the most essential control measures
for the achievement of all the licensing objectives. For this reason, the
Licensing Authority recommends that these elements should be specifically

considered and addressed within an applicant's Operating Schedule.

23.3 The selection of control measures should be based upon a risk assessment of
the premises, plus the events, activities and customers expected to attend (e.g.
their age, number etc.). Whilst the Licensing Authority cannot require such risk
assessments to be documented (other than where required by other legislation),
it considers such documentation to be good practice and a useful tool in the
management of the premises.

234  The Operating Schedule should be prepared by, or on behalf of, the applicant,
in relation to the premises for which a licence is being sought, taking into
account the individual style and characteristics of the premises/events.

23.5 The Operating Schedule should include the following:

a. Details of the relevant licensable activities to be conducted on the
premises;

b. The times during which it is proposed that the relevant licensable activities

[18]

Page 167



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

23.6

24

24 1

242

are to take place (including any specific non-standard timings or seasonal
variations);

c. Any other times when the premises are to be open to the public;
d. Where the licence is required only for a limited period, that period;

e. Where the licensable activities include the supply of alcohol, whether the
alcohol will be supplied for consumption on or off the premises, or both;

f.  The steps which the applicant proposes to take to promote the licensing
objectives such as the provision of street marshals etc.;

g. Any other prescribed matters.

The Guidance produced by the Secretary of State under Section 182 of the Act
recommends that applicants should be aware of the expectations of the
Licensing Authority regarding the steps that are necessary for the promotion of
the licensing objectives. Any measures proposed by the applicant should be
both realistic and within the control of the applicant/management of the
premises.

Premises Licences

A Premises Licence will be required for the use of any premises, part of
premises, or place for the following licensable activities:

a. the sale of alcohol;
b. the provision of regulated entertainment;
c. the provision of late night refreshment.

When making an application to the Licensing Authority, the applicant must also
send copies of the application to all the Responsible Authorities, namely:

Chief Officer of the Police

Fire & Rescue Service

Trading Standards

Local Safeguarding Children’s Board
Environmental Health Department
Local Planning Authority

Director of Public Health

@ "0 T

and where relevant:

[19]

Page 168



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

h. Health and Safety Executive (e.g. for educational establishments)
i. Maritime Agency (e.g. for boats)

The Licensing Authority is a Responsible Authority in its own right, but there is
no requirement for applicants to submit anything more than the original
application to the Authority.

24.3 In the case of electronic applications, the requirement to send copies to the
relevant Responsible Authorities will pass from the applicant to the Licensing
Authority.

25 Provisional Statements

251  Where premises are being, or are to be, constructed for the purpose of being
used for one or more licensable activities, or are being, or about to be,
extended, or otherwise altered for that purpose, a person may apply for a
Provisional Statement if they have an interest in the premises, and, if they are
an individual, that they are aged 18 years or older.

25.2  An application for a Provisional Statement must be accompanied by a schedule
of works that includes details of the licensable activities for which the premises
will be used, a plan of the premises; and such other information as may be
prescribed.

25.3  Applications for Provisional Statements will be dealt with in a similar manner as
applications for a Premises Licence. See also paragraph 23 relating to
Operating Schedules.

254  Where relevant representations are made in relation to an application for a
Provisional Statement the Licensing Authority must decide whether, if the
premises were constructed or altered in the way proposed in the schedule of
works and if a Premises Licence was sought for those premises, it would
consider it necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives to attach
conditions (subject to the provisions of paragraph 20), rule out any of the
licensable activities applied for, or to reject the application.

26 Club Premises Certificates

26.1 Club Premises Certificates will be issued to qualifying Clubs as defined in the
Act, which carry out the following recognised activities:

a. the supply of alcohol by, or on behalf, of the Club to, or to the order of, a
member of the Club;

[20]

Page 169



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

26.2

26.3

264

27

271

b. the sale by retail of alcohol by, or on behalf of, a Club to a guest, or a
member of the Club, for consumption on the premises where the sale
takes place; and

c. the provision of regulated entertainment, where that provision is by, or on
behalf of, a Club for members of the Club, or for members of the Club and
their guests.

Besides making an application to the Licensing Authority, the applicant must
also send copies of the application to all the responsible authorities, namely:

Chief Officer of the Police

Fire & Rescue Service

Trading Standards

Local Safeguarding Children’s Board
Environmental Health Department
Local Planning Authority

Director of Public Health

@"pooTD

and where relevant:

h. Health and Safety Executive (e.g. for educational establishments)
i. Maritime Agency (e.g. for boats)

The Licensing Authority is a Responsible Authority in its own right, but there is
no requirement for applicants to submit anything more than the original
application to the Authority.

In the case of electronic applications the requirement to send copies to the
responsible authorities will pass to the Licensing Authority.

A Club Operating Schedule should also be submitted with the application,
together with a copy of the club rules. See also paragraph 23 above relating to
Operating Schedules.

Variation of Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate

Applications to vary a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate will be
dealt with in a similar manner to applications for a new Premises Licence or
Club Premises Certificate. @~ When the Licensing Authority receives an
application for a variation of these authorisations, it must determine whether the
application has been properly made. Among other things the Licensing
Authority will consider whether the application has been properly advertised.

[21]

Page 170



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

27.2

273

274

27.5

28

28.1

Where an application has been lawfully made and provided that no relevant
representation has been made by any responsible authority or other person
then no hearing will be required and the application will be granted in the terms
sought, subject only to conditions which are consistent with the Operating
Schedule and any mandatory conditions required.

The Licensing Authority must consider whether any representations received
are relevant. A "relevant" representation must focus only on the "change"
proposed in the variation application and how this change is likely to have a
detrimental effect on at least one of the licensing objectives. If relevant
representations are made and not withdrawn, the Licensing Authority will hold a
hearing, and at that hearing the Licensing Authority may:

a. modify the conditions of the Licence; or
b. reject the whole, or part of the application; or
c. grant the application as applied for

If the Licensing Authority considers that the representations are not relevant
then a hearing will not be required and the application will be granted in the
form it was applied for. The aggrieved party may challenge the Licensing
Authority’s decision by way of judicial review.

The exception to the above procedure concerns applications for minor
variations, whereby the proposed variation generally amounts to:

a. aminor change to the structure or layout of a premises;
b. small adjustments to licensing hours;

c. the removal of out of date, irrelevant or unenforceable conditions or the
addition of volunteered conditions;

d. the addition of certain licensable activities which will not impact adversely
on the licensing objectives, are subject to a simplified ‘minor variations’
process. Parties may still make representations and the Licensing
Authority is entitled to seek the views of any of the responsible authorities
when determining such applications. There is no right to a hearing as
officers have delegated powers to determine applications under this
process.

Personal Licences

General Requirements - Personal Licences will be granted if the applicant can
demonstrate each of the following:

[22]

Page 171



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

a. they are 18 years of age or over,

b. they possess an appropriate licensing qualification, or are a person of a
prescribed description; i.e. a person of a description prescribed by
Secretary of State by regulations;

c. no Personal Licence held by the applicant has been forfeited in the period
of five years ending with the day the application was made;

d. the applicant has not been convicted of any relevant offence, or any
relevant foreign offence.

28.2 The Authority will reject any application where points a, b or c above are
not met.

28.3 Applicants with unspent criminal convictions for relevant offences set out in
Regulations made under the Act are encouraged to first discuss their intended
application with the Council's Licensing Officers and/or Police Licensing Officers
before making an application. Guidance in relation to unspent criminal
convictions can be found in the Licensing Authority's Guidance Notes for
Applicants.

29 Designated Premises Supervisors

29.1  The sale of alcohol carries with it greater responsibility than that associated with
the provision of entertainment and late night refreshment as it has a wider
impact on the community. Therefore the main purpose of having a Designated
Premises Supervisor (DPS) nominated on the premises licence is to ensure
there is a specified individual who can be readily identified at the premises. The
DPS therefore will occupy a pivotal role in terms of management and
supervision of the premises, and may be given day to day responsibility for
running the premises. All sales of alcohol made under the authorisation of a
premises licence, must be authorised by the person nominated as the DPS on
the premises licence.

29.2 The DPS may nominate other personnel in his/her place as having authority to
make sales of alcohol provided that authority is in writing thereby giving a
meaningful and proper authorisation.

29.3 Ajoint interview between the Licensing Authority, Police and applicant may be
arranged where the Police are minded to object to the variation of a DPS on the

grounds that such a variation may undermine the Prevention of Crime and
Disorder objective.

[23]

Page 172



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

294  The exception to the above is to allow certain community premises which have,
or are applying for a premises licence, that authorise the sale of alcohol, to
apply the alternative licence condition instead of the usual mandatory
conditions. The effect of the alternative licence condition is that the licence
holder, i.e. the management committee which runs the community premises, is
responsible for the supervision and authorisation of all alcohol sales.

30 Temporary Event Notices

30.1  Temporary Event Notices do not involve the Licensing Authority in giving
permission for the event to take place. This is a notification procedure in which
only the Police and Environmental Protection may intervene to prevent such an
event, or to modify the arrangements for such an event. The Licensing Authority
will only intervene if the limits on the number of notices given are exceeded.

30.2 A “Standard” TEN requires an organiser of a temporary event to give the
Licensing Authority a minimum of 10 clear working days’ notice.

30.3 A “Late” TEN is a TEN received by the Licensing Authority 5-9 clear working
days prior to the day of the event.

30.4  "Clear working days” means working days exclusive of the day on which the
event is to start, and exclusive of the day on which the notice is given. A
"working day" is defined as any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, Christmas
Day, Good Friday, or a day which constitutes a Bank Holiday under the Banking
and Financial Dealings Act 1971 in England and Wales.

30.5 If an objection is received to a “Late” TEN then the Licensing Authority must
issue a counter notice at least 24 hours prior to the event. The premises user
has no right to a hearing in relation to a contentious "Late" TEN and as such
any licensable activities proposed at the event, will be unauthorised, and it will
be an offence to carry on any such activities. Likewise, any notice received
within less than 5 clear working days’ notice will be invalid.

30.6 It is therefore obvious that by submitting a “Late” TEN the organiser runs the
risk of receiving a counter notice and not being able to hold the event. Although
legally the Licensing Authority must receive “Late” TENSs, it recommends a
minimum notice period of one calendar month before the date of the event
taking place.

31 Transfer of Premises Licences

31.1 In the vast majority of cases it is expected that a transfer will be a very simple
administrative process. This is to ensure that there should be no interruption to

[24]

Page 173



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

normal business at the premises.

31.2  Notice of the application must be given to the Police. If the Police raise no
objection about the application the Licensing Authority will transfer the licence in
accordance with the application, amend the licence and return it to the new
holder.

31.3 In exceptional circumstances the Police may consider that the granting of the
application would undermine the crime prevention objective. In these
circumstances the Licensing Authority must hold a hearing and consider the
objection, they will not be able to consider any other matters. The Committee
will give reasons for the decision made.

32 Interim Authority Notices

321  Generally a licence will remain in force for as long as the licence holder
continues to operate the business, unless it is revoked, or it is specified that it
has effect for a limited period and that period expires. However, if the holder of
a Premises Licence dies, becomes mentally incapable or becomes insolvent,
then the licence will lapse.

32.2 The licence may be reinstated for a three month period if within 28 days of such
circumstances, a person who had an interest in the premises concerned, or is
connected to the person who held the Premises Licence immediately before it
lapsed, gives the Licensing Authority an Interim Authority Notice.

32.3 Atthe end of the three months it will lapse unless an application for a transfer of
premises licence holder is made.

324 A person is connected to the former holder of a Premises Licence if, and only if:

a. the person is the personal representative in the event of the holder's
death;

b. inrespect of someone who has become mentally incapable, the person is
acting under section 6 of the Enduring Powers of Attorney Act 1985; or

c. in the event of insolvency, the person is acting as an Insolvency
Practitioner.

32.5 Interim Authority Notices must also be served on the Police. If the Police
consider that the grant of an Interim Authority Notice would undermine the

prevention of crime objective, the Licensing Authority will arrange a hearing to
consider the Notice.

[25]

Page 174



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

Licensing Objectives
33 The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

331 Under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council has a duty to
do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorderin the area. The fear
of crime created by disorder, including drunkenness, is as damaging to public
confidence and the quality of life as crime itself. The Councils Community
Safety Plan in alignment with the Police Crime Commissioner aims to reduce
crime, disorder, nuisance and the fear of crime, making Bath and North East
Somerset a safer place to live, work and visit.

33.2 The Council has introduced measures to assist in the management of this,
including the provision of Bath Nightwatch, BID Marshals and Taxi Rank
Marshals and the installation of CCTV cameras. Joint working with the Police
is ongoing, and the Council would expect this partnership approach to be
embraced by the licensing trade. This would include participation in the Bath
Nightwatch scheme that includes a radio system between licensed premises
which links with the CCTV, the Police, Street & Taxi Marshals/FAST ambulance
and the Street Pastors.

33.3 The Licensing Authority will consider whether the grant of an application will
result inan increase in crime and disorder.

33.4  Applicants are encouraged to consider crime prevention procedures in their
premises before making a formal application. Applicants are encouraged to
work in partnership with other licence holders in order to reduce crime and
disorder in their area.

33.5 The Licensing Authority will continue to play an active part in the development
of Pubwatch/Nightwatch and other such schemes.

33.6 The Licensing Authority recognises that no matter how well managed the
premises are, crime and disorder can occur, particularly outside the premises.
Therefore in considering whether the crime and disorder objective is met, the
Licensing Authority will normally take into account the criteria set out below.

33.7 In considering licence applications, the following will be taken into account:

1. Whether the design, layout, lighting and fittings of the premises have been

considered with a view to restricting conflict and minimising opportunities
for crime and disorder.

[26]

Page 175



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

33.8

34

34.1

10.

11.

Whether the applicant has included in the Operating Schedule appropriate
management measures to prevent/reduce crime and disorder.

Training given to staff in crime prevention measures appropriate to those
premises.

Physical security features installed in the premises. This may include
matters such as the position of cash registers; where alcohol is stored in
‘off-licences’, or the standard of CCTV installed, and the use of toughened
drinking glasses in pubs and clubs.

The likely exit times from the premises and the demands upon and the
capacity of public transport at those times.

Any other such measures as may be appropriate, such as participation in
Nightwatch/Pubwatch or other such schemes, ‘music wind-down policies’,
restrictions on ‘happy hours’ and the availability of seating to discourage
vertical drinking.

The measures employed to prevent the consumption or supply of illegal
drugs, including any search procedures and entry policies.

Where premises are subject to age-restrictions, the procedures in place to
conduct age verification checks.

The likelihood of any violence, public order or policing problems if the
licence is granted.

The applicant’'s willingness to work in partnership with neighbouring
licence holders in order to reduce crime and disorder.

The policy on cumulative impact.

The Licensing Authority would also recommend that all Designated Premises
Supervisors undergo additional training and have experience commensurate
with the nature and style of entertainment provided and capacity of the
premises.

Public Safety

The Licensing Authority has established protocols with the local Police on
enforcement issues to enable a more efficient deployment of Licensing
Authority staff and police officers who are engaged in enforcing licensing law
and the inspection of licensed premises.

[27]

Page 176



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

34.2  This protocol also provides for the targeting of agreed problem and high risk
premises which require greater attention, while providing a lighter touch in
respect of low risk premises which are well run.

34.3 Inspections are not undertaken routinely, but only when they are judged
necessary. This ensures that resources are more effectively concentrated on
problem premises. The Act enables the Licensing Authority through its officers
to exercise discretion in relation to inspections and does not require annual
inspections to take place. The Licensing Authority therefore, does not intend to
carry out annual inspections unless the assessed risks make such inspections
necessary.

34.4  From time to time premises are inspected by Council Officers, the Police and/or
the Fire Service for purposes of ascertaining compliance with the Act or
associated Legislation or Regulations.

34.5 During the application period the Responsible Authorities might decide to carry
out their own inspections.

346 Crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour threaten public safety and affect
perceptions of public safety. The Licensing Authority must try to ensure the
safety of people visiting and working in licensed premises. The Licensing
Authority will need to satisfy itself that measures to protect the public including
setting safe capacities, adequate means of escape, and the provision of fire
fighting equipment and CCTV etc. are putin place and maintained if this is not
adequately provided for by other regulatory regimes.

34.7 Licensed premises present a mixture of Health and Safety risks, some of which
are common to many premises, and others unique to single premises. It is
essential that premises are constructed, or adapted, so as to safeguard
occupants against such risks.

34.8  Where relevant representations are made in relation to imposing a maximum
number of persons resorting to premises at any one time for example, to ensure
the safety of persons in the premises, and safe escape in the case of an
emergency, the Licensing Authority will consider the imposition of occupancy
limits by way of condition where it is considered necessary in relation to the
promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives.

35 Prevention of Public Nuisance

35.1  The Licensing Authority is concerned to protect the amenity of residents and
businesses in the vicinity of licensed premises.

[28]

Page 177



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

35.2

35.3

354

Licensed premises have a significant potential to adversely impact on
communities through public nuisances that arise from their operation. The
Licensing Authority intends to maintain and protect the amenity of residents and
other businesses from the potential adverse consequences of the operation of
licensed premises whilst recognising the valuable cultural, social and business
importance that such premises provide.

In considering an application for a Premises Licence or Club Premises
Certificate, the Licensing Authority will consider the adequacy of measures
proposed to deal with the potential for nuisance and/or anti-social behaviour
having regard to the circumstances of the application.

The Licensing Authority will consider in particular:

1. The proximity of noise sensitive residential and commercial premises, the
steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent noise and
vibration escaping from the premises including music, noise from
ventilation equipment and human voices. Such measures may include
the installation of soundproofing, air conditioning, acoustic lobbies and
sound limitation devices.

2. The steps to be taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent
litter and smell nuisance from the premises.

3. The steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent
disturbance by customers arriving at or leaving the premises.

4. The steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent
queuing (either by pedestrian or vehicular traffic). If some queuing is
inevitable, then queues should be diverted away from neighbouring
premises or be otherwise managed to prevent disturbance or obstruction.

5. Whether there is sufficient provision of public transport (including taxis and
private hire vehicles) for patrons.

6. The installation of any special measures where licensed premises are, or
are proposed to be, located near sensitive premises such as nursing
homes, hospitals, hospices or places of worship.

7. The use of gardens and other open-air areas.

8. The position or proposed position of external lighting, including security
lighting that is installed inappropriately.

[29]

Page 178



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

9. Whether the premises would lead to increased refuse storage or disposal
problems, or additional litter (including fly posters and illegal placards) in
the vicinity.

10. The steps taken or proposed by the applicant with particular regard to the
recycling of glasses, bottles and cans from their premises.

35.5

35.6 The role of the Licensing Authority is to maintain an appropriate balance
between the legitimate aspirations of the entertainment industry and the needs
of the residents. The Licensing Authority will need to satisfy itself that adequate
measures are in place to prevent public nuisance.

36 Protection of Children from Harm

36.1  The wide range of premises that require licensing means that children can be
expected to visit many of these, often on their own, for food and/or
entertainment.

36.2 It is hoped that family friendly premises will thrive, but the risk of harm to
children remains a paramount consideration when determining applications.

36.3  Whilst the Act allows children access to licensed premises, the Licensing
Authority recognises that limitations may have to be considered where it
appears necessary to protect children from harm.

36.4  The general relaxation in the Act giving accompanied children greater access to
licensed premises is a positive step, aimed at bringing about a social change in
family friendly leisure. Clearly this relaxation places additional responsibilities
upon licence holders. However, it is also recognised that parents and others
accompanying children also have responsibilities.

36.5 The Licensing Authority recognises the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board as
the Responsible Authority to advise it on matters relating to the protection of
children from harm.

36.6  The Licensing Authority will judge the merits of each application before deciding

whether to impose conditions limiting the access of children to individual
premises.

[30]

Page 179



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

36.7

36.8

36.9

36.10

The following are examples of premises that will raise concern:

1.

Where entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature are
commonly provided.

Where there have been convictions of members of the current staff at the
premises for serving alcohol to minors, or with a reputation for underage
drinking.

Where there is a known association with drug taking or dealing.
Where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises (but not, for
example, the simple presence of a small humber of cash prize gaming

machines).

Where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the
exclusive or primary purpose of the services provided at the premises.

Venues which are running ‘under-18’ events allowing entry to intoxicated
young people.

The Licensing Authority may consider limiting the access of children where it is
necessary for the prevention of harm to children. The following conditions may
be considered appropriate:

1.

2.

Limitations on the hours when children may be present.

The exclusion of children under certain ages when particular activities are
taking place.

Limitations on the parts of premises to which children might be given
access.

Requirements for an accompanying adult.

Full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises or parts of the
premises when any licensable activities are taking place.

No conditions will be imposed requiring that children be admitted to any
premises and where no limitation is imposed this will be left to the discretion of
the individual licence holder.

The Act details a number of offences designed to protect children in licensed

[31]

Page 180



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

36.11

36.12

36.13

36.14

36.15

36.16

premises and the Licensing Authority will work closely with the Police to ensure
the appropriate enforcement of the law, especially relating to the sale and
supply of alcohol to children.

The Licensing Authority recommends that where appropriate, applicants
familiarise themselves with the DrinkAware and Portman Group Codes of
Practice on the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks. The
codes seek to ensure that drinks are packaged and promoted in a socially
responsible manner and only to those who are 18 years or older.

Films cover a vast range of subjects, some of which deal with adult themes
and/or contain for example, scenes of horror or violence that may be considered
unsuitable for children within certain age groups.

The Licensing Authority will expect licence holders or clubs to include in their
Operating Schedules arrangements for restricting children from viewing
age-restricted films classified according to recommendations of the British
Board of Film Classification (or the Licensing Authority itself) to satisfactorily
address safety issues including the supervision of children.

The Act also provides that it is mandatory for a condition to be included in all
Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates authorising the exhibition of
films for the admission of children to the exhibition to be restricted in
accordance with the recommendation given either by the British Board of Film
Classification or the Licensing Authority.

Many children go to see and/or take part in an entertainment arranged
especially for them, for example, children’s film shows and dance or drama
school productions, and additional arrangements are required to safeguard
them while at the premises.

The Licensing Authority will expect the Operating Schedule to satisfactorily
address safety issues including the supervision of children.

Complaints About Licensed Premises

37

37.1

How Complaints Will Be Dealt With

The Licensing Authority will investigate all complaints against licensed premises
with regard to matters relating to the four licensing objectives. If possible in the
first instance, the complaint should be raised directly with the licence holder or
business concerned to seek a local resolution. If this is not possible then
residents can contact their local Resident’'s Association to act on their behalf or

[32]

Page 181



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

contact the Licensing Team directly.
37.2 Where alocal resident or residents’ association have made for example:

= relevant representations about licensed premises, or
= avalid application for a premises licence or club premises certificate to be
reviewed.

the Licensing Authority encourages parties to arrange a conciliation meeting to
address and clarify the issues of concern where practicable.

37.3  Nothing in this Policy shall restrict the right of a Responsible Authority or any
other person to call for a review of a licence or club premises certificate, or
make relevant representations in accordance with the Act.

How to make a complaint or contribute to a review

374  Anyperson wishing to make a complaint about a licensed premises can contact
the Licensing Team in the following ways:

By email: Licensing@bathnes.gov.uk

Via the website: www.bathnes.gov.uk/forms/licensed-pre mises-complaint-form
By telephone: 01225 477531

In person at any of the Council’'s One Stop Shops

37.5 Information about submitting a representation can be found on the Council’s
website at:

http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/business/licences/alcohol-and-entertainment/repres
entations

Decision Making
38 Licensing Committee Terms of Reference

38.1  The Committee’s terms of reference will be set outin the Council's Constitution.
The terms of reference have been guided by Regulations issued under the Act.

39 Allocation of Decision making Responsibilities

39.1  These responsibilities will be set outin the Council’'s Constitution. The table on
page 36 indicates how the delegation of functions has been allocated

[33]

Page 182



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

40 Relevant Representations

40.1  Representations should be made in writing and received by the Authority within
the 28 day period commencing the day after the application/review was served
on the Authority. The Authority may not exercise any discretion in respect of
late representations.

40.2 Relevant representations will illustrate the likely effect the proposals within the
application will have on the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives.

40.3 Representations may take the form of an objection, or be positive, and express
support of the application.

404 A representation will not be relevant if the case officer deems it to be frivolous
or vexatious.

40.5 Representations made by any Responsible Authority or other person which are
subsequently withdrawn, will not be regarded as “relevant”.

40.6  ‘Responsible Authority means any of the following:

Police

Fire & Rescue Service

Trading Standards

Local Safeguarding Children’s Board

Environmental Health Department

Local Planning Authority

Health & Safety Executive (if premises is a school/college)
Maritime Agency (if premises is a “vessel’)

Director of Public Health

The Licensing Authority

Any other Authority as may be prescribed by Regulations.

AT T SQ M0 o000

40.7  Once the Authority is in receipt of a relevant representation, it may no longer
grant the application in the form in which it was applied for; instead the matter
must proceed to hearing to be determined before the Licensing Sub Committee.
With this in mind, the Authority would recommend all applicants allowing two
months for an application to be processed.

41 Other Considerations

411  The Licensing Authority will give reasons for its decisions. The Licensing
Authority will also address the extent to which the decision has been made with
regard to the Act, its Statement of Licensing Policy, the Guidance issued by the

[34]

Page 183



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

Secretary of State under the Act and the Human Rights Act 1998.
42 Reviews

42 1 The process for reviewing premises licences and club premises certificates is
seen as representing a key protection for the community where problems
associated with any of the four licensing objectives are occurring. Licensing
Authorities are encouraged to apply a ‘light touch’ to the grant and variation of
premises licences and club premises certificates. The provision of the review
mechanism to deal with concerns relating to the licensing objectives arising
later in respect of individual premises is integral to this.

42.2 At any stage following the grant of a premises licence or club premises
certificate, a Responsible Authority or other person may apply to the Licensing
Authority to review a licence because of a matter arising at the premises in
connection with one or more of the four licensing objectives. Any application for
review must be in writing. Copies of the application must be simultaneously
served on the premises licence holder and the relevant Responsible Authorities.

42.3  Additionally a review of the licence will normally follow any action by the Police
to close the premises on grounds of disorder or public nuisance.

424  The application must relate to a specific premises for which a premises licence
or club premises certificate has effect. The grounds for review must be
relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives.

42.5  Sufficient information or evidence should be contained within the application to
enable the holder of the premises licence or club premises certificate or any
representative of the holder of a premises licence or club premises certificate to
prepare a response.

426 Where the application for a review is received the Licensing Authority must
firstly consider whether it is relevant. Any applications found to be irrelevant,
vexatious or frivolous will be rejected and the review applicant advised of the
reason(s) for the rejection.

42.7  Where a relevant application is received the Licensing Authority will advertise
the application and hold a hearing to determine the review application.

42.8 The Licensing Act 2003 provides the Licensing Authority with a range of powers
on determining a review that it may exercise where it considered necessary for
the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives.

429 The Licensing Authority would strongly urge anyone who is suffering adverse

[35]

Page 184



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

effects due to the way in which a licensed premises is operating, to talk to the
Licensing Team. Officers can give free impartial advice on how to complete
the necessary forms, and talk those affected through the review process.

43 Appeals

43.1 New and variation applications once determined will take immediate effect.
There will however follow a 21 day appeal period during which any party to the
hearing may appeal the decision to Bath Magistrates’ Court.

43.2 Once an application for the Review of a premises licence or club premises
certificate has been determined, it will not take effect until the 21 day appeal
period had lapsed or if appealed, once the appeal has been dispensed with.

43.3 An appeal against the grant or refusal of a personal licence application must be
made to the Magistrates’ Court.

434  Schedule 5 to the Licensing Act 2003 sets out entitlement to appeal.
Fees

44 Fees

The Authority is aware that the Government is considering moving from
nationally set Licensing Act fees to locally set fees. The situation will be
monitored and where appropriate procedures will be adopted to ensure that
fees are set based on cost recovery.

Late Night Levy

45 Late Night Levy

This is a power conferred on Licensing Authorities by the Police Reform and
Social Responsibility Act 2011 which enables a levy to be charged persons who
are licensed to sell alcohol late at night in the authority’s area, as a means of
raising a contribution towards the costs of policing the late-night economy. The
option of introducing such a levy will be kept under review by the Council.

[36]

Page 185



Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

Table of Delegations of Licensing Functions

MATTER TO BE DEALT WITH

FULL COUNCIL

SUB COMMITTEE

OFFICERS

Approval of Policy and annual
review

All cases

Application for Personal Licence

If a police objection is
made

If no objection made

Application for Personal Licence,
with unspent convictions

If a police objection is
made

If no objection made

Application for Premises
Licence/Club Premises Certificate

If a relevant
representation is made

If no relevant
representation is
made

Application for Provisional
Statement

If a relevant
representation is made

If no relevant
representation is
made

Application to vary Premises
Licence/Club Premises Certificate

If a relevant
representation is made

If no relevant
representation is
made

Application to vary Designated
Premises Supervisor

If a police objection is
made

All other cases

Request to be removed as
Designated Premises Supervisor

All cases

Application for transfer of Premises
Licence

If a police objection is
made

All other cases

Application for interim authorities

If a police objection is
made

All other cases

Application to review Premises
Licence/Club Premises Certificate

All cases

Decision on whether a complaint is
irrelevant, frivolous, vexatious, etc.

All cases

Decision to object when local authorit
is a consultee and not

the relevant authority considering the
application

All cases

Determination of an objection to a
Temporary Event Notice

All cases

Determination of Minor Variation
applications for premises licences
and for club premises certificates.

All cases

Determination of the removal of a
Designated Premises Supervisor or
Personal Licence Holder at
community premises.

If a relevant

representation is made.

All other cases

Applications for the classification of
unclassified films.

All cases

[37]

Page 186




Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

Map Outlining the Cumulative Impact Policy area for Bath
City Centre

o WS LR
L City Centre Zone

T, ,.,- hl‘ﬁl"" i

M e i e e i e M
S SR TN R\ TN e e SN

4 40 s




Annex B- B&NES Statement of Licensing Policy

Further Information

Further information about the Act and this Statement of Licensing Policy can be
obtained from:

Licensing Team

Bath & North East Somerset Council
Lewis House

BATH BA1 1JG

Tel: 01225477531

Fax: 01225 477596

Email: licensing@bathnes.gov.uk
Website: www.bathnes.gov.uk

The Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act can also be viewed on this site.

Information in relation to large events is available from the Council’s Event Safety
Co-ordinator:

Public Protection and Health Improvement
Bath & North East Somerset Council

Lewis House

BATH BA1 1JG

Tel: 01225477563

Fax: 01225 477596

Email: Public Protection@bathnes.gov.uk
Website: www.bathnes.gov.uk

The Licensing Act 2003 can be viewed online at:

www.opsi.gov.uk/acts/acts2003/ukpga 20030017 en

[39]

Page 188



Annex B- Code of Best Practice for Licensed Premises

The purpose of this Code is to assist applicants and those responsible for managing licensed
premises to operate in a safe and responsible manner.

Our aim in publishing this Code of Best Practice, is to build on the good relationships we have
already established with the trade and partnership agencies to encourage communication,
information sharing and partnership working.

The Code is not statutory guidance but a guide to encourage Best Practice throughout the
Authority Area. The four licensing objectives that underpin the framework of the licensing
legislation however, should be of paramount consideration at all times.

It’'s good to talk!

Members of the Licensing Team are here to discuss your licensing needs, as well as all the
options available to you. We actively encourage event organisers and applicants to engage in
pre-application discussions with any relevant Responsible Authorities or Residents’ Associations.

The responsibility for operating a premise in a safe, responsible and compliant manner need not
rest with one person. It is sensible that all persons involved in the day to day operation of the
premises such as bar staff, door staff and managers, work together to achieve full compliance in
respect of their particular authorisation. Team meetings therefore provide an excellent opportunity
to remind colleagues of the mandatory conditions and those attached specifically to your licence or
certificate.

You may find it of mutual benefit to hold regular meetings with your local residents’ associations.
During such sessions you could discuss any future plans you may have in respect of your
premises, and in turn listen to their concerns.

The Authority acknowledges that one size doesn’'t fit all and that the individual style and
characteristics of the premises will dictate what measures are considered appropriate and
necessary for your business or client.

PREVENTION OF CRIME & DISORDER

Don’t be afraid to say ..... “No!”

e In times of austerity it is difficult to turn away custom, however you have the right to refuse
admission to undesirable patrons and have a legal obligation to refuse to supply alcohol to
anyone who is drunk or underage, or to any person who is buying alcohol for someone who
is drunk or under age.

e In respect of the above, it's always a good idea to maintain a Refusals Register detailing all
refused sales and refused admissions.

e Local “Pubwatch” & “Nightwatch” schemes already operate within the Authority area
offering support and an opportunity for the trade to share information. If you are not already

1
Page 189



Annex B- Code of Best Practice for Licensed Premises

a member of one of these schemes just contact the Licensing Team at
licensing@bathnes.gov.uk or call 01225 477556 for up to date contact details.

Alcohol sold for consumption off the premises

e If you supply alcohol by virtue of a Club Premises Certificate you will already be aware of
the mandatory condition requiring all alcohol supplied for consumption off the premises to
be in sealed containers. If your premises licence does not endorse this, the Authority would
encourage the best practice of all alcohol sold for consumption off the premises being
supplied in its original, sealed container.

Dispersal Policy
e Do you have a dispersal policy in place?

e Why not consider employing door staff to supervise your patrons when leaving the
premises and to remain on duty for 20 minutes after closing?

e Have you considered allowing your customers to wait inside the premises for their transport
home?

e If Late Night Refreshment is permitted under your authorisation, why not serve coffee and
non-alcoholic beverages to those who are waiting for transport?

e Please be aware of any wulnerable people on, or within the vicinity of your premises. Are
there any young females leaving your premises alone for example? Could you offer to call
a cab on their behalf and allow them to wait inside the premises until it arrives?

e Think about displaying ‘Don’t drink and drive’ messages at exits to remind customers of the
dangers of drink driving

Drugs Policy

e Advertise the fact that the premise has a “Zero Tolerance” policy in respect of drugs by
prominently displaying signage at the premises.

e Refuse entry to any known or suspected drug dealers.

e Although not a legal requirement, premises who implement a drugs policy are
demonstrating that they are taking a pro-active approach to safeguarding both their
customers and their staff.

e Depending on the nature of the premises, search policies may be appropriate.

e Regularly carry out toilet checks and maintain a record of such checks or employ a toilet
attendant or supervisor.

Page 190



Annex B- Code of Best Practice for Licensed Premises

e Any items seized should be recorded and placed in an envelope or drugs bag detailing
what the item is, the date it was found/seized and by whom. Place any items in a safe or
drugs box and contact the Police.

Security
e If you are using CCTV itis essential that the system is maintained in good working order.

e Ensure footage is kept for a minimum of 31 days and made available to the Police or
Licensing Authority upon request. Train staff so that they are competent at carrying out this
task.

e Focus on internal areas that are accessible to the public and areas immediately outside the
premises.

e Consider using an alarm system or other security measure so as to protect the premises
when itis closed or empty.

e Notices advising “CCTV in operation” can act as a deterrent, as does the use of outside
lighting — be careful not to cause a nuisance with regards to the latter.

e Review your security policy regularly.

e If you are a licensed premises in Bath you could participate in the Bath BID’s Nightwatch
radio scheme that connects licensed premises with the Police, CCTV and other licensees.
Contact the Bath BID Company for more information at 01225 430 640.

Door Staff

e Any door staff or persons employed to supervise the door or carry out security functions
must be registered in accordance with the Security Industry Authority (SIA) Regulations.

e Fluorescent jackets, tabards and arm bands can help customers more readily identify those
who are employed to carry out a security function at your premises. Fluorescent jackets can
be provided free of charge to licencees through the Bath BID Nightwatch scheme. If your
authorisation does not require this then ensure that badges worn by SIA registered staff are
always prominently displayed.

Search Policies

e Even if the need is considered low, some licensed premises would benefit from having a
search policy even ifit only consists of randomly searching bags.

Page 191



Annex B- Code of Best Practice for Licensed Premises

Promote Well-Being and Reduce Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Disorder

e If you area among the Authority’'s growing “off trade” establishments, refuse single can
sales and refrain from displaying alcohol by entrances, exits or tills;

e Remove super-strength (10%) cider, lager and beers from your offering.
e Offer a wide range of non-alcoholic beverages

e If you are selling or supplying alcohol for consumption on the premises you MUST
ENSURE free drinking water is available at all times. It is irrelevant whether the water
comes from a tap or is bottled just as long as it is fit for drinking (“potable”).

e Ensure all drinks promotions are risk assessed and comply with existing legislation. It is no
longer sufficient to show that “all reasonable steps” have been taken — it is now a
mandatory condition that all premises selling or supplying alcohol for consumption on the
premises MUST ENSURE staff do not carry out, arrange or participate in any
IRRESPONSIBLE PROMOTIONS. You may find the following factors worth considering
when determining whether your proposals are irresponsible, or not.

CONSIDER:

» The nature of the premises — is it a family orientated community pub, a restaurant closing at
23:00 or a high volume vertical drinking establishment?

» The nature of the promotion — consider the size and duration of the discount you are
proposing; is there a “significant risk” that your promotion will undermine a licensing
objective????

» The type of customers your promotion has the potential to attract.

» The number of customers your promotion has the potential to attract along with any knock-
on effect this will have in respect of security requirements and staffing levels.

» The history of the premises — is there anything to be learned from the outcome of any
previous promotions held at the premises? Has the premises licence been subject to a
recent review?

» Are you confident that you can run your promotion without it causing a detrimental effect on
the licensing objectives?

The following activities are not permitted under any circumstances:

» Drinking games that encourage people to consume a greater amount of alcohol in a
shorter period of time or simply to drink as much as possible;

» The use of promotional materials that condone or glamorise anti-social behaviour or
drunkenness;

4
Page 192



Annex B- Code of Best Practice for Licensed Premises

» Dispensing alcohol directly into the mouth of another.
» Please ensure that no alcohol is sold below the cost of duty plus VAT.

> “All good things come in small packages” — as you are no doubt aware, since 1 October
2010 it has been a requirement that all premises selling or supplying alcohol for
consumption on the premises make the following alcoholic drinks available in the following
measures:

o Beeror cider: V2 pint;
o gin, rum, vodka or whiskey: 25ml or 35ml;
o still wine in a glass: 125ml

In addition to the above, you are now required to display these smaller measures on menus
and price lists, and, where a customer does not inform you of their preferred size, you must
make your customer aware of the range of sizes available to them. It is important therefore
to ensure staff are appropriately trained and all materials such as menus and price lists
have been re-printed to avoid breaching this mandatory condition.

“Step up to the plate” and do your bit to help reduce the number of people who are at risk of
drinking to excess within our communities.

PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE
Sssshhh!

e Displaying signage at all exits requesting customers to be considerate of your neighbours
when leaving the premises is a pro-active, cost effective way of promoting this licensing
objective.

e Have you considered restricting the use of any outside areas the premises may have as a
means of preventing nuisance?

e Closing windows and external doors at 23:00 when regulated entertainment is being
provided can greatly reduce noise nuisance to nearby residents.

e Have you considered providing your neighbours with a contact telephone number on which
someone at the premises may be reached if noise related problems occur?

e Regular noise monitoring carried out around the perimeter of the premises is simple, cost
effective, and will help you to gauge the level of noise other people are experiencing within
the vicinity of your premises. If this is something you regularly practice, why not record your
findings - they may prove useful in the future.

e Environmental Health Officers are available to offer advice in relation to reducing noise
emanating from your premises. In addition the team has produced a Code of Practice and
guidance notes on controlling noise at concerts and outdoor events. For further information
please email environmental protection@bathnes.gov.uk or telephone: 01225 477563.

5
Page 193



Annex B- Code of Best Practice for Licensed Premises

Be mindful of any outside lighting — there needs to be a balance between promoting public
safety and preventing public nuisance.

First impressions really do count

Keeping the frontage of your premises clean and clear of litter will not only prevent
nuisance but will also make your premises more attractive to potential customers.

PUBLIC SAFETY ON THE PREMISES

To promote the safety of your customers whilst on the premises consider using
polycarbonate or toughened glass after a certain time or during a specific event.

Ensure that you promptly clear away any empty glasses or abandoned drinks from the bar,
tables or outside areas.

Did you know that licensed premises are regularly prosecuted for not having carried out
adequate fire risk assessments?

Under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 you must risk assess your premises.
Fire Safety Officers can offer advice to assist you with your assessment. For further
information please contact:

Avon Fire & Rescue Service

Temple Back

Bristol BS16EU

Telephone: 0117 9262061 or email: BathCFSEnquiries@avonfire.gov.uk

Do not carry out any irresponsible drinks promotions at or from your premises that
encourage people to drink more than they would ordinarily do or faster than they would
ordinarily do.

Maintain a documented accident record at your premises, detailing the date, time and
nature of any accident.

Have you given due consideration to capacity limits and do you have an evacuation policy
in respect of your premises? Have your colleagues received training in respect of this?

Page 194



Annex B- Code of Best Practice for Licensed Premises

PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM

Everyone involved in the licensing process has a duty to
protect children from moral, psychological and physical

harm.

Age related products

Always provide training for staff in relation to the sale of alcohol/ age related products.
Update training on a regular basis to ensure they are aware and understand the
implications of any changes in the legislation. You may find it beneficial to keep a record of
training given especially if your premises has a high turnover of staff or operates on a
seasonal basis.

For information relating to the illegal tobacco campaign visit www.stop-illegal-tobacco.co.uk

Be aware that Test Purchase operations are actively carried out within the Authority Area.
To report under-age sales please contact the Trading Standards Team.

Retailers may reserve the right to refuse to sell alcohol to an adult accompanied by a child,
if they believe the alcohol is being purchased for the child.

As it is a mandatory condition for all premises selling or supplying alcohol to have an age
verification policy in place, why not protect yourself and your staff by adopting one of the
following schemes?

Challenge 21

Awareness of the need for those involved in selling alcohol to be vigilant in preventing
underage sales continues to be raised by The British Beer & Pub Association’s “Challenge
21” scheme. The scheme is a reminder to customers that it is illegal to purchase alcohol if
you are under 18 years of age, or to purchase alcohol on behalf of anyone else who is
under 18 years of age.

If you choose to adopt this scheme, challenge any person who appears to be under 21
years of age and refuse to serve alcohol to them unless proof of age bearing the persons
photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark is produced.

Hard copies of the “Challenge 21” poster (recently updated to include military I.D.) may be
obtained from the BBPA'’s shop free of charge to members or downloaded for free from:

http://www.beerandpub.com/industry-briefings/challenge-21

Page 195



Annex B- Code of Best Practice for Licensed Premises

Challenge 25

The “Challenge 25” scheme builds on the Challenge 21 scheme introduced by the BBPA.
Anyone involved in selling alcohol to the public can access further information about the

scheme by accessing the Wine and Spirit Trade Association (WSTA) website at:
http://www.wsta.co.uk

As mentioned above, there is a mandatory condition requiring all premises who sell or
supply alcohol to have an age verification policy— What’s yours?

Did you know that although the holder of the premises licence or club premises
certificate has a responsibility in respect of adopting a policy at the premises, it is
the Designated Premises Supervisor who is responsible for ensuring that the supply
of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with that policy?

Do you need a little help drafting a policy? Just flick to the end of the Code — we've
attached a model policy that you can easily adapt to suit your needs.

Identification

All age verification policies must require individuals to produce on request identification
bearing their photograph, date of birth and either a holographic mark or ultra violet feature.
Did you know that the Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) was re-launched earlier
this year? The good news is that all future cards will be of a standard design so that they
are easier to recognise.

Other acceptable forms of identification are military passes, passports and the photo card

part of driving licences.

The False ID Guidance issued by the Home Office may be accessed from:

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/98108/false-id-

guidance.pdf

Consider subscribing to the “No proof of age- No sale” toolkit which is published by
SWERCOTS. This is a training resource and more information can be found at
http://swercots-partners.org.uk/npoans-demo

Page 196



Annex B- Code of Best Practice for Licensed Premises

Restricting Access

In the first instance the Ilegislation encourages family friendly premises, however,
depending on the nature of your premises it may be necessary to restrict children’s access
to certain areas or to restrict the times that children may remain on the premises.

You have a duty not only to protect children from the obvious harms associated with
alcohol, but also to protect them from wider harms associated with adult entertainment and
certain films.

Offences Relating to Children and Alcohol

Are you fully aware of the offences relating to children under the legislation?

Did you know that it is an offence:

>

>

>

Smoke Free

to knowingly allow unaccompanied children under the age of 16 on premises when
open and primarily used for the sale or supply of alcohol?

to sell alcohol to someone under 18 or supply alcohol to a club member or guest
under 187?

to sell or supply liquor confectionery to a person under 16 years of age?

for an adult to buy or attempt to buy alcohol on behalf of someone under 18 years of
age”?

for someone under 18 years of age to buy alcohol or attempt to buy alcohol?

for someone under 18 to consume alcohol in a licensed premises except where the

child is 16 or 17 years of age, accompanied by an adult, is having a table meal and
beer wine or cider is purchased by the adult?

to knowingly allow the consumption of alcohol by a person under 18 on premises
authorised by a premises licence, club premises certificate or temporary event
notice excepting the above?

for an adult to purchase alcohol for someone under 18 to consume on licensed
premises excepting the above re 16 and 17 year olds?

to give children alcohol if they are under 5 years of age?

Actively supervise customers smoking outside of the premises or in any outside areas —
remember they may not be aware of conditions that may be attached to your authorisation
restricting the use of certain outside areas.

Remember it is against the law to sell tobacco products from a vending machine directly to
the public, and that it is also illegal to display pictures or advertisements of tobacco
products on vending machines.

Page 197



Annex B- Code of Best Practice for Licensed Premises

OTHER MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION

Have you considered any ancillary permissions or guidelines that may be relevant to your
business or client such as those relating to planning, street trading, the placing of tables and
chairs on the highway or the use of “A” Boards?

Information regarding all of the above may be accessed via our website at www.bathnes.gov.uk .

Other useful contacts are:

www.drinkaware.co.uk

DHI (Developing Health and Independence)
Tel: 01225 329 411 available from 10am -7pm

Email: info@dhibath.org.uk
Website: http://www.dhi-online.org. uk/

Licensing Team

Public Protection Service

Lewis House

Manvers Street

Bath BA1 1JG

Tel: 01225 477556

Email: licensing@bathnes.gov.uk

Model age verification policy to be attached

10
Page 198



Annex C

Impacts of the Night Time Economy in
Bath and North East Somerset — 2013 Profile

Introduction

The purpose of this report is to assess the effect of the Night Time Economy on the
area of Bath and North East Somerset in terms of crime and disorder and
environmental impacts, and how these may have changed overtime.

It will analyse the following:

e Crimedata - The extent and nature of crime and disorder in B&NES as a whole
and how this has changed over time in relation to the following:
- Numbers of incidents
- Gender of offenders
- Age of offenders
- Day of offences
- Time of offences
How the levels and nature of crime and disorder differs in the following areas within
B&NEs and how this has altered over time:
- Bath City Centre
Other significant wards within Bath
Keynsham
Midsomer Norton
- Radstock
The principal hotspots for night time economy related crimes in Bath City Centre.
e Drink driving offences - Number and nature of offences overtime
e Alcohol licence premises - Numbers and geographical distribution - wards
e Complaints recorded by the licensing team — Numbers and types
¢ Noise complaints made to the Council:
- Type
- How they were received
- Geographical distribution — wards
- When - months complaints were made
- Trends overtime
e Street Marshal Records:
- Numbers of incidents
Locations of incidents in terms of taxi ranks
- Day of incidents
Type of incidents
Trends overtime
¢ Results from recent Voicebox Residents Surveys:
- Bath City Centre at Night
- Drunk and Rowdy Behaviour
- Purple Flag Award

Data Sources

e Police Aspire Crime database, Bath and North East Somerset Recorded
Crime January 2008 —February 2013
e Bath Police Station B&NES drink driving data —2010/11 —2012/13

1
Page 199



Annex C

e Council’s Licensing Team Uniform database, details of licensing activities -
current licenses and complaints data 2010 — 2013

e Public Protection Team Service Requests - reported noise complaints,
2006-October 2013

¢ Monitoring data — Bath BID Street Marshals and Medics Weekly report data
August 2012-July 2013

e The Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents Water Safety Review,
River Avon Bath —2008-2011

e Marketing Means Voicebox 15 Resident Survey Weighted Headlines — March
2009 — June 2009

¢ Wyman Dillon Voicebox 17 Resident Survey Weighted Headline Results —
March 2010 — May 2010

e RMG Clarity Voicebox 21 Resident Survey Reports — November 2012 —
January 2013

e Marketing Means Voicebox 22 Resident Survey, Results weighted by age
and gender — November 2013 — January 2014

Night Time Economy Related Crime and Disorder Definition

Offences of violent crime and criminal damage occurring between the hours of 20:00
and 04:00 taking place outside of the home not otherwise defined as domestic
violence or hate crime.

This definition is designed purely to assess levels of offending within the public realm
where alcohol can be deemed likely to have been a contributing factor with a
moderate degree of statistical certainty.

Crimes Linked to the Night Time Economy '

Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am)
in Bath and North East Somerset
(2008- Feb2013)

12000
10000 -
8000 -
6000 -

4000 -

Number of recorded incidents

2000 +

Criminal Damage (General) Violence Against the Person Grand Total (both offence types)

Offence type

Figure 1: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm -4am) in B&NES
(2008-Febuary 2013)

In Bath and North East Somerset, between 2008 and February 2013 the police
recorded 11,490 crimes (criminal damage and violence against the person) linked to
the Night Time Economy (8p-4am), 54% (6,184 incidents) of which were violence
against the person incidents and 46% (5,306 incidents) of which were criminal
damage incidents.

2
Page 200



Annex C

Trends over time

There has been a 26% reduction in the number of crimes linked to the Night Time
Economy in Bath and North East Somerset over the 5 year period between the year
Quarter 4 of 2007/08 - Q3 2008/09, with a total of 2,504 crimes, and the year Quarter
4 2011/12 - Q3 2012/13, with a total of 1,841 crimes.

There was a 14% reduction in the number of crimes linked to the Night Time
Economy in B&NES between the year Quarter 4 of 2010/11 - Q3 2011/12,with a total
of 2,153, and the year Quarter 4 2011/12 - Q3 2012/13, with a total of 1,841 crimes.

Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am)
in Bath and North East Somerset
(financial quarters 2008-2013)
800

700

600

500

ol

~—

400

300

Number of incidents

——Crime incidents (violence against
the person crimes and criminal
damage)

200
== Standard Deviation

100
—— Trend line

0
Q4 | @1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 @3 Q4 Qo1 Q@2 Q@3 04 @ Q@2 @ Q4 @1 Q2 @3

2007/8 2008/9 2009/10 201011 201112 2012113

Figure 2: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in B&NES
(financial quarters 2008-2013)

More work is needed to assess the reasons for this decline. This decrease is likely to
be caused by a range of factors. Work will also be done to assess whether this
reduction is in any way linked to interventions that have been put in place locally.

Gender of offenders

On average, over the 5 year period between the year Quarter 4 of 2007/08 and Q3
2012/13 where the gender of the offenders of crimes linked to the Night Time
Economy in B&NES was known and recorded, 80% of the crimes were recorded as
being perpetrated by male offenders, and 20% by female offenders.

The recorded gender makeup of offenders during this period has altered slightly, with
the proportion of male offenders compared to female offenders increasing from an
average of 74% in the year Q4 of 2007/08-Q3 2008/09 to 84% during the year Q4
2011/12 - Q3 2012/13.

The number of crimes which had been recorded as being perpetrated by male
offenders increased by 10% between Q4 of 2007/08 - Q3 2008/09 (713 crimes), and
the year Q4 2011/12 - Q3 2012/13 (787 crimes).

3
Page 201



Crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm - 4am) - Bath and North
An r East Somerset (financial quarters) - Recorded gender of offenders

550 -
500 -
450 -
400 -
350 |
300 |
250 | I~ —_— /\//\.—-—\
200 | \//
150 - 7 \/

100 -

at|a2 a3las|at 2|3 as|ar a2 a3las a1 a2 a3

L

Number of incidents

0
Q4 Q1‘Q2|Q3‘Q4
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 201112 2012/13
——Females ——Males Unknown or not recorded —— Trend Line - Females —— Trend Line - Males

Figure 3: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in B&NES
(financial quarters - 2008 to 2013) — Recorded gender of offenders

However, there has been a 21% reduction in the number of crimes recorded to have
been perpetrated by men between the year Q4 of 2010/11 - Q3 2011/12 (990
crimes), and the year Q4 2011/12 - Q3 2012/13 (787 crimes).

In comparison, the number of crimes which had been recorded as being perpetrated
by female offenders decreased by 34% between Q4 of 2007/08 - Q3 2008/09 (234
crimes), and the year Q4 2011/12 - Q3 2012/13 (155 crimes).

It is though important to note that during the 5 year period on average each year the
gender of the offender was unknown or not recorded for 51% of the crimes linked to
the Night Time Economy in B&NES.

Age of offenders

The first year Quarter 4 2007/08 -Q3 2008/09 has not been included in terms of the
analysis of the age of offenders because 90% of the crimes during this year had no
age recorded, compared to the 46-52% for the other four years.

On average, over the 4 year period between the Q4 of 2008/09 and Q3 2012/13,
where the age of offenders of crimes linked to the Night Time Economy in B&NES
was recorded:

60% of the crimes were recorded as perpetrated by offenders aged 16-27
18% by those aged 28-39

13% by those aged 40-51

5% by those under 16

3% by those aged 52-63

1% by those aged 64-75

and less than 1% of crimes were perpetrated by those aged 76 and over.

The recorded age makeup of offenders during this period did not alter a great deal.

4
Page 202



Crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) - Bath and North East
A n n e Somerset (financial quarters)- Recorded age of offenders

£ 1% ——Under 16

—18-27

—28-39
E 100 —40-51
i 80 —52-63

60 6475

0 —— ——
Q4 | Q1 | Q2 | Q@3 Q4 Q1 Q2| Q@3 | Q4 Q1 | Q2| Q3 Q4 Q1| Q2| Q3
2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 201112 2012113

Figure 4: Recorded Crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in B&NES
(financial 2009 to 2013) — Recorded age of offenders

Offenders aged 16-27 was the only age category with any real notable change during
this period, decreasing by 21% between Quarter 4 of 2008/09 - Q3 2009/10 (179
crimes), and the year Q4 2011/12 - Q3 2012/13 (141 crimes).

Day of offences

In terms of the daily distribution of crimes linked to the Night Time Economy in
B&NES over the 5 year period between the year Quarter 4 of 2007/08 and Q3
2012/13:
e An average of 24% were recorded as having occurred on a Saturday
An average of 20% on a Friday
19% on a Sunday.
10% on both Tuesdays and Thursdays,
9% on Wednesdays and 8% on Mondays.

This recorded daily distribution of crimes altered very little during this five year period.

Crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) - Bath and North East Somerset

600 (financial quarters) - Recorded day of offence

= Monday

® Tuesday

= Wednesday
u Thursday

u Friday

» Saturday

Number of incidents

u Sunday

Q4 2007/08 - Q3 2008/09 | Q4 2008/09 - Q3 2009/10 | Q4 2009/10- Q3 2010/11 | Q4 2010/11 - Q3 2011/12 | Q4 2011/12 - Q3 2012/13

Figure 5: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in B&NES
(financial quarters 2008 to 2013) — Recorded day of offences

It is important to note that though there is a surprisingly high number of night time
economy related crimes occurring on a Sunday, a considerable proportion of these
will be linked to the Saturday night time economy, as 65% of the crimes recorded as

5
Page 203



Annex C

occurring on Sunday occurred between midnight and 2:59am, 48% occurred
between midnight and 1:59am, and 29% between midnight and 12:59pm.

Between Year 1 and Year 5, all days of the week have experienced a decrease in the
numbers of crimes, with the greatest decline occurring on a Friday with a 37%
reduction from 545 in Year 1 to 346 in Year 5, followed by Thursday, with a reduction
of 31% from 245 crimes in Year 1to 170 in Year 5. There was a 26% reduction in the
number of crimes occurring on a Saturday, from 555 in Year 1 and 412 in Year 5.

Time of offences

By far the greatest proportion of crimes linked to the Night Time Economy in B&NE S
over the 5 year period Q4 of 2007/08 and Q3 2012/13, were recorded as having
occurred between 00:00 (12pm) and 00:59, with an average of 30% of crimes,
followed by 23:00-23:59 and 22:00-22:59, both with an average of 12%. This means
that during this period 54% of the crimes linked to the Night Time Economy were
recorded to have occurred between 22:00-00:59.

The only real notable change in the distribution of the recorded times of crimes
during this 5 year period was that of the proportion occurring between 00:00-00:59,
which increased from 25% in Year 1 (Q4 2007/08-Q3 2008/09), to 33% in Year 5 (Q4
2011/12-Q3 2012/13).

Crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) - Bath and North East Somerset
(financial quarters) - Recorded time of offence
750

700

650
600
550
500
450
400
350
300
250
200
150
i

s}

Q4 2007/08 - Q3 2008/09 Q4 2008/09 - Q3 2009/10 Q4 2009/10 -Q3.2010/11 | Q4 2010/11 -Q32011/12 Q4 201112 -Q3 2012113
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Figure 6: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in B&NES
(financial quarters 2008 - 2013) — Recorded day of offences

=20:00-20:59
=21:00-21:59
=22:00-22:59
=23:00-23:59
=00:00-00:59
=01:00-01:59
»02:00-02:59
=03:00-04:00

Number of incidents

8 8

Between Year 1 and Year 5, each hour except 03:00-04:00, experienced a decrease
in the numbers of crimes:
e 49% decline between 22:00-22:59, from 357 to 182
e 41% reduction between 21:00-21:59, from 282 to 167 and 23:00-23:59, from
360 to 213
e 38% decline between 20:00-20:59, from 270 to 168.

In comparison, there was only a 5% reduction in the number of crimes occurring
between 00:00-00:59, from 632 to 600, and the numbers of crimes recorded as
having occurred between 03:00-04:00 actually increased by 6%, from 116 to 123.

6
Page 204



Annex C

Bath City Centre

There has been a 25% reduction in the number of crimes linked to the NTE in Bath

city centre (Abbey and Kingsmead wards) over the 5 year period between the year
Q4 of 2007/08 - Q3 2008/09 (910 crimes), and the year Q4 2011/12 - Q3 2012/13
(679 crimes).

Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am)
in Bath city centre (Abbey and Kingsmead wards)
(financial quarters 2008-2013)
400
——Crime incidents (criminal damage and
violence against the person)

350
——Standard Deviation

——Trend line
300

250

Number of incidents
8

Q4 | Q1 Q2 Q3 o4 o™ Q2 Q3 Q4 a1 Q2 Q3 o4 @ 02 Q3 Q4 o Qz Q3
2007i08 2008/09 200910 201011 20112 201213

Figure 7: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in Bath
City Centre (financial quarters 2008 - 2013)

Other significant wards within Bath

Five other wards within Bath have also been identified as having experienced
comparatively high incidents of crimes linked to the NTE between 2008 and February
2013, Twerton, Southdown, Walcot, Widcombe, and Westmoreland.

There has been a 19% reduction in the number of crimes in these wards over the 5
year period between the year Q4 of 2007/08 - Q3 2008/09 (436 crimes), and the year
Q4 2011/12 - Q3 2012/13 (355 crimes).

Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am)
in other significant wards outside Bath city centre
(Twerton, Southdown, Walcot, Widcombe, Westmoreland wards)
140 (financial quarters 2008-2013)

120

Number of incidents

——Crime incidents (criminal damage and
violence against the person)

—— Standard Deviation

40
20 —— Trend line

o
04 | Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 04 |(Q1 Q2 Q@3 Q4 | Q1 Q2 Q3

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010111 201112 2012113

Figure 8: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in other
significant wards outside Bath City Centre (financial Quarters 2008 - 2013)

7
Page 205



Annex C

Keynsham

Keynsham (Keynsham North, Keynsham South, and Keynsham East wards) has
experienced a particularly sharp decline in crimes linked to the NTE; with a 45%
reduction over the 5 year period between the year Quarter 4 of 2007/08 - Q3 2008/09
(191 crimes), and the year Q4 2011/12 - Q3 2012/13 (106 crimes). Much of this
reduction has occurred during the most recent couple of years, between the year Q4
of 2010/11 - Q3 2011/12 (193 crimes), and the year Q4 2011/12 - Q3 2012/13 (106
crimes), there was a 45% reduction crimes.

Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am)
Keynsham (Keynsham North, Keynsham South and Keynsham East wards)
(financial quarters 2008-2013)
80

70

A A A .

——Crime incidents {criminal damage and \/
2 iolence against the person)

vi
—— Standard Dewiation

50

40

Number of incidents.

10 —— Standard Dewiation

Trend line

Q4 @1 G2 03 o4 | @1 02 QO3 o4 o1 Q2 Q3 04 (a1 Q@2 a3 04 | oY @2 a3
2007/08 2008/09 200910 2010011 20112 201213

Figure 9: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in
Keynsham (financial quarters 2008 - 2013)

Midsomer Norton

There has been a 37% reduction in the number of crimes linked to the NTE in
Midsomer Norton (Midsomer Norton North and Midsomer Norton Redfield wards)
over the 5 year period between the year Q4 of 2007/08 - Q3 2008/09 (156 crimes),
and the year Q4 2011/12 - Q3 2012/13 (99 crimes).

Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am)
Mi Norton (Mid: Norton North and Midsomer Norton Redfield wards)
(financial quarters 2008-2013)

80

———Crime incidents (criminal damage and

70 violence against the person)

—— Standard Deviation

60 —Standard Deviation

——Trend line
50

40

Number of incidents

30

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q@3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q@2 a3
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010111 201112 201213

Figure 10: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in
Midsomer Norton (financial quarters 2008 - 2013)

8
Page 206



Annex C

Radstock

Radstock (Radstock ward) like Keynsham has experienced a particularly sharp
decline in the number of crimes linked to the NTE; with a 48% reduction over the 5
year period between the year Q4 of 2007/08 - Q3 2008/09 (67 crimes), and the year
Quarter 4 2011/12 - Q3 2012/13 (35 crimes). Between the year Q4 of 2010/11 - Q3
2011/12 (55 crimes), and the year Q4 2011/12 - Q3 2012/13 (35 crimes), there was a
36% reduction in crimes.

Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am)
Radstock (financial quarters 2008-2013)

40

~—Crime incidents (criminal damage and violence
against the person)

~—=Standard Deviation

35

30 ~Standard Deviation

——Trend line

Number of incidents

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q@3 Q4 Q@ Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 @ Q3 04 Q1 Q2 a3
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 201011 201112 201213

Figure 11: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in
Radstock (financial quarters 2008 - 2013)

Make up of Night Time Economy Crimes
Bath City Centre

In Bath city centre (Abbey and Kingsmead wards), between 2008 and February 2013
the police recorded 4,302 crimes (criminal damage and violence against the person)
linked to the NTE (8p-4am), making up 64% of the all the recorded crimes linked to

the NTE in B&NES as a whole.

Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in Bath
4500 city centre (2008-Feb2013)

4000 -

3500 -

3000 -

2500 -

2000 +

Number of incidents

1500 -

1000 -

500 4

0 ,
ABBEY WARD KINGSMEAD WARD BATH CITY CENTRE (both wards)

m Criminal Damage (General)  mViolence Against the Person ~ mGrand Total (both offence types)

Figure 12: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in Bath
city centre (financial quarters 2008 - 2013)

9
Page 207



Annex C

The vast majority of these crimes, 75% (3,207 incidents) were violence against the
person incidents, compared to the 25% (1,095 incidents) of which were criminal
damage. This means that 52% of all the recorded violence against the person crimes

linked to the NTE in B&NES during this period occurred in Bath city centre, and 21%
of all the NTE related recorded criminal damage incidents.

Within Bath city centre, 84% (3,512 incidents) recorded crimes linked to the NTE
during this period occurred in Abbey ward, and 16% (790 incidents) recorded crimes
linked to the NTE occurred in Kingsmead ward.

Crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-dam) in Bath City Centre (Abbey and Kingsmead wards) 2008- Feb 2013

Mty o

Figure 13: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in Bath
city centre (2008 — February 2013) — Hotspot Analysis

Figure 14: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in Bath
city centre (November 2004 — October 2006) — Hotspot Analysis

10
Page 208



Annex C

Figures 13 and 14 show how the concentration of crimes linked to the NTE in Bath
City Centre has changed since the last hotspot analysis was carried out in 2006. The
hotspot areas continue to be within the city centre zone, and on the whole there has
not been a great deal of change in their location. There does however appear to be
fewer hotspots than before, but those that remain cover larger areas.

Other significant wards within Bath

Five other wards within Bath have also been identified as having experienced
comparatively high incidents of crimes linked to the NTE between 2008 and February
2013, Twerton, Southdown, Walcot, Widcombe, and Westmoreland. During this
period the police recorded 1,969 crimes (criminal damage and violence against the
person) linked to the NTE, making up 17% of the all the recorded crimes linked to the
NTE in B&NES as a whole.

Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in

other significant central wards (outside Bath city centre)
600 (2008-Feb2013)

360
320
280
240
200
160
120

80

40

0 -

TWERTON WARD SOUTHDOWN WARD  WALCOT WARD WIDCOMBE WARD  WESTMORELAND
WARD

Number of incidents

® Criminal Damage (General) ® Violent Against the Person ® Grand Total (both offence types)

Figure 15: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in other
significant wards outside Bath city centre (2008 — February 2013)

Unlike the wards that make up Bath city centre, over half of the NTE related crimes
occurring during this period in these five wards were incidents of criminal damage,
making up 59%, 1,162 of the recorded crimes, compared to the 41% (807 incidents)
of which were violence against the person crimes. This means that 13% of all the
recorded violence against the person crimes linked to the NTE in B&NES during this
period occurred in these five wards, and 22% of all the NTE related recorded criminal
damage incidents.

Out of these five wards:
e 29%, 575 recorded occurred in Twerton,
19%, 368 incidents in Southdown
18%, 358 crimes in Walcot,
17%, 337 incidents in Widcombe
and 17%, 331 crimes in Westmoreland

11
Page 209



Annex C

Keynsham

In Keynsham (made up of Keynsham North, Keynsham South and Keynsham East
wards), between 2008 and February 2013 the police recorded 886 crimes (criminal
damage and violence against the person) linked to the NTE, making up 8% of the all
the recorded crimes linked to the NTE in B&NES as a whole.

Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in
200 Keynsham (2008-Feb2013)

Number of incidents
s
g

.

KEYNSHAM NORTH WARD KEYNSHAM SOUTHWARD KEYNSHAM EAST WARD Keynsham total

= Criminal Damage (General) = Violence Against the Person ® Grand Total (of both crimes)

Figure 16: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in
Keynsham (2008 — February 2013)

58% of these recorded crimes, (518 crimes) were criminal damage incidents and
42% (368 crimes) were violence against the person crimes. This means that 6% of all
the recorded violence against the person crimes linked to the NTE in B&NES during
this period occurred in Keynsham, and 10% of all the NTE related recorded criminal
damage incidents.

Within Keynsham, 53%, 466 recorded crimes occurred in Keynsham North, and 31%,
271 incidents in Keynsham South, and 17%, 149 crimes in Keynsham East.

Midsomer Norton

In Midsomer Norton (made up of Midsomer Norton North and Midsomer Norton
Redfield wards), during this period the police recorded 697 crimes (criminal damage
and violence against the person) linked to the NTE, making up 6% of the all the
recorded crimes linked to the NTE in B&NES as a whole.

Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in
700 Midsomer Norton (2008-Feb2013)

650
600
550
500
450
400
350

200
150
100
50
g+

MIDSOMER NORTON NORTH WARD ~ MIDSOMER NORTON REDFIELD Midsomer Norten total
WARD

Number of incidents

= Criminal Damage (General) = Viclence Against the Person ® Grand Total (of both crimes)

Figure 17: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in
Midsomer Norton (2008 — February 2013)

12
Page 210



Annex C

54% of these recorded crimes, (377 crimes) were violence against the person
incidents and 46% (320 crimes) were criminal damage incidents. This means that 6%
of all the recorded violence against the person crimes linked to the NTE in B&NES
during this period occurred in Midsomer Norton, and 6% of all the NTE related
recorded criminal damage incidents.

Within Midsomer Norton, 70% (485 incidents) of recorded crimes linked to the NTE
during this period occurred in Midsomer Norton North, and 30% (212 incidents), in
Midsomer Norton Redfield.

Radstock

In Radstock, only made up of the Radstock ward, between 2008 and February 2013
the police recorded 278 crimes (criminal damage and violence against the person)
linked to the NTE, making up 2% of the all the recorded crimes linked to the NTE in
B&NES.

54%  of these recorded crimes, (150 crimes) were criminal damage incidents and
46% (128 crimes) were violence against the person incidents. This means that 3% of
all the recorded criminal damage crimes linked to the NTE in B&NES during this
period occurred in Radstock, and 2% of all the NTE related violence against the
person incidents.

Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in Keynsham,
Midsomer Norton and Radstock (2008-Feb2013)

Number of incidents
o
8

RADSTOCK WARD

Midsomer Norton total

Keynsham total

= Criminal Damage (General) ®Vidlence Against the Person mGrand Total (of both crimes)

Figure 18: Recorded crimes linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm-4am) in
Radstock, Keynsham and Midsomer Norton (2008 — February 2013)
Drink Driving Offences®

The table below outlines the numbers of arrests coming through B&NES custody for
offences linked to drink driving for the 3 year period 2010/11 to 2012/13.

Arrest Reason 2010/11 201112 2012/13
In charge of motor vehicle - excess alcohol 21 6 16
Positive Breath Test 148 162 121
Refused Breath Test 8 4 5
Grand Total 177 172 142

Table 1: Numbers of arrests coming through B&NES custody for offences linked to

drink driving for the 3 year period 2010/11 to 2012/13

13
Page 211




Annex C

The table indicates that on the whole the numbers of drink driving offences reduced
in this three year period, with slight variations across offence types. It is important to
note that the refused breath test arrests do not necessarily result in a positive breath
test.

The other offence types that could be attributed to drink driving are:
e Unfit through drink or drugs
e Death by careless driving under the influence of alcohol

No arrests were found for the above offence types but it is important to bear in mind
that the data search was for the primary reason for arrest, and thus these may have
been given as secondary reasons for some offenders.

The police have an initiative called operation Tonic to tackle drink driving and their
media campaigns normally occur in July and December.

Premises with Alcohol Licenses®
In June 2013 there were 724 premises with alcohol licenses in B&NES, 56% (405
premises) have late night opening times after 11pm, and 7%, 51 premises are

open after 1am.

Distribution of these 724 premises with alcohol licenses:

Number of premises

Study areas and wards with alcohol licenses % of B&NES
Bath City Centre 262 36%
Abbey 218 30%
Kingsmead 44 6%
Other significant wards within Bath 68 9%
Twerton 10 1%
Southdown 7 1%
Walcot 13 2%
Widcombe 25 3%
Westmoreland 13 2%
Keynsham 33 5%
Keynsham East 14 2%
Keynsham North 11 2%
Keynsham South 8 1%
Midsomer Norton 27 4%
Midsomer Norton North 20 3%
Midsomer Norton Redfield 7 1%
Radstock 14 2%

Table 2: Distribution of the 724 premises with alcohol licenses in B&NES in June
2013, by ward.

14
Page 212




Annex C

Licensed premises with late night opening:

% of the 405

Numbers of % of the 724  premises open
premises open | premises after 11pm in
Study areas and wards after 11pm B&NES B&NES
Bath City Centre 176 24% 43%
Abbey 143 20% 35%
Kingsmead 33 5% 8%
Other significant wards within Bath 25 3% 6%
Twerton 4 1% 1%
Southdown 0 0% 0%
Walcot 6 1% 1%
Widcombe 15 2% 4%
Westmoreland 8 1% 2%
Keynsham 18 2% 4%
Keynsham East 7 1% 2%
Keynsham North 6 1% 1%
Keynsham South 5 1% 1%
Midsomer Norton 14 2% 3%
Midsomer Norton North 12 2% 3%
Midsomer Norton Redfield 2 0% 0%
Radstock 8 1% 2%
Not Known 25 3% 6%

Total for B&NES

405

56%

100%

Table 3: Distribution of the premises with alcohol licenses that can stay open after

11pm in B&NES in June 2013, by ward.
Numbers of
premises

% of all
724

% of the 405
premises open

% of the 51
premises open
after 1am in

Study areas and wards

open after

premises

in B&NES

after 11pm in
B&NES

B&NES

Bath City Centre 4% 8%
Abbey 30 4% 7% 59%
Kingsmead 2 0% 0% 4%
Other significant wards within Bath 5 1% 1% 10%
Twerton 0 0% 0% 0%
Southdown 0 0% 0% 0%
Walcot 1 0% 0% 2%
Widcombe 4 1% 1% 8%
Westmoreland 0 0% 0% 0%
Keynsham 1 0% 0% 2%
Keynsham East 0 0% 0% 0%
Keynsham North 1 0% 0% 2%
Keynsham South 0 0% 0% 0%
Midsomer Norton 0 0% 0% 0%
Midsomer Norton North 0 0% 0% 0%
Midsomer Norton Redfield 0 0% 0% 0%
Radstock 1 0% 0% 2%
Not Known 0 0% 0% 0%
Total for B&NES 51 7% 13% 100%

Table 4: Distribution of the premises with alcohol licenses that can stay open after
1am in B&NES in June 2013, by ward.

15
Page 213




Annex C

Complaints to the Council’s Licensing Team *

Between 2010 and 2013 the Licensing Team in the Council recorded 52
complaint incidents relating to the impacts of premises serving alcohol in B&NES.
These were made up of 63 individual complaints:
e 56% (35 complaints) of these related to noise pollution, either relating to
people (24%) or music (32%).
o 8% (5 complaints) were relating to other perceived incidents of crime and
disorder and antisocial behaviour, including aggressive and violent
behaviour.
e 6% of complaints were related to underage sales
e 5% of complaints were related to irresponsible drinks promotions
o 5% were related to breech of opening times.

Noise complaints made to the Council’s Public Protection Team”®

Between January 2006 and October 2013 there were 7,960 complaints made to the
Council’s Public Protection Team regarding noise.

Types of complaint

During this period:
e 65%, 5,209 complaints were made about noise coming from a domestic
dwelling
e 19%, 1,477 complaints made about noise from premises of entertainment or
with alcohol licenses, such as pubs and clubs
e 14%, 1,086 complaints were about noise coming from the street (inc.
buskers)

o 2%, 188 complaints were regarding students in domestic dwellings
Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team (January 2006-October 2013) - By type

Noise - Domestic (Students) 188

Noise - Street (inc. buskers)

Noise - Entertainment/licensed
premises (pubs, clubs, etc.)

Noise - Domestic

o] 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000 4500 5000 5500

Number of complaints

Figure 19: Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team in B&NES (January
2006-October 2013) — By type

How complaints were received

Between January 2006 and October 2013:
e 39.8%, 3167 noise complaints were received by telephone
e 36.7%, 2921 noise complaints were received by the Emergency/Out of Hours
Service.

16
Page 214



Annex C

e 10.3%, 822 complaints were received by email
o 4.9%, 387 complaints were received by letter
e 1.2%, 95 complaints were made at the Council’s reception

The following methods each made up less than 1% of the ways in which people
made noise complaints to the council during this period, via an officer/member of
staff, memorandum, on site, council connect, facsimile, petition, Councillor, personal
visit, and referrals from others.

Wards of addresses being complained about

During the period between January 2006 and October 2013, the locations that noise
complaints were made about came from 36 wards:
e Abbey ward had the greatest number of locations with 1027 complaints,
making up 13% of all complaints,
o followed by Kingsmead with 471, 6%,
e Walcot with 362, 5%,
e and Twerton with 335, 4%.

The complaints directed at each of the remaining wards made up 3% or less for each
ward. It is though worth noting that no postcode was recorded for 22% of complaints
(1767) and so we are not able to identify these wards.

Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team (January 2006 -October 2013) -
By ward of location being complained about

Chew Valley South
Publow and Whitchurch
Farmborough
Bathavon South
Mendip

Clutton

Chew Valley North
Bathwick

High Littleton
Timsbury

Saltford

Bathavon West
Keynsham East
Lyncombe
Peasedown
Westfield
Midsomer Norton Redfield
Lambridge

Weston
Newbridge
Bathavon North
Paulton

Midsomer Norton North
Southdown

Odd Down
Keynsham North
Combe Down
Lansdown
Widcombe
Westmoreland
Keynsham South
Radstock

Oldfield

Twerton

Walcot

Kingsmead

Abbey

t t t
500 580 600

Number of complaints

t t t t t t t t
650 700 750 800 850 900 950 1000

Figure 20: Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team in B&NES (January
2006-October 2013) — By ward of location being complained about

17
Page 215

1050



Annex C

Unsurprisingly, because Abbey is in Bath city centre the greatest proportion of
complaints were made about entertainment premises such as pubs and clubs (47%),
followed by domestic dwellings (37%), a significant proportion was also made about
noise on the street (15%).

In contrast, in terms of the types of complaints made about locations in the other
three wards that had the most recorded noise complaints made about them,
complaints about domestic dwellings made up the greatest proportion of complaints:

e Kingsmead, 73%

e Walcot, 86%

e and Twerton, 91%

This is followed by complaints made about entertainment premises such as pubs and
Clubs:

e Kingsmead, 20%

e Walcot, 10%

e Twerton, 7%

Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team (January 2006-October 2013) - about
locations in Abbey, Kingsmead, Walcot and Twerton wards - By type of complaint

2%

1%

100%

90% -

80% -

70% -

60% -

50% -

40% -

30% -

20% -

10%

0% -
Abbey Kingsmead Walcot Twerton

HNoise - Domestic ®Noise - Domestic (Students) = Noise - Entertainment (pubs, clubs, etc) ®Noise - Street (inc. buskers)

Figure 21: Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team in B&NES (January
2006-October 2013) — about locations in Abbey, Kingsmead, Walcot and Twerton
wards — By type of complaint

Wards of complainant addresses

During the period between January 2006 and October 2013, noise complainants
came from 36 recorded wards. The wards of complainant that made the greatest
number of complaints were:

Abbey with 1177 complaints, making up 15% of all complaints,

followed by Kingsmead with 497, 6%,

Walcot with 365, 5%,

Twerton with 343, 4%,

and Oldfield with 292, 4%.

The remaining recorded wards of complainants each made up 3% or less of
complaints. It is though worth noting that no postcode was recorded for 15% of
complaints (1767) and so we are not able to identify these wards.

18
Page 216



Annex C

The distribution of ward of complainant is very similar to that of the locations that
noise complaints were made about, thus indicating that most complainants made
noise complaints about locations within their wards of residence, this reflects the fact

that a considerable proportion of complaints were made about noise from domestic
dwellings.

Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team (January 2006-October 2013) -
By ward of complainant

Chew Valley South jmmm
Farmborough

Publow and., s
Clutton
Mendip j—
Timsbury —
High Littleton
Bathavon South  m—
Chew Valley North
Bathwick
Saltford  —
Bathavon West
Keynsham East s
Peasedown I
Lyncombe
Westfield
Bathavon North —
Midsomer Norton..
Lambridge
Newbridge
Paulton
Midsomer Norton. —
Weston
Qdd Down
Southdown
Keynsham North
Lansdown
Combe Down
Widcombe
Keynsham South
Westmoreland
Radstock
Oldfield
Twerton

Walcot
Kingsmead
Abbey

|

i

immuuu

o

100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 200 1000
Number of complaints

1100

Figure 22: Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team in B&NES (January
2006-October 2013) — By ward of complainant

Again unsurprisingly in Abbey the greatest proportion of complaints were made about
entertainment premises such as pubs and clubs (34%), very closely followed by
domestic dwellings (33%), and noise on the street (33%).

In terms of the types of complaints from the other wards of complainant address from

which the greatest number of noise complaints came from, domestic dwellings made
up the greatest proportion of the complaints:

e Kingsmead, 71%
e Walcot, 84%
e Twerton, 92%

These were followed by complaints made about entertainment premises such as
pubs and clubs:

e 18% in Kingsmead,
e 10% in Walcot,
e 5% in Twerton
e and 8% in Oldfield.

19
Page 217

1200



Annex C

Complaints by month

During the seven year period between 2006 and 2012, the months when the Public
Protection Team received the highest number of noise complaints were the summer
months of June with 779, July with 800 and August with 794, each accounting for
11% of all complaints. These months were followed by those of spring and autumn,
with the lowest number of complaints in the winter months January, February,
November and December, each with fewer than 500 complaints, and each, making
up between 7-5% of all complaints

%00 Noise complaints to the Public Protection Team (2006-2012) - By month

800 -
700 -
600 -
500 -
400 -
300 -
200 -

Number of complaints

100 +
0,

& & & R ) & ) & & & & &

& 3 o & S D 5 S & N
& & ¥ 3 ¥ & & & &
3 < R P

Figure 23: Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team in B&NES (2006-
2012) — By month

Trends overtime

Between January 2006 and October 2013, the average number of noise complaints
each month decreased by 13%, from an average of 90 complaints a month in 2006,
to an average of 78 per month in 2013. This decline though maybe linked to the
changes in recording practices that occurred during this period.

The number of complaints in 2006 was 1,076, compared to 867 in 2012 (2013 is an
incomplete year), this represents a 19% decline in the number of complaints. The
numbers of complaints remained above 1,000 per year until 2011, and since then
they continued to stay below 868 per year.

Noise complaints to the Public Protection Team

- (January 2006-October 2013) - By year

1000 -
800 -

600 -

Number of complaints

400 -

200 -

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Year (Jan-Oct)

Figure 24: Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team in B&NES (January
2006-October 2013) — By year

20
Page 218



Annex C

Trends overtime —Types of complaints

During the period January 2006 to October 2013, noise complaints about domestic
dwellings continued to makeup the greatest proportion of complaints. Apart from a
marked reduction in the proportion of complaints these make up in 2013 to 49%,
between 2006-2012 they made up 61%-71% of the complaints. However, the overall
numbers of noise complaints about domestic dwellings between 2006 and 2012
(2013 is an incomplete year) decreased, in 2006 it was 732, compared to 529 in
2012, this represents a 28% decline in the number of complaints.

Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team (January 2006-Oct2013) - Each year by type
900

Number of complaints
w B 00 @ =N o
8 8 8 8 8 8

)
3

\/\/

- —

20086 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 2012 2013 (Jan-Oct)

g

o

——Noise - Domestic ~—— Noise - Domestic (Students) Noise - Entertainment (pubs, clubs, etc) ——Noise - Street (inc. buskers)

Figure 25: Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team in B&NES (January
2006-October 2013) — Each year by type

Throughout this period noise complaints about places of entertainment such as pubs
and clubs made up the second greatest proportion of complaints (jointly second with
complaints about street noise in 2013). Numbers of these complaints remained fairly
stable during these years, fluctuating between the greatest number in 2007 with 236
complaints, and the lowest number in 2012 with 115 complaints. These complaints
made up the greatest proportion in 2012 with 25%, and the lowest proportion in 2010
and 2011 with 14%.

These complaints are closely followed by the numbers of complaints about street
noise, which also remained fairly stable, fluctuating between the highest number in
2008 with 196 compilaints and the lowest number in 2012 with 66 complaints. These
complaints made up the greatest proportion in 2013 with 23%, and the lowest
proportion in 2012 with 8%.

Lastly, complaints about noise from students does not seem to have been recorded
as a separate category until 2009, whereby it only made up 1% of the complaints
with 14, numbers of these complaints after an initial rise to 43 in 2010, have
remained between 52 and 36, 6-4%.

Trends overtime — How complaints were received

Throughout the period January 2006 to October 2013, the greatest proportion of
noise complaints were received via telephone and/ or through the Emergency/Out of
Hours Service. The proportion of complaints received via telephone remained
between 40-44% from 2006 to 2011, however since then the proportion has declined
to 27% in 2012, and 31% in 2013. This reflects a reduction in the numbers of

21
Page 219



Annex C

complaints received by phone which have decreased by 51% from 477 in 2006 to
232 in 2012 (2013 is an incomplete year).

The proportion of complaints received by the Emergency/Out of Hours Service
remained between 33-43% from 2006 to 2012, however in 2013 this proportion has
declined to 29%. This reflects a distinct 38% reduction in the numbers of complaints
received by the Out of Hours Service between the peak in 2009 with 511 complaints,
to 315 complaints in 2012.

Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team (January 2006 -October 2013) -
Each year by how they were received

550

i N
12
.E 450 /\/ \
‘—;_ 400 / \ \
E 150 NN
Q
% 300 V\A\
& 2890 N~—
5
3 200
10 P
100
50 /
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 (Jan-Oct)
——Telephone ——Emergency/Out of Hours ——Electronic Mail

—Not recorded = Letter —Reception
Officer/Member of staff

Figure 26: Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team in B&NES (January
2006-October 2013) — Each year by how they were received

The proportion of complaints received via email has increased from between 7-9% in
2006-2009, and to 12-15% in 2010-2013. This reflects a rise in the numbers of
complaints received by email which have increased by 71% from 75 in 2006 to 128 in
2012.

In comparison, the proportion of complaints received via letter has decreased from
between 10-11% in 2006-2007, to 5-1% in 2008-2013. This reflects a decline in the
numbers of complaints received by letter which have decreased by 89% from 117 in
2006 to 13 in 2012. All the other methods of communication made up 2% or less
during this period.

Lastly, it is worth noting that the proportion and number of complaints where no
method of complaint has been recorded increased considerably from 51 in 2011 (6%)
to 130 in 2012 (15%), and has remind high in 2013 with 174 complaints, making up
22%.

Trends overtime - Wards of addresses being complained about

Throughout the period 2006 to 2012 the greatest number of noise complaints were
about locations in Abbey, these peaked in 2009 with 179, making up 16% of all
complaints, and the lowest number of these were in 2007 with 105, 9%.

The wards with the second, third and fourth greatest number of noise complaints
made about them, Kingsmead, Walcot and Twerton fluctuated with similar numbers,
between 72-19 complaints, making up between 7%-2% each. On average,
Kingsmead had the greatest number of complaints each year with 59, followed by
Walcot with 45, and Twerton with 42.

22
Page 220



An Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team (January 2006-October 2013) -

- Each year by ward of location being complained about

160
140
120
100 +

80 |

80
40
20

0

2008 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 (Jan-Oct)

Numbers of complaints

——Abbey ~———Kingsmead Walcot ——Twerton

Figure 27: Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team in B&NES (January
2006-October 2013) — Each year by ward of location being complained about

Trends overtime - Wards of complainant addresses

Throughout the period 2006 to 2012 the greatest number of noise complaints came
from complainants in Abbey, these peaked in 2009 with 203, making up 17% of all
complaints, and the lowest number of these were in 2006 with 115, 11%. However,
the numbers and proportion have increased since then, with 159 (20%) complaints
being made from complainants from Abbey even in the incomplete year of January to
October 2013.

During this period the wards with the second, third, fourth and fifth greatest number
of noise complaints made about them, Kingsmead, Walcot, Twerton and Oldfield
fluctuated with similar numbers, between 73-19 complaints, making up between 8%-
2% each. On average, Kingsmead had the greatest number of complaints each year
with 62, followed by Walcot with 46, Twerton with 43, and Oldfield with 37.

Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team (January 2006-October 2013)
- Each year by ward of complainant address

220

180 \

160 / \

o / \ /
120 / \ //

100
80

Number of complaints

20

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 (Jan-Oct)
——Abbey ——Kingsmead Walcot ——Twerton ——Oldfield

Figure 28: Noise complaints made to the Public Protection Team in B&NES (January
2006-October 2013) — Each year by ward of complainant address

Records from the Street Marshals and Medics in Bath ©

There are three groups of Street Marshals and Medics working in the evenings in
Bath, those patrolling the city centre, and those located at the Kingsmead and
Orange Grove Taxi Ranks. Apart from two weeks in December 2012 when the
Marshals and Medics worked an extra evening on the Monday patrolling Bath city
centre and at the Orange Grove Taxi Rank, during the year August 2012 to July 2013

23
Page 221



Annex C

they worked on Fridays and Saturdays at these two sites, and in addition at Orange
Grove Taxi Rank, on Thursdays as well. There are only records of the Street
Marshals and Medics working on Fridays and Saturday evenings at the Kingsmead
Taxi Rank for four months in 2012, August to November.

Number of incidents recorded by Street Marshals and Medics in Bath
August 2012-July 2013 - Location of incident

Orange Grove Taxi Rank

Kingsmead Taxi Rank

City Centre (Patrolling Marshals &
Medics)

6 1 60 260 3(IJO 460 560 660
Number of incidents
Figure 29: Numbers of incidents recorded by Street Marshals and Medics in Bath
(August 2012-July 2013) — By location of incident

Marshals and the hours they worked

During this year each night there was an average of 4 Marshals/Medics patrolling the
City Centre, working on average 18 hours a night. Each night there was also on
average of 2 Marshals/Medics working at the Orange Grove Taxi Rank, an average
of 9 hours, and for each night during the four month period 2 Marshals/Medics
worked at the Kingsmead Taxi Rank for 8 hours each night.

Incidents

On these evenings during this year the Street Marshals and Medics in Bath, recorded
970 incidents. This is an average of 19 incidents recorded on these days each week
during this period. These incidents either relate to accidents or anti-social and/or
criminal behaviour and were distributed accordingly:
e Marshals and Medics patrolling Bath city centre, 60%, 590 incidents (an
average of 11 each week)
e Orange Grove Taxi Ran, 34%, 331 incidents (an average of 6 each week)
e Kingsmead Taxi Rank, 5%, 49 recorded incidents (an average of less than 5
incidents each week during the four month period).

For the nights patrolled by the Marshals and Medics during this year 82,303 people
used the Orange Grove Taxi Rank (an average of 1,583 people for the three days),
which meant only 0.4% of users were recorded to have caused or experienced an
incident.

For the four months August to November 2012 for the two nights a week patrolled by
the Marshals and Medics, 6,244 people were recorded to have used the Kingsmead
Taxi Rank (an average of 120 people for the two days), which meant only 0.8% of
users were recorded to have caused or experienced an incident.

24
Page 222



Annex C

Days incidents occurred

Out of the 854 incidents recorded by the Street Marshals and Medics during the year
August 2012 to July 2013 at all three sites on a Friday and Saturday, 507 occurred
on a Saturday, 59%, and 347 on a Friday, 41%. These are broken down by location
in the graph below.

Numbers of incidents recorded by Street Marshals and Street
Medics in Bath (August 2012-July 2013) - By location and day
350

300
250 -

200 -

mFri
m Sat

150 -

100 -

50 -

City Centre (Patrolling Orange Grove Taxi Rank Kingsmead Taxi Rank -
Marshals & Medics) August to November 2012

Figure 30: Numbers of incidents recorded by Street Marshals and Medics in Bath
(August 2012-July 2013) — By location and day

During this period:
¢ 93 incidents were also recorded as occurringon a Thursday at the Orange
Grove Taxi Rank,
e 18 were recorded by the City Centre patrols on the two Mondays in
December (24" and 31° December)
¢ 5Sincidents were recorded on the same two Mondays at the Orange Grove
Taxi Rank.

Type of incidents

According to the Street Marshals and Medics, out of the 907 incidents they recorded
in Bath between August 2012 and July 2013, there were 161 occurrences that
required police attendances, 17% of incidents, but there were also 809 occurrences,
83% of incidents that through their actions they were able to prevent the need for
police. The Street Medics and Marshals also recorded that during this period 220
occurrences, 23% were medical incidents, and that their interventions were able to
prevent the need for an ambulance in 154 cases, 16% of incidents.

Incidents recorded by Street Marshals and Medics in Bath
(August 2012 - July 2013) - By type and Result

Ambulance Prevented
Medical Incidents
Police Prevented

Police Attendances

200 400 600 800 1000

o

Number of incidents

Figure 31: Numbers of incidents recorded by Street Marshals and Medics in Bath
(August 2012-July 2013) — By type and result

25
Page 223



Annex C

Trends overtime — Number of Orange Grove Taxi Rank Users

According to the records from the Street Marshals and Medics between August 2012
and July 2013, the average number of users of the Orange Grove Taxi Rank for the
three day period of Thursday, Friday and Saturday, has decreased by 34% from an
average of 2,049 in first ten weeks (2012), to an average of 1,352 in the last ten
weeks (2013).

Number of users per week (Thurs,Fri & Sat) of the Orange Grove Taxi Rank as recorded by the street Marshals and Medics

(August 2012 - July 2013)
4000

3500

2500

3000 ‘\
\
\

Number of users

o /7 7T\
1500 A\ /\-—/\ TN A

'

oo L] V. "W W [ B VA va—
V v VY

500

Week
Figure 32: Numbers of users per week (Thurs, Fri &Sat) of the Orange Grove Taxi

Rank as recorded by the Street Marshals and Medics in Bath (August 2012-July
2013)

Trends overtime — Number of incidents — Bath City Centre and Orange
Grove Taxi Rank

During the year August 2012 to July 2013, there was virtually no change in the
average number of incidents recorded per week (Fri & Sat) by Street Marshals and
Medics patrolling Bath city centre, with an average of 11 incidents per week in the
first ten weeks (2012), and an average of 12 in the last ten weeks (2013).

However, the average number of incidents recorded per week (Thurs, Fri & Sat) by
Street Marshals and Medics at the Orange Grove Taxi Rank decreased from 9 in the
first ten weeks to 5 in the last ten weeks, though this may reflect the decrease in
users of the taxi rank during this period.

Trends overtime — Days of incidents - Bath City Centre and Orange Grove
Taxi Rank

In terms of the distribution of the incidents as recorded by the Street Marshals and
Medics patrolling Bath city centre over the two days of Friday, and Saturday during
the year August 2012 to July 2013, the proportion of incidents occuring on a
Saturday increased from an average of 58% in the first ten weeks (2012), to 71% in
the last ten weeks (2013). Therefore, conversely the average proportion on a Friday
decreased from 42% in the first ten weeks, to an average of 29% in the last ten
weeks.

During the same year, the distribution of the incidents as recorded by the Street
Marshals and Medics at the Orange Grove Taxi Rank over the three days of
Thursday, Friday, and Saturday, remained roughly the same for the proportion of

26
Page 224

12345678 91011121314151617181920212223242526272829303132333435363738394041424344454647 4849505152



Annex C

incidents occurring on a Saturday, with an average of 33% in the weeks 4-13 (first
ten weeks when marshals are working on Thursdays) and 32% in the last 10 weeks.

The average proportion on a Friday decreased from an average of 41% in the weeks
4-13, to an average of 22% in the last ten weeks. Thus, conversely the average
proportion recorded to have occurred on a Thursday increased from 26% in the
weeks 4-13, to an average of 47% in the last ten weeks.

Trends overtime — Types of incidents - Bath City Centre and Orange Grove
Taxi Rank

According to the records kept by the Street Marshals and Medics patrolling Bath city
centre and at the Orange Grove Taxi Rank between August 2012 and July 2013,
there has been no significant changes over time in the number or proportion of
occurrences that required police attendances, where actions had prevented the need
for police, or those that were medical incidents, or where interventions were able to
prevent the need for an ambulance.

Voicebox Residents Survey

The large scale Voicebox Resident Survey aims to provide an insight into the Bath
and North East Somerset and its local communities and to capture resident’s views
on their local area and council services. The questionnaires are posted to 3,150
addresses selected randomly in the local authority area. Selected respondents also
have the opportunity to complete the survey online.

Bath City Centre at Night " ®

The Voicebox Surveys carried out in 2012 and 2013 asked a couple of questions
relating to Bath City Centre at night. In 2012 a total 850 residents completed the
questionnaire between the 23™ November 2012 and the 11" January 2013; a
response rate of 27%. In 2013 a total 1,189 residents completed the questionnaire
between the 25 November 2013 and the 18" January 2014; a response rate of
38%.

It is important to bear in mind that different weighting was used in 2012 and 2013. In
2012 the results were weighted by gender, employment and tenure, whereas in 2013
the results were weighted by age and gender. Weighting of results are done to better
reflect the demographics of the area.

The results to the question — How often do you visit Bath City Centre after 5pm? —
are very similar for 2012 and 2013.

Respondents that said they visit Bath City Centre after 5pm once a week or more
frequently:

o 2012 —29%

o 2013 -31%

27
Page 225



Annex C

Results of Voicebox question - How often do you visit Bath City Centre after Spm?
30% -+

26%
25% |

20%

15% -
n2012

m2013
10‘%’ "

5% 4

0%

Daily oralmost  Atleastonce a About once or About once or Aboutonce or Lessthan oncea
daily week twice a month twice every 6 twice a year year
months

Figure 34: Results of the Voicebox question — How often do you visit Bath City
Centre after 5pm? (2012 and 2013)

When respondents were asked how safe they felt at various times of night in 2012
and 2013, the results indicate that respondents feel less safe as the night goes on.
Nevertheless, there were more respondents that felt safe between each of those
times than those respondents who did not feel safe.

2012 and 2013 results to the Voicebox question - When you last visited Bath City Centre how safe did you feel at the following times?

2013 Between 2-5am
2012 Between 2-5am
2013 Between 11pm-2am
2012 Between 11pm-2am
2013 Between 8-11pm
2012 Between 8-11pm
2013 Between 5-8pm

2012 Between 5-8pm

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
mVery safe ®wQuite safe = Notverysafe mNotsafeatall mNotapplicable

Figure 35: Results of the Voicebox question — When you last visited Bath City
Centre how safe did you feel at the following times? (2012 and 2013)

As Table 6 shows, comparing the results of the 2012 and 2013 Voicebox surveys
suggests that between 2012 and 2013, for all times of the night there has been an
increase in the proportion of B&NES residents who feel very or quite safe.

28
Page 226



Annex C

Table 6: Results of the Voicebox question — When you last visited Bath City Centre
how safe did you feel at the following times? (2012 and 2013)

Between 5-8pm Between 8-11pm Between 11pm-2am Between 2-5am

2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013
Very or quite safe 83% 87% 70% 75% 33% 42% 20% 22%
Not very safe or not

safe at all 3% 3% 10% 9% 19% 15% 13% 13%

Drunk and Rowdy Behaviour *"° "

When asked in 2009, 2010, and 2012 about drunk and rowdy behaviour in public
places in their local area:

e In 2012 only 7% of respondents believed that it was a very big problem, this a
reduction when compared to 2010 (9%) and 2009 (11%).

o There has also been a decline in those that stated that it was a fairly big problem,
14% in 2012, compared to 20% in 2010 and 2009.

e This means that there has been a significant decrease in the proportion of
respondents that believe that drunk and rowdy behaviour is a very big or fairly big
problem, 21% in 2012, compared to 29% in 2010 and 31% in 2009.

e The most common response in 2012 was that this behaviour was not a very big
problem (47%), this is an increase from 2010 (34%) and 2009 (42%).

Although most did not believe drunk and rowdy behaviour to be a very big problem,
these respondents were nevertheless indicating that they thought drunk and rowdy
behaviour was a small problem. Therefore, when combining responses in 2012, 72%
of respondents did indicate that they thought this behaviour was, to some extent, a
problem in their area. However, in 2012 the proportion of respondents who stated
that this behaviour is not a problem at all was quite high, at 28%.

Thinking about your local area, how much of a problem do you think drunk and
rowdy behaviour is?

50% 47%
45% -
40% -
35% -
30%
#2009

=2010
m2012

25% -
20% 20%
20% |
15% -
10% -

5%

0% -

A very big problem A fairly big problem Not a very big problem Not a problem at all

Figure 36: Results of the Voicebox question — Thinking about your local area, how
much of a problem do you think drunk and rowdy behaviour is? (2009, 2010 and
2012)

29
Page 227



Annex C

Purple Flag Award ?

The Purple Flag Award is a national award which recognises cities that are safe and
enjoyable places for a night out. The Voicebox Survey carried out in 2013 asked a
couple of questions relating to the Purple Flag Award.

When respondents were asked whether they knew about the purple flag award:

e Lessthan 1% said they knew a lot about it

e 5% sated they knew a bit about it

e 14% said they had heard of it but knew very little about it

e 81% sated that they had never heard of it
When respondents were asked whether they knew that Bath has Purple Flag Status,
only 6% stated that they did know, whereas 94% said that they did not.

"Urry N (2013) In -house analysis of data from Police Aspire database, Crimes (violence against
the person and criminal damage)linked to the Night Time Economy (8pm — 4am) in Bath and North
East Somerset between 2008-Febuary2013, Research and Intelligence Team, Bath and North East
Somerset Council

2 Cripps H (30/08/13) Email correspondence from Helen Cripps, Continuous Improvement Officer from
Bath Police Station concerning B&NES Drink Driving data —2010/11-2012/13

8 Urry N (2013) In -house analysis of data from Uniform database, Details of licensing activities -
Current licenses and complaints data 2010 — 2013, Licensing Team, Bath and North East
Somerset Council

*Urry N (2013) In -house analysis of data from Uniform database, Details of licensing activities -
Current licenses and complaints data 2010 — 2013, Licensing Team, Bath and North East
Somerset Council

®Urry N (2013) In-house analysis of Noise Complaints, Public Protection Team Service Requests
2006- October 2013, Public Protection Team, Bath and North East Somerset Council

6 Urry N (2013) In-house analysis, Monitoring data — Bath BID Street Marshals and Medics Weekly
report data August 2012-July 2013, Safe and Sound

" RMG Clarity (2013) Voicebox 21 Resident Survey, Bath City Centre Report, Bath and North East
Somerset Council — November 2012 — January 2013

8 Marketing Means (2014) Voicebox 22 Resident Survey, Results weighted by Age and Gender,
Bath and North East Somerset Council — November 2013 — January 2014

® RMG Clarity (2013) Voicebox 21 Resident Survey, Community Engagement Report, Bath and
North East Somerset Council — November 2012 — January 2013

10 Wyman Dillon (2010) Voicebox 17 Resident Survey Weighted Headline Results, Bath and North East
SomersetCouncil — March 2010 - May 2010

" Marketing Means (2009) Voicebox 15 Resident Survey Weighted Headlines, Bath and North East
SomersetCouncil — March 2009 — June 2009

12 Marketing Means (2014) Voicebox 22 Resident Survey, Results weighted by Age and Gender,
Bath and North East Somerset Council — November 2013 — January 2014

30
Page 228



Agenda Item 10

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING Council

MEETING
DATE: 13th November 2014
TITLE: The Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTS) 2015-16

WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:
1. Section 13 a Local Government Finance Act 1992 — Local Scheme

1 THE ISSUE

To consider a proposal for continuation of the Local Council Tax Support
scheme (LCTS) into its third year, with the policy to incorporate uprating of
national personal allowances and benefits as necessary.

2 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 Council is recommended to approve delegated authority for the Lead
Cabinet Member for Resources and the Section 151 Officer of Bath & North
East Somerset Council to agree that there are no changes to the existing
Council Tax Support Scheme for 2015-16, other than the application of
national uprating adjustments and technical changes to ensure legal
compliance as soon as practical.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 The Council implemented a cost neutral Local Council Tax Support Scheme
in 2013/14 to reflect the reduced Government funding available.. The gross
cost of Council Tax Support is £8.87 million as measured at end of
September 2014 (Sept 2013: £9.19 million). The fall in cost of the scheme
since last year is due to a decrease in number of claimants of 475 (Sept
2014: 11,171, Sept 2013: 11,646).

3.2 Given the reduced cost of the scheme, it is anticipated the existing scheme
will remain able to accommodate expected growth in pensioner population,
plus any increased unemployment within the working age population, as well
as an allowance for contingencies.

Page 229




3.3Recognising the financial challenge faced by the Council, any changes to the
scheme which increase costs above the current budgeted position would
require the Council to identify alternative savings to mitigate.

3.41t is recognised that Council Tax collection rate is being maintained close to
historic levels, and this will be reflected in the tax base report.

3.5The Council is committed to reducing Fraud and Error and the existing
scheme has proven simple to understand, and administer in practice, which
assists in this aim. Resources will be maintained to ensure Fraud and Error is
at a minimum.

3.6 Support for our most vulnerable residents is currently provided through the
local Welfare Support Scheme which is funded by Social Fund contributions.
The government is withdrawing the funding for this scheme from 1% April
2015, support from the council will be considered as part of the Budget
process for 2015/16.

4. CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

4.1The delivery of Council Tax Support at a time of severe budget pressures
remains a challenge.

4.2 The scheme provides incentive to work while, at the same time, protecting
pensioners and vulnerable people, and therefore will support the Council
objective of:

¢ Building a stronger economy

5. THE REPORT

5.1 Council Tax Benefit was replaced with the Local Council Tax Support
scheme in April 2013.

5.2 The Government specified that certain groups such as pensioners will be
protected and should see no changes to their entittement. However, each
Council can consider whether to protect other groups and how to fund any
extra protections.

5.3 The current scheme protects claimants who are considered by the Council
to be vulnerable.

5.4 The Council defined the vulnerable as those in receipt of a :

Support Component of Employment and Support Allowance (ESA)
Enhanced Disability Premium

Enhanced Disability for Dependants

Disability Premium for Dependents

Severe Disability Premium

Page 230



5.5The claimants in receipt of the above premiums/components, are considered
to be vulnerable as they are in need of care and support, and therefore could
not be expected to work. Furthermore a concession in the scheme has been
made for those households which include a disabled child.

5.6 For people other than pensioners or the vulnerable, the Council applies the
criteria below for its Local Council Tax Support :

Maximum eligible amount set at 78%

Local Council Tax Support paid to a maximum Council Tax band D

No Second Adult Rebate

Child Benefit and Child Maintenance included as an income in calculation of
entitlement

No Underlying Entitlement

Those people with Capital/Assets over £10,000 will not be entitled

No non dependant deductions

No entitlement to backdating.

5.7 For the third year of the scheme, the Council will update its policy document
under Section 13a of the Local Government Finance Act 1992. This sets out
the existing rules for assessing Local Council Tax Support, and will continue
to apply from 1% April 2015. (existing Policy shown at Appendix1)

5.8 The scheme is designed to be simple and equitable across all groups, and it
seeks to give incentive to work where possible.

5.9Though there are alternatives, the current scheme is still considered the best
option to meet the requirements through 2015-16.

6. RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1The report author and Lead Cabinet Member have fully reviewed the risk
assessment related to the issue and recommendations, in compliance with
the Council's decision making risk management guidance.

7. EQUALITIES

7.1The Local Council Tax Support scheme reflects most of the characteristics of
the former Council Tax Benefit scheme prior to April 2013, though it is
simpler and therefore does not have an adverse effect on people that are
particularly vulnerable or have protected characteristics.

7.2 A full Equality Impact Assessment on Local Council Tax Support was written
when the scheme was created and this will continue to be reviewed in light of
scheme outcomes.

Page 231



8. CONSULTATION

8.1 Consultation on continuation of the scheme has already been conducted with
Cabinet Member; Other B&NES Services; Section 151 Finance Officer; Chief
Executive; Monitoring Officer; Staff.

8.2In the absence of change to the scheme for 2015-16, there is no need to
repeat a public consultation as was performed prior to initiation of Local
Council Tax Support from April 2013.

9. ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION

Social Inclusion; Customer Focus; Sustainabilityy Human Resources;
Property; Young People; Human Rights; Corporate; Health & Safety; Impact
on Staff; Other Legal Considerations

10. ADVICE SOUGHT

The Council's Monitoring Officer (Divisional Director — Legal and Democratic
Services) and Section 151 Officer (Divisional Director — Business Support) have
had the opportunity to input to this report and have cleared it for publication.

Contact person

lan Savigar, Director for Customer Services, Tel; 01225 477327

Sponsoring Cabinet
Member

Councillor David Bellotti

Background papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an

alternative format

Page 232




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Bath & North East Somerset Council

Council Tax Reduction Scheme Policy
S13A (2) and Schedule 1a of the Local Government Finance Act 1992

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaageg A3




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Bath & North East Somerset Council - Council Tax Reduction Scheme Policy .........ccoooooiiiiciiieiiiee e 1

1.0 Introduction to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme (Council Tax SUPPOIt).....c.cccveeeeeveeeeririeinnnne. 7
The scheme for working age applicants — the council’s local poliCy.........coccoeeeiiieeiii e 7
L0 =T L OSSR PRSP PO SR PR 7
(0= T SO TSSO PO SRR 8

The scheme for pension age applicants — Central Government’s scheme as defined by the Council Tax
Reduction Scheme (Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012................................0
Reductions attracted by classes: protection of pensioner-related awards .............cccccceieeeeeneeee.. 10

Class A RedUCtioN (SUPPOTT) - eueee ettt st em e se e e e e s enm e e eneeneenene 10
Class A — special provisions for state pension credit ..........ccoooi e 10
Class B RedUCHION (SUPPOIT) ....ecrieiieeeee et et be e e ee e e e e esbe e sbeesneeaseenserneennas 11
Class C REAUCHION (SUPPOIL) ..ot eeee e ee e e eea e ese e se e eeeaesaesseeneemeemeeneemsemneanenseenseanennnns 11
Additional information in relation to the pension age scheme.............ccooiiiiiiiir e 11
Council Tax RedUCtion SCREMIE....... ..o e ettt bt e e e sene et e e e e enaes 15
Details of support to be given for working age applicants for the financial year 2013/2014................. 15
SEOTIONS 2- 8 ettt ettt ettt oot e e s bt e e s et skt e e et £t e et e Sh e e e sae e et ehn e een bt e e e e nnaeabeeen seneeaneens 16
Definitions and iINTerPretation ... ... ..ot e e e e e et ee s ne e e e e neean 16
2.0 Interpretation —an explanation of the terms used within this policy.........c.coooiiiiiiiicin . 17
3.0 Definition of NON-Aependant.......... .o e e e e e 25
4.0 Requirement to provide a National Insurance NUMDber ..........cccooi i 25

5.0 Persons who have attained the qualifying age for state pension credit or who are of working age

and who have a partner who has attained the qualifying age for state pension credit ............. 26
6.0  RemMUNEIATIVE WOTK ..ottt e et s b e e e s e e eene et e e e neenans 26
7.0  Persons from abroad — exempted from claiming under this scheme ............ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiicen. 27
8.0 Temporary Absence (Period Of ADSENCE) ...c..ocueeueeeeiie ettt et et ev et 27
SECTIONS G = L ettt ettt et e e et e e en et eaa e e e st £ ea b £ e ane £ he e e sn e e et e ene e en b e e neeehn e e saeeens nneenneens 30
The family for Council TaxX SUPPOIT PUMPOSES........coeiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeieeeee e e semee e e e enaesenneeaesemeeeeesnaeseneen 30
9.0 Membership of @ Tamily ... e e e 31

10.0 Circumstances in which a person is to be treated as responsible (or not responsible) for a child
OF YOUNE PEISONN. ittt iiiiieteeaae e aae e ee e s aee s e s s s e ea s sn s ea s san s sn s sea s smn st ensemas s mmssmessmesnmanneasneanns s 31

11.0 Circumstances in which a child or young person is to be treated as being or not being a member

Of the hoUSENOIM ....... .o et et et 32
Sections 12 — 14 & SChedule 1.... ... ettt ne e e 33
Living Allowances (Applicable Amounts) for Council Tax SUPPOIt PUIPOSES .......cveevviiurieereeeeeeeeeeereann 33
12.0 Applicable amounts (Living AIOWANCES) .........ciueeeueeieeeieete e eee e e e e eteeeteeeteeseeasesas s eaeesaeenes 34
13.0  POlYZAmMOUS MATTIQEES -..eeeneeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeteeeeseeees e e e smeeeasmeeeennaeeaensmeeeasmseeesnnaneaensnneeennseeesnnnnenn 34

14.0  Applicable amount: persons who are not pensioners who have an award of universal
credit 34
Sections 15 —32 & Schedules 3 & 4. ... .. et e 36
Definition and the treatment of income for Council Tax SUppOrt PUrPOSES......coioiiee i 36

15.0 Calculation of income and capital of members of applicant’s family and of a polygamous
Q= = V(PSS 37

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dogglete¥ 328 2




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

15A.0  Calculation of income and capital: persons who are not pensioners who have an award
OF UNIVEISAl CrETIT ...ttt st ettt e e sre e e sn e ene e e enneenan 37

16.0 Circumstances in which capital and income of non-dependant is to be treated as applicant’s.38

17.0 Calculation of income on a weekly Dasis...........ooi oo e 38
18.0 Treatment of child Care Charges ... e s 38
19.0 Average weekly earnings of employed €arners ............ccooo oo 42
20.0 Average weekly earnings of self-employed earners .........c.ccooo oo 43
21.0 Average weekly income other than €arnings. .........cooi oo 43
22.0 Calculation of average weekly income from tax credits .........oocooeeoeiicece e 43
23.0 Calculation of Weekly INCOME ...... ...t e e e mae e e e e e 44

24.0 Disregard of changes in tax, contributions etc..........ccooo o2 A4

25.0 Earnings of employed @arNers ... ... .o oo e et e e e e e e ee e et e e e e e e nneeenen 44
26.0 Calculation of net earnings of employed €arners ..o 45
27.0 Earnings of self-employed @arners....... ..o e e e e 46
28.0 Calculation of net profit of self-employed earners............oooo oo 47
29.0 Deduction of tax and contributions of self-employed earners...........cc.cooooirieiiiiecr e 48
30.0 Calculation of income other than earNiNgs........ccoeoi oo 49
31.0 Capital treated as INCOMIE ........oo i et e et e e e et e e e s e e e e e sn e e eenneeesenseeeenen 51
32,0 NOTIONAI INCOMIE ...ttt ettt e s st e s s e et e et e sb e e s aesrneeeeneeenbeeenseennns 51
Sections 33 —42 & Schedule 5. et e 54
Definition and the treatment of capital for Council Tax Support purposes..........ccccceeeeeeereeeereeee e 54
S 0 =Y o 1 = I 1 T USSR 55
34.0 Calculation of CAPITal. ... e e e e e enen 55
35.0 Disregard of capital of child and yoUNg Person....... ..o 55
36.0 Income treated as Capital... ..o oo et een 55
37.0 Calculation of capital in the United Kingdom..........oooiiii e 56
38.0 Calculation of capital outside the United Kingdom...........ccooiiiiiiie e 56
1 20 B oY o) = I or=1 o = SRS 56
40.0 Diminishing notional cCapital TUIE ... ... .o e e e ae e 57
41.0  Capital JOINTIY REI ... et e e e e e e e e e e e s e e e nan e e ennne 60
42.0 Calculation of tariff income from capital ...... .o 60
SECTIONS 43 - 56 ..ttt e e ee et et e e ae e ea bt an e e e e een e et e en e £ en b e e neeehneeasneeenne e eenneens 61
Definition and the treatment of students for Council Tax Support purposes.........ccceeeeeeseeeecceee e 61
43.0 Student related definifioNS ... ..o e 62
44.0 Treatment Of STUAENTS ... et et b e e sene et e neenaes 65
45.0 Students who are excluded from entitlement to council tax support........coooooiireiiiieiicn e, 65
46.0 Calculation of Grant iNCOMIE .......co et e e e e e e s eeeeenen 66
47.0 Calculation of covenant income where a contribution is assessed ..........ccoocoieiiiiciiieiecneee 68

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 238, 3




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

48.0 Covenant income where no grant income or no contribution is assessed.........ccccoerreeneenceen. 68
49.0 Student Covenant Income and Grant income —non disregard...........c.cooooeiieiieeenccreeeceee e 68
50.0 Other amounts to be disregarded..............oo i 68
51.0 Treatment of STUAENT I0ANS ..ottt ne e e 69
51A.0 Treatment Of fE@ J0ANS. ... ... o ettt e et e e e e e e 70
52.0 Treatment of payments from access fUNAS...........oooi oo 70
53.0 Disregard of CONTIDUTION .......oooii e e e e e e 70
54.0 Further disregard of student’s INCOME ... 71
55.0 Income treated as Capital... ..o e e e e 71
56.0 Disregard of changes occurring during summer vacation.........ccceeoreeiieiee e i 71
SECTIONS 57 — B3ttt ettt ettt e eae e e e ea e e eaa s e e ae £ e bt e an e £ Re e e ean e e bt S en e e en bt e neeeneeasneeeneeeeeneens 72
The calculation and amount of CouNCil TaX SUPPOIT......oo it e e eeeen 72
57.0 Maximum counCil TaX SUPPOIT ..o et e e e et e e e e e emnneeenen 73
58.0 Non-dependant dedUCTIONS ..... ..o e e e e e e e e s e e e e aeeeeneeesemseeeenen 73
59.0 Council tax support taper (applies to persons defined within Class B)........ccccooeiveeieeciceceecnennen. 75
60.0  Extended redUCTIONS ...... oottt ee et st e et s e e e ene e e e e ne e e 75
60A.0 Duration of extended reduction Period ... e 76
60B.0 Amount of extended redUCTion....... ... e e 76
60C  Extended redUcCtionS — MOVETS ......oo . ittt et e et es et e e ene et e e e sbeeenne e 76

60D.0 Relationship between extended reduction and entitlement to council tax support under the

general conditions of entitlement. .. ... 77
61.0 Extended reductions (qualifying contributory benefits)...........ooooeeieeiceiccieeeeeeee e, 77
61A.0 Duration of extended reduction period (qualifying contributory benefits)..........c.cccoeeeeeeenee. 78
61B.0 Amount of extended reduction (qualifying contributory benefits) .........ccoocooroi i, 78
61C.0 Extended reductions (qualifying contributory benefits) — movers ..........ccocooieiiiiiiiiiniee 78
61D.0 Relationship between extended reduction (qualifying contributory benefits) and entitlement to
council tax support under the general conditions of entitlement ..o 79
61E.0 Extended reductions: - Movers Generally ..o 79
B 2.0 — B30 oo eee e ea e e ee e e e e e e e e e e e e ae e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaeannaas 79
SECTIONS B4 — 67 ...ttt ettt e eae e e e ea e e eaa s e e st £ et e e s s he e e een e e bt S nt e en b e e ne e ern e e sneeenneeeeeneens 80
Changes of circumstances within Council Tax SUPPOIT ... e 80
64.0 Date on which entitlement is 0 Degin ... 81
65.0 -B6.0 NOT USEA ...t e et e e e et e s e e e e e s m e e e e e e e e e e e aeeeesmseaeesneeeennnnansnnneaen een 81
67.0 Date on which change of circumstances is to take effect.........cccooooei e, 81
SECTIONS B8— TAA ...ttt ettt e e ea et st e e st e aa bt e ane s £ heeess e e e e S ene e en b e e e neeehneeasaeeenneen e enaeas 83
Claiming and the treatment of claims for Council Tax SUPPOIt PUrPOSES........cocooeer i 83
68.0 WO MAY ClaiM..ceoeeee ettt e e s e e e s m e e e et e ee e nne e e e s meeeeesneeeenneensrnenaenn on 84
69.0  Procedure by which a person may apply for a reduction under an authority’s scheme ...85
69A.0 Date on which a claim made.... ..o 86
70.0 Submission of evidence electroniCally ..o e 87

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete¥ 36 4




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

71.0 Use of telephone provided eVIdenCe ............oo it e 88
72.0 Evidence and iNFOrME@tion .........oo oottt bt e s et e ne e 88
73.0  Amendment and withdrawal of Claim ... 89
74.0 Duty to notify changes of CIrCUMSTANCeS ........oo i 89
SECTIONS 75790 ..ttt et ae e e e et et e e st £ ea bt e s e £ he e e een e e n bt e n e e en b e e e ne e ehneeanneeeane eeenneens 91
Decisions, decision notices and awards of Council Tax SUPPOIT ... e 91
75.0 Decisions by the authOrity ... e e e e e enen 92
76.0  NOUITICAtion OF dECISION ......eiiiiee ettt e s eae e 92
77.0 Time and manner of granting council tax SUPPOIt.........coo oo 92
78.0 Persons to whom support is to be paid ..o e 94
79.0 Shortfall in sUpport / redUCHION .........couiiieeeeeeeee et ettt 94
80.0 Payment on the death of the person entitled............ccoorioi e 94
31 O @ ) 1 7= 1 TS 94
82 — 87 NOT USEA ...ttt e e ettt et e s b e e e sae s e e sen e een bt 2 e e e smeessneeeneeeeeennaens 94
88.0 Diminution of NOtioNal CaPital ...... ..o 95
8.0 INOT USEA ...ttt st e e ettt e et e sh e e sae s n e e shn e e en bt e e e e smaenseeeens neeennnaens 95
G0.0  INOT USE ...ttt st e e ettt et e sh e e sae s n e e sen e e en bt ee e e emsmaenseeeans neeeerneens 95
SECTIONS OL — Ottt eae e e e e et ea e e e st e et e e s s re e e ean e e bt £ et e en bt e neesrneeasneeenne e eeenaens 96
Collection, holding and forwarding of information for Council Tax Support purposes...........cccceeenee.. 96

91.0 Use of information from and to the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) and Her Majesty’s

Revenues and CUStomMS (HIMRC)...........oouieiieeeceecete ettt st s e s e e e e e aeaneeaeeeaeennens 97
92.0 Collection of INFOrMEAtION ..ottt e e s ne e e 97
93.0 Recording and holding iNfOrmMation ........ ..o e 97
94.0 Forwarding of iNformMation ... ... e e aen 97
SECTIONS 95 — 98 ittt ettt et e e ea et ea s e e st e e bt e s s he e e ean e e bt e ne e en b e e ne e en e e sneeenne e eeenaens 98
Revisions, Written Statements, Termination of Council Tax SUPPOIt .. ..o 98
95.0 Persons affected DY DeCISIONS. .........oi i e e ee e ae e e eneeenen 99
96.0  ReVISIONS OF DECISIONS .. ..ooiiiieeeitiee ettt ettt es et e e s s e e e et e e sb e e s aesrn e e esneeenbeeeneennns 99
97.0  WItEen STAtemMIENTs. .. .o ettt ettt et s enn e e 99
98.0  TeIMINATIONS ...ttt e sttt e e et e et e e e sb e e e sae s e e ean e een bt ee e e e samaessne e s sneesmneens 99
ST on (0] (I L OSSPSR 100
Appeals against the authority’s deCISIONS .........ooi i 100
99.0 Procedure by which a person may make an appeal against certain decisions of the
E= L1 T 1 USSR 101
(Yot 1 1) o T 0SS 102
Procedure for applying for a discretionary reduction ............cocooo oo 102
100.0  Procedure for an application to the authority for a reduction under section 13A(1)(c) of
L TS0t L 3 Y OSSP 103
(Y=ot 1 [ o T 0 e 0 SR 104

Electronic CommUNICAtION c...cooeeeie e e e e s s e s s s s smnnnnn « LOZ

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 237 5




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

L0 IO 1= o] = oo USRS

102.0  Use Of INTermMediaries . ......ooouiei ettt et s en e e me e e

103.0  Effect of delivering information by means of electronic communication

104.0  Proof of identity of sender or recipient of information ............c.ccoo i,

105.  Proof of delivery of information...... ..o oo

106.0  Proof of content of INfOrmMation ... e
(Y=ot 110 o T TS 107
Counter Fraud and COMPIANCE ... ... e e e ee e e e ce e e te e e ae e e sne e e smee e e nnaneeensneean 107
107.0 Counter Fraud and COMPHANCE ...t e e e e et e e s e e e e sm e e e emeeee e nnas 108
Schedule 1
Applicable Amounts (LiVING AIOWANCES) ... ...ccuieiuieieeeeeee et e e ee e e eaeeereeeaeesaeesae s aeneesneseeans 109
PersoNal AlIOWANCE ...ttt ettt e et e e e et e e bt e e s e sh e e e ss e e eae e s eneeenbeeeaseeeanee 2ennnean 110
L 1A o = 3 Y114 U 110
PIEIMIUITIS <. ettt ettt e et bt e et £t e £ eas e s hae e ee et £t £ ae e em b e e e se e e e et ebmeeen emseeeneesbmneenneean 111
Disability PIeIMIUM ...t e et e e e e e ee s e e eeerte e e e neeeeseaseee e sneeeennneaesenseeaneeenn 111
Additional Condition for the Disability Premiums...... ..o e 111
Severe Disabilify PremiUMIS .. ... et e e e e e e e e e e e e e se e e e smneeennneeeennneen 111
Enhanced Disability Premiumi.... ... oo e e e et e e s e e e e sm e e enmne e senns 111
Disabled Child PremiUm ... .o .o ettt s eee e e be e eae et s bae e e e e e emseeean e sbeeennnesrnes 111
L0 =T o (=1 1 1L 3 PP U PSPPSR 111
Persons in receipt of concessionary PayMeNnts ... ..o e s e e e e e e 112
Persons in receipt of benefit for another. ... e 112
AMOUNTS OF PrEIMIUMIS .. ...ttt ettt e st s e e e e e et e et e sh e e esaesne e esneeenbe e nemes 112
B0 4] 0T 1= oS 113
Transitional ADAITION ..o ettt s e e e s eae e e e e e se e ennaesbae nean 113
Amount of transitional AddiTION ...........oo e e 113
Schedule 2
INOT USEU. ...ttt b e ettt ce e s bt e e s et et £eme e em b e e e se e ean e e s baeeanns e e emnesernneenneean 114
Schedule 3

Sums to be disregarded in the calculation of @arnings ........c.ccceooei oo e, 115

Schedule 4
Sums to be disregarded in the calculation of income other than earnings .........ccocoov i 121
Schedule 5
Capital tobe disregarded ... ettt e et e nne e ns 132

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete*3% 6




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

1.0

11

12

13

Introduction to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme (Council Tax Support)

The following policy has been adopted by the Council and details the Council Tax Reduction
scheme adopted by the authority for the period 1** April 2013 until 31° March 2014.

This policy details how the scheme will operate for both pension credit age and working age
applicants and in accordance with Section 13a of the Local Government Finance Act 1992
specifies the classes of person who are to be entitled to a reduction under the scheme and is
effective from 1° April 2013 for a period of one financial year.

The scheme in respect of pension age applicants is defined by Central Government within the
Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012 and the
Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended). The Council has no discretion in relation to
the calculation of council tax support in respect of the pension age scheme and it is designed to
provide broadly the same level of support provided within the previous (Council Tax Benefit)
scheme.

The scheme for working age applicants — the council’s local policy

14

15

16

The adopted scheme for working age applicants is a means test, which compares income against

an assessment of living allowances or applicable amounts (unless otherwise stated). Full details

of the working age policy of the authority are contained within this document from section 2

onwards. The authority is required to specify a scheme for working age and therefore this policy

only applies to a person who;

a. has not attained the qualifying age for state pension credit; or

b. has attained the qualifying age for state pension credit if he, and his partner, is a person
on income support, on an income-based jobseeker’s allowance or on an income-related
employment and support allowance.

This policy shall not apply in relation to any person if he, or if he has a partner, his partner, has
attained the qualifying age for state pension credit. The scheme shall not apply to any applicant
who is subject to immigration control under Section 115 of the Immigration and Asylum Act
1999 and non-economically active EEA nationals.

The Council has resolved that there will be two classes of persons who will receive a reduction
in line with adopted scheme (from hereafter referred to as Support). There will be two main
classes prescribed for, for each of which there will be a number of qualifying criteria. In all cases
individuals must not be of a prescribed class exempted from support as specified within section
7 of this policy.

Class A

To obtain support the individual (or partner) must:

a. have not attained the qualifying age for state pension credit’; or

b. has attained the qualifying age for state pension credit if he, and his partner, is a person
on income support, on an income-based jobseeker’s allowance or on an income-related
employment and support allowance or in receipt of an award Universal Credit;

C. be liable to pay council tax in respect of a dwelling in which he is solely or mainly
resident;

d. is not deemed to be absent from the dwelling;

e. who does not fall within a class of person prescribed for the purposes of paragraph 2(9)
of Schedule 1A to the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and excluded from the

1 Section 5 of this policy

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 238 7




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

= @

authority’s scheme;

be somebody in respect of whom a maximum council tax support’ amount can be
calculated;

not have capital savings above 10,000°;

be a person in respect of whom a day in which s/he is liable to pay council tax falls within
a week in respect of which the person’s income® is less than their (living allowance)
applicable amount’ or the applicant or partner is in receipt of Income Support,
Jobseekers allowance (income based) or Employment and Support Allowance (income
related); and

has made a valid application for supports.

Maximum council tax reduction stated in d. above is defined within section 57 of this policy

Class B

To obtain support the individual (or partner) must:

a.
b.

have not attained the qualifying age for state pension credit’;

be liable to pay council tax in respect of a dwelling in which they are solely or mainly
resident;

is not deemed to be absent from the dwelling;

who does not fall within a class of person prescribed for the purposes of paragraph 2(9)
of Schedule 1A to the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and excluded from the
authority’s scheme;

be somebody in respect of whom a maximum council tax supportS amount can be
calculated;

not have capital savings above £10,000%;

be a person in respect of whom a day in which s/he is liable to pay council tax falls within
a week in respect of which the person’s income® is more than their (living allowances)
applicable amount™;

have made a valid application for support*?;

be a person in respect of whom amount A exceeds amount B where

(i) amount A is the maximum council tax reduction in respect of the day in the
applicant’s case; and
(ii) amount B is 2 6/7 per cent of the difference between his income for the

relevant week and his applicable amount.

Maximum council tax reduction stated in d. above is defined within section 57 of this policy

The capital limit set in classes A and B above will be £16,000 where the applicant is in receipt of;

Support Component of Employment and Support Allowance (ESA); or
Enhanced Disability Premium (EDP); or

Enhanced Disability Premium for Dependants; or

Disability Child Premium for Dependents (DCP); or

Severe Disability Premium (SDP).

2 Sections 57 to 63 of this policy

® Sections 33 to 42 and Schedule 5 of this policy

* Sections 15 to 32 and Schedules 3 and 4 of this policy
® Sections 12 to 14 and Schedule 1 of this policy

® Sections 68 to 74a of this policy

7 Section 5 of this policy

8 Sections 57 to 63 of this policy

® Sections 33 to 42 and Schedule 5 of this policy

10 gactions 15 to 32 and Schedules 3 and 4 of this policy
" Sections 12 to 14 and Schedule 1 of this policy

12 Sections 68 to 74a of this policy

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete X163 8




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

The scheme for pension age applicants — Central Government’s scheme as defined by the Council Tax
Reduction Scheme (Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012

1.7  There are three main classes under the prescribed pension credit age scheme, for each of which
there are a number of qualifying criteria. In all cases individuals must not be of a prescribed
class exempted from support, such as a person from abroad with limited leave to remain. The
definition of a pension credit age person is a person who;

* has attained the qualifying age for state pension credit; and
e is not, or, if he has a partner, his partner is not
o a person on income support, on an income-based jobseeker’s allowance or on an
income-related employment and support allowance; or
o a person with an award of universal credit

The three prescribed classes are as follows;
Class A: pensioners whose income is less than the applicable amount.

On any day Class A consists of any person who is a pensioner:

a. who is for that day liable to pay council tax in respect of a dwelling of which he is a
resident;

b. who, subject to paragraph 5 of Schedule 1 of the Council Tax Reduction Schemes
(Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012, is not absent from the dwelling
throughout the day; in respect of whom a maximum council tax reduction amount can be
calculated;

c. inrespect of whom a maximum council tax reduction amount can be calculated;

d. who does not fall within a class of persons prescribed for the purposes of paragraph 2(9)
of Schedule 1A to the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and excluded from the
authority’s scheme;

e. whose income (if any) for the relevant week does not exceed his applicable amount
calculated in accordance with paragraph 9 and Schedule 2 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992;

f.  not have capital savings above £16,000; and

g. who has made an application for a reduction under the authority’s scheme.

Class B: pensioners whose income is greater than the applicable amount.

On any day class B consists of any person who is a pensioner—

a. who is for that day liable to pay council tax in respect of a dwelling of which he is a
resident;

b. who, subject to paragraph 5 of Schedule 1 of the Council Tax Reduction Schemes
(Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012, is not absent from the dwelling
throughout the day; in respect of whom a maximum council tax reduction amount can be
calculated;

c. who does not fall within a class of person prescribed for the purposes of paragraph 2(9)
of Schedule 1A to the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and excluded from the
authority’s scheme;

d. whose income for the relevant week is greater than his applicable amount calculated in
accordance with paragraph 9 and Schedule 2 to the Local Government Finance Act 1992;

e. inrespect of whom amount A exceeds amount B where;

(i) amount A is the maximum council tax reduction in respect of the day in the applicant’s
case; and

(ii) amount B is 2 6/7 per cent of the difference between his income for the relevant
week and his applicable amount;

not have capital savings above £16,000 and

who has made an application for a reduction under the authority’s scheme.

= @

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 243 9




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Class C: alternative maximum council tax reduction

On any day class C consists of any person who is a pensioner

a. who is for that day liable to pay council tax in respect of a dwelling of which he is a resident;

b. who, subject to paragraph 5 of Schedule 1 of the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed
Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012, is not absent from the dwelling throughout the
day; in respect of whom a maximum council tax reduction amount can be calculated;

c. who does not fall within a class of person prescribed for the purposes of paragraph 2(9) of
Schedule 1A to the 1992 Act and excluded from the authority’s scheme;

d. who has made an application for a reduction under the authority’s scheme; and

e. inrelation to whom the condition below is met.

The condition referred to in sub-paragraph f) is that no other resident of the dwelling is liable to
pay rent to the applicant in respect of the dwelling and there is an alternative maximum council
tax reduction in respect of the day in the case of that person which is derived from the income, or
aggregate income, of one or more residents to whom this sub-paragraph applies.

The above applies to any other resident of the dwelling who:

a. is not a person who, in accordance with Schedule 1 to the 1992 Act, falls to be disregarded for
the purposes of discount;

b. is not a person who is liable for council tax solely in consequence of the provisions of section 9
of the 1992 Act (spouse’s or civil partner’s joint and several liability for tax);

c. is not a person who is residing with a couple or with the members of a polygamous marriage
where the applicant is a member of that couple or of that marriage and—

(i) in the case of a couple, neither member of that couple is a person who, in
accordance with Schedule 1 to the 1992 Act, falls to be disregarded for the purposes
of discount; or

(ii) in the case of a polygamous marriage, two or more members of that marriage are
not persons who, in accordance with Schedule 1 to the 1992 Act, fall to be
disregarded for the purposes of discount;

d. is not a person who jointly with the applicant falls within the same paragraph of section
6(2)(a) to (e) of the 1992 Act (persons liable to pay council tax) as applies in the case of the
applicant; or

e. is not a person who is residing with two or more persons both or all of whom fall within the
same paragraph of section 6(2)(a) to (e) of the 1992 Act where two or more of those persons
are not persons who, in accordance with Schedule 1 to the 1992 Act, fall to be disregarded for
the purposes of discount.

Reductions attracted by classes: protection of pensioner-related awards

Class A Reduction (support)

1.8 If an individual matches the criteria in Class A, including that income is less than their applicable
amount (living allowances)(as set out in regulations) in their case, that person qualifies for 100%
reduction on their council tax liability.

Class A — special provisions for state pension credit

1.9 Central Government regulations set out that an individual in receipt of state pension credit
guarantee credit from the Department for Work and Pensions (Pensions Service) will have both
his income and capital counted as zero. This means that the individual’'s income will
automatically be less than their applicable amount, and they will qualify for 100% reduction of
their council tax liability.

1.10 Where a person has been awarded only the savings credit element of state pension credit, the

council is required to use the information in relation to income and capital provided by the
Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) Pension Service when calculating their reduction in

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dygglete X133 10




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

liability.
Class B Reduction (support)

1.11 If an individual matches the criteria in Class B, it will mean the individual’s income is greater
than their applicable amount (living allowances) (as defined in central government regulations).
Twenty per cent of the difference between the two will be subtracted from this individual’s
council tax liability.

Class C Reduction (support)

1.12 This may be awarded in respect of a second adult sharing the household who would normally be
expected to contribute towards the council tax bill, but who cannot afford to do so, based on
their low income as indicated by prescribed low wages bands or prescribed working-age benefit
indicators.

1.13 This reduction will equate to the second adult rebate available under the Council Tax Benefit
scheme and may be awarded at 100%, 25%, 15% or 7.5% of the council tax liability, depending
on individual circumstances. As follows;

Second Adult Alternative Maximum Council Tax Support
(a)  Where the second adult or all second 25 per cent of the council tax due in
adults are in receipt of income respect of that day;
support, an income-related

employment and support allowance or
state pension credit or are persons on

an income-based jobseeker’s
allowance;

(b)  where the gross income of the second is less than £183.00 per week; - 15 per
adult or, where there is more than one cent of the council tax due in respect
second adult, their aggregate gross of that day;
income disregarding
any income of persons on income is not less than £183.00 per week but
support, an income-related less than £239.00 per week; - 7.5 per
employment and support allowance, cent of the council tax due in respect
state pension credit or an income- of that day;

based jobseeker’s allowance—

c) If the dwelling is occupied by a second 100 per cent. of the council tax due in
adult/adults on state pension-credit, respect of that day.
income-related jobseeker's allowance,
income-related employment and
support allowance or income support,
living with a full-time student(s).

Additional information in relation to the pension age scheme

Non-dependent deductions

1.14 Once the reduction award is calculated, it will be subject to a downwards adjustment to take
into account non-dependent adults that normally reside in the dwelling who would be expected
to contribute to council tax. Deductions for such non-dependent adults will be prescribed by
central government

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaag# 243 11




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Living allowance — the applicable amount
1.15 The individual’s living allowance, or applicable amount, is made up of four elements set within
central government regulations. These will be:
a. apersonal allowance in respect of the applicant;
b. an amount in respect of any child or young person who is part of his family;
c.  afamily premium element (where the applicant is part of a family of which at least one
member is a child or young person); and
d. any premium amount, set out in central government regulations, which is applicable to
the individual.

Calculation of income and capital

1.17 Income and capital will be calculated for a person who has attained the qualifying age for state
pension credit in line with provisions under The Council Tax Reduction Scheme (Prescribed
Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012. The income and capital of an applicant’s partner (or,
to mitigate the risk of over-claiming in a polygamous marriage, partners) will continue to be
treated as income of the applicant.

1.18 Income or capital of any child or young person will not be treated as income or capital of the
applicant.

Income and capital for those on state pension credit

1.19 For those in receipt of the guarantee credit element of state pension credit, the whole of their
income and capital will be disregarded. This will mean that they automatically qualify, under
Class A, for 100% council tax support.

1.20 Where a person has been awarded only the savings credit element of state pension credit, the
council is required to use the information in relation to income and capital provided by the
Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) Pension Service when calculating their reduction in
liability.

Calculation of income where a person is not in receipt of state pension credit

1.21 For those who have reached the qualifying age for state pension credit, but are not in receipt of
this state pension credit, provisions relating to income, its calculation on a weekly basis, what is
to be regarded as income and what is to be disregarded as income in line with the Council Tax
Reduction Scheme (Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012

Calculation of capital

Calculation of capital where a person is not in receipt of state pension credit

1.22 Provisions relating to capital will operate in accordance Council Tax Reduction Scheme
(Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012.

Disregard of certain incomes

1.23 For those who have reached the qualifying age for state pension credit, the Council has resolved
to enhance the government scheme (as defined by the Council Tax Reduction Scheme
(Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012 to disregard in full the following;

(a) awar disablement pension;

(b) a war widow’s pension or war widower's pension;

(c) a pension payable to a person as a widow, widower or surviving civil partner under any
power of Her Majesty otherwise than under an enactment to make provision about
pensions for or in respect of persons who have been disabled or have died in

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dogglete¥ 128 12




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

consequence of service as members of the armed forces of the Crown;

(d)  aguaranteed income payment;

(e) a payment made to compensate for the non-payment of such a pension or payment as is
mentioned in any of the preceding sub-paragraphs;

(f) a pension paid by the government of a country outside Great Britain which is analogous
to any of the pensions or payments mentioned in sub-paragraphs (a) to (d) above;

(g) pension paid to victims of National Socialist persecution under any special
provision made by the law of the Federal Republic of Germany, or any part of it, or
of the Republic of Austria

Tariff income on capital
1.24 Once an amount of capital is calculated, net of any amounts to be disregarded, this will be
treated as if it is income of £1 for every £500 (or part of £500) in excess of £6,000.

Calculation of Support

1.25 Once the total income amount has been calculated, it will be compared with the applicable
amount (living allowance), to determine whether the individual falls into Class A (income less
than applicable amount) or Class B (income greater than applicable amount).

1.26 Persons in Class A will receive 100% council tax reduction against their council tax liability. (This
liability will be net of any council tax discounts under the Local Government Finance Act 1992
and non-dependent deductions under the central government regulations for persons of
pension credit eligible age).

1.27 Persons in Class B will receive support equivalent to 20% of the difference between their
income and applicable amount on their net council tax liability.

1.28 Where a person of pension credit age is jointly liable for council tax and who has a second adult
who is not their partner and does not pay rent in respect of the dwelling, they may fall under
Class C, where conditions the set out in regulations are met.

Applications and evidence

1.29 The Council may accept applications in writing, electronically, by telephone or by any other
means, as it feels appropriate. The date of claim will be the date of first contact. Withdrawals
can be effected in the same way and will have effect on the same day any notice of withdrawal
is received by the authority. The authority may request any such information; certificates,
documents or evidence as it feels is reasonable to establish and verify the claim for support.

Entitlement

1.30 Entitlement to council tax support for persons who have attained the age for state pension
credit begins on the first day of the first week after the application is made. The Council Tax
Reduction Scheme (Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012 set out that people of
pension- credit eligible age will be able to back-date their applications by three months,
provided they were entitled to pension-credit age reduction at the start of the three month
back-dated period. Advanced applications will be accepted.

Decisions

1.31 The regulations for the scheme for persons who have attained the qualifying age for state
pension credit require the authority to notify the applicant in writing of its decision within 14
days from the date that all relevant information and evidence relating to the application has
been received by the billing authority, and include information on how an appeal to the council
tax bill can be made by the applicant initially to the billing authority and eventually, if

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# DAB, 13




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

appropriate to the Valuation Tribunal

Changes of circumstance

1.32 Regulations set out the dates from which various prescribed changes of circumstance are to
take effect. In particular, the Council Tax Reduction Scheme (Prescribed Requirements)
(England) Regulations 2012 set out the dates from which changes of circumstance in relation to
awards of state pension credit will be taken into account. The billing authority, under local
discretion, may allow more time if it sees fit.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DiggleteX 163 14




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Council Tax Reduction Scheme

Details of support to be given for working age applicants for the financial year
2013/2014

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaageg AA7 15




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Sections 2- 8

Definitions and interpretation

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Doqplete X153

16




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

2.0
21

Interpretation — an explanation of the terms used within this policy

In this policy—

‘the Act’ means the Social Security Contributions and Benefits Act 1992;

‘the Administration Act’ means the Social Security Administration Act 1992;

‘the 1973 Act’ means of Employment and Training Act 1973;

‘the 1992 Act’ means the Local Government Finance Act 1992;

‘the 2000 Act’ means the Electronic Communications Act 2000;

‘Abbeyfield Home' means an establishment run by the Abbeyfield Society including all bodies

corporate or incorporate which are affiliated to that Society;

‘adoption leave’ means a period of absence from work on ordinary or additional adoption leave

by virtue of section 75A or 75B of the Employment Rights Act 1996;

‘an AFIP’ means an armed forces independence payment payable in accordance with an

armed and reserve forces compensation scheme established under section 1(2) of the Armed

Forces (Pensions and Compensation) Act 2004

‘alternative maximum council tax support’ (Second Adult Rebate) means the amount

determined in accordance with section 62 and Schedule 2;

‘applicant’ means a person who the authority designates as able to claim Council Tax Support —

for the purposes of this policy all references are in the masculine gender but apply equally to

male and female;

‘application” means an application for a reduction under this scheme:

‘appropriate DWP office’ means an office of the Department for Work and Pensions dealing

with state pension credit or office which is normally open to the public for the receipt of claims

for income support, a jobseeker’s allowance or an employment and support allowance;

‘assessment period’ means such period as is prescribed in sections 19 to 21 over which income

falls to be calculated;

‘attendance allowance’ means—

(a) an attendance allowance under Part 3 of the Act;

(b) an increase of disablement pension under section 104 or 105 of the Act;

(c) a payment under regulations made in exercise of the power conferred by paragraph 7(2)(b)
of Part 2 of Schedule 8 to the Act;

(d) an increase of an allowance which is payable in respect of constant attendance under

paragraph 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 8 to the Act;

(e) a payment by virtue of article 14, 15, 16, 43 or 44 of the Personal Injuries (Civilians) Scheme

19830r any analogous payment; or

(f) any payment based on need for attendance which is paid as part of a war disablement

pension;

‘the authority’ means a billing authority in relation to whose area this scheme has effect by

virtue of paragraph 4(6) of Schedule 1A to the 1992 Act;

‘basic rate’, where it relates to the rate of tax, has the same meaning as in the Income Tax Act

2007 (see section 989 of that Act).

‘the benefit Acts’ means the Act and the, the Jobseekers Act 1995 and the Welfare Reform Act

2007;

‘board and lodging accommodation’ means accommodation provided to a family, for a charge

which is inclusive of the provision of that accommodation and at least some cooked or prepared

meals which both are cooked or prepared (by a person other than the person to whom the

accommodation is provided or a member of his family) and are consumed in that

accommodation or associated premises;

‘care home’ has the meaning given by section 3 of the Care Standards Act 2000 and in Scotland

means a care home service within the meaning given by section 2(3) of the Regulation of Care

(Scotland) Act 2001 and in Northern Ireland means a nursing home within the meaning of

Article 11 of the Health and Personal Social Services (Quality, Improvement and Regulation)

(Northern Ireland) Order 2003 or a residential care home within the meaning of Article 10 of

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 248 17




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

that Order;

‘the Caxton Foundation’ means the charitable trust of that name established on 28th March
2011 out of funds provided by the Secretary of State for the benefit of certain persons suffering
from hepatitis C and other persons eligible for payment in accordance with its provisions;

‘child’ means a person under the age of 16;

‘child benefit’ has the meaning given by section 141 of the SSCBA;

‘the Children Order’ means the Children (Northern Ireland) Order 1995;

‘child tax credit’ means a child tax credit under section 8 of the Tax Credits Act;

‘the Children Order’ means the Children (Northern Ireland) Order 1995;

‘claim’ means a claim for council tax support; ‘applicant’ means a person claiming council tax
support;

‘close relative’ means a parent, parent-in-law, son, son-in-law, daughter, daughter- in-law,
step-parent, step-son, step-daughter, brother, sister, or if any of the preceding persons is one
member of a couple, the other member of that couple;

‘concessionary payment’ means a payment made under arrangements made by the Secretary
of State with the consent of the Treasury which is charged either to the National Insurance Fund
or to a Departmental Expenditure Vote to which payments of benefit or tax credits under the
benefit Acts or the Tax Credits Act are charged;

‘the Consequential Provisions Regulations’ means the Housing Benefit and Council tax support
(Consequential Provisions) Regulations 2006;

‘contributory employment and support allowance’ means a contributory allowance under Part
1 of the Welfare Reform Act;

‘converted employment and support allowance’ means an employment and support allowance
which is not income-related and to which a person is entitled as a result of a conversion decision
within the meaning of the Employment and Support Allowance (Existing Awards) Regulations;
‘council tax benefit’ means council tax benefit under Part 7 of the SSCBA;

‘council tax reduction scheme’ has the same meaning as ‘council tax support or reduction’
‘council tax support (or reduction) ’ means council tax reduction as defined by S13a Local
Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended);

‘couple’ means;

a. a man and a woman who are married to each other and are members of the same
household;

b. a man and a woman who are not married to each other but are living together as
husband and wife;

C. two people of the same sex who are civil partners of each other and are members
of the same household; or

d. two people of the same sex who are not civil partners of each other but are living

together as if they were civil partners,
and for the purposes of sub-paragraph (d) two people of the same sex are to be
regarded as living together as if they were civil partners if, but only if, they would be
regarded as living together as husband and wife were they instead two people of the
opposite sex;
‘date of claim’ means the date on which the claim is made, or treated as made, for the purposes
of this policy
‘designated authority’ means any of the following;
the local authority; or a person providing services to, or authorised to exercise any function of,
any such authority;
‘designated office’ means the office designated by the authority for the receipt of claims for
council tax support;
(a) by notice upon or with a form approved by it for the purpose of claiming council tax
support; or
(b) by reference upon or with such a form to some other document available from it and
sent by electronic means or otherwise on application; or
(c) by any combination of the provisions set out in sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) above;
‘disability living allowance’ means a disability living allowance under section 71 of the Act;
‘dwelling’ has the same meaning in section 3 or 72 of the 1992 Act;
‘earnings’ has the meaning prescribed in section 25 or, as the case may be, 27;

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DiggleteX 503 18




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

‘the Eileen Trust’ means the charitable trust of that name established on 29th March 1993 out
of funds provided by the Secretary of State for the benefit of persons eligible for payment in
accordance with its provisions;
‘electronic communication’ has the same meaning as in section 15(1) of the Electronic
Communications Act 2000 ;
‘employed earner’ is to be construed in accordance with section 2(1)(a) of the Act and also
includes a person who is in receipt of a payment which is payable under any enactment having
effect in Northern Ireland and which corresponds to statutory sick pay or statutory maternity
pay;
‘Employment and Support Allowance Regulations’ means the Employment and Support
Allowance Regulations 2008;
‘Employment and Support Allowance (Existing Awards) Regulations’ means the Employment
and Support Allowance (Transitional Provisions, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit)
(Existing Awards) Regulations 2010;
‘the Employment, Skills and Enterprise Scheme’ means a scheme under section 17A (schemes
for assisting persons to obtain employment; ‘work for your benefit’ schemes etc.) of the
Jobseekers Act 1995 known by that name and provided pursuant to arrangements made by the
Secretary of State that is designed to assist applicants to obtain employment, including self-
employment, and which may include for any individual work-related activity (including work
experience or job search);
‘employment zone’ means an area within Great Britain designated for the purposes of section
60 of the Welfare Reform and Pensions Act 1999 and an ‘employment zone programme’ means
a programme established for such an area or areas designed to assist applicants for a
jobseeker’s allowance to obtain sustainable employment;
‘employment zone contractor’ means a person who is undertaking the provision of facilities in
respect of an employment zone programme on behalf of the Secretary of State for Work and
Pensions;
‘enactment’ includes an enactment comprised in, or in an instrument made under, an Act of the
Scottish Parliament;
‘extended payment (or reduction)’ means a payment of council tax support payable pursuant
to section 60;
‘extended payment (or reduction) period’ means the period for which an extended reduction is
payable in accordance with section 60A or 61A of this policy;
‘extended payment or extended reduction (qualifying contributory benefits)’ means a
payment of council tax support payable pursuant to section 61;
‘family’ has the meaning assigned to it by section 137(1) of the Act;
‘the Fund’ means moneys made available from time to time by the Secretary of State for the
benefit of persons eligible for payment in accordance with the provisions of a scheme
established by him on 24th April 1992 or, in Scotland, on 10th April 1992;
‘a guaranteed income payment’ means a payment made under article 15(1)(c) (injury benefits)
or 29(1)(a) (death benefits) of the Armed Forces and Reserve Forces (Compensation Scheme)
Order 2011;
‘he, him, his’ also refers to the feminine within this policy
‘housing benefit’ means housing benefit under Part 7 of the Act; ‘the Housing Benefit
Regulations’ means the Housing Benefit Regulations 2006;
‘Immigration and Asylum Act’ means the Immigration and Asylum Act 1999;
‘an income-based jobseeker’s allowance’ and ‘a joint-claim jobseeker’s allowance’ have the
meanings given by section 1(4) of the Jobseekers Act 1995;
‘income-related employment and support allowance’ means an income-related allowance
under Part 1 of the Welfare Reform Act 2007;
‘Income Support Regulations’ means the Income Support (General) Regulations 1987(a);
‘independent hospital’—
(a) in England, means a hospital as defined by section 275 of the National Health Service Act
2006 that is not a health service hospital as defined by that section;
(b) in Wales, has the meaning assigned to it by section 2 of the Care Standards Act 2000; and
(c) in Scotland, means an independent health care service as defined in section 2(5)(a) and (b)
of the Regulation of Care (Scotland) Act 2001;

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 2053 19




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

‘the Independent Living Fund (2006)’ means the Trust of that name established by a deed dated
10th April 2006 and made between the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions of the one part
and Margaret Rosemary Cooper, Michael Beresford Boyall and Marie Theresa Martin of the
other part;

‘invalid carriage or other vehicle’ means a vehicle propelled by a petrol engine or by electric
power supplied for use on the road and to be controlled by the occupant;

‘lobseekers Act’ means the Jobseekers Act 1995; ‘Jobseeker’s Allowance Regulations’ means
the Jobseeker’s Allowance Regulations 1996;

‘limited capability for work’ has the meaning given in section 1(4) of the Welfare Reform Act;
‘limited capability for work-related activity’ has the meaning given in section 2(5) of the
Welfare Reform Act 2007;

‘the London Bombing Relief Charitable Fund’ means the company limited by guarantee
(number 5505072), and registered charity of that name established on 11th July 2005 for the
purpose of (amongst other things) relieving sickness, disability or financial need of victims
(including families or dependants of victims) of the terrorist attacks carried out in London on 7th
July 2005;

‘lone parent’ means a person who has no partner and who is responsible for and a member of
the same household as a child or young person;

‘the Macfarlane (Special Payments) Trust’ means the trust of that name, established on 29th
January 1990 partly out of funds provided by the Secretary of State, for the benefit of certain
persons suffering from haemophilia;

‘the Macfarlane (Special Payments) (No.2) Trust’ means the trust of that name, established on
3rd May 1991 partly out of funds provided by the Secretary of State, for the benefit of certain
persons suffering from haemophilia and other beneficiaries;

‘the Macfarlane Trust’ means the charitable trust, established partly out of funds provided by
the Secretary of State to the Haemophilia Society, for the relief of poverty or distress among
those suffering from haemophilia;

‘main phase employment and support allowance’ means an employment and support
allowance where the calculation of the amount payable in respect of the applicant includes a
component under section 2(1)(b) or 4(2)(b) of the Welfare Reform Act 2007;

‘the Mandatory Work Activity Scheme’ means a scheme within section 17A (schemes for
assisting persons to obtain employment; ‘work for your benefit’ schemes etc.) of the Jobseekers
Act 1995 known by that name and provided pursuant to arrangements made by the Secretary of
State that is designed to provide work or work related activity for up to 30 hours per week over
a period of four consecutive weeks with a view to assisting applicants to improve their prospect
of obtaining employment;

‘maternity leave’ means a period during which a woman is absent from work because she is
pregnant or has given birth to a child, and at the end of which she has a right to return to work
either under the terms of her contract of employment or under Part 8 of the Employment Rights
Act 1996;

‘member of a couple’ means a member of a married or unmarried couple;

‘MFET Limited” means the company limited by guarantee (number 7121661) of that name,
established for the purpose in particular of making payments in accordance with arrangements
made with the Secretary of State to persons who have acquired HIV as a result of treatment by
the NHS with blood or blood products;

‘mobility supplement’ means a supplement to which paragraph 9 of Schedule 4 refers;

‘mover’ means a applicant who changes the dwelling in which the applicant is resident and in
respect of which the applicant liable to pay council tax from a dwelling in the area of the
appropriate authority to a dwelling in the area of the second authority;

‘net earnings’ means such earnings as are calculated in accordance with section 26;

‘net profit’ means such profit as is calculated in accordance with section 28;

‘the New Deal options’ means the employment programmes specified in regulation 75(1)(a)(ii)
of the Jobseeker’'s Allowance Regulations 1996 and the training scheme specified in regulation
75(1)(b](ii) of those Regulations;

‘new dwelling’ means, for the purposes of the definition of ‘second authority’ and sections 60C,
61C, 96 and 97, the dwelling to which a applicant has moved, or is about to move, in which the
applicant is or will be resident;

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete¥ 533 20




Bath & North East

Somerset Council

‘non-dependant’ has the meaning prescribed in section 3;
‘non-dependant deduction’ means a deduction that is to be made under section 58;
‘occasional assistance’ means any payment or provision made by a local authority, the
Welsh Ministers or the Scottish Ministers for the purposes of:
(a) meeting, or helping to meet an immediate short-term need;
(i) arising out of an exceptional event or exceptional circumstances, or
(ii) that needs to be met to avoid a risk to the well-being of an individual, and
(b) enabling qualifying individuals to establish or maintain a settled home, and—
(i) ‘local authority’ has the meaning given by section 270(1) of the Local
Government Act 1972 ;and
(i) ‘qualifying individuals’ means individuals who have been, or without the
assistance might otherwise be:
(aa) in prison, hospital, an establishment providing residential care or other
institution, or

(bb) homeless or otherwise living an unsettled way of life; and ‘local authority’ means a local

authority in England within the meaning of the Local Government Act 1972;

‘occupational pension’ means any pension or other periodical payment under an occupational

pension scheme but does not include any discretionary payment out of a fund established for

relieving hardship in particular cases;

‘occupational pension scheme’ has the same meaning as in section 1 of the Pension Schemes

Act 1993

‘ordinary clothing or footwear’ means clothing or footwear for normal daily use, but does not

include school uniforms, or clothing or footwear used solely for sporting activities;

‘partner’ in relation to a person, means

(a) where that person is a member of a couple, the other member of that couple;

(b) subject to paragraph (c), where that person is polygamously married to two or more

members of his household, any such member to whom he is married; or

(c) where that person is polygamously married and has an award of universal credit with

the other party to the earliest marriage that still subsists, that other party to the earliest

marriage;

‘paternity leave’ means a period of absence from work on leave by virtue of section 80A

or 80B of the Employment Rights Act 1996;

‘payment’ includes part of a payment;

‘pensionable age’ has the meaning given by the rules in paragraph 1 of Schedule 4 to the

Pensions Act 1995;

‘pension fund holder’ means with respect to a personal pension scheme or an occupational

pension scheme, the trustees, managers or scheme administrators, as the case may be, of the

scheme concerned;

‘pensioner’ a person who has attained the age at which pension credit can be claimed;

‘person affected’ shall be construed as a person to whom the authority decides is affected by

any decision made by the council;

‘person on income support’ means a person in receipt of income support;

‘personal independence payment’ has the meaning given by Part 4 of the Welfare Reform Act

2012;

‘person treated as not being in Great Britain’ has the meaning given by section 7;

'personal pension scheme’ means—

a. a personal pension scheme as defined by section 1 of the Pension Schemes Act 1993;

b. an annuity contractor trust scheme approved under section 620 or 6210of the Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988 or a substituted contract within the meaning of section 622(3)
or that Act which is treated as having become a registered pension scheme by virtue of
paragraph 1(1)(f) of Schedule 36 of the Finance Act 2004;

c. a personal pension scheme approved under Chapter 4 of Part 14 of the Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988 which is treated as having become a registered pension scheme
by virtue of paragraph 1(1)(g) of Schedule 36 to the Finance Act 2004;

‘policy of life insurance’ means any instrument by which the payment of money is assured on

death (except death by accident only) or the happening of any contingency dependent on

human life, or any instrument evidencing a contract which is subject to payment of premiums

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 203 21




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

for a term dependent on human life;

‘polygamous marriage’ means a marriage to which section 133(1) of the Act refers namely;

(a) a person is a husband or wife by virtue of a marriage entered into under a law which

permits polygamy; and

(b) either party to the marriage has for the time being any spouse additional to the

other party.

'public authority’ includes any person certain of whose functions are functions of a public

nature;

‘qualifying age for state pension credit’ means (in accordance with section 1(2)(b) and (6) of

the State Pension Credit Act 2002)—

(a) in the case of a woman, pensionable age; or

(b) in the case of a man, the age which is pensionable age in the case of a woman born on the

same day as the man;

‘qualifying contributory benefit’ means;

(a) severe disablement allowance;

(b) incapacity benefit;

(c) contributory employment and support allowance;

‘qualifying course’ means a qualifying course as defined for the purposes of Parts 2 and 4 of the

Job Seeker’s Allowance Regulations 1996

‘qualifying income-related benefit’ means

(a) income support;

(b) income-based jobseeker’s allowance;

(c) income-related employment and support allowance;

‘qualifying person’ means a person in respect of whom payment has been made from the Fund,

the Eileen Trust, MFET Limited, the Skipton Fund, the Caxton Foundation or the London

Bombings Relief Charitable Fund;

‘reduction week’ means a period of seven consecutive days beginning with a Monday and

ending with a Sunday;

‘relative’ means a close relative, grandparent, grandchild, uncle, aunt, nephew or niece;

‘relevant authority’ means an authority administering council tax reduction;

‘relevant week’ In relation to any particular day, means the week within which the day in

question falls;

‘remunerative work’ has the meaning prescribed in section 6;

‘rent’ means ‘eligible rent’ to which regulation 12 of the Housing Benefit Regulations refers less

any deductions in respect of non-dependants which fall to be made under regulation 74 (non-

dependant deductions) of those Regulations;

‘resident’ has the meaning it has in Part 1 or 2 of the 1992 Act;

‘second adult’ has the meaning given to it in Schedule 2;

'second authority’ means the authority to which a mover is liable to make payments for the

new dwelling;

‘self-employed earner’ is to be construed in accordance with section 2(1)(b) of the Act;

‘self-employment route’ means assistance in pursuing self-employed earner's employment

whilst participating in—

(a)  an employment zone programme;

(b) a programme provided or other arrangements made pursuant to section 2 of the 1973
Act (functions of the Secretary of State) or section 2 of the Enterprise and New Towns
(Scotland) Act 1990 (functions in relation to training for employment, etc.); or

() the Employment, Skills and Enterprise Scheme;&

’service user group’ means a group of individuals that is consulted by or on behalf of;

(a) a Health Board, Special Health Board or the Agency in consequence of a function under
section 2B of the National Health Service (Scotland) Act 1978,

(b) a landlord authority in consequence of a function under section 105 of the Housing Act
1985,

(c) a public authority in Northern Ireland in consequence of a function under section 49A of
the Disability Discrimination Act 1995,

(d) a public authority in consequence of a function relating to disability under section 149 of
the Equality Act 2010;

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dygglete¥ 528 22




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

(e) a best value authority in consequence of a function under section 3 of the Local
Government Act 1999,

(f) a local authority landlord or registered social landlord in consequence of a function under
section 53 of the Housing (Scotland) Act 2001,

(g) a relevant English body or a relevant Welsh body in consequence of a function under
section 242 of the National Health Service Act 2006,

(h) a Local Health Board in consequence of a function under section 183 of the National Health
Service (Wales) Act 2006,

(i) the Care Quality Commission in consequence of a function under section 4 or 5 of the
Health and Social Care Act 2008,

(j) the regulator or a private registered provider of social housing in consequence of a function
under section 98, 193 or 196 of the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008, or

(k) a public or local authority in Great Britain in consequence of a function conferred under any
other enactment,

for the purposes of monitoring and advising on a policy of that body or authority which affects

or may affect persons in the group, or of monitoring or advising on services provided by that

body or authority which are used (or may potentially be used) by those persons;

‘single applicant’ means an applicant who neither has a partner nor is a lone parent;

‘the Skipton Fund’ means the ex-gratia payment scheme administered by the Skipton Fund

Limited, incorporated on 25th March 2004, for the benefit of certain persons suffering from

hepatitis C and other persons eligible for payment in accordance with the scheme’s provisions.

'special account’ means an account as defined for the purposes of Chapter 4A of Part 8 of the

Jobseeker’s Allowance Regulations or Chapter 5 of Part 10 of the Employment and Support

Allowance Regulations;

‘sports award’ means an award made by one of the Sports Councils named in section 23(2) of

the National Lottery etc Act 1993 out of sums allocated to it for distribution under that section;

‘the SSCBA’ means the Social Security Contributions and Benefits Act 1992

‘State Pension Credit Act’ means the State Pension Credit Act 2002;

‘student’ has the meaning prescribed in section 43;

‘subsistence allowance’ means an allowance which an employment zone contractor has agreed

to pay to a person who is participating in an employment zone programme;

‘support or reduction week’ means a period of 7 consecutive days commencing upon a Monday

and ending on a Sunday;

‘the Tax Credits Act’ means the Tax Credits Act 2002;

‘tax year’ means a period beginning with 6th April in one year and ending with 5th April in

the next;

‘training allowance’ means an allowance (whether by way of periodical grants or otherwise)

payable—

(a) out of public funds by a Government department or by or on behalf of the Secretary of
State, Skills Development Scotland, Scottish Enterprise or Highlands and Islands Enterprise,
the Young People’s Learning Agency for England, the Chief Executive of Skills Funding or
Welsh Ministers;

(b)  to aperson for his maintenance or in respect of a member of his family; and

(c) for the period, or part of the period, during which he is following a course of training or
instruction provided by, or in pursuance of arrangements made with, the department or
approved by the department in relation to him or so provided or approved by or on behalf
of the Secretary of State, Skills Development Scotland Scottish Enterprise or Highlands and
Islands Enterprise or the Welsh Ministers.

It does not include an allowance paid by any Government department to or in respect of a

person by reason of the fact that he is following a course of full-time education, other than

under arrangements made under section 2 of the 1973 Actor is training as a teacher;

‘the Trusts’ means the Macfarlane Trust, the Macfarlane (Special Payments) Trust and the

Macfarlane (Special Payments) (No. 2) Trust;

‘Universal Credit’ means any payment of Universal Credit payable under the Welfare Reform

Act 2012;

‘voluntary organisation’ means a body, other than a public or local authority, the activities of

which are carried on otherwise than for profit;

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 258 23




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

22

23

24

2.4A

'war disablement pension’ means any retired pay or pension or allowance payable in respect of
disablement under an instrument specified in section 639(2) of the Income Tax (Earnings and
Pensions) Act 2003;

‘war pension’ means a war disablement pension, a war widow’s pension or a war widower’s
pension;

‘war widow’s pension’ means any pension or allowance payable to a woman as a widow under
an instrument specified in section 639(2) of the Income Tax (Earnings and Pensions) Act 2003 in
respect of the death or disablement of any person;

‘war widower’s pension’ means any pension or allowance payable to a man as a widower or to
a surviving civil partner under an instrument specified in section 639(2) of the Income Tax
(Earnings and Pensions) Act 2003 in respect of the death or disablement of any person;

‘water charges’ means;

(a) as respects England and Wales, any water and sewerage charges under Chapter 1 of Part 5 of
the Water Industry Act 1991,

(b) as respects Scotland, any water and sewerage charges established by Scottish Water under a
charges scheme made under section 29A of the Water Industry (Scotland) Act 2002, in so far as
such charges are in respect of the dwelling which a person occupies as his home;

‘week’ means a period of seven days beginning with a Monday;

‘Working Tax Credit Regulations’ means the Working Tax Credit (Entitlement and Maximum
Rate) Regulations 2002; and

‘young person’ has the meaning prescribed in section 9(1) and in section 142 of the SSCBA.

In this policy, references to an applicant occupying a dwelling or premises as his home shall be
construed in accordance with regulation 7 of the Housing Benefit Regulations 2006.

In this policy, where an amount is to be rounded to the nearest penny, a fraction of a penny
shall be disregarded if it is less than half a penny and shall otherwise be treated as a whole
penny.

For the purpose of this policy, a person is on an income-based jobseeker’s allowance on any day

in respect of which an income-based jobseeker’s allowance is payable to him and on any day;

(a) in respect of which he satisfies the conditions for entitlement to an income- based
jobseeker’s allowance but where the allowance is not paid in accordance with regulation
27A of the Jobseeker’s Allowance Regulations or section 19 or 20A or regulations made
under section 17A of the Jobseekers Act (circumstances in which a jobseeker’s allowance
is not payable); or

(b)  which is a waiting day for the purposes of paragraph 4 of Schedule 1 to that Act and
which falls immediately before a day in respect of which an income- based jobseeker’s
allowance is payable to him or would be payable to him but for regulation 27A of the
Jobseeker’'s Allowance Regulations or section 19 or 20A or regulations made under
section 17A of that Act;

(c) in respect of which he is a member of a joint-claim couple for the purposes of the
Jobseekers Act and no joint-claim jobseeker’s allowance is payable in respect of that
couple as a consequence of either member of that couple being subject to sanctions for
the purposes of section 20A of that Act;

(d) in respect of which an income-based jobseeker’s allowance or a joint-claim jobseeker’s
allowance would be payable but for a restriction imposed pursuant to section 6B, 7, 8 or
9 of the Social Security Fraud Act 2001 (loss of benefit provisions).

For the purposes of this policy, a person is on an income-related employment and support
allowance on any day in respect of which an income-related employment and support
allowance is payable to him and on any day;

(a) in respect of which he satisfies the conditions for entitlement to an income- related
employment and support allowance but where the allowance is not paid in accordance
with section 18 of the Welfare Reform Act disqualification; or

(b)  which is a waiting day for the purposes of paragraph 2 of Schedule 2 to that Act and
which falls immediately before a day in respect of which an income- related employment

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DiggleteX 56 24




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

25

26

3.0

31

3.2

33

4.0

41

and support allowance is payable to him or would be payable to him but for section 18 of
that Act.

For the purposes of this policy, two persons shall be taken to be estranged only if their
estrangement constitutes a breakdown of the relationship between them.

In this policy, references to any person in receipt of state pension credit includes a person who

would be in receipt of state pension credit but for regulation 13 of the State Pension Credit
Regulations 2002 (small amounts of state pension credit).

Definition of non-dependant

In this policy, ‘non-dependant’ means any person, except someone to whom paragraph 3.2
applies, who normally resides with an applicant or with whom an applicant normally resides.

This paragraph applies to;

a. any member of the applicant’s family;

b. if the applicant is polygamously married, any partner of his and any child or young person
who is a member of his household and for whom he or one of his partners is responsible;

C. a child or young person who is living with the applicant but who is not a member of his
household by virtue of section 11(membership of the same household);

d. subject to paragraph 3.3, any person who, with the applicant, is jointly and severally

liable to pay council tax in respect of a dwelling for any day under sections 6, 7 or 75 of
the 1992 Act (persons liable to pay council tax);

e. subject to paragraph 3.3, any person who is liable to make payments on a commercial
basis to the applicant or the applicant’s partner in respect of the occupation of the
dwelling;

f. a person who lives with the applicant in order to care for him or a partner of his and who

is engaged by a charitable or voluntary organisation which makes a charge to the
applicant or his partner for the services provided by that person.

Excepting persons to whom paragraph 3.2 a) to c) and f) refer, a person to whom any of the

following sub-paragraphs applies shall be a non-dependant—

a. a person who resides with the person to whom he is liable to make payments in respect
of the dwelling and either;

i. that person is a close relative of his or her partner; or
ii. the tenancy or other agreement between them is other than on a
commercial basis;

b. a person whose liability to make payments in respect of the dwelling appears to the
authority to have been created to take advantage of the council tax support scheme
except someone who was, for any period within the eight weeks prior to the creation of
the agreement giving rise to the liability to make such payments, otherwise liable to
make payments of rent in respect of the same dwelling;

C. a person who becomes jointly and severally liable with the applicant for council tax in
respect of a dwelling and who was, at any time during the period of eight weeks prior to
his becoming so liable, a non-dependant of one or more of the other residents in that
dwelling who are so liable for the tax, unless the authority is satisfied that the change
giving rise to the new liability was not made to take advantage of the support scheme.

Requirement to provide a National Insurance Number*®

No person whose shall be entitled to support unless the criteria below in 4.2 is satisfied in

13 Inserted by Council Tax Reductions Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 257 25




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

4.2

43

5.0

51

52

6.0

6.1

6.2

relation both to the person making the claim and to any other person in respect of whom he is
claiming support.

This subsection is satisfied in relation to a person if—-
a. the claim for support is accompanied by;
i a statement of the person’s national insurance number and information or evidence
establishing that that number has been allocated to the person; or
ii. information or evidence enabling the national insurance number that has been
allocated to the person to be ascertained; or
b. the person makes an application for a national insurance number to be allocated to him
which is accompanied by information or evidence enabling such a number to be so allocated

Paragraph 4.2 shall not apply—
a. inthe case of a child or young person in respect of whom council tax support is claimed;
b. to aperson who;
i is a person in respect of whom a claim for council tax support is made;
ii. is subject to immigration control within the meaning of section 115(9)(a) of the
Immigration and Asylum Act;

iii. is a person from abroad for the purposes of this policy as defined in section 2.2; and
iv. has not previously been allocated a national insurance number.

Persons who have attained the qualifying age for state pension credit or who are of working
age and who have a partner who has attained the qualifying age for state pension credit

This policy for working age applicants does not apply in relation to any person if he, or if he has
a partner, his partner, has attained the qualifying age for state pension credit, except where
either partner receives Income Support, Jobseekers Allowance (Income Based) or Employment
and Support Allowance (Income Related)

This scheme also applies to a person if;
(i) he has not attained the qualifying age for state pension credit; or
(ii) he has attained the qualifying age for state pension credit and he, or if he has a
partner, his partner, is;
(a) a person on income support, on income-based jobseeker’s allowance or an
income-related employment and support allowance; or
(b) a person with an award of universal credit.

Remunerative work

Subject to the following provisions of this section, a person shall be treated for the purposes of
this policy as engaged in remunerative work if he is engaged, or, where his hours of work
fluctuate, he is engaged on average, for not less than 16 hours a week, in work for which
payment is made or which is done in expectation of payment.

Subject to paragraph 6.3, in determining the number of hours for which a person is engaged in
work where his hours of work fluctuate, regard shall be had to the average of hours worked
over;

a. if there is a recognisable cycle of work, the period of one complete cycle (including,
where the cycle involves periods in which the person does no work, those periods but
disregarding any other absences);

b. in any other case, the period of 5 weeks immediately prior to that date of claim, or
such other length of time as may, in the particular case, enable the person’s weekly
average hours of work to be determined more accurately,

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DiggleteX 58 26




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

7.0

71

7.2

73

7.4

75

Where, for the purposes of paragraph 6.2 a), a person’s recognisable cycle of work at a school,
other educational establishment or other place of employment is one year and includes periods
of school holidays or similar vacations during which he does not work, those periods and any
other periods not forming part of such holidays or vacations during which he is not required to
work shall be disregarded in establishing the average hours for which he is engaged in work.

Where no recognisable cycle has been established in respect of a person’s work, regard shall be
had to the number of hours or, where those hours will fluctuate, the average of the hours,
which he is expected to work in a week.

A person shall be treated as engaged in remunerative work during any period for which he is
absent from work referred to in paragraph 6.1 if the absence is either without good cause or by
reason of a recognised customary or other holiday.

A person on income support, an income-based jobseeker’s allowance or an income-related
employment and support allowance for more than 3 days in any reduction week shall be
treated as not being in remunerative work in that week.

A person shall not be treated as engaged in remunerative work on any day on which the person
is on maternity leave, paternity leave or adoption leave, or is absent from work because he isiill.

A person shall not be treated as engaged in remunerative work on any day on which he is
engaged in an activity in respect of which;

a. asports award has been made, or is to be made, to him; and

b. no other payment is made or is expected to be made to him.

Persons from abroad — exempted from claiming under this scheme
Class of person excluded from this scheme: persons treated as not being in Great Britain

The class of person described in this paragraph consists of any person treated as not
being in Great Britain.

Except where a person falls within sub-paragraph (5) or (6), a person is to be treated as
not being in Great Britain if the person is not habitually resident in the United Kingdom,
the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or the Republic of Ireland.

A person must not be treated as habitually resident in the United Kingdom, the Channel
Islands, the Isle of Man or the Republic of Ireland unless the person has a right to reside
in one of those places.

For the purposes of sub-paragraph (3), a right to reside does not include a right which
exists by virtue of, or in accordance with;

(a) regulation 13 of the EEA Regulations or Article 6 of Council Directive No
2004/38/EC ;or

(b) regulation 15A(1) of the EEA Regulations, but only in a case where the right
exists under that regulation because the applicant satisfies the criteria in
paragraph (4A) of that regulation or Article 20 of the Treaty on the Functioning
of the European Union (in a case where the right to reside arises because a
British citizen would otherwise be deprived of the genuine enjoyment of their
rights as a European Union citizen)

A person falls within this sub-paragraph if the person is;

(a) a qualified person for the purposes of regulation 6 of the EEA Regulations as a
worker or a self-employed person;

(b) a family member of a person referred to in paragraph (a) within the meaning of
regulation 7(1)(a), (b) or (c) of the EEA Regulations;

(c) a person who has a right to reside permanently in the United Kingdom by
virtue of regulation 15(1)(c), (d) or (e) of the EEA Regulations;

(d) a person recorded by the Secretary of State as a refugee within the definition in

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 258 27




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

7.6

7.7

7.8

8.0

8.1

8.2

83

8.4

Article 1 of the Convention relating to the Status of Refugees done at Geneva
on 28th July 1951, as extended by Article 1(2) of the Protocol relating to the
Status of Refugees done at New York on 31st January 1967;

(e) a person granted limited leave to enter or remain in the United Kingdom
outside the provisions of the rules made under section 3(2) of the Immigration
Act 1971 on the rejection of their claim for asylum;

(f) a person who has humanitarian protection granted under those rules; or

(g) a person who is not a person subject to immigration control within the
meaning of section 115(9) of the Immigration and Asylum Act 1999 and who is
in the United Kingdom as a result of his deportation, expulsion or other
removal by compulsion of law from another country to the United Kingdom.

A person falls within this sub-paragraph if the person is a Crown servant or member of
Her Majesty's forces posted overseas.

A person mentioned in sub-paragraph (6) is posted overseas if the person is performing
overseas the duties of a Crown servant or member of Her Majesty's forces and was,
immediately before the posting or the first of consecutive postings, habitually resident
in the United Kingdom.

In this paragraph

‘claim for asylum’ has the same meaning as in section 94(1) of the Immigration and
Asylum Act 1999;

‘EEA Regulations’ means the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2006;
‘Person subject to immigration control’ has the meaning given in section 115(9) of the
Immigration and Asylum Act 1999.

Temporary Absence (period of absence)

Where a person is absent from the dwelling throughout any day then no support shall be
payable

A person shall not, in relation to any day, which falls within a period of temporary absence from
that dwelling, be a prescribed person under paragraph 8.1.

In paragraph 8.2, a ‘period of temporary absence’ means—
a. aperiod of absence not exceeding 13 weeks, beginning with the first whole day on which a
person resides in residential accommodation where and for so long as;
i. the person resides in that accommodation;
ii. the part of the dwelling in which he usually resided is not let or sub-let; and
iii. that period of absence does not form part of a longer period of absence from the
dwelling of more than 52 weeks,

where he has entered the accommodation for the purpose of ascertaining whether it suits his
needs and with the intention of returning to the dwelling if it proves not to suit his needs;

b. a period of absence not exceeding 13 weeks, beginning with the first whole day of absence
from the dwelling, where and for so long as;
i. the person intends to return to the dwelling;
ii. the part of the dwelling in which he usually resided is not let or sub-let; and
iii. that period is unlikely to exceed 13 weeks; and
c. a period of absence not exceeding 52 weeks, beginning with the first whole day of absence,
where and for so long as
i. the person intends to return to the dwelling;
ii. the part of the dwelling in which he usually resided is not let or sub-let;
iii. the person is a person to whom paragraph 8.4 applies; and
iv. the period of absence is unlikely to exceed 52 weeks or, in exceptional
circumstances, is unlikely substantially to exceed that period.
This paragraph applies to a person who is;

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DiggleteX 573 28




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

a. detained in custody on remand pending trial or required, as a condition of bail, to reside;
i. inadwelling, other than the dwelling referred to in paragraph 6.1, or
ii. in premises approved under section 13 of the Offender Management Act 2007, or,
detained in custody pending sentence upon conviction;
resident in a hospital or similar institution as a patient;
C. undergoing, or his partner or his dependent child is undergoing, in the United Kingdom
or elsewhere, medical treatment, or medically approved convalescence, in
accommodation other than residential accommodation;

d. following, in the United Kingdom or elsewhere, a training course;

e. undertaking medically approved care of a person residing in the United Kingdom or
elsewhere;

f. undertaking the care of a child whose parent or guardian is temporarily absent from the

dwelling normally occupied by that parent or guardian for the purpose of receiving
medically approved care of medical treatment;

g. in the United Kingdom or elsewhere, receiving medically approved care provided in
accommodation other than residential accommodation;
h. a student;

i receiving care provided in residential accommodation other than a person to whom
paragraph 6.3a) applies; or

j- has left the dwelling he resides in through fear of violence, in that dwelling, or by a
person who was formerly a member of the family of the person first mentioned.

This paragraph applies to a person who is;

a. detained in custody pending sentence upon conviction or under a sentence imposed by a
court (other than a person who is detained in hospital under the provisions of the Mental
Health Act 1983, or, in Scotland, under the provisions of the Mental Health (Care and
Treatment) (Scotland) Act 2003 or the Criminal Procedure (Scotland) Act 1995) or, in
Northern Ireland, under Article 4 or 12 of the Mental Health (Northern Ireland) Order
1986; and

b. on temporary release from detention in accordance with Rules made under the
provisions of the Prison Act 1952 or the Prisons (Scotland) Act 1989

8.6  Where paragraph 8.5 applies to a person, then, for any day when he is on temporary release—

a. if such temporary release was immediately preceded by a period of temporary absence
under paragraph 8.3 b) or c), he shall be treated, for the purposes of paragraph 8.1, as if
he continues to be absent from the dwelling, despite any return to the dwelling;

b. for the purposes of paragraph 8.4 a), he shall be treated as if he remains in detention;

c.If he does not fall within sub-paragraph a), he is not considered to be a person who is liable to
pay Council Tax in respect of a dwelling of which he is resident

8.7 In this section;
. ‘medically approved’ means certified by a medical practitioner;
. ‘patient’ means a person who is undergoing medical or other treatment as an in- patient
in any hospital or similar institution; ‘residential accommodation” means accommodation
which is provided;

a. in a care home;

b. in an independent hospital;

C. in an Abbeyfield Home; or

d in an establishment managed or provided by a body incorporated by Royal Charter

or constituted by Act of Parliament other than a local social services authority;

e. ‘training course’ means a course of training or instruction provided wholly or
partly by or on behalf of or in pursuance of arrangements made with, or approved
by or on behalf of, Skills Development Scotland, Scottish Enterprise, Highlands and
Islands Enterprise, a government department or the Secretary of State.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 263 29




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Sections 9-11

The family for Council Tax Support purposes

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DogpleteX 633

30




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

9.0 Membership of a family

9.1 Within the support scheme adopted by the Council ‘family’ means;

a. amarried or unmarried couple;

b. married or unmarried couple and a member of the same household for whom one of
them is or both are responsible and who is a child or a young person;

c. two people of the same sex who are civil partners of each other and are members of the
same household (with or without children);

d. two people of the same sex who are not civil partners of each other but are living
together as if they were civil partners (with or without children),

e. and for the purposes of sub-paragraph (d) two people of the same sex are to be regarded
as living together as if they were civil partners if, but only if, they would be regarded as
living together as husband and wife were they instead two people of the opposite sex;

f. except in prescribed circumstances, a person who is not a member of a married or
unmarried couple and a member of the same household for whom that person is
responsible and who is a child or a young person;

For the purposes of the policy a child is further defined as a ‘child or young person’
A ‘child’ means a person under the age of 16 and a ‘Young Person’ is someone aged 16 or over
but under 20 and who satisfies other conditions. These conditions are:

e they are aged 16, have left 'relevant education' or training, and 31 August following
the sixteenth birthday has not yet been passed;

e they are aged 16 or 17, have left education or training, are registered for work,
education or training, are not in remunerative work and are still within their
‘extension period’;

e they are on a course of full-time non-advanced education, or are doing 'approved
training', and they began that education or training before reaching the age of 19;

e they have finished a course of full-time non-advanced education, but are enrolled on
another such course (other than one provided as a result of their employment);

e they have left 'relevant education' or 'approved training' but have not yet passed
their 'terminal date’.

9.2  Paragraph 9.1 shall not apply to a person who is;

a. on income support ;

b. an income-based jobseeker’s allowance or an income- related employment and support
allowance; or has an award of Universal Credit; or

C. a person to whom section 6 of the Children (Leaving Care) Act 2000 applies.

9.3  The definition also includes a child or young person in respect of whom there is an entitlement
to child benefit but only for the period that Child Benefit is payable

10.0 Circumstances in which a person is to be treated as responsible (or not responsible) for a child
or young person.

10.1 Subject to the following paragraphs a person shall be treated as responsible for a child or young
person who is normally living with him and this includes a child or young person to whom
paragraph 9.3 applies

10.2 Where a child or young person spends equal amounts of time in different households, or where
there is a question as to which household he is living in, the child or young person shall be
treated for the purposes of paragraph 9.1 as normally living with;

a. the person who is receiving child benefit in respect of him; or
b. if there is no such person;
i. where only one claim for child benefit has been made in respect of him, the

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 263 31




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

10.3

11.0

111

11.2

113

11.4

115

person who made that claim; or
ii. in any other case the person who has the primary responsibility for him.

For the purposes of this policy a child or young person shall be the responsibility of only one
person in any reduction week and any person other than the one treated as responsible for the
child or young person under this section shall be treated as not so responsible.

Circumstances in which a child or young person is to be treated as being or not being a
member of the household

Subject to paragraphs 11.2 and 11.3, the applicant and any partner and, where the applicant or
his partner is treated as responsible by virtue of section 10 (circumstances in which a person is
to be treated as responsible or not responsible for a child or young person) for a child or young
person, that child or young person and any child of that child or young person, shall be treated
as members of the same household notwithstanding that any of them is temporarily absent
from that household.

A child or young person shall not be treated as a member of the applicant’s household where he

is—

a. placed with the applicant or his partner by a local authority under section 23(2)(a) of the
Children Act 1989 or by a voluntary organisation under section 59(1)(a) of that Act, or in
Scotland boarded out with the applicant or his partner under a relevant enactment; or
placed, or in Scotland boarded out, with the applicant or his partner prior to adoption; or

C. placed for adoption with the applicant or his partner in accordance with the Adoption
and Children Act 2002 or the Adoption Agencies (Scotland) Regulations 2009.

Subject to paragraph 11.4, paragraph 11.1 shall not apply to a child or young person who is not
living with the applicant and he—
a. is being looked after by, or in Scotland is in the care of, a local authority under a relevant
enactment; or
b. has been placed, or in Scotland boarded out, with a person other than the applicant prior
to adoption; or
c. has been placed for adoption in accordance with the Adoption and Children Act 2002 or
the Adoption Agencies (Scotland) Regulations 2009; or in accordance with an adoption
allowance scheme made under section 71 of the Adoption and Children (Scotland) Act
2007 (adoption allowances schemes).

An authority shall treat a child or young person to whom paragraph 11.3 a) applies as being a
member of the applicant’s household in any reduction week where;

a. that child or young person lives with the applicant for part or all of that reduction week;
and
b. the authority considers that it is responsible to do so taking into account the nature and

frequency of that child’s or young person’s visits.

In this paragraph ‘relevant enactment’ means the Army Act 1955, the Air Force Act 1955, the
Naval Discipline Act 1957, the Matrimonial Proceedings (Children) Act 1958, the Social Work
(Scotland) Act 1968, the Family Law Reform Act 1969, the Children and Young Persons Act 1969,
the Matrimonial Causes Act 1973, the Children Act 1975, the Domestic Proceedings and
Magistrates’ Courts Act 1978, the Adoption (Scotland) Act 1978, the Family Law Act 1986, the
Children Act 1989, the Children (Scotland) Act 1995 and the Legal Aid, Sentencing and
Punishment of Offenders Act 2012.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dygglete¥ 528 32




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Sections 12 — 14 & Schedule 1

Living Allowances (Applicable Amounts) for Council Tax Support purposes

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaageg PEE

33




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

12.0  Applicable amounts (Living Allowances)

12.1 Subject to sections 13 and 14,an applicant’s weekly applicable amount shall be aggregate of
such of the following amounts as may apply in his case;
a. an amount in respect of himself or, if he is a member of a couple, an amount in respect
of both of them, determined in accordance with paragraph 1 as the case may be, of
Schedule 1 of this policy;

b. an amount determined in accordance with paragraph 2 of Schedule 1 of this policy in
respect of any child or young person who is a member of his family;

C. if he is a member of a family of which at least one member is a child or young person, an
amount determined in accordance with paragraph 3 of Schedule 1 (family premium);

d. the amount of any premiums which may be applicable to him, determined in accordance
with paragraphs 4 to 20 of Schedule 1 of this document (premiums).

e. the amount of either the

i. work-related activity component; or
ii. support component which may be applicable to him in accordance with paragraph
21 and 22 of Schedule 1 of this document(the components)
f. the amount of any transitional addition which may be applicable to him in accordance
with paragraph 23 to 24 of Schedule 1 of this policy (transitional addition).

13.0 Polygamous marriages

13.1 Subject to section 14, where an applicant is a member of a polygamous marriage, his weekly
applicable amount shall be the aggregate of such of the following amounts as may apply in his
case;

a. the amount applicable to him and one of his partners determined in accordance
with paragraph 1lof Schedule 1 of this policy as if he and that partner were a
couple;

b. an amount equal to the lowest amount within paragraph 1 of Schedule 1 of this
policy in respect of each of his other partners;

c. an amount determined in accordance with paragraph 2 of Schedule 1 of this policy
(applicable amounts or living allowances) in respect of any child or young person
for whom he or a partner of his is responsible and who is a member of the same
household;

d. if he or another partner of the polygamous marriage is responsible for a child or
young person who is a member of the same household, the amount specified in
paragraph 3 of Schedule 1 of this policy (family premium);

e. the amount of any premiums which may be applicable to him determined in
accordance with paragraphs 4 to 16 of Schedule 1 of this policy (premiums).

f.  the amount of either the;

i work-related activity component; or
ii. support component which may be applicable to him in accordance within
paragraph 17 and 18 of Schedule 1 (the components).

g. the amount of any transitional addition which may be applicable to him in
accordance with paragraphs 19 and 20 of Schedule 1 of this policy (transitional
addition)

14.0 Applicable amount: persons who are not pensioners who have an award of universal credit

14.1 In determining the applicable amount for a week of an applicant
(a) who has, or

(b) whose partner has, or

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DiggleteX 5% 34




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

(c) who (jointly with his partner) has,
an award of universal credit, the authority will use the calculation or estimate of the
maximum amount of the applicant, or the applicant’s partner, or the applicant and his partner

jointly (as the case may be), subject to the adjustment described in sub-paragraph (2).

14.2 The adjustment referred to in sub-paragraph (1) is to multiply the maximum amount by 12
and divide the product by 52.

14.3 In this paragraph “maximum amount” means the maximum amount calculated by the
Secretary of State in accordance with section 8(2) of the Welfare Reform Act 2012.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaag# 287 35




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Sections 15 —32 & Schedules 3 & 4

Definition and the treatment of income for Council Tax Support purposes

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DogqpleteX 6%

36




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

15.0

151

15.2

15.2

15A.0

15A.1

15A.2

15A.3

15A.4

15A.5

Calculation of income and capital of members of applicant’s family and of a polygamous
marriage

The income and capital of an applicant’s partner within this policy and for the purposes of
claiming council tax support is to be treated as income and capital of the applicant and shall be
calculated or estimated in accordance with the following provisions in like manner as for the
applicant; and any reference to the ‘ applicant’ shall, except where the context otherwise
requires be construed for the purposes of this policy as if it were a reference to his partner.

Where an applicant or the partner of is married polygamously to two or more members of his
household—
a. the applicant shall be treated as possessing capital and income belonging to each such
member; and
b. the income and capital of that member shall be calculated in accordance with the
following provisions of this policy in like manner as for the applicant.

The income and capital of a child or young person shall not be treated as the income and capital
of the applicant.

Calculation of income and capital: persons who are not pensioners who have an award of
universal credit

In determining the income of an applicant

a. who has, or

b. who (jointly with his partner) has,
an award of universal credit the authority must, subject to the following provisions of this
paragraph, use the calculation or estimate of the income of the applicant, or the applicant and
his partner jointly (as the case may be), made by the Secretary of State for the purpose of
determining the award of universal credit.

The authority must adjust the amount referred to in sub-paragraph (1) to take account of

(a) income consisting of the award of universal credit, determined in accordance with
subparagraph (3);

(b) any sum to be disregarded under paragraphs of Schedule 3 to this scheme (sums to be
disregarded in the calculation of earnings: persons who are not pensioners);

(c) any sum to be disregarded under paragraphs of Schedule 4 to this

scheme (sums to be disregarded in the calculation of income other than earnings: persons who
are not pensioners);

(d) section 16 (circumstances in which income and capital of non-dependant is to be

treated as applicant's), if the authority determines that the provision applies in the applicant's
case;

(e) such further reduction (if any) as the authority thinks fit under section 13A(1)(c) of the

1992 Act (power of billing authority to reduce amount of council tax payable).

The amount for the award of universal credit is to be determined by multiplying the amount of
the award by 12 and dividing the product by 52.

sections 16 (income and capital of non-dependant to be treated as applicant’s) and 52 and 53
(disregards from income) apply (so far as relevant) for the purpose of determining any
adjustments, which fall to be made to the figure for income under sub-paragraph (2)

In determining the capital of an applicant;
(a) who has, or
(b) who (jointly with his partner) has,

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 2358 37




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

16.0
16.1

16.2

17.0
171

17.2

17.3

17.4

18.0

18.1

an award of universal credit, the authority must use the calculation or estimate of the capital of
the applicant, or the applicant and his partner jointly (as the case may be), made by the
Secretary of State for the purpose of determining that award

Circumstances in which capital and income of non-dependant is to be treated as applicant’s

Where it appears to the authority that a non-dependant and the applicant have entered into
arrangements in order to take advantage of the council tax support scheme and the non-
dependant has more capital and income than the applicant, that authority shall, except were
the applicant is on income support, an income- based jobseeker’s allowance or an income-
related employment and support allowance, treat the applicant as possessing capital and
income belonging to that non-dependant, and, in such a case, shall disregard any capital and
income which the applicant does possess.”

Where an applicant is treated as possessing capital and income belonging to a non-dependant
under paragraph 16.1 the capital and income of that non-dependant shall be calculated in
accordance with the following provisions in like manner as for the applicant and any reference
to the ‘ applicant’ shall, except where the context otherwise requires, be construed for the
purposes of this policy as if it were a reference to that non-dependant.

Calculation of income on a weekly basis

For the purposes of this policy and in line with regulation 34 of the Housing Benefit Regulations
2006 (disregard to changes in tax, contributions etc.), the income of an applicant shall be
calculated on a weekly basis;

a. by estimating the amount which is likely to be his average weekly income in accordance
with this Section and in line with Sections 2, 3, 4 and 5 of Part 6 of the Housing Benefit
Regulations 2006;

b. by adding to that amount the weekly income calculated in line with regulation 52 of the
Housing Benefit Regulations 2006 (calculation to tariff income from capital); and

c. by then deducting any relevant child care charges to which section 18 (treatment of child
care charges) applies from any earnings which form part of the average weekly income
or, in a case where the conditions in paragraph 17.2 are met, from those earnings plus
whichever credit specified in sub- paragraph (b) of that paragraph is appropriate, up to a
maximum deduction in respect of the applicant’'s family of whichever of the sums
specified in paragraph (3) applies in his case.

The conditions of this paragraph are that;

a. the applicant’s earnings which form part of his average weekly income are less than the
lower of either his relevant child care charges or whichever of the deductions specified in
paragraph (3) otherwise applies in his case; and

b. that applicant or, if he is a member of a couple either the applicant or his partner, is in
receipt of either working tax credit or child tax credit.

The maximum deduction to which paragraph 17.1 c) above refers shall be;

a. where the applicant’s family includes only one child in respect of whom relevant child

care charges are paid, £175.00 per week.

b. where the applicant’s family includes more than one child in respect of whom relevant

child care charges are paid, £300.00 per week.

The amounts stated in this paragraph shall be amended in accordance with the Housing

Benefit Regulations 2006 (as amended)

For the purposes of paragraph 17.1 ‘income’ includes capital treated as income under section 31
(capital treated as income) and income, which an applicant is treated as possessing under

section 32 (notional income).

Treatment of child care charges

This section applies where an applicant is incurring relevant child-care charges and;

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DiggleteX 763 38




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

a. is a lone parent and is engaged in remunerative work;
b is a member of a couple both of whom are engaged in remunerative work; or
C. is a member of a couple where one member is engaged in remunerative work and the

other;
i. isincapacitated;
ii. is an in-patient in hospital; or
iii. is in prison (whether serving a custodial sentence or remanded in custody
awaiting trial or sentence).

18.2 For the purposes of paragraph 18.1 and subject to paragraph 18.4, a person to whom paragraph
18.3 applies shall be treated as engaged in remunerative work for a period not exceeding 28
weeks during which he—

a. is paid statutory sick pay;

b. is paid short-term incapacity benefit at the lower rate under sections 30A to 30E of the
Act;

C. is paid an employment and support allowance;

d. is paid income support on the grounds of incapacity for work under regulation 4ZA of,
and paragraph 7 or 14 of Schedule 1B to, the Income Support Regulations; or

e. is credited with earnings on the grounds of incapacity for work or limited capability for

work under regulation 8B of the Social Security (Credits) Regulations.

18.3 This paragraph applies to a person who was engaged in remunerative work immediately before
a. the first day of the period in respect of which he was first paid statutory sick pay, short-
term incapacity benefit, an employment and support allowance or income support on
the grounds of incapacity for work; or
b. the first day of the period in respect of which earnings are credited, as the case may be.

18.4 In a case to which paragraph 18.2 d) or e) applies, the period of 28 weeks begins on the day on
which the person is first paid income support or on the first day of the period in respect of
which earnings are credited, as the case may be.

18.5 Relevant child care charges are those charges for care to which paragraphs 18.6 and 18.7 apply,
and shall be calculated on a weekly basis in accordance with paragraph 18.10.

18.6 The charges are paid by the applicant for care, which is provided
a. in the case of any child of the applicant’s family who is not disabled, in respect of the
period beginning on that child’s date of birth and ending on the day preceding the first
Monday in September following that child’s fifteenth birthday; or
b. in the case of any child of the applicant’s family who is disabled, in respect of the period
beginning on that person’s date of birth and ending on the day preceding the first
Monday in September following that person’s sixteenth birthday.

18.7 The charges are paid for care, which is provided by one, or more of the care providers listed in
paragraph 18.8 and are not paid-

a. in respect of the child’s compulsory education;

b. by an applicant to a partner or by a partner to an applicant in respect of any child for
whom either or any of them is responsible in accordance with section 10 (circumstances
in which a person is treated as responsible or not responsible for another); or

C. in respect of care provided by a relative of the child wholly or mainly in the child’s home.

18.8 The care to which paragraph 18.7 refers may be provided;
a. out of school hours, by a school on school premises or by a local authority;

i. for children who are not disabled in respect of the period beginning on their eight
birthday and ending on the day preceding the first Monday in September
following their fifteenth birthday; or

ii. for children who are disabled in respect of the period beginning on their eight
birthday and ending on the day preceding the first Monday in September

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# AP 39




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

18.9

18.10

= @

m.

following their sixteenth birthday; or
by a child care provider approved in accordance with by the Tax Credit (New Category of
Child Care Provider) Regulations 1999;
by persons registered under Part 2 of the Children and Families (Wales) Measure 2010;
or
by a person who is excepted from registration under Part 2 of the Children and Families
(Wales) Measure 2010 because the child care that person provides is in a school or
establishment referred to in article 11, 12 or 14 of the Child Minding and Day Care
Exceptions (Wales) order 2010; or

by;
i. persons registered under section 59(1) of the Public Services Reform Scotland Act
2010;
Act 2001, or

ii. local authorities registered under section 83(1) of that Act, where the care
provided is child minding or daycare within the meaning of that Act; or

by a person prescribed in regulations made pursuant to section 12(4) of the Tax Credits
Act 2002 or
by a person who is registered under Chapter 2 or 3 of Part 3 of the Childcare Act 2006; or
by any of the schools mentioned in section 34(2) of the Childcare Act 2006 in
circumstances where the requirement to register under Chapter 2 of Part 3 of that Act
does not apply by virtue of section 34(2) of that Act; or
by any of the schools mentioned in section 53(2) of the Childcare Act 2006 in
circumstances where the requirement to register under Chapter 3 of Part 3 of that Act
does not apply by virtue of section 53(2) of that Act; or
by any of the establishments mentioned in section 18(5) of the Childcare Act 2006 in
circumstances where the care is not included in the meaning of ‘childcare’ for the
purposes of Part 1 and Part 3 of that Act by virtue of that subsection; or
by a foster parent or kinship carer under the Fostering Services Regulations 2002, the
Fostering Services (Wales) Regulations 2003 or the Looked After Children (Scotland)
Regulations 2009 in relation to a child other than one whom the foster parent is fostering
or kinship carer is looking after; or
by a domiciliary care worker under the Domiciliary Care Agencies Regulations 2002 or the
Domiciliary Care Agencies (Wales) Regulations 2004; or
by a person who is not a relative of the child wholly or mainly in the child’s home.

In paragraphs 18.6 and 18.8 a), ‘the first Monday in September’ means the Monday which first
occurs in the month of September in any year.

Relevant child care charges shall be estimated over such period, not exceeding a year, as is
appropriate in order that the average weekly charge may be estimated accurately having regard
to information as to the amount of that charge provided by the child minder or person
providing the care.

18.11 For the purposes of paragraph 18.1 c) the other member of a couple is incapacitated where

the applicant’s applicable amount includes a disability premium on account of the other
member’s incapacity or the support component or the work- related activity component
on account of his having limited capability for work

the applicant’s applicable amount would include a disability premium on account of the
other member’s incapacity but for that other member being treated as capable of work
by virtue of a determination made in accordance with regulation made under section
171E of the Act;

the applicant’s applicable amount would include the support component or the work-
related activity component on account of the other member having limited capability for
work but for that other member being treated as not having limited capability for work
by virtue of a determination made in accordance with the Employment and Support
Allowance Regulations 2008;

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DiggleteX 733 40




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

d.

the applicant (within the meaning of this scheme) is, or is treated as, incapable of work
and has been so incapable, or has been so treated as incapable, of work in accordance
with the provisions of, and regulations made under, Part 12A of the Act (incapacity for
work) for a continuous period of not less than 196 days; and for this purpose any two or
more separate periods separated by a break of not more than 56 days shall be treated as
one continuous period;
the applicant (within the meaning of this scheme) has, or is treated as having, limited
capability for work and has had, or been treated as having, limited capability for work in
accordance with the Employment and Support Allowance Regulations for a continuous
period of not less than 196 days and for this purpose any two or more separate periods
separated by a break of not more than 84 days must be treated as one continuous
period;

there is payable in respect of him one or more of the following pensions or

allowances—

i long-term incapacity benefit or short-term incapacity benefit at the higher rate
under Schedule 4 to the Act;

ii. attendance allowance under section 64 of the Act;

iii. severe disablement allowance under section 68 of the Act;

iv. disability living allowance under section 71 of the Act;

v. personal independence payment under the Welfare Reform Act 2012;

vi. an AFIP;

vii. increase of disablement pension under section 104 of the Act;

viii. a pension increase paid as part of a war disablement pension or under an
industrial injuries scheme which is analogous to an allowance or increase of
disablement pension under head (ii), (iv) or (v) above;

ix. main phase employment and support allowance;

a pension or allowance to which head (ii), (iv). (v) or (vi) of sub-paragraph (f) above refers

was payable on account of his incapacity but has ceased to be payable in consequence of

his becoming a patient, which in this section shall mean a person (other than a person
who is serving a sentence of imprisonment or detention in a youth custody institution)
who is regarded as receiving free in-patient treatment within the meaning of social

security (Hospital In-Patients) Regulations 2005;

an AFIP would be payable to that person but for any suspension of payment in

accordance with any terms of the armed and reserve forces compensation scheme which

allow for a suspension because a person is undergoing medical treatment in a hospital or
similar institution;

paragraphs (f) or (g) would apply to him if the legislative provisions referred to in those

sub-paragraphs were provisions under any corresponding enactment having effect in

Northern Ireland; or

he has an invalid carriage or other vehicle provided to him by the Secretary of State

under section 5(2)(a) of and Schedule 2 to the National Health Service Act 1977 or under

section 46 of the National Health Service (Scotland) Act 1978 or provided by the

Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety in Northern Ireland under Article

30(1) of the Health and Personal Social Services (Northern Ireland) Order 1972.

18.12 For the purposes of paragraph 18.11 once paragraph 18.11d) applies to the applicant, if he then
ceases, for a period of 56 days or less, to be incapable, or to be treated as incapable, of work,
that paragraph shall, on his again becoming so incapable, or so treated as incapable, of work at
the end of that period, immediately thereafter apply to him for so long as he remains incapable,
or is treated as remaining incapable, of work.

18.12AFor the purposes of paragraph 18.11, once paragraph 18.11¢e) applies to the applicant, if he then
ceases, for a period of 84 days or less, to have, or to be treated as having, limited capability for
work, that paragraph is, on his again having, or being treated as having, limited capability for
work at the end of that period, immediately thereafter apply to him for so long as he has, or is
treated as having, limited capability for work.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# APR 411




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

18.13 For the purposes of paragraphs 18.6 and 18.8 a), a person is disabled if he is a person—

a. in respect of whom disability living allowance or personal independence payment is
payable, or has ceased to be payable solely because he is a patient;
b. who is registered as blind in a register compiled under section 29 of the National

Assistance Act 1948 welfare services) or, in Scotland, has been certified as blind and in
consequence he is registered as blind in a register maintained by or on behalf of a council
constituted under section 2 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1994; or

C. who ceased to be registered as blind in such a register within the period beginning 28
weeks before the first Monday in September following that person’s fifteenth birthday
and ending on the day preceding that person’s sixteenth birthday.

18.14 For the purposes of paragraph 18.1 a person on maternity leave, paternity leave or adoption
leave shall be treated as if she is engaged in remunerative work for the period specified in
paragraph 18.15 (‘the relevant period’) provided that—

a. in the week before the period of maternity leave, paternity leave or adoption leave
began she was in remunerative work;

b. the applicant is incurring relevant child care charges within the meaning of paragraph
18.5; and

C. she is entitled to either statutory maternity pay under section 164 of the Act, statutory
paternity pay by virtue of section 171ZA or 1717B of the Act statutory adoption pay by of
section 1717L of the Act, maternity allowance under section 35 of the Act or qualifying
support.

18.15 For the purposes of paragraph 18.14 the relevant period shall begin on the day on which the
person’s maternity, paternity leave or adoption leave commences and shall end on—

a. the date that leave ends;

b. if no child care element of working tax credit is in payment on the date that entitlement
to maternity allowance, qualifying support, statutory maternity pay, statutory paternity
pay or statutory adoption pay ends, the date that entitlement ends; or

c. if a child care element of working tax credit is in payment on the date that entitlement to
maternity allowance or qualifying support, statutory maternity pay or statutory adoption
pay ends, the date that entitlement to that award of the child care element of the
working tax credits ends.

whichever shall occur first.

18.16 In paragraphs 18.14 and 18.15
a. ‘qualifying support’ means income support to which that person is entitled by virtue of
paragraph 14B of Schedule 1B to the Income Support Regulations 1987; and
b. ’child care element’ of working tax credit means the element of working tax credit
prescribed under section 12 of the Tax Credits Act (child care element) 2002.

18.17 In this section ‘applicant’ does not include an applicant;
a. who has, or
b. who (jointly with his partner) has,
an award of universal credit

19.0 Average weekly earnings of employed earners

19.1 Where an applicant’s income consists of earnings from employment as an employed earner his
average weekly earnings shall be estimated by reference to his earnings from that employment—
a. over a period immediately preceding the reduction week in which the claim is made or
treated as made and being a period of
i. 5 weeks, if he is paid weekly; or
ii. 2 months, if he is paid monthly; or
b. whether or not sub-paragraph 16.1 i) or ii) applies, where an applicant’s earnings fluctuate,
over such other period preceding the reduction week in which the claim is made or treated

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dogglete X 728 42




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

as made as may, in any particular case, enable his average weekly earnings to be estimated
more accurately.

19.2 Where the applicant has been in his employment for less than the period specified in paragraph

19.1 a)(i) or (ii)

a. if he has received any earnings for the period that he has been in that employment and
those earnings are likely to represent his average weekly earnings from that employment
his average weekly earnings shall be estimated by reference to those earnings;

b. in any other case, the authority shall require the applicant’s employer to furnish an
estimate of the applicant’s likely weekly earnings over such period as the authority may
require and the applicant’s average weekly earnings shall be estimated by reference to
that estimate.

19.3 Where the amount of an applicant’s earnings changes during an award the authority shall
estimate his average weekly earnings by reference to his likely earnings from the employment
over such period as is appropriate in order that his average weekly earnings may be estimated
accurately but the length of the period shall not in any case exceed 52 weeks.

19.4 For the purposes of this section the applicant’s earnings shall be calculated in accordance with
sections 25 and 26

20.0 Average weekly earnings of self-employed earners

20.1 Where an applicant’s income consists of earnings from employment as a self-employed earner
his average weekly earnings shall be estimated by reference to his earnings from that
employment over such period as is appropriate in order that his average weekly earnings may
be estimated accurately but the length of the period shall not in any case exceed a year.

20.2 For the purposes of this section the applicant’s earnings shall be calculated in accordance with
section 27 to 29 of this policy

21.0 Average weekly income other than earnings

21.1 An applicant’s income which does not consist of earnings shall, except where paragraph 18.2
applies, be estimated over such period as is appropriate in order that his average weekly
income may be estimated accurately but the length of the period shall not in any case exceed
52 weeks; and nothing in this paragraph shall authorise an authority to disregard any such
income other than that specified in Schedule 4 of this policy

21.2 The period over which any benefit under the benefit Acts is to be taken into account shall be
the period in respect of which that support is payable.

21.3 For the purposes of this section income other than earnings shall be calculated in accordance
with paragraphs 30 to 32 of this policy

22.0 Calculation of average weekly income from tax credits

22.1 This section applies where an applicant receives a tax credit.

22.2  Where this section applies, the period over which a tax credit is to be taken into account shall
be the period set out in paragraph 22.3

22.3  Where the instalment in respect of which payment of a tax credit is made is;

a. a daily instalment, the period is 1 day, being the day in respect of which the instalment is
paid;
b. a weekly instalment, the period is 7 days, ending on the day on which the instalment is

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# PB, 43




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

22.4

23.0

231

232

24.0

240

25.0
251

due to be paid;

C. a two weekly instalment, the period is 14 days, commencing 6 days before the day on
which the instalment is due to be paid;

d. a four weekly instalment, the period is 28 days, ending on the day on which the

instalment is due to be paid.
For the purposes of this section ‘tax credit’ means child tax credit or working tax credit.

Calculation of weekly income

For the purposes of sections 19 (average weekly earnings of employed earners), 21 (average
weekly income other than earnings) and 22 (calculation of average weekly income from tax
credits), where the period in respect of which a payment is made;
a. does not exceed a week, the weekly amount shall be the amount of that payment;
b. exceeds a week, the weekly amount shall be determined—
i. in a case where that period is a month, by multiplying the amount of the payment
by 12 and dividing the product by 52;
ii. in any other case, by dividing the amount of the payment by the number equal to
the number of days in the period to which it relates and multiplying the quotient
by 7.

For the purpose of section 20 (average weekly earnings of self-employed earners) the weekly
amount of earnings of an applicant shall be determined by dividing his earnings over the
assessment period by the number equal to the number of days in that period and multiplying
the quotient by 7.

Disregard of changes in tax, contributions etc.

In calculating the applicant’s income the appropriate authority may disregard
any legislative change

a. in the basic or other rates of income tax;
b. in the amount of any personal tax relief;
C. in the rates of social security contributions payable under the Act or in the lower

earnings limit or upper earnings limit for Class 1 contributions under the Act, the lower
or upper limits applicable to Class 4 contributions under the Act or the amount specified
in section11(4) of the Act (small earnings exception in relation to Class 2 contributions);

d. in the amount of tax payable as a result of an increase in the weekly rate of Category A,
B, C or D retirement pension or any addition thereto or any graduated pension payable
under the Act;

e. in the maximum rate of child tax credit or working tax credit,

for a period not exceeding 30 reduction weeks beginning with the reduction week immediately
following the date from which the change is effective.

Earnings of employed earners

Subject to paragraph 25.2, ‘earnings’ means in the case of employment as an employed earner,
any remuneration or profit derived from that employment and includes—

a. any bonus or commission;

b. any payment in lieu of remuneration except any periodic sum paid to an applicant on
account of the termination of his employment by reason of redundancy;

C. any payment in lieu of notice or any lump sum payment intended as compensation for
the loss of employment but only in so far as it represents loss of income;

d. any holiday pay except any payable more than 4 weeks after termination or interruption

of the employment;
any payment by way of a retainer;
f. any payment made by the applicant’s employer in respect of expenses not wholly,

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DiggleteX 7.6 44




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

25.2

253

26.0

26.1

26.2

26.3

exclusively and necessarily incurred in the performance of the duties of the employment,

including any payment made by the applicant’s employer in respect of—((i) travelling

expenses incurred by the applicant between his home and his place of employment;

(ii) expenses incurred by the applicant under arrangements made for the care of a
member of his family owing to the applicant’s absence from home;

g. any award of compensation made under section 112(4) or 117(3)(a) of the Employment
Rights Act 1996 (remedies and compensation for unfair dismissal);
h. any payment or remuneration made under section 28, 34, 64, 68 or 70 of the

Employment Rights Act 1996 (right to guarantee payments, remuneration on suspension
on medical or maternity grounds, complaints to employment tribunals);

i any such sum as is referred to in section 112 of the Act (certain sums to be earnings for
social security purposes);

j- any statutory sick pay, statutory maternity pay, statutory paternity pay or statutory
adoption pay, or a corresponding payment under any enactment having effect in
Northern Ireland;

k. any remuneration paid by or on behalf of an employer to the applicant who for the time
being is on maternity leave, paternity leave or adoption leave or is absent from work
because he is ill;

I the amount of any payment by way of a non-cash voucher which has been taken into
account in the computation of a person’s earnings in accordance with Part 5 of Schedule
3 to the Social Security (Contributions) Regulations 2001.

Earnings shall not include—
a. subject to paragraph 25.3, any payment in kind;

b. any payment in respect of expenses wholly, exclusively and necessarily incurred in the
performance of the duties of employment;

C. any occupational pension

d. any payment in respect of expenses arising out of the applicant’s participation in a

service user group.

Paragraph 25.2 a) shall not apply in respect of any non-cash voucher referred to in paragraph
25.1j)

Calculation of net earnings of employed earners

For the purposes of section 19 (average weekly earnings of employed earners), the earnings of
an applicant derived or likely to be derived from employment as an employed earner to be
taken into account shall, subject to paragraph 26.2, be his net earnings.

There shall be disregarded from an applicant’s net earnings, any sum, where applicable,
specified in paragraphs 1 to 14 of Schedule 3.

For the purposes of paragraph 26.1 net earnings shall, except where paragraph 26.6 applies, be
calculated by taking into account the gross earnings of the applicant from that employment
over the assessment period, less;

a. any amount deducted from those earnings by way of
i) income tax;
ii) primary Class 1 contributions under the Act;

b. one-half of any sum paid by the applicant by way of a contribution towards an
occupational pension scheme;

C. one-half of the amount calculated in accordance with paragraph 26.5 in respect of any
qualifying contribution payable by the applicant; and

d. where those earnings include a payment which is payable under any enactment having

effect in Northern Ireland and which corresponds to statutory sick pay, statutory
maternity pay, statutory paternity pay or statutory adoption pay, any amount deducted
for those earnings by way of any contributions which are payable under any enactment

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# APp7 45




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

26.4

26.5

26.6

27.0

271

27.2

273

having effect in Northern Ireland and which correspond to primary Class 1 contributions
under the Act.

In this section ‘qualifying contribution’ means any sum which is payable periodically as a
contribution towards a personal pension scheme.

The amount in respect of any qualifying contribution shall be calculated by multiplying the daily

amount of the qualifying contribution by the number equal to the number of days in the

assessment period; and for the purposes of this section the daily amount of the qualifying

contribution shall be determined—

a. where the qualifying contribution is payable monthly, by multiplying the amount of the
qualifying contribution by 12 and dividing the product by 365;

b. in any other case, by dividing the amount of the qualifying contribution by the number
equal to the number of days in the period to which the qualifying contribution relates.

Where the earnings of an applicant are estimated under sub-paragraph (b) of paragraph 2) of
the section 19 (average weekly earnings of employment earners), his net earnings shall be
calculated by taking into account those earnings over the assessment period, less—

a. an amount in respect of income tax equivalent to an amount calculated by applying to
those earnings the basic rate of tax applicable to the assessment period less only the
personal relief to which the applicant is entitled under sections 257(1) of the Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988(personal allowances) as is appropriate to his circumstances
but, if the assessment period is less than a year, the earnings to which the basic rate of
tax is to be applied and the amount of the personal relief deductible under this sub-
paragraph shall be calculated on a pro rata basis;

b. an amount equivalent to the amount of the primary Class 1 contributions that would be
payable by him under the Act in respect of those earnings if such contributions were
payable; and

C. one-half of any sum which would be payable by the applicant by way of a contribution
towards an occupational or personal pension scheme, if the earnings so estimated were
actual earnings.

Earnings of self-employed earners

Subject to paragraph 27.2, ‘earnings’, in the case of employment as a self- employed earner,
means the gross income of the employment any allowance paid under section 2 of the 1973 Act
or section 2 of the Enterprise and New Towns (Scotland) Act 1990 to the applicant for the
purpose of assisting him in carrying on his business unless at the date of claim the allowance has
been terminated.

‘Earnings’ shall not include any payment to which paragraph 27 or 28 of Schedule 4 refers
(payments in respect of a person accommodated with the applicant under arrangements made
by a local authority or voluntary organisation and payments made to the applicant by a health
authority, local authority or voluntary organisation in respect of persons temporarily in the
applicant’s care) nor shall it include any sports award.

This paragraph applies to—

a. royalties or other sums paid as a consideration for the use of, or the right to use, any
copyright, design, patent or trade mark; or
b. any payment in respect of any—

(i) book registered under the Public Lending Right Scheme 1982; or

(ii) work made under any international public lending right scheme that is analogous to
the Public Lending Right Scheme 1982, where the applicant is the first owner of the
copyright, design, patent or trade mark, or an original contributor to the book of work
concerned.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DiggleteX 7.8 46




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

27.4

28.0

28.1

28.2

28.3

28.4

28.5

Where the applicant’s earnings consist of any items to which paragraph 27.3 applies, those
earnings shall be taken into account over a period equal to such number of weeks as is equal to
the number obtained (and any fraction is to be treated as a corresponding fraction of a week)
by dividing the earnings by

(a) the amount of the reduction under this scheme which would be payable had the

payment not been made, plus

an amount equal to the total of the sums which would fall to be disregarded from the payment
under Schedule 3 (sums to be disregarded in the calculation of earnings) as appropriate in the
applicant’s case.

Calculation of net profit of self-employed earners

For the purposes of section 20 (average weekly earnings of self- employed earners) the
earnings of an applicant to be taken into account shall be

a. in the case of a self-employed earner who is engaged in employment on his own account,
the net profit derived from that employment;
b. in the case of a self-employed earner whose employment is carried on in partnership or

is that of a share fisherman within the meaning of the Social Security (Mariners’ Benefits)
Regulations 1975, his share of the net profit derived from that employment, less—

i an amount in respect of income tax and of social security contributions payable
under the Act calculated in accordance with section 29 (deduction of tax and
contributions for self-employed earners); and

ii. one-half of the amount calculated in accordance with paragraph (28.11) in respect
of any qualifying premium.

There shall be disregarded from an applicant’s net profit, any sum, where applicable, specified
in paragraph 1 to 14 of Schedule 3.

For the purposes of paragraph 28.1 a) the net profit of the employment shall, except where
paragraph 28.9 applies, be calculated by taking into account the earnings for the employment
over the assessment period less

a. subject to paragraphs 28.5 to 28.8, any expenses wholly and exclusively incurred in that
period for the purposes of that employment;
b. an amount in respect of;

(i) income tax, and
(ii) social security contributions payable under the Act, calculated in accordance with
section 29 (deduction of tax and contributions for self-employed earners); and

C. one-half of the amount calculated in accordance with paragraph (28.11) in respect of any
qualifying premium.

For the purposes of paragraph 28.1b) the net profit of the employment shall be calculated by
taking into account the earnings of the employment over the assessment period less, subject to
paragraphs 28.5 to 28.7, any expenses wholly and exclusively incurred in that period for the
purposes of the employment.

Subject to paragraph 28.6 no deduction shall be made under paragraph 28.3 a) or 28.4, in
respect of—

a. any capital expenditure;
b. the depreciation of any capital asset;
C. any sum employed or intended to be employed in the setting up or expansion of the

employment;

any loss incurred before the beginning of the assessment period;

the repayment of capital on any loan taken out for the purposes of the employment;

any expenses incurred in providing business entertainment, and

any debts, except bad debts proved to be such, but this sub-paragraph shall not apply to
any expenses incurred in the recovery of a debt.

@ o

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# Pe) 47




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

28.6

28.7

28.8

289

28.10

2811

28.12

29.0

291

A deduction shall be made under paragraph 28.3 a) or 28.4 in respect of the repayment of

capital on any loan used for—

a. the replacement in the course of business of equipment or machinery; and

b. the repair of an existing business asset except to the extent that any sum is payable
under an insurance policy for its repair.

The authority shall refuse to make deduction in respect of any expenses under paragraph 28.3
a) or 28.4 where it is not satisfied given the nature and the amount of the expense that it has

been reasonably incurred.

For the avoidance of doubt—

a. deduction shall not be made under paragraph 28.3 a) or 28.4 in respect of any sum
unless it has been expended for the purposes of the business;
b. a deduction shall be made thereunder in respect of—

i the excess of any value added tax paid over value added tax received in the
assessment period;
ii. any income expended in the repair of an existing business asset except to the
extent that any sum is payable under an insurance policy for its repair;
iii. any payment of interest on a loan taken out for the purposes of the
employment

Where an applicant is engaged in employment, as a child minder the net profit of the
employment shall be one-third of the earnings of that employment, less an amount in respect
of
a. income tax; and
b. social security contributions payable under the Act, calculated in accordance with
section 29 (deduction of tax and contributions for self-employed earners); and
c. one-half of the amount calculated in accordance with paragraph 28.11 in respect of
any qualifying contribution.

For the avoidance of doubt where an applicant is engaged in employment as a self-employed
earner and he is also engaged in one or more other employments as a self-employed or
employed earner any loss incurred in any one of his employments shall not be offset against his
earnings in any other of his employments.

The amount in respect of any qualifying premium shall be calculated by multiplying the daily
amount of the qualifying premium by the number equal to the number of days in the
assessment period; and for the purposes of this section the daily amount of the qualifying
premium shall be determined

a. where the qualifying premium is payable monthly, by multiplying the amount of the
qualifying premium by 12 and divided the product by 365;
b. in any other case, by dividing the amount of the qualifying premium by the number equal

to the number of days in the period to which the qualifying premium relates.

In this section, ‘qualifying premium’ means any premium which is payable periodically in respect
of a personal pension scheme and is so payable on or after the date of claim.

Deduction of tax and contributions of self-employed earners

The amount to be deducted in respect of income tax under section 28.1b) i), 28.3 b) i) or 28.9 a)
i) (calculation of net profit of self-employed earners) shall be calculated on the basis of the
amount of chargeable income and as if that income were assessable to income tax at the basic
rate of tax applicable to the assessment period less only the personal relief to which the
applicant is entitled under section 257(1) of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act
1988(personal allowances) as is appropriate to his circumstances; but, if the assessment period

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DiggleteX 803 48




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

29.2

293

30.0

30.1

30.2

303

30.4

305

30.6

30.7

is less than a year, the earnings to which the basic rate of tax is to be applied and the amount of
the personal reliefs deductible under this paragraph shall be calculated on a pro rata basis.

The amount to be deducted in respect of social security contributions under paragraphs 28.1 1

b)(i); 28.3 b) ii) or 28.9 a shall be the total of-

a. the amount of Class 2 contributions payable under section 11(1) or, as the case may be,
11(3) of the Act at the rate applicable to the assessment period except where the
applicant’s chargeable income is less than the amount specified in section 11(4) of the
Act (small earnings exception) for the tax year applicable to the assessment period; but if
the assessment period is less than a year, the amount specified for that tax year shall be
reduced pro rata; and

b. the amount of Class 4 contributions (if any) which would be payable under section 15 of
the Act (Class 4 contributions recoverable under the Income Tax Acts) at the percentage
rate applicable to the assessment period on so much of the chargeable income as
exceeds the lower limit but does not exceed the upper limit of profits and gains
applicable for the tax year applicable to the assessment period; but if the assessment
period is less than a year, those limits shall be reduced pro rata.

In this section ‘chargeable income’ means—

a. except where sub-paragraph (b) applies, the earnings derived from the employment less
any expenses deducted under paragraph (28.3)(a) or, as the case may be, (28.4) of
section 28;

b. in the case of employment as a child minder, one-third of the earnings of that

employment.

Calculation of income other than earnings

For the purposes of section 21 (average weekly income other than earnings), the income of an
applicant which does not consist of earnings to be taken into account shall, subject to
paragraphs 30.2 to 30.4, be his gross income and any capital treated as income under section 31
(capital treated as income).

There is to be disregarded from the calculation of an applicant’s gross income under paragraph
30.1, any sum, where applicable, specified in Schedule 4..

Where the payment of any benefit under the benefit Acts is subject to any deduction by way of
recovery the amount to be taken into account under paragraph 30.1 shall be the gross amount
payable.

Where the applicant or, where he is a member of a couple, his partner is receiving a
contributory employment and support allowance and that benefit has been reduced under
regulation 63 of the Employment and Support Allowance Regulations, the amount of that
benefit to be taken into account is the amount as if it had not been reduced.

Where an award of any working tax credit or child tax credit under the Tax Credits Act is subject
to a deduction by way of recovery of an overpayment of working tax credit or child tax credit
which arose in a previous tax year the amount to be taken into account under paragraph 30.1
shall be the amount of working tax credit or child tax credit awarded less the amount of that
deduction.

In paragraph 30.5 ‘tax year’ means a period beginning with 6th April in one year and ending
with 5th April in the next.

Paragraph 30.8 and 30.9 apply where a relevant payment has been made to a person in an
academic year; and that person abandons, or is dismissed from, his course of study before the
payment to him of the final instalment of the relevant payment.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 293 49




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

30.8 Where a relevant payment is made quarterly, the amount of a relevant payment to be taken
into account for the assessment period for the purposes of paragraph 30.1 in respect of a
person to whom paragraph 30.7 applies, shall be calculated by applying the formula—

A - (BxC)

D

Where

A = the total amount of the relevant payment which that person would have received had he
remained a student until he last day of the academic term in which he abandoned, or was
dismissed from, his course, less any deduction under paragraph 51.5

B = the number of reduction weeks from the reduction week immediately following that which
includes the first day of that academic year to the reduction week which includes the day on
which the person abandoned, or was dismissed from, his course;

C = the weekly amount of the relevant payment, before the application of the £10 disregard,
which would have been taken into account as income under paragraph 51.2 had the person not
abandoned or been dismissed from, his course and, in the case of a person who was not entitled
to council tax support immediately before he abandoned or was dismissed from his course, had
that person, at that time, been entitled to housing benefit;

D = the number of reduction weeks in the assessment period.

30.9 Where a relevant payment is made by two or more instalments in a quarter, the amount of a
relevant payment to be taken into account for the assessment period for the purposes of
paragraph 30.1 in respect of a person to whom paragraph (30.8) applies, shall be calculated by
applying the formula in paragraph 30.8 but as if—

A = the total amount of relevant payments which that person received, or would have received,
from the first day of the academic year to the day the person abandoned the course, or was
dismissed from it, less any deduction under paragraph 51.5

30.10 In this section— ‘academic year’ and ‘student loan’ shall have the same meanings as for the
purposes of sections 43 to 45, ‘assessment period’ means—

a. in a case where a relevant payment is made quarterly, the period beginning with the
reduction week which includes the day on which the person abandoned, or was
dismissed from, his course and ending with the reduction week which includes the last
day of the last quarter for which an instalment of the relevant payment was payable to
that person;

b. in a case where the relevant payment is made by two or more instalments in a quarter,
the period beginning with the reduction week which includes the day on which the
person abandoned, or was dismissed from, his course and ending with the reduction
week which includes—

i. the day immediately before the day on which the next instalment of the relevant
payment would have been due had the payments continued; or

ii. the last day of the last quarter for which an instalment of the relevant payment
was payable to that person.

whichever of these date is earlier

‘quarter’ in relation to an assessment period means a period in that year beginning on;

a. 1st January and ending on 31st March;

b. 1st April and ending on 30th June;

C. 1st July and ending on 31st August; or

d. 1st September and ending on 31st December;

‘relevant payment’ means either a student loan or an amount intended for the maintenance of

dependants referred to in paragraph 46.7 or both.

30.11 For the avoidance of doubt there shall be included as income to be taken into account under
paragraph 30.1
a. any payment to which paragraph 25.2 (payments not earnings) applies; or
b. in the case of an applicant who is receiving support under section 95 or 98 of the
Immigration and Asylum Act 1999 including support provided by virtue of regulations

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dygglete¥833 50




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

31.0

311

31.2

313

31.4

315

32.0

321

32.2

323 -

32,6

made under Schedule 9 to that Act, the amount of such support provided in respect of
essential living needs of the applicant and his dependants (if any) as is specified in
regulations made under paragraph 3 of Schedule 8 to the Immigration and Asylum Act
1999.

Capital treated as income

Any capital payable by instalments which are outstanding at the date on which the claim is
made or treated as made, or, at the date of any subsequent revision or supersession, shall, if
the aggregate of the instalments outstanding and the amount of the applicant’s capital
otherwise calculated in accordance with sections 33 to 42 of this policy exceeds £6,000, be
treated as income.

Any payment received under an annuity shall be treated as income.
Any earnings to the extent that they are not a payment of income shall be treated as income.

Any Career Development Loan paid pursuant to section 2 of the Employment and Training Act
1973 Act shall be treated as income

Where an agreement or court order provides that payments shall be made to the applicant in
consequence of any personal injury to the applicant and that such payments are to be made,
wholly or partly, by way of periodic payments, any such periodic payments received by the

applicant (but not a payment which is treated as capital), shall be treated as income.

Notional income

An applicant shall be treated as possessing income of which he has deprived himself for the
purpose of securing entitlement of support or increasing the amount of that support.

Except in the case of—

a. a discretionary trust;
b. a trust derived from a payment made in consequence of a personal injury;
C. a personal pension scheme, occupational pension scheme or a payment made by the

Board of the Pension Protection Fund where the applicant has not attained the qualifying
age for state pension credit;
d. any sum to which paragraph 47(2)(a) of Schedule 5 (capital to be disregarded) applies
which is administered in the way referred to in paragraph 47(1)(a);
any sum to which paragraph 48(a) of Schedule 5 refers;
rehabilitation allowance made under section 2 of the 1973 Act;
child tax credit; or
working tax credit,
any sum to which paragraph 32.13 applies;
any income which would become available to the applicant upon application being made, but
which has not been acquired by him, shall be treated as possessed by the applicant but only
from the date on which it could be expected to be acquired were an application made.

~F@ e

32.5 Not used

Any payment of income, other than a payment of income specified in paragraph 32.7 made—

a. to a third party in respect of a single applicant or a member of the family (but not a
member of the third party’s family) shall, where that payment is a payment of an
occupational pension, a pension or other periodical payment made under or by a
personal pension scheme or a payment made by the Board of the Pension Protection
Fund, be treated as possessed by that single applicant or, as the case may be, by that
member;

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 293 51




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

b. to a third party in respect of a single applicant or in respect of a member of the family
(but not a member of the third party’s family) shall, where it is not a payment referred to
in sub-paragraph a), be treated as possessed by that single applicant or by that member
to the extent that it is used for the food, ordinary clothing or footwear, household fuel or
rent of that single applicant or, as the case may be, of any member of that family or is
used for any council tax or water charges for which that applicant or member is liable;

C. to a single applicant or a member of the family in respect of a third party (but not in
respect of another member of that family) shall be treated as possessed by that single
applicant or, as the case may be, that member of the family to the extent that it is kept
or used by him or used by or on behalf of any member of the family.

32.7 Paragraph 32.6 shall not apply in respect of a payment of income made—
a. under the Macfarlane Trust, the Macfarlane (Special Payments) Trust, the Macfarlane
(Special Payments) (No. 2) Trust, the Fund, the Eileen Trust, MFET Limited, the Skipton
Fund, the Caxton Foundation or the Independent Living Fund (2006);
pursuant to section 19(1)(a) of the Coal Industry Act 1994 (concessionary coal);
pursuant to section 2 of the 1973 Act in respect of a person’s participation—
(i) in an employment programme specified in regulation 75(1)(a)(ii) of the Jobseeker’s
Allowance Regulations;
(ii) in a training scheme specified in regulation 75(1)(b)(ii) of those Regulations;
(iii) in the Intense Activity Period specified in regulation75(1)(a)(iv)of those Regulations;
(iv) in a qualifying course within the meaning specified in regulation 17A(7) of those
Regulations or;
(v) in the Flexible New Deal specified in regulation 75(1)(a)(v) of those Regulations;

d. in respect of a person’s participation in the Work for Your Benefit Pilot Scheme

e. in respect of a previous participation in the Mandatory Work Activity Scheme;

f. in respect of an applicant’s participation in the Employment, Skills and Enterprise
Scheme;

g. under an occupational pension scheme, in respect of a pension or other periodical

payment made under a personal pension scheme or a payment made by the Board of
the Pension Protection Fund where—

(i) a bankruptcy order has been made in respect of the person in respect of whom the
payment has been made or, in Scotland, the estate of that person is subject to
sequestration or a judicial factor has been appointed on that person’s estate under
section 41 of the Solicitors (Scotland) Act 1980;

(ii) the payment is made to the trustee in bankruptcy or any other person acting on
behalf of the creditors; and

(iii) the person referred to in (i) and any member of his family does not possess, or is not
treated as possessing, any other income apart from that payment.

32.8 Where an applicant is in receipt of any benefit (other than council tax support) under the
benefit Acts and the rate of that benefit is altered with effect from a date on or after 1st April in
any year but not more than 14 days thereafter, the authority shall treat the applicant as
possessing such benefit at the altered rate from either 1st April or the first Monday in April in
that year, whichever date the authority shall select to apply in its area, to the date on which the
altered rate is to take effect.

32.9 Subject to paragraph 32.10, where—
a.  applicant performs a service for another person; and
b. that person makes no payment of earnings or pays less than that paid for a comparable
employment in the area, the authority shall treat the applicant as possessing such
earnings (if any) as is reasonable for that employment unless the applicant satisfies the
authority that the means of that person are insufficient for him to pay or to pay more for
the service.

32.10 Paragraph 32.9 shall not apply—
a. to an applicant who is engaged by a charitable or voluntary organisation or who is a

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dgglete¥ 828 52




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

volunteer if the authority is satisfied in any of those cases that it is reasonable for him to
provide those services free of charge; or

b. in a case where the service is performed in connection with—
(i) the applicant’s participation in an employment or training programme in accordance
with regulation 19(1)(q) of the Jobseeker’s Allowance Regulations, other than where the
service is performed in connection with the applicant’s participation in the Intense
Activity Period specified in regulation 75(1)(a)(iv) of those Regulations or
(ii) the applicant’s or the applicant’s partner’s participation in an employment or training
programme as defined in regulation 19(3) of those Regulations for which a training
allowance is not payable or, where such an allowance is payable, it is payable for the sole
purpose of reimbursement of travelling or meal expenses to the person participating in
that programme ; or

c. to an applicant who is participating in a work placement approved by the Secretary of
State (or a person providing services to the Secretary of State) before the placement
starts.

32.10A In paragraph 32.10 (c) ‘work placement’ means practical work experience which is not

32.11

undertaken in expectation of payment.

Where an applicant is treated as possessing any income under any of paragraph 32.1 to (32.8),
the foregoing provisions of this policy shall apply for the purposes of calculating the amount of
that income as if a payment has actually been made and as if it were actual income which he
does possess.

32.12 Where an applicant is treated as possessing any earnings under paragraph 32.9 the foregoing

32.13

provisions of this policy shall apply for the purposes of calculating the amount of those earnings

as if a payment had actually been made and as if they were actual earnings which he does

possess except that paragraph (32.3) of section 26 (calculation of net earnings of employed
earners) shall not apply and his net earnings shall be calculated by taking into account those
earnings which he is treated as possessing, less;

a. an amount in respect of income tax equivalent to an amount calculated by applying to
those earnings the starting rate or, as the case may be, the starting rate and the basic
rate of tax applicable to the assessment period less only the personal relief to which the
applicant is entitled under sections 257(1) of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988
(personal allowances) as is appropriate to his circumstances; but, if the assessment
period is less than a year, the earnings to which the starting rate of tax is to be applied
and the amount of the personal relief deductible under this sub-paragraph shall be
calculated on a pro rate basis;

b. an amount equivalent to the amount of the primary Class 1 contributions that would be
payable by him under the Act in respect of those earnings if such contributions were
payable; and

C. one-half of any sum payable by the applicant by way of a contribution towards an
occupational or personal pension scheme.

Paragraphs (32.1), (32.2), (32.6) and (32.9) shall not apply in respect of any amount of income
other than earnings, or earnings of an employed earner, arising out of the applicant’s
participation in a service user group.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 298, 53




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Sections 33 — 42 & Schedule 5

Definition and the treatment of capital for Council Tax Support purposes

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DogqnleteX 8%




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

33.0
331

34.0
341

34.2

35.0

351

36.0
36.1

36.2

36.3

36.4

36.5

36.6

36.7

Capital limit
For the purposes of this section (no entitlement to support if capital exceeds prescribed
amount), the prescribed amount is £10,000. Where the applicant is in receipt of;
e Support Component of Employment and Support Allowance (ESA);
Enhanced Disability Premium (EDP); or
Enhanced Disability Premium for Dependants; or
Disability Child Premium for Dependents (DCP); or
o Severe Disability Premium (SDP).
The amount specified £16,000.

Calculation of capital

For the purposes of this policy, the capital of an applicant to be taken into account shall, subject
to paragraph (34.2), be the whole of his capital calculated in accordance with this policy and any
income treated as capital under section 36 (income treated as capital).

There shall be disregarded from the calculation of an applicant’s capital under paragraph (34.1),
any capital, where applicable, specified in Schedule 5.

Disregard of capital of child and young person

The capital of a child or young person who is a member of the applicant’s family shall not be
treated as capital of the applicant.

Income treated as capital

Any bounty derived from employment to which paragraph 8 of Schedule 3 applies and paid at
intervals of at least one year shall be treated as capital.

Any amount by way of a refund of income tax deducted from profits or emoluments chargeable
to income tax under Schedule D or E shall be treated as capital.

Any holiday pay which is not earnings under section 25(1)(d) (earnings of employed earners)
shall be treated as capital.

Except any income derived from capital disregarded under paragraphs 1, 2, 4, 8, 14 or 25 to 28,
47 or 48 of Schedule 5, any income derived from capital shall be treated as capital but only from
the date it is normally due to be credited to the applicant’s account.

In the case of employment as an employed earner, any advance of earnings or any loan made by
the applicant’s employer shall be treated as capital.

Any charitable or voluntary payment which is not made or due to be made at regular intervals,
other than a payment which is made under or by the Trusts, the Fund, the Eileen Trust, MFET
Limited, the Skipton Fund, the Caxton Foundation, the Independent Living Fund (2006) or the
London Bombings Charitable Relief Fund, shall be treated as capital.

There shall be treated as capital the gross receipts of any commercial activity carried on by a
person in respect of which assistance is received under the self- employment route, but only in
so far as those receipts were payable into a special account during the period in which that
person was receiving such assistance.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 297 55




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

36.8

36.9

37.0

371

38.0

38.1

39.0
391

39.2

393

Any arrears of subsistence allowance which are paid to an applicant as a lump sum shall be
treated as capital.

Any arrears of working tax credit or child tax credit shall be treated as capital.

Calculation of capital in the United Kingdom

Capital which an applicant possesses in the United Kingdom shall be calculated at its current
market or surrender value less—

a. where there would be expenses attributable to the sale, 10 per cent.; and

b. the amount of any encumbrance secured on it;

Calculation of capital outside the United Kingdom

Capital which an applicant possesses in a country outside the United Kingdom shall be
calculated

a. in a case where there is no prohibition in that country against the transfer to the United
Kingdom of an amount equal to its current market or surrender value in that country, at
that value.

b. in a case where there is such a prohibition, at the price which it would realise if sold in

the United Kingdom to a willing buyer,
less, where there would be expenses attributable to sale, 10 per cent. and the amount of any
encumbrances secured on it.

Notional capital

An applicant shall be treated as possessing capital of which he has deprived himself for the

purpose of securing entitlement to council tax support or increasing the amount of that support

except to the extent that that capital is reduced in accordance with section 40 (diminishing

notional capital rule).

Except in the case of

(a)  adiscretionary trust; or

(b) a trust derived from a payment made in consequence of a personal injury; or

(c) any loan which would be obtained only if secured against capital disregarded under
Schedule 5; or

(d) a personal pension scheme, occupational pension scheme or a payment made by the
Board of the Pension Protection Fund; or

()  any sum to which paragraph 47(2)(a) of Schedule 5 (capital to be disregarded) applies
which is administered in the way referred to in paragraph 47(1)(a); or

(f) any sum to which paragraph 48(a) of Schedule 5 refers; or

(g) child tax credit; or

(h)  working tax credit,

any capital which would become available to the applicant upon application being made, but

which has not been acquired by him, shall be treated as possessed by him but only from the

date on which it could be expected to be acquired were an application made.

Any payment of capital, other than a payment of capital specified in paragraph (39.4), made

(a) to a third party in respect of a single applicant or a member of the family (but not a
member of the third party’s family) shall, where that payment is a payment of an
occupational pension, a pension or other periodical payment made under a personal
pension scheme or a payment made by the Board of the Pension Protection Fund, be
treated as possessed by that single applicant or, as the case may be, by that member;

(b) to a third party in respect of a single applicant or in respect of a member of the family
(but not a member of the third party’s family) shall, where it is not a payment referred to
in sub-paragraph (a), be treated as possessed by that single applicant or by that member
to the extent that it is used for the food, ordinary clothing or footwear, household fuel or
rent of that single applicant or, as the case may be, of any member of that family or is

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete?8% 56




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

used for any council tax or water charges for which that applicant or member is liable;

(c) to a single applicant or a member of the family in respect of a third party (but not in
respect of another member of that family) shall be treated as possessed by that single
applicant or, as the case may be, that member of the family to the extent that it is kept
or used by him or used by or on behalf of any member of the family.

39.4 Paragraph 39.3 shall not apply in respect of a payment of capital made

395

39.6

39.7

40.0
40.1

(a) under or by any of the Trusts, the Fund, the Eileen Trust, MFET Limited, the Independent
Living Fund (2006), the Skipton Fund, the Caxton Foundation or the London Bombings
Relief Charitable Fund;

(b) pursuant to section 2 of the 1973 Act in respect of a person’s participation

(i) in an employment programme specified in regulation 75(1)(a)(ii) of the
Jobseeker’s Allowance Regulations;
(i)  in atraining scheme specified in regulation 75(1)(b)(ii) of those Regulations;

(iii) in the Intense Activity Period specified in regulation 75(1)(a)(iv) of those
Regulations;

(iv)  in a qualifying course within the meaning specified in regulation17A(7) of those
Regulations; or

(v) in the Flexible New Deal specified in regulation 75(1)(a)(v) of those Regulations;

(bb) in respect of a person’s participation in the Mandatory Work Activity Scheme;

Enterprise Scheme;

(bc) in respect of an applicant’s participation in the Employment, Skills and Enterprise
Scheme;

(c) under an occupational pension scheme, in respect of a pension or other periodical
payment made under a personal pension scheme or a payment made by the Board of the
Pension Protection Fund where—

(i) a bankruptcy order has been made in respect of the person in respect of whom
the payment has been made or, in Scotland, the estate of that person is subject to
sequestration or a judicial factor has been appointed on that person’s estate
under section 41 of the Solicitors (Scotland) Act 1980;

(ii) the payment is made to the trustee in bankruptcy or any other person acting on
behalf of the creditors; and

(iii)  the person referred to in (i) and any member of his family does not possess, or is
not treated as possessing, any other income apart from that payment.

Where an applicant stands in relation to a company in a position analogous to that of a sole

owner or partner in the business of that company, he may be treated as if he were such sole

owner or partner and in such a case

(a) the value of his holding in that company shall, notwithstanding section 34 (calculation of
capital) be disregarded; and

(b) he shall, subject to paragraph 39.6, be treated as possessing an amount of capital equal
to the value or, as the case may be, his share of the value of the capital of that company
and the foregoing provisions of this Section shall apply for the purposes of calculating
that amount as if it were actual capital which he does possess.

For so long as the applicant undertakes activities in the course of the business of the company,
the amount which, he is treated as possessing under paragraph 39.5 shall be disregarded.

Where an applicant is treated as possessing capital under any of paragraphs 39.1 to 39.2 the
foregoing provisions of this Section shall apply for the purposes of calculating its amount as if it
were actual capital, which he does possess.

Diminishing notional capital rule

Where an applicant is treated as possessing capital under section 39.1 (notional capital), the
amount which he is treated as possessing;
(a) in the case of a week that is subsequent to

(i) the relevant week in respect of which the conditions set out in paragraph 40.2 are

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 298 57




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

40.2

40.4

satisfied; or
(i) a week which follows that relevant week and which satisfies those conditions, shall be
reduced by an amount determined under paragraph 40.3;
(b)in the case of a week in respect of which paragraph 40.1(a) does not apply but where
(i) that week is a week subsequent to the relevant week; and
(ii) that relevant week is a week in which the condition in paragraph 40.4 is satisfied, shall be
reduced by the amount determined under paragraph 40.4.

This paragraph applies to a reduction week or part-week where the applicant satisfies the

conditions that

(a)  heis in receipt of council tax support; and

(b) but for paragraph 39.1, he would have received an additional amount of council tax
support in that week.

In a case to which paragraph 40.2 applies, the amount of the reduction for the purposes of

paragraph 40.1(a) shall be equal to the aggregate of

(a)  the additional amount to which sub-paragraph 40.2 (b) refers;

(b) where the applicant has also claimed housing benefit, the amount of any housing benefit
or any additional amount of that benefit to which he would have been entitled in respect
of the whole or part of the reduction week to which paragraph 40.2 refers but for the
application of regulation 49(1) of the Housing Benefit Regulations (notional capital);

(c) where the applicant has also claimed income support, the amount of income support to
which he would have been entitled in respect of the whole or part of the reduction week
to which paragraph 40.2 refers but for the application of regulation 51(1) of the Income
Support Regulations (notional capital);

(d) where the applicant has also claimed a jobseeker’s allowance, the amount of an income-
based jobseeker’s allowance to which he would have been entitled in respect of the
whole or part of the reduction week to which paragraph 40.2 refers but for the
application of regulation 113 of the Jobseeker's Allowance Regulations 1996 (notional
capital) and

(e) where the applicant has also claimed an employment and support allowance, the
amount of an income-related employment and support allowance to which he would
have been entitled in respect of the whole or part of reduction week to which paragraph
40.2 refers but for the application of regulation 115 of the Employment and Support
Allowance Regulations (notional capital).

Subject to paragraph 40.5, for the purposes of paragraph 40.1(b) the condition is that the
applicant would have been entitled to council tax support in the relevant week but for
paragraph 39.1, and in such a case the amount of the reduction shall be equal to the aggregate
of

(a) the amount of council tax support to which the applicant would have been entitled in the
relevant week but for paragraph 39.1; and for the purposes of this sub-paragraph is the
amount is in respect of a part-week, that amount shall be determined by dividing the
amount of council tax support to which he would have been so entitled by the number
equal to the number of days in the part-week and multiplying the quotient so obtained
by 7;

(b)  if the applicant would, but for regulation 49(1) of the Housing Benefit Regulations, have
been entitled to housing benefit or to an additional amount of housing benefit in respect
of the reduction week which includes the last day of the relevant week, the amount
which is equal to—

(i) in a case where no housing benefit is payable, the amount to which he would
have been entitled; or
(ii) in any other case, the amount equal to the additional amount of housing benefit

to which he would have been entitled,
and, for the purposes of this sub-paragraph, if the amount is in respect of a part-week,
that amount shall be determined by dividing the amount of housing benefit to which he
would have been so entitled by the number equal to that number of days in the part-
week and multiplying the quotient so obtained by 7;

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DiggleteX Q03 58




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

(c) if the applicant would, but for regulation 51(1) of the Income Support Regulations, have
been entitled to income support in respect of the reduction week, within the meaning of
regulation 2(1) of those Regulations, which includes the last day of the relevant week,
the amount to which he would have been entitled and, for the purposes of this sub-
paragraph, if the amount is in respect of a part-week, that amount shall be determined
by dividing the amount of the income support to which he would have been so entitled
by the number equal to the number of days in the part- week and multiplying the
quotient so obtained by 7

(d) if the applicant would, but for regulation 113 of the Jobseeker’s Allowance Regulations,
have been entitled to an income-based jobseeker’s allowance in respect of the reduction
week, within the meaning of this policy, which includes the last day of the relevant week,
the amount to which he would have been entitled and, for the purposes of this sub-
paragraph, if the amount is in respect of a part-week, that amount shall be determined
by dividing the amount of the income-based jobseeker’s allowance to which he would
have been so entitled by the number equal to the number of days in the part-week and
multiplying the quotient so obtained by 7; and

(e) if the applicant would, but for regulation 115 of the Employment and Support Allowance
Regulations, have been entitled to an income-related employment and support
allowance in respect of the reduction week, within the meaning of regulation 2(1) of
those Regulations (interpretation), which includes the last day of the relevant week, the
amount to which he would have been entitled and, for the purposes of this sub-
paragraph, if the amount is in respect of a part-week, that amount must be determined
by dividing the amount of the income-related employment and support allowance to
which he would have been so entitled by the number equal to the number of days in that
part-week and multiplying the quotient so obtained by 7.

40.5 The amount determined under paragraph 40.4 shall be re-determined under that paragraph if
the applicant makes a further claim for council tax support and the conditions in paragraph 40.6
are satisfied, and in such a case—

(a) sub-paragraphs (a) to (d) of paragraph 40.4 shall apply as if for the words ‘relevant
week’ there were substituted the words ‘relevant subsequent week’; and

(b)subject to paragraph 40.7, the amount as re-determined shall have effect from the
first week following the relevant subsequent week in question.

40.6 The conditions are that
(a)  afurther claim is made 26 or more weeks after

(i) the date on which the applicant made a claim for council tax support in respect of which
he was first treated as possessing the capital in question under paragraph 39.1;
(ii) in a case where there has been at least one re-determination in accordance with

paragraph 40.5, the date on which he last made a claim for council tax support which
resulted in the weekly amount being re-determined, or

(iii)  the date on which the last ceased to be entitled to council tax support, whichever last
occurred; and

(b)  the applicant would have been entitled to council tax support for paragraph 39.1.

40.7 The amount as re-determined pursuant to paragraph 40.5 shall not have effect if it is less than
the amount which applied in that case immediately before the re-determination and in such a
case the higher amount shall continue to have effect.

40.8 For the purposes of this section

(a) ‘part-week’
(i) in paragraph40.4(a)means a period of less than a week for which council tax support is
allowed;
(ii) in paragraph 40.4(b)means a period of less than a week for which housing benefit is
payable;
(iii) in paragraph 40.4 (c),(d)and(e)means—

(aa) a period of less than a week which is the whole period for which income support , an

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 293 59




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

41.0

411

42.0
421

422

423

income-related employment and support allowance or, as the case may be, an income-
based jobseeker’s allowance is payable; and

(bb) any other period of less than a week for which it is payable;

(b) ‘relevant week’ means the reduction week or part-week in which the capital in question
of which the applicant has deprived himself within the meaning of section 39.1
(i) was first taken into account for the purpose of determining his entitlement to council
tax support; or
(i) was taken into account on a subsequent occasion for the purpose of determining or
re-determining his entitlement to council tax support on that subsequent occasion and
that determination or re-determination resulted in his beginning to receive, or ceasing to
receive, council tax support;
and where more than one reduction week is identified by reference to heads (i) and (ii)
of this sub-paragraph the later or latest such reduction week or, as the case may be, the
later or latest such part-week;

(c) ‘relevant subsequent week’ means the reduction week or part-week which includes the
day on which the further claim or, if more than one further claim has been made, the last
such claim was made.

Capital jointly held

Except where an applicant possesses capital which is disregarded under paragraph 39(5)
(notional capital) where an applicant and one or more persons are beneficially entitled in
possession to any capital asset they shall be treated, in the absence of evidence to the contrary,
as if each of them were entitled in possession to the whole beneficial interest therein in an
equal share and the foregoing provisions of this Section shall apply for the purposes of
calculating the amount of capital which the applicant is treated as possessing as if it were actual
capital which the applicant does possess

Calculation of tariff income from capital

Where the applicant’s capital calculated in accordance with this scheme exceeds £6,000 it shall
be treated as equivalent to a weekly income of £1 for each complete £250 of in excess of £6,000
but not exceeding £10,000

Notwithstanding paragraph 42.1 where any part of the excess is not a complete £250 that part
shall be treated as equivalent to a weekly tariff income of £1.

For the purposes of paragraph 42.1, capital includes any income treated as capital under section
36 (income treated as capital).

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete X923 60




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Sections 43 - 56

Definition and the treatment of students for Council Tax Support purposes

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaageg 293

61




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

43.0

431

Student related definitions

In this policy the following definitions apply;
‘academic year’ means the period of twelve months beginning on 1st January, 1st April, 1st July
or 1st September according to whether the course in question begins in the winter, the spring,
the summer or the autumn respectively but if students are required to begin attending the
course during August or September and to continue attending through the autumn, the
academic year of the course shall be considered to begin in the autumn rather than the
summer;

‘access funds’ means;

a. grants made under section 68 of the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the
purpose of providing funds on a discretionary basis to be paid to students;
grants made under section 73(a) and (c) and 74(1) of the Education (Scotland) Act 1980;

C. grants made under Article 30 of the Education and Libraries (Northern Ireland) Order
1993 or grants, loans or other payments made under Article 5 of the Further Education
(Northern Ireland) Order 1997in each case being grants, or grants, loans or other
payments as the case may be, for the purpose of assisting students in financial
difficulties;

d. discretionary payments, known as “learner support funds”, which are made available to
students in further education by institutions out of funds provided by the Secretary of
State under section 14 of the Education Act 2002 or the Chief Executive of Skills Funding
under sections 100 and 101 of the Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act
2009; or

e Financial Contingency Funds made available by the Welsh Ministers;

‘college of further education’ means a college of further education within the meaning of Part 1

of the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992;

'contribution’ means;

a. any contribution in respect of the income of a student or any person which the Secretary
of State, the Scottish Ministers or an education authority takes into account in
ascertaining the amount of a student’s grant or student loan; or

b. any sums, which in determining the amount of a student’s allowance or bursary in
Scotland under the Education (Scotland) Act 1980, the Scottish Ministers or education
authority takes into account being sums which the Scottish Ministers or education
authority consider that it is reasonable for the following person to contribute towards
the holder’s expenses;

(i) the holder of the allowance or bursary;

(i)  the holder’s parents;

(iii)  the holders parent’s spouse, civil partner or a person ordinarily living with the
holder’s parent as if he or she were the spouse or civil partner of that parent; or

(iv)  the holder’s spouse or civil partner;

‘course of study’ means any course of study, whether or not it is a sandwich course and

whether or not a grant is made for attending or undertaking it;

‘covenant income’ means the gross income payable to a full-time student under a Deed of

Covenant by his parent;

‘education authority’ means a government department, a local authority as defined in

section 579 of the Education Act 1996 (interpretation), a local education authority as

defined in section 123 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, an education and
library board established under Article 3 of the Education and Libraries (Northern Ireland)

Order 1986, any body which is a research council for the purposes of the Science and

Technology Act 1965 or any analogous government department, authority, board or body,

of the Channel Islands, Isle of Man or any other country outside Great Britain;

‘full-time course of study’ means a full time course of study which;

a. is not funded in whole or in part by the Secretary of State under section 14 of the

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dygglete X028 62




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Education Act 2002, the Chief Executive of Skills Funding or by the Welsh Ministers or a

full-time course of study which is not funded in whole or in part by the Scottish Ministers

at a college of further education or a full-time course of study which is a course of higher
education and is funded in whole or in part by the Scottish Ministers;;

b. is funded in whole or in part by the Secretary of State under section 14 of the Education
Act 2002, the Chief Executive of Skills Funding or by the Welsh Ministers if it involves
more than 16 guided learning hours per week for the student in question, according to
the number of guided learning hours per week for that student set out—

(i) in the case of a course funded by the Secretary of State under section 14 of the

Education Act 2002 or the Chief Executive of Skills Funding, in the student’s learning

agreement signed on behalf of the establishment which is funded by either

of those persons for the delivery of that course; or

(ii) in the case of a course funded by the Welsh Ministers, in a document signed on

behalf of the establishment which is funded by that Council for the delivery of that

course; or

C. is not higher education and is funded in whole or in part by the Scottish Ministers at
a college of further education and involves—

(i) more than 16 hours per week of classroom-based or workshop-based  programmed
learning under the direct guidance of teaching staff according to the number of hours set
out in a document signed on behalf of the college; or

(i) 16 hours or less per week of classroom-based or workshop-based programmed

learning under the direct guidance of teaching staff and additional hours using structured

learning packages supported by the teaching staff where the combined total of hours
exceeds 21 hours per week, according to the number of hours set out in a document
signed on behalf of the college;

‘full-time student’ means a person attending or undertaking a full-time course of study and

includes a student on a sandwich course;

‘grant’ (except in the definition of ‘access funds’) means any kind of educational grant or

award and includes any scholarship, studentship, exhibition allowance or bursary but does not

include a payment from access funds or any payment to which paragraph 12 of Schedule 4 or
paragraph 53 of Schedule 5 applies;

‘grant income’ means
(a)  anyincome by way of a grant;

(b)  any contribution whether or not it is paid;

‘higher education’ means higher education within the meaning of Part 2 of the Further and

Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992;

‘last day of the course’ means;

a. in the case of a qualifying course, the date on which the last day of that course falls or
the date on which the final examination relating to that course is completed, whichever is
the later;

b. in any other case, the date on which the last day of the final academic term falls in
respect of the course in which the student is enrolled;

‘period of study’ means—

a. inthe case of a course of study for one year or less, the period beginning with the start of
the course and ending with the last day of the course;

b. in the case of a course of study for more than one year, in the first or, as the case may
be, any subsequent year of the course, other than the final year of the course, the period
beginning with the start of the course or, as the case may be, the year’s start and ending
with either—

(i) the day before the start of the next year of the course in a case where the student’s

grant or loan is assessed at a rate appropriate to his studying throughout the year, or, if

he does not have a grant or loan, where a loan would have been assessed at such a rate
had he had one; or

(ii) in any other case, the day before the start of the normal summer vacation appropriate

to his course;

c. inthe final year of a course of study of more than one year, the period beginning with
that year’s start and ending with the last day of the course;

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 2098, 63




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

432

433

‘periods of experience’ means periods of work experience which form part of a

sandwich course;

‘qualifying course’ means a qualifying course as defined for the purposes of Parts 2 and 4 of the

Jobseeker’s Allowance Regulations;

‘modular course’ means a course of study which consists of two or more modules, the

successful completion of a specified number of which is required before a person is considered

by the educational establishment to have completed the course.

’sandwich course’ has the meaning prescribed in regulation 2(9) of the Education (Student

Support) Regulations 2008, regulation 4(2) of the Education (Student Loans), (Scotland),

Regulations 2007 or regulation 2(8) of the Education (Student Support) Regulations (Northern

Ireland) 2007, as the case may be;

‘standard maintenance grant’ means—

a. except where paragraph (b) or (c) applies, in the case of a student attending or
undertaking a course of study at the University of London or an establishment within the
area comprising the City of London and the Metropolitan Police District, the amount
specified for the time being in paragraph 2(2)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Education (Mandatory
Awards) Regulations 2003 (‘the 2003 Regulations’) for such a student;

b. except where paragraph (c) applies, in the case of a student residing at his parent’s
home, the amount specified in paragraph 3 thereof;
C. in the case of a student receiving an allowance or bursary under the Education (Scotland)

Act 1980, the amount of money specified as ‘standard maintenance allowance’ for the
relevant year appropriate for the student set out in the Student Support in Scotland Guide
issued by the student Awards Agency for Scotland, or its nearest equivalent in the case of a
bursary provided by a college of further education or a local education authority;

d. in any other case, the amount specified in paragraph 2(2) of Schedule 2 to the 2003

Regulations other than in sub-paragraph (a) or (b) thereof;

‘student’ means a person, other than a person in receipt of a training allowance, who is

attending or undertaking—

a. a course of study at an educational establishment; or

b. a qualifying course;

‘student’ loan’ means a loan towards a student’s maintenance pursuant to any regulations
made under section 22 of the Teaching and Higher Education Act 1998, section 73 of the
Education (Scotland) Act 1980 or Article 3 of the Education (Student Support) (Northern
Ireland) Order 1998 and shall include, in Scotland, a young student’s bursary paid under
regulation 4(1)(c) of the Student’s Allowances (Scotland) Regulations 2007

For the purposes of the definition of ‘full-time student’, a person shall be regarded as attending
or, as the case may be, undertaking a full-time course of study or as being on a sandwich course
(a) in the case of a person attending or undertaking a part of a modular course which would
be a full-time course of study for the purposes of this Part, for the period beginning on
the day on which that part of the course starts and ending;
(i) on the last day on which he is registered with the educational establishment as
attending or undertaking that part as a full-time course of study; or
(i) on such earlier date (if any) as he finally abandons the course or is dismissed from it;
(b) in any other case, throughout the period beginning on the date on which he starts
attending or undertaking the course and ending on the last day of the course or on such
earlier date (if any) as he finally abandons it or is dismissed from it.

For the purposes of sub-paragraph (a) of paragraph 2.8, the period referred to in that sub-

paragraph shall include;

(a) where a person has failed examinations or has failed to successfully complete a module
relating to a period when he was attending or undertaking a part of the course as a full-
time course of study, any period in respect of which he attends or undertakes the course
for the purpose of retaking those examinations or that module;

(b) any period of vacation within the period specified in that paragraph or immediately
following that period except where the person has registered with the educational
establishment to attend or undertake the final module in the course and the vacation

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DiggleteX Q% 64




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

immediately follows the last day on which he is required to attend or undertake the
course.

44.0 Treatment of students

44.1 The following sections relate to students who claim Council Tax Support

45.0 Students who are excluded from entitlement to council tax support

45.1 Students (except those specified in paragraph 45.3) are not able to claim Council Tax Support
under Classes A and B of the Council’s reduction scheme however they will be able to claim
under Class C (alternative maximum council tax support or second adult rebate).

45.2 To be eligible for support, the student must be liable for Council Tax under Section 6 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992 and they must not be deemed to be a full time student or a
persons from abroad within the meaning of section 7 of this policy (persons from aboard).

45.3 Paragraph 45.2 shall not apply to a student
(a) who is a person on income support, an income-based jobseeker’s allowance or an income-
related employment and support allowance;
(b) who is a lone parent;
(c) whose applicable amount would, but for this section, include the disability premium or
severe disability premium;
(d) whose applicable amount would include the disability premium but for his being treated as
capable of work by virtue of a determination made in accordance with regulations made
under section 171E of the Act;
(e)who is, or is treated as, incapable of work and has been so incapable, or has been so
treated as incapable, of work in accordance with the provisions of, and regulations made
under, Part 12A of the Act (incapacity for work) for a continuous period of not less than 196
days; and for this purpose any two or more separate periods separated by a break of not more
than 56 days shall be treated as one continuous period;
(f) who has, or is treated as having, limited capability for work and has had, or been treated as
having, limited capability for work in accordance with the Employment and Support Allowance
Regulations for a continuous period of not less than 196 days, and for this purpose any two or
more separate periods separated by a break of not more than 84 days must be treated as one
continuous period.
(g) who has a partner who is also a full-time student, if he or that partner is treated as
responsible for a child or young person;
(h)who is a single applicant with whom a child is placed by a local authority or voluntary
organisation within the meaning of the Children Act 1989, or, in Scotland, boarded out within
the meaning of the Social Work (Scotland) Act 1968;
i) aged under 21 and whose course of study is not a course of higher education
ii) aged 21 and attained that age during a course of study which is not a course
of higher education — this condition needs adding
iii) a qualifying young person or child within the meaning of section 142 of the
Act (child and qualifying young person)
(j) in respect of whom
i) a supplementary requirement has been determined under paragraph 9 of Part 2
of Schedule 2 to the Education (Mandatory Awards) Regulations 2003;
(i) an allowance, or as the case may be, bursary has been granted which includes
a sum under paragraph (1)(d) or regulation 4 of the Students’ Allowances
(Scotland) Regulations 1999 or, as the case may be, under paragraph (1)(d) of
regulation 4 of the Education Authority (Bursaries) (Scotland) Regulations 1995, in
respect of expenses incurred;
(iii) a payment has been made under section 2 of the Education Act 1962 or under
or by virtue of regulations made under the Teaching and Higher Education Act

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 297 65




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

1998;

(iv) a grant has been made under regulation 13 of the Education (Student Support)
Regulations 2005 or under regulation 13 of the Education (Student Support)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2000; or

(v) a supplementary requirement has been determined under paragraph 9 of
Schedule 6 to the Students Awards Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1999 or a
payment has been made under Article 50(3) of the Education and Libraries
(Northern Ireland) Order 1986,

on account of his disability by reason of deafness.

45.3A Paragraph 45.3(i)(ii) only applies to a claimant until the end of the course during which the

claimant attained the age of 21

45.4 For the purposes of paragraph 45.3, once paragraph 45.3(e) applies to a full-time student, if he

455

45.6

45.7

45.8

46.1

46.2

then ceases, for a period of 56 days or less, to be incapable, or to be treated as incapable, of
work, that paragraph shall, on his again becoming so incapable, or so treated as incapable, of
work at the end of that period, immediately thereafter apply to him for so long as he remains
incapable or is treated as remaining incapable, of work.

In paragraph 45.3(h) the reference to a course of higher education is a reference to a course of
any description mentioned in Schedule 6 to the Education Reform Act 1988.

A full-time student to whom sub-paragraph (i) of paragraph 45.3 applies, shall be treated as
satisfying that sub-paragraph from the date on which he made a request for the supplementary
requirement, allowance, bursary or payment as the case may be.

Paragraph 45.2 shall not apply to a full-time student for the period specified in paragraph 45.8
if;
(a) at any time during an academic year, with the consent of the relevant educational
establishment, he ceases to attend or undertake a course because he is;
(i) engaged in caring for another person; or
(ii) ill;

(b) he has subsequently ceased to be engaged in engaging in caring for that person or, as the
case may be, he has subsequently recovered from that illness; and

(c) he is not eligible for a grant or a student loan in respect of the period specified in
paragraph 45.8.

The period specified for the purposes of paragraph 45.7 is the period, not exceeding one year,

beginning on the day on which he ceased to be engaged in caring for that person or, as the case

may be, the day on which he recovered from that illness and ending on the day before;

(a) the day on which he resumes attending or undertaking the course; or

(b) the day from which the relevant educational establishment has agreed that he may
resume attending or undertaking the course,

which shall first occur.

Calculation of grant income

The amount of a student’s grant income to be taken into account shall, subject to paragraphs
46.2 and 46.3, be the whole of his grant income.

There shall be excluded from a student’s grant income any payment;

(a) intended to meet tuition fees or examination fees;
(b)  inrespect of the student’s disability;

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme DiggleteXO% 66




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

46.3

46.4

46.5

46.6

46.7

46.8

(c) intended to meet additional expenditure connected with term time residential study
away from the student’s educational establishment;

(d)  on account of the student maintaining a home at a place other than that at which he
resides during his course;

(e)  on account of any other person but only if that person is residing outside of the United
Kingdom and there is no applicable amount in respect of him;

(f) intended to meet the cost of books and equipment;

(g) intended to meet travel expenses incurred as a result of his attendance on the course;

(h)  intended for the child care costs of a child dependant.

(i) of higher education bursary for care leavers made under Part Ill of the Children Act 1989.

Where a student does not have a student loan and is not treated as possessing such a loan,
there shall be excluded from the student’s grant income;

(a) the sum of £303 per academic year in respect of travel costs; and

(b)the sum of £390 per academic year towards the costs of books and equipment, whether or
not any such costs are incurred.

The above figures will be increased annually in line with the Housing Benefit Regulations 2006
(as amended).

There shall also be excluded from a student’s grant income the grant for dependants known as
the parents’ learning allowance paid pursuant to regulations made under Article 3 of the
Education (Student Support) (Northern Ireland) Order 1998 or section 22 of the Teaching and
Higher Education Act 1998.

Subject to paragraphs 46.6 and 46.7, a student’s grant income shall be apportioned;

(a) subject to paragraph 46.8, in a case where it is attributable to the period of study, equally
between the weeks in that period beginning with the reduction week, the first day of
which coincides with, or immediately follows the first day of the period of study and
ending with the reduction week, the last day of which coincides with, or immediately
precedes, the last day of the period of study;

(b) in any other case, equally between the weeks in the period beginning with the reduction
week, the first day of which coincides with, or immediately follows, the first day of the
period for which it is payable and ending with the reduction week, the last day of which
coincides with, or immediately precedes, the last day of the period for which it is
payable.

Any grant in respect of dependants paid under section 63(6) of the Health Services and Public
Health Act 1968 (grants in respect of the provision of instruction to officers of hospital
authorities) and any amount intended for the maintenance of dependants under Part 3 of
Schedule 2 to the Education (Mandatory Awards) Regulations 2004 shall be apportioned equally
over the period of 52 weeks or, if there are 53 reduction weeks (including part-weeks) in the
year, 53.

In a case where a student is in receipt of a student loan or where he could have acquired a
student loan by taking reasonable steps but had not done so, any amount intended for the
maintenance of dependants to which neither paragraph 46.6 nor paragraph 50 (other amounts
to be disregarded) apply, shall be apportioned over the same period as the student’s loan is
apportioned or, as the case may be, would have been apportioned.

In the case if a student on a sandwich course, any periods of experience within the period of
study shall be excluded and the student’s grant income shall be apportioned equally between
the weeks in the period beginning with the reduction week, the first day of which immediately
follows the last day of the period of experience and ending with the reduction week, the last
day of which coincides with, or immediately precedes, the last day of the period of study.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 2098 67




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

47.0

471

47.2

473

48.0

48.1

48.2

49.0

49.1

50.0

50.1

Calculation of covenant income where a contribution is assessed

Where a student is in receipt of income by way of a grant during a period of study and a
contribution has been assessed, the amount of his covenant income to be taken into account
for that period and any summer vacation immediately following shall be the whole amount of
the covenant income less, subject to paragraph 47.3, the amount of the contribution.

The weekly amount of the student’s covenant shall be determined—

(a) by dividing the amount of income which falls to be taken into account under paragraph
47.1 by 52 or 53, whichever is reasonable in the circumstances; and

(b) by disregarding from the resulting amount, £5.

For the purposes of paragraph 47.1, the contribution shall be treated as increased by the
amount (if any) by which the amount excluded under paragraph 46.2(g) (calculation of grant
income) falls short of the amount specified in paragraph 7(2) of Schedule 2 to the Education
(Mandatory Awards) Regulations 2003 (travel expenditure).

Covenant income where no grant income or no contribution is assessed

Where a student is not in receipt of income by way of a grant the amount of his covenant

income shall be calculated as follows;

(a)  any sums intended for any expenditure specified in paragraph 46.2 (a) to (e) (calculation

of grant income) necessary as a result of his attendance on the course shall be disregarded;

(b) any covenant income, up to the amount of the standard maintenance grant, which is not
so disregarded, shall be apportioned equally between the weeks of the period of study;

(c) there shall be disregarded from the amount so apportioned the amount which would
have been disregarded under paragraph 46.2(f) and 46.3 (calculation of grant income)
had the student been in receipt of the standard maintenance grant; and

(d)  the balance, if any, shall be divided by 52 or 53 whichever is reasonable in the
circumstances and treated as weekly income of which £5 shall be disregarded.

Where a student is in receipt of income by way of a grant and no contribution has been

assessed, the amount of his covenanted income shall be calculated in accordance with sub-

paragraphs (a) to (d) of paragraph 48.1, except that;

(a) the value of the standard maintenance grant shall be abated by the amount of such grant
income less an amount equal to the amount of any sums disregarded under paragraph
46.2 (a) to (e); and

(b)  the amount to be disregarded under paragraph 48.1(c) shall be abated by an amount
equal to the amount of any sums disregarded under paragraph 46.2(f) and (g) and 46.3.

Student Covenant Income and Grant income — non disregard

No part of a student’s covenant income or grant income shall be disregarded under paragraph
15 of Schedule 4 to this policy

Other amounts to be disregarded

For the purposes of ascertaining income other than grant income, covenant income and loans
treated as income in accordance with section 51, any amounts intended for any expenditure
specified in paragraph 46.2 (calculation of grant income), necessary as a result of his attendance
on the course shall be disregarded but only if, and to the extent that, the necessary expenditure
exceeds or is likely to exceed the amount of the sums disregarded under paragraphs 46.2 or
46.3, 47.3, 48.1(a) or (c) or 51.5 (calculation of grant income, covenant income and treatment of
student loans) on like expenditure.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete3003 68




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

51.0 Treatment of student loans

51.1 A student loan shall be treated as income.

51.2 In calculating the weekly amount of the loan to be taken into account as income
(a) in respect of a course that is of a single academic year’s duration or less, a loan which is
payable in respect of that period shall be apportioned equally between the weeks in the
period beginning with;

(i) except in a case where (ii) applies, the reduction week ,the first day of which coincides
with, or immediately follows, the first day of the single academic year;

(i) where the student is required to start attending the course in August or where the
course is less than an academic year’s duration, the reduction week, the first day of
which coincides with, or immediately follows, the first day of the course, and ending
with the reduction week, the last day of which coincides with, or immediately
precedes with last day of the course,

(b) in respect of an academic year of a course which starts other than on 1st September, a
loan which is payable in respect of that academic year shall be apportioned equally
between the weeks in the period beginning with the reduction week, the first day of
which coincides with or immediately follows, the first day of that academic year and
ending with the reduction week, the last day of which coincides with or immediately
precedes, the last day of that academic year but excluding any reduction weeks falling
entirely within the quarter during which, in the opinion of the Secretary of State, the
longest of any vacation is taken and for the purposes of this sub-paragraph, ‘quarter’
shall have the same meaning as for the purposes of the Education (Student Support)
Regulations 2005;

(c) in respect of the final academic year of a course (not being a course of a single year’s
duration), a loan which is payable in respect of that final academic year shall be
apportioned equally between the weeks in the period beginning with;

(i) except in a case where (ii) applies, the reduction week, the first day of which coincides
with or immediately follows, the first day of that academic year;

(ii) where the final academic year starts on 1st September, the reduction week, the first
day of which coincide with, or immediately follows, the earlier of 1st September or
the first day of the autumn term,

and ending with the reduction week, the last day of which coincides with, or immediately

precedes, the last day of the course;

(d) in any other case, the loan shall be apportioned equally between the weeks in the period
beginning with the earlier of;
(i) the first day of the first reduction week in September; or
(ii) the reduction week, the first day of which coincides with, or immediately follows the
first day of the autumn term,
and ending with the reduction week, the last day of which coincides with, or immediately
precedes, the last day of June;

and, in all cases, from the weekly amount so apportioned there shall be disregarded £10.

51.3 A student shall be treated as possessing a student loan in respect of an academic year where;
(a) a student loan has been made to him in respect of that year; or
(b) he could acquire such a loan in respect of that year by taking reasonable steps to do so.

51.4 Where a student is treated as possessing a student loan under paragraph 51.3, the amount of
the student loan to be taken into account as income shall be, subject to paragraph 51.5
(a) in the case of a student to whom a student loan is made in respect of an academic year, a
sum equal to

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 293 69




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

(i) the maximum student loan he is able to acquire in respect of that year by taking
reasonable steps to do so; and
(i) any contribution whether or not it has been paid to him;

(b) in the case of a student to whom a student loan is not made in respect of an academic year,

the maximum student loan that would be made to the student if;

(i) he took all reasonable steps to obtain the maximum student loan he is able to acquire
in respect of that year; and
(i) no deduction in that loan was made by virtue of the application of a means test.

51.5 There shall be deducted from the amount of income taken into account under paragraph 51.4
(a) the sum of £303 per academic year in respect of travel costs; and
(b)  the sum of £390 per academic year towards the cost of books and equipment, whether
or not any such costs are incurred.
The above figures will be increased annually in line with the Housing Benefit Regulations 2006
(as amended).

51A.0 Treatment of fee loans

51A. 1A loan for fees, known as a fee loan or a fee contribution loan, made pursuant to regulations
made under Article 3 of the Education (Student Support) (Northern Ireland) Order 1998, section
22 of the Teaching and Higher Education Act 1998 or section 73(f) of the Education (Scotland)
Act 1980, shall be disregarded as income.

52.0 Treatment of payments from access funds

52.1 This paragraph applies to payments from access funds that are not payments to which
paragraph 55.2 or 55.3 (income treated as capital) applies.

52.2 A payment from access funds, other than a payment to which paragraph 52.3 applies, shall be
disregarded as income.

52.3 Subject to paragraph 52.4 of this section and paragraph 35 of Schedule 4,
a) any payments from access funds which are intended and used for an item of food,
ordinary clothing or footwear, household fuel, or rent of a single applicant or, as the case
may be, of the applicant or any other member of his family and

b) any payments from access funds which are used for any council tax or water charges for
which that applicant or member is liable, shall be disregarded as income to the extent of
£20 per week.

52.4 Where a payment from access funds is made—

(a)  on or after 1st September or the first day of the course, whichever first occurs, but
before receipt of any student loan in respect of that year and that payment is intended
for the purpose of bridging the period until receipt of the student loan; or

(b)  before the first day of the course to a person in anticipation of that person becoming a
student,

that payment shall be disregarded as income.

53.0 Disregard of contribution

53.1 Where the applicant or his partner is a student and for the purposes of assessing a contribution
to the student’s grant or student loan, the other partner’s income has been taken into account,
an amount equal to that contribution shall be disregarded for the purposes of assessing that
other partner’s income.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete30 23 70




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

54.0

541

55.0

55.1

55.2

553

56.0
56.1

Further disregard of student’s income

Where any part of a student’s income has already been taken into account for the purpose of
assessing his entitlement to a grant or student loan, the amount taken into account shall be
disregarded in assessing that student’s income.

Income treated as capital

Any amount by way of a refund of tax deducted from a student’s covenant income shall be
treated as capital.

Any amount paid from access funds as a single lump sum shall be treated as capital.

An amount paid from access fund as a single lump sum which is intended and used for an item
other than food, ordinary clothing or footwear, household fuel or rent, or which is used for an
item other than any council tax or water charges for which that applicant or member is liable,
shall be disregarded as capital but only for a period of 52 weeks from the date of the payment.

Disregard of changes occurring during summer vacation

In calculating a student’s income the authority shall disregard any change in the standard
maintenance grant, occurring in the recognised summer vacation appropriate to the student’s
course, if that vacation does not form part of his period of study from the date on which the
change occurred to the end of that vacation.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaag# 203 71




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Sections 57 — 63

The calculation and amount of Council Tax Support

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dognlete3028

72




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

57.0

57.1

57.1A

57.2

57.3

57.4

58.0
58.1

58.2

Maximum council tax support

Subject to paragraphs 57.2 to 57.4, the amount of a person’s maximum council tax support in
respect of a day for which he is liable to pay council tax, shall be 78 per cent, of the amount A/B
where;

(a)  Aisthe lower of either;

i the amount set by the appropriate authority as the council tax for the relevant
financial year in respect of the dwelling in which he is a resident and for which
he is liable, subject to any discount which may be appropriate to that dwelling
under the 1992 Act; or

ii. the amount set by the appropriate authority as the council tax for the relevant
financial year in respect of a dwelling within Band D subject to any discount
which may be appropriate to the person’s circumstances; and

(b)  Bisthe number of days in that financial year.

Where the applicant is in receipt of;

e Support Component of Employment and Support Allowance (ESA); or

o Enhanced Disability Premium (EDP); or

e Enhanced Disability Premium for Dependants; or

o Disability Child Premium for Dependents (DCP); or

o Severe Disability Premium (SDP).
The amount specified is paragraph 57.1 shall be 100% of the band relevant to the dwelling
in which he is a resident and for which he is liable, subject to any discount which may be
appropriate to that dwelling under the 1992 Act

In calculating a person’s maximum council tax support any reduction in the amount that person
is liable to pay in respect of council tax, which is made in consequence of any enactment in, or
made under, the 1992 Act, shall be taken into account.

Subject to paragraph 57.4, where an applicant is jointly and severally liable for council tax in
respect of a dwelling in which he is resident with one or more other persons but excepting any
person so residing with the applicant who is a student to whom paragraph 45.2 (students who
are excluded from entitlement to council tax support) applies, in determining the maximum
council tax support in his case in accordance with paragraph 57.1, the amount A shall be divided
by the number of persons who are jointly and severally liable for that tax.

Where an applicant is jointly and severally liable for council tax in respect of a dwelling with only
his partner, paragraph 57.3 shall not apply in his case

Non-dependant deductions

Subject to the following provisions of this paragraph, the non-dependant deductions in respect

of a day referred to in section 57 (maximum council tax support) shall be;

(a) in respect of a non-dependant aged 18 or over in remunerative work, £0.00x 1/7;

(b)  in respect of a non-dependant aged 18 or over to whom sub-paragraph (a) does not
apply, £0.00x 1/7.

In the case of a non-dependant aged 18 or over to whom paragraph 58.1(a) applies, where it is

shown to the appropriate authority that his normal gross weekly income is—

(a) less than £183.00, the deduction to be made under this paragraph shall be that specified
in paragraph 58.1(b);

(b) not less than £183.00, but less than £316.00, the deduction to be made under this
section shall be £6.55;

(c) not less than £316.00, but less than £394.00, the deduction to be made under this

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 205 73




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

58.3

58.4

58.5

58.6

58.7

section shall be £8.25;

Only one deduction shall be made under this section in respect of a couple or, as the case may
be, members of a polygamous marriage and, where, but for this paragraph, the amount that
would fall to be deducted in respect of one member of a couple or polygamous marriage is
higher than the amount (if any) that would fall to be deducted in respect of the other, or any
other, member, the higher amount shall be deducted.

In applying the provisions of paragraph 58.2 in the case of a couple or, as the case may be a
polygamous marriage, regard shall be had, for the purpose of that paragraph, to the couple’s or,
as the case may be, all members of the polygamous marriage’s joint weekly gross income.

Where in respect of a day—

(a) a person is a resident in a dwelling but is not himself liable for council tax in respect of
that dwelling and that day;

(b)  other residents in that dwelling (the liable persons) have joint and several liability for
council tax in respect of that dwelling and that day otherwise than by virtue of section 9
or 77 or 77A of the 1992 Act (liability of spouses and civil partners); and

(c)  the person to whom sub-paragraph (a) refers is a non-dependant of two or more of the
liable persons, the deduction in respect of that non-dependant shall be apportioned
equally between those liable persons.

No deduction shall be made in respect of any non-dependants occupying an applicant’s dwelling
if the applicant or his partner is—
(a) blind or treated as blind by virtue of paragraph 9 of Schedule 1 (additional condition for
the disability premium); or
(b)  receiving in respect of himself
(i) attendance allowance, or would be receiving that allowance but for
(aa) a suspension of benefit in accordance with regulations under section 113(2)
of The Act; or
(bb) an abatement as a result of hospitalisation; or
(ii) the care component of the disability living allowance, or would be receiving that
component but for
(aa) a suspension of benefit in accordance with regulations under section 113(2)
of The Act; or
(bb) an abatement as a result of hospitalisation; or

(c) the daily living component of personal independence payment, or would be receiving
that allowance but for a suspension of benefit in accordance with regulations under
section 86 of the Welfare Reform Act 2012 (hospital in-patients);

(d) an AFIP, or would be receiving that payment but for a suspension of it in accordance
with any terms of the armed and reserve forces compensation scheme which allows
for a suspension because a person is undergoing medical treatment in a hospital or
similar institution.

No deduction shall be made in respect of a non-dependant if;

(a) although he resides with the applicant, it appears to the authority that his normal home
is elsewhere; or

(b) he is in receipt of a training allowance paid in connection with a youth training
established under section 2 of the 1973 Act or section 2 of the Enterprise and New
Towns (Scotland) Act 1990; or

(c) he is a full time student within the meaning of section 44.0 (Students); or

(d) he is not residing with the applicant because he has been a patient for a period of excess
of 52 weeks, and for these purposes;
(i) ‘patient’ has the meaning given in paragraph (7) of section 8, and
(i) where a person has been a patient for two or more distinct periods separated by one
or more intervals each not exceeding 28 days, he shall be treated as having been a

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete30% 74




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

58.8

58.9

59.0

59.1

60.0

60.1

60.2

60.3

patient continuously for a period equal in duration to the total of those distinct periods.

No deduction shall be made in respect of a non-dependant;

(a) who is on income support, state pension credit, an income-based jobseeker’s allowance

or an income-related employment and support allowance; or

(b) to whom Schedule 1 of the 1992 Act applies (persons disregarded for purposes of
discount) but this sub-paragraph shall not apply to a non-dependant who is a student to
whom paragraph 4 of that Schedule refers.

In the application of paragraph 58.2 there shall be disregarded from his weekly gross income—

(a) any attendance allowance, disability living allowance or personal independence payment
or an AFIP received by him;

(b)  any payment made under or by the Trusts, the Fund, the Eileen Trust , MFET Limited, the
Skipton Fund, the Caxton Foundation or the Independent Living Fund (2006) which had
his income fallen to be calculated under section 30 (calculation of income other than
earnings) would have been disregarded under paragraph 24 of Schedule 4 (income in
kind); and

(c)  any payment which had his income fallen to be calculated under section 30 would have
been disregarded under paragraph 36 of Schedule 4 (payments made under certain trusts
and certain other payments).

Council tax support taper (applies to persons defined within Class B)

The prescribed percentage for the purpose of calculating support as a percentage of excess of
income over the applicable amount which is deducted from maximum council tax support, shall
be 2 6/7 per cent. Where an applicant’s income exceeds their applicable amount, their council
tax support shall be calculated by deducting their excess income multiplied by the taper from
their maximum council tax support as defined within section 57 of this policy

Extended reductions

An applicant who is entitled to council tax support (by virtue of the general conditions of

entitlement) shall be entitled to an extended reduction where;

(a)  the applicant or the applicant’s partner was entitled to a qualifying income- related
benefit;

(b)  entitlement to a qualifying income-related benefit ceased because the applicant or the
applicant’s partner—
(i) commenced employment as an employed or self-employed earner;
(ii) increased their earnings from such employment; or
(iii) increased the number of hours worked in such employment,
and that employment is or, as the case may be, increased earnings or increased number
of hours are expected to last five weeks or more; and

(c)  the applicant or the applicant’s partner had been entitled to and in receipt of a qualifying
income-related benefit, jobseeker’s allowance or a combination of those benefits for a
continuous period of at least 26 weeks before the day on which the entitlement to a
qualifying income-related benefit ceased.

For the purpose of paragraph 60.1(c), an applicant or an applicant’s partner is to be treated as
having been entitled to and in receipt of a qualifying income-related benefit or jobseeker’s
allowance during any period of less than five weeks in respect of which the applicant or the
applicant’s partner was not entitled to any of those benefits because the applicant or the
applicant’s partner was engaged in remunerative work as a consequence of their participation
in an employment zone programme.

For the purpose of this section, where an applicant or an applicant’s partner is entitled to and in

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# R07 75




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

receipt of joint-claim jobseeker’s allowance they shall be treated as being entitled to and in
receipt of jobseeker’s allowance.

60.4 An applicant must be treated as entitled to council tax support by virtue of the general
conditions of entitlement where—

(a) the applicant ceased to be entitled to council tax support because the applicant vacated
the dwelling in which the applicant was resident;

(b)  the day on which the applicant vacated the dwelling was either in the week in which
entitlement to a qualifying income-related benefit ceased, or in the preceding week; and

(c) entitlement to the qualifying income-related benefit ceased in any of the circumstances
listed in paragraph 60.1(b).

60.5 This section shall not apply where, on the day before an applicant’s entitlement to income
support ceased, regulation 6(5) of the Income Support Regulations (remunerative work: housing
costs) applied to that applicant.

60A.0 Duration of extended reduction period

60A.1 Where an applicant is entitled to an extended reduction, the extended reduction period starts
on the first day of the reduction week immediately following the reduction week in which the
applicant, or the applicant’s partner, ceased to be entitled to a qualifying income-related
benefit.

60A.2 For the purpose of paragraph (60A.1), an applicant or an applicant’s partner ceases to be
entitled to a qualifying income-related benefit on the day immediately following the last day of
entitlement to that benefit.

60A.3 The extended reduction period ends;

(a)  atthe end of a period of four weeks; or
(b) on the date on which the applicant to whom the extended reduction is payable has no
liability for council tax, if that occurs first.

60B.0 Amount of extended reduction

60B.1 For any week during the extended reduction period the amount of the extended reduction
payable to an applicant shall be the higher of—

(a) the amount of council tax support to which the applicant was entitled under the general
conditions of entitlement in the last reduction week before the applicant or the
applicant’s partner ceased to be entitled to a qualifying income- related benefit;

(b)  the amount of council tax support to which the applicant would be entitled under the
general conditions of entitlement for any reduction week during the extended reduction
period, if section 60 (extended reductions) did not apply to the applicant; or

(c) the amount of council tax support to which the applicant’s partner would be entitled
under the general conditions of entitlement, if section 60 did not apply to the applicant.

60B.2 Paragraph 60B1 does not apply in the case of a mover.

60B.3 Where an applicant is in receipt of an extended reduction under this section and the applicant’s
partner makes a claim for council tax support, no amount of council tax support shall be payable
by the appropriate authority during the extended reduction period.

60C Extended reductions — movers

60C.1 This section applies;
(a)  to amover;and
(b)  from the Monday following the day of the move.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete30% 76




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

60C.2

60C.3

The amount of the extended reduction payable from the Monday from which this section
applies until the end of the extended reduction period shall be the amount of council tax
support which was payable to the mover for the last reduction week before the mover, or the
mover’s partner, ceased to be entitled to a qualifying income-related benefit.

Where a mover’s liability to pay council tax in respect of the new dwelling is to the second
authority, the extended reduction may take the form of a payment from the appropriate
authority to;

(a)  the second authority; or

(b)  the mover directly.

60C.4 Where—

60D.0

60D.1

60D.2

61.0

61.1

61.2

(a) a mover, or the mover’s partner, makes a claim for council tax support to the second
authority after the mover, or the mover’s partner, ceased to be entitled to a qualifying
income-related benefit; and

(b) the mover, or the mover’s partner, is in receipt of an extended reduction from the
appropriate authority, the second authority shall reduce the weekly amount of council
tax support that the mover, or the mover’s partner, is entitled to by a sum equal to the
amount of the extended reduction until the end of the extended reduction period.

Relationship between extended reduction and entitlement to council tax support under the
general conditions of entitlement

Where an applicant’s council tax support award would have ended when the applicant ceased
to be entitled to a qualifying income-related benefit in the circumstances listed in paragraph
60.1(b), that award will not cease until the end of the extended reduction period.

Changes of circumstances and increases for exceptional circumstances shall not apply to any
extended reduction payable in accordance with paragraph 60B.1(a) or 60C.2 (amount of
extended reduction — movers).

Extended reductions (qualifying contributory benefits)

An applicant who is entitled to council tax support (by virtue of the general conditions of
entitlement) shall be entitled to an extended reduction (qualifying contributory benefits) where;
(a) the applicant or the applicant’s partner was entitled to a qualifying contributory benefit;
(b) entitlement to a qualifying contributory benefit ceased because the applicant or the
applicant’s partner;
(i) commenced employment as an employed or self-employed earner;
(ii) increased their earnings from such employment; or
(iii) increased the number of hours worked in such employment, and that
employment is or, as the case may be, increased earnings or increased number of
hours are expected to last five weeks or more;

(c) the applicant or the applicant’s partner had been entitled to and in receipt of a qualifying
contributory benefit or a combination of qualifying contributory benefits for a
continuous period of at least 26 weeks before the day on which the entitlement to a
qualifying contributory benefit ceased; and

(d)  the applicant or the applicant’s partner was not entitled to and not in receipt of a
qualifying income-related benefit in the last reduction week in which the applicant, or
the applicant’s partner, was entitled to a qualifying contributory benefit.

An applicant must be treated as entitled to council tax support by virtue of the general

conditions of entitlement where;

(a) the applicant ceased to be entitled to council tax support because the applicant vacated
the dwelling in which the applicant was resident;

(b)  the day on which the applicant vacated the dwelling was either in the week in which

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 2099 77




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

entitlement to a qualifying contributory benefit ceased, or in the preceding week; and
(c) entitlement to the qualifying contributory benefit ceased in any of the circumstances
listed in paragraph 61.1(b).

61A.0 Duration of extended reduction period (qualifying contributory benefits)

61A.1 Where an applicant is entitled to an extended reduction (qualifying contributory benefits), the
extended reduction period starts on the first day of the reduction week immediately following
the reduction week in which the applicant, or the applicant’s partner, ceased to be entitled to a
qualifying contributory benefit.

61A.2 For the purpose of paragraph 61A.1, an applicant or an applicant’s partner ceases to be entitled
to a qualifying contributory benefit on the day immediately following the last day of entitlement
to that benefit.

61A.3 The extended reduction period ends;
(a)  atthe end of a period of four weeks; or
(b) on the date on which the applicant to whom the extended reduction (qualifying
contributory benefits) is payable has no liability for council tax, if that occurs first.

61B.0 Amount of extended reduction (qualifying contributory benefits)

61B.1 For any week during the extended reduction period the amount of the extended reduction

(qualifying contributory benefits) payable to an applicant shall be the higher of;

(a) the amount of council tax support to which the applicant was entitled under the general
conditions of entitlement in the last reduction week before the applicant or the
applicant’s partner ceased to be entitled to a qualifying contributory benefit;

(b) the amount of council tax support to which the applicant would be entitled under the
general conditions of entitlement for any reduction week during the extended reduction
period, if section 61 (extended reductions (qualifying contributory benefits)) did not
apply to the applicant; or

(c) the amount of council tax support to which the applicant’s partner would be entitled
under the general conditions of entitlement, if section 61 did not apply to the applicant.

61B .2 Paragraph 61B.1 does not apply in the case of a mover.

61B.3 Where an applicant is in receipt of an extended reduction (qualifying contributory benefits)
under this section and the applicant’s partner makes a claim for council tax support, no amount
of council tax support shall be payable by the appropriate authority during the extended
reduction period.

61C.0 Extended reductions (qualifying contributory benefits) — movers

61C.1 This section applies;
(a)  toamover; and
(b)  from the Monday following the day of the move.

61C.2 The amount of the extended reduction (qualifying contributory benefit) payable from the
Monday from which this section applies until the end of the extended reduction period shall be
the amount of council tax support which was payable to the mover for the last reduction week
before the mover, or the mover's partner, ceased to be entitled to a qualifying contributory
benefit.

61C.3 Where a mover’s liability to pay council tax in respect of the new dwelling is to the second
authority, the extended reduction (qualifying contributory benefits) may take the form of a
payment from the appropriate authority to—
(a)  the second authority; or
(b)  the mover directly.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete31.63 78




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

61C.4 Where

(a) a mover, or the mover’s partner, makes a claim for council tax support to the second
authority after the mover, or the mover’s partner, ceased to be entitled to a qualifying
contributory benefit; and

(b)  the mover, or the mover’s partner, is in receipt of an extended reduction (qualifying
contributory benefits) from the appropriate authority, the second authority shall reduce
the weekly amount of council tax support that the mover, or the mover’s partner, is
entitled to by a sum equal to the amount of the extended reduction (qualifying
contributory benefits) until the end of the extended reduction period.

61D.0 Relationship between extended reduction (qualifying contributory benefits) and entitlement
to council tax support under the general conditions of entitlement

61D.1 Where an applicant’s council tax support award would have ended when the applicant ceased
to be entitled to a qualifying contributory benefit in the circumstances listed in paragraph 61.1
(b), that award will not cease until the end of the extended reduction period.

61D.2 Changes of circumstances and increases for exceptional circumstances shall not apply to any
extended reduction (qualifying contributory benefits) payable in accordance with paragraph
61B.1(a) or 61C.2 (amount of extended reduction— movers).

61E.0 Extended reductions: - Movers Generally **
61E.1  Where;

a. an application is made to a billing authority (“the current authority”) for a reduction
under this scheme, and

b. the applicant, or the partner of the applicant, is in receipt of an extended reduction
from

c. (i) another billing authority in England;
(ii) a billing authority in Wales;
(iii) a local authority in Scotland; or
(iv) a local authority in Northern Ireland.

the current billing authority must reduce any reduction to which the applicant is entitled
under this scheme by the amount of that extended reduction.

62.0-63.0

14 mserted by Council Tax Reductions Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# RP3 79




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Sections 64 — 67

Changes of circumstances within Council Tax Support

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dogpnlete31.23

80




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

64.0
64.1

64.2

65.0 -

67.0

67.1

67.2

67.3

67.4

67.5

67.6

67.7

67.8

Date on which entitlement is to begin

Subject to paragraph 64.2, any person to whom or in respect of whom a claim for council tax
support is made and who is otherwise entitled to that support shall be so entitled from the
reduction week following the date on which that claim is made or is treated as made.

Where a person is otherwise entitled to council tax support and becomes liable for the first time
for the authority’s council tax in respect of a dwelling of which he is a resident in the reduction
week in which his claim is made or is treated as made, he shall be so entitled from that
reduction week.

66.0 Not Used

Date on which change of circumstances is to take effect

Except in cases where section 24 (disregard of changes in tax, contributions, etc.) applies and
subject to the following provisions of this paragraph, a change of circumstances which affects
entitlement to, or the amount of, a reduction under an authority’s scheme (“change of
circumstances”), takes effect from the first day of the reduction week following the date on
which the change actually occurs, and where that change is cessation of entitlement to any
benefit under the benefit Acts, the date on which the change actually occurs shall be the day
immediately following the last day of entitlement to that benefit.

Subject to paragraph (3), where the change of circumstances is a change in the amount of
council tax payable, it takes effect from the day on which it actually occurs.

Where the change of circumstances is a change in the amount a person is liable to pay in
respect of council tax in consequence of regulations under section 13 of the 1992 Act (reduced
amounts of council tax) or changes in the discount to which a dwelling may be subject under
sections 11 or 12 of that Act, it shall take effect from the day on which the change in amount
has effect.

Where the change of circumstances is the applicant's acquisition of a partner, the change takes
effect on the day on which the acquisition takes place.

Where the change of circumstances is the death of an applicant's partner or their separation, it
takes effect on the day the death or separation occurs.

If two or more changes of circumstances occurring in the same reduction week would, but for
this paragraph, take effect in different reduction weeks in accordance with paragraphs (1) to (5)
they take effect from the day to which the appropriate paragraph from (2) to (5) above refers,
or, where more than one day is concerned, from the earlier day.

Where the change of circumstances is that income, or an increase in the amount of income,
other than a benefit or an increase in the amount of a benefit under the SSCBA, is paid in
respect of a past period and there was no entitlement to income of that amount during that
period, the change of circumstances shall take effect from the first day on which such income,
had it been paid in that period at intervals appropriate to that income, would have fallen to be
taken into account for the purposes of this scheme.

Without prejudice to paragraph (7), where the change of circumstances is the payment of
income, or arrears of income, in respect of a past period, the change of circumstances takes
effect from the first day on which such income, had it been timeously paid in that period at
intervals appropriate to that income, would have fallen to be taken into account for the

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# BP3R 81




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

purposes of this scheme.

67.9 Sub-paragraph (10) applies if
(a) the applicant or his partner has attained the age of 65; and
(b) either
(i} a non-dependant took up residence in the applicant’s dwelling; or

(i) there has been a change of circumstances in respect of a non-dependant so that
the amount of the deduction which falls to be made under paragraph 29 increased.

67.10 Where this sub-paragraph applies, the change of circumstances referred to in sub-paragraph
(9)(b) takes effect from the effective date.

67.11  In sub-paragraph (10), but subject to sub-paragraph (12), “the effective date” means

(a) where more than one change of a kind referred to in sub-paragraph (10)(b) relating to the
same non-dependant has occurred since

(i} the date on which the applicant’s entitlement to a reduction under this scheme
first began; or

(ii) the date which was the last effective date in respect of such a change,

whichever is the late, the date which falls 26 weeks after the date on which the first such
change occurred;

where paragraph (a) does not apply, the date which falls 26 weeks after the date on which the
change referred to in sub-paragraph (10)(b) occurred.

67.12 If in any particular case the date determined under sub-paragraph (12) is not the first day of a

reduction week, the effective date in that case is to be the first day of the next reduction week
to commence after the date determined under that sub-paragraph.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dygglet€31.28 82




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Sections 68— 74A

Claiming and the treatment of claims for Council Tax Support purposes

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaageg BAPE

83




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

68.0

68.1

68.2

68.3

68.4

68.5

68.6

68.7

Who may claim®

In the case of a couple or members of a polygamous marriage an application shall be made by
whichever one of them they agree should so apply or, in default of agreement, by such one of
them as the authority determines.

Where a person who is liable to pay council tax in respect of a dwelling is unable for the time

being to act, and;

(a) a deputy has been appointed by the Court of Protection with power to apply, or as the
case may be, receive benefit on his behalf; or

(b) in Scotland, his estate is being administered by a judicial factor or any guardian acting or
appointed under the Adults with Incapacity (Scotland) Act 2000 who has power to apply
or, as the case may be, receive benefit on his behalf; or

(c) an attorney with a general power or a power to apply or, as the case may be, receive
benefit, has been appointed by that person under the Powers of Attorney Act 1971, the
Enduring Powers of Attorney Act 1985 or the Mental Capacity Act 2005 or otherwise,

that deputy, judicial factor, guardian or attorney, as the case may be, may make an application
on behalf of that person.

Where a person who is liable to pay council tax in respect of a dwelling is unable for the time
being to act and paragraph (2) does not apply to him, an authority may, upon written
application made to them by a person who, if a natural person, is over the age of 18, appoint
that person to exercise on behalf of the person who is unable to act, any right to which that
person might be entitled under the authority’s scheme and to receive and deal on his behalf
with any sums payable to him.

Where a person who is liable to pay council tax in respect of a dwelling is for the time being
unable to act and the Secretary of State has appointed a person to act on his behalf under
regulation 33 of the Social Security (Claims and Payments) Regulations 1987 (persons unable to
act), the authority may if that person agrees, treat him as if he had been appointed by them
under sub-paragraph (3).

Where the authority has made an appointment under sub-paragraph (3) or treated a person
as an appointee under sub-paragraph (4);

(a) it may at any time revoke the appointment;

(b) the person appointed may resign his office after having given 4 weeks notice in
writing to the authority of his intention to do so;

(c) any such appointment terminates when the authority is notified of the

appointment of a person mentioned in sub-paragraph (2).

Anything required by the authority’s scheme to be done by or to any person who is for the
time being unable to act may be done by or to the persons mentioned in sub-paragraph (2)
above or by or to the person appointed or treated as appointed under this paragraph and
the receipt of any such person so appointed shall be a good discharge to the authority for
any sum paid.

The authority must;

(a) inform any person making an application of the duty imposed by paragraph 9(1)(a)
of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme (Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012;

(b) explain the possible consequences (including prosecution) of failing to comply with

15 Inserted by Council Tax Reductions Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglet€31.6 84




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

that duty; and
(c) set out the circumstances a change in which might affect entitlement to the
reduction or its amount.

69.0 Procedure by which a person may apply for a reduction under the authority’s scheme™®

69.1. Paragraphs 2 to 7 apply to an application made under the authority’s scheme.
69.2. An application may be made;

(a) inwriting,

(b) by means of an electronic communication in accordance with sections 101 — 106A of this
scheme, or

(c) where the authority has published a telephone number for the purpose of receiving such
applications, by telephone.

69.3 (1) An application which is made in writing must be made to the designated office on a
properly completed form.
(2) The form must be provided free of charge by the authority for the purpose.

69.4 (1) Where an application made in writing is defective because—

(a) it was made on the form supplied for the purpose but that form is not accepted by
the authority as being properly completed; or
(b) it was made in writing but not on the form approved for the purpose and the

authority does not accept the application as being in a written form which is
sufficient in the circumstances of the case having regard to the sufficiency of the
written information and evidence,
the authority may, in a case to which sub-paragraph (a) applies, request the applicant to
complete the defective application or, in the case to which sub-paragraph (b) applies, supply
the applicant with the approved form or request further information and evidence.

(2) An application made on a form provided by the authority is properly completed if it is
completed in accordance with the instructions on the form, including any instructions to
provide information and evidence in connection with the application.

69.5. (1) If an application made by electronic communication is defective the authority must
provide the person making the application with an opportunity to correct the
defect.
(2) An application made by electronic communication is defective if the applicant does

not provide all the information the authority requires.

69.6. In a particular case the authority may determine that an application made by telephone is
only valid if the person making the application approves a written statement of his
circumstances provided by the authority.

69.7 (1) If an application made by telephone is defective the authority must provide the
person making the application with an opportunity to correct the defect.
(2) An application made by telephone is defective if the applicant does not provide all

the information the authority requests during the telephone call.

69.8 Notwithstanding other paragraphs within this section, the authority will determine the method
by which claims are to be made as well as where claims should be sent or delivered.

** Inserted by Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# RP7 85




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

69.9

69A.0
69A.1

69A.2

(1) Where an applicant;

(a) makes an application under this scheme which includes (or which
he subsequently requests should include) a period before the

application is made; and

(b) from a day in that period, up to the date he made the application (or
subsequently requested that the application should include a past
period), the applicant had continuous good cause for failing to make an
application (or request that the application should include that period),

the application is to be treated as made on the date determined in
accordance with sub-paragraph (2).

(2) That date is the latest of;

the first day from which the applicant had continuous good cause;

the day 6 months before the date the application was made;

the day 6 months before the date when the applicant requested that the
application should include a past period.

Tw

Date on which an application is made
Subject to sub-paragraph (7), the date on which an application is made is;
(a) in a case where;
(i) an award of income support, an income-based jobseeker’s allowance or an
income- related employment and support allowance or an award of universal credit
has been made to the applicant or his partner, and
(ii) the application is made within one month of the date on which the claim for
that income support, jobseeker’s allowance, employment and support allowance or
universal credit was received,
the first day of entitlement to income support, an income-based jobseeker’s allowance, an
income-related employment and support allowance or universal credit arising from that
claim;
(b) in a case where;
(i) an applicant or his partner is a person on income support, an income-based
jobseeker’s allowance or an income-related employment and support allowance or
has an award of universal credit,
(i) the applicant becomes liable for the first time to pay council tax in respect of the
dwelling which he occupies as his home, and
(iii) the application is received at the designated office within one month of the
date of the change,
the date on which the change takes place;
(c) in a case where;
(i) an applicant is the former partner of a person who was, at the date of his death
or their separation, entitled to a reduction under the authority’s scheme, and
(ii) the applicant makes an application for a reduction under that scheme within
one month of the date of the death or the separation,
the date of the death or separation;
(d) in a case where a properly completed application is received within one month (or such
longer period as the authority considers reasonable) of the date on which an application
form was issued to an applicant following the applicant first notifying, by whatever means, the
authority of an intention to make an application, the date of first notification;
(e) in any other case, the date on which an application is received at the designated office.

For the purposes only of sub-paragraph (1)(a) a person who has been awarded an
income-based jobseeker's allowance or an income-related employment and support
allowance is to be treated as entitled to that allowance for any days which immediately
precede the first day in that award and on which he would, but for regulations made
under;

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete31.8 86




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

69A.3

69A.4

69A.5

69A.6

69A.7

70.0

70.1

(a) in the case of income-based jobseeker's allowance, paragraph 4 of Schedule 1 to the
lobseekers Act 1995 (waiting days); or

(b) in the case of income-related employment and support allowance, paragraph 2 of
Schedule 2 to the Welfare Reform Act 2007 (waiting days),

have been entitled to that allowance.

Where there is a defect in an applications by telephone;

(a) is corrected within one month (or such longer period as the authority considers
reasonable) of the date the authority last drew attention to it, the authority must treat the
application as if it had been duly made in the first instance;

(b) is not corrected within one month (or such longer period as the authority considers
reasonable) of the date the authority last drew attention to it, the authority must treat the
application as if it had been duly made in the first instance where it considers it has
sufficient information to decide the application.

The authority is to treat a defective application as if it had been validly made in the first
instance if, in any particular case, the conditions specified in sub-paragraph (5)(a), (b) or (c)
are satisfied.

The conditions are that—

(a) where the authority receives the properly completed application or the information
requested to complete it or the evidence within one month of the request, or such longer
period as the authority may consider reasonable; or

(b) where an application is not on approved form or further information requested by
authority applies;

(i) the approved form sent to the applicant is received at the offices of the authority properly
completed within one month of it having been sent to him; or, as the case may be;

(ii) the applicant supplies whatever information or evidence was requested within one month
of the request; or,

in either case, within such longer period as the authority may consider reasonable; or

(c) where the authority has requested further information, the authority receives at its offices
the properly completed application or the information requested to complete it within one
month of the request or within such longer period as the authority considers reasonable.

Except in the case of an application made by a person treated as not being in Great Britain,
where a person has not become liable for council tax to the authority but it is anticipated
that he will become so liable within the period of 8 weeks (the relevant period), he may apply
for a reduction under that authority’s scheme at any time in that period in respect of that tax
and, provided that liability arises within the relevant period, the authority must treat the
application as having been made on the day on which the liability for the tax arises.

Except in the case of an application made by a person treated as not being in Great Britain,
where the applicant is not entitled to a reduction under the authority’s scheme in the
reduction week immediately following the date of his application but the authority is of the
opinion that unless there is a change of circumstances he will be entitled to a reduction
under its scheme for a period beginning not later than the thirteenth reduction week
following the date on which the application is made, the authority may treat the application
as made on a date in the reduction week immediately preceding the first reduction week of
that period of entitlement and award a reduction accordingly.

Submission of evidence electronically

The authority may accept such evidence, documents and certificates to support the claim
electronically where it feels that this would be acceptable given the nature of the claim

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# RP8 87




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

71.0
711

72.0
721

72.2

723

72.4

72.5

72.6

727

Use of telephone provided evidence

The authority may accept such evidence to support the claim by telephone where it feels that
this would be acceptable given the nature of the claim

Information and evidence’

Subject to sub-paragraph (3), a person who makes an application for a reduction under an
authority’s scheme must satisfy sub-paragraph (2) in relation both to himself and to any other
person in respect of whom he is making the application.

This sub-paragraph is satisfied in relation to a person if—
(a) the application is accompanied by;
(i) a statement of the person’s national insurance number and information or
evidence establishing that that number has been allocated to the person; or
(ii) information or evidence enabling the authority to ascertain the national
insurance number that has been allocated to the person; or
(b) the person has made an application for a national insurance number to be allocated to
him and the application for the reduction is accompanied by;
(i) evidence of the application for a national insurance number to be so allocated;
and
(i) the information or evidence enabling it to be so allocated.

Sub-paragraph (2) does not apply;
(a) in the case of a child or young person in respect of whom an application for a reduction is
made;
(b) to a person who;
(i) is a person treated as not being in Great Britain for the purposes of this
scheme;
(i) is subject to immigration control within the meaning of section 115(9)(a) of the
Immigration and Asylum Act 1999; and
(iii) has not previously been allocated a national insurance number.

Subject to sub-paragraph (5), a person who makes an application, or a person to whom a
reduction under the authority’s scheme has been awarded, must furnish such certificates,
documents, information and evidence in connection with the application or the award, or
any question arising out of the application or the award, as may reasonably be required by
that authority in order to determine that person’s entitlement to, or continuing entitlement
to a reduction under its scheme and must do so within one month of the authority requiring
him to do so or such longer period as the authority may consider reasonable.

Nothing in this paragraph requires a person who is a pensioner to furnish any certificates,
documents, information or evidence relating to a payment to which sub-paragraph (7)
applies.

Where the authority makes a request under sub-paragraph (4), it must;

(a) inform the applicant or the person to whom a reduction under its scheme has been
awarded of his duty under paragraph 9 of Schedule 8 the Council Tax Reduction Scheme
(Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012 (duty to notify change of circumstances) to notify
the authority of any change of circumstances; and

(b) without prejudice to the extent of the duty owed under paragraph 9, indicate to him
either orally or by notice or by reference to some other document available to him on
application and without charge, the kind of change of circumstances which must be notified.

This sub-paragraph applies to any of the following payments;
(a) a payment which is made under or by the Trusts, the Fund, the Eileen Trust, MFET

*7 Inserted by Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete3 D03 88




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

72.8

73.0

731

73.2

733

73.4

735

73.6

73.7

74.0

74.1

74.2

Limited, the Skipton Fund, the Caxton Foundation or the London Bombings Relief Charitable
Fund;

(b) a payment which is disregarded under paragraph 24 of Schedule 5, other than a payment
under the Independent Living Fund (2006);

(c) a payment which is disregarded under paragraph 58.9.

Where an applicant or a person to whom a reduction under the authority’s scheme has been
awarded or any partner has attained the qualifying age for state pension credit and is a
member of, or a person deriving entitlement to a pension under, a personal pension
scheme, he must where the authority so requires furnish the following information;

(a) the name and address of the pension fund holder;

(b) such other information including any reference or policy number as is needed to enable
the personal pension scheme to be identified.

Amendment and withdrawal of application™®

A person who has made an application may amend it at any time before a decision has been
made on it by a notice in writing delivered or sent to the designated office.

Where the application was made by telephone the amendment may also be made by
telephone.

Any application amended is to be treated as if it had been amended in the first instance.

A person who has made an application may withdraw it by notice to the designated office at
any time before a decision has been made on it.

Where the application was made by telephone, the withdrawal may also be made by
telephone.

Any notice of withdrawal given in accordance with sub-paragraph (4) or (5) has effect when
it is received.

Where a person, by telephone, amends or withdraws an application the person must (if
required to do so by the authority) confirm the amendment or withdrawal by a notice in writing
delivered or sent to the designated office.

Duty to notify changes of circumstances"’

Subject to sub-paragraphs (3), (6) and (7), an applicant (or any person acting on his behalf)
must comply with sub-paragraph (2) if there is a relevant change of circumstances at any
time;

(a) between the making of an application and a decision being made on it, or

(b) after the decision is made (where the decision is that the applicant is entitled to a
reduction under the authority’s scheme) including at any time while the applicant is in
receipt of such a reduction.

The applicant (or any person acting on his behalf) must notify any change of circumstances
which the applicant (or that person) might reasonably be expected to know might affect his
entitlement to, or the amount of, a reduction under the authority’s scheme (a “relevant
change of circumstances”) by giving notice to the authority;

(a) in writing; or

(b) by telephone—

** Inserted by Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012
** Inserted by Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# ‘23 89




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

74.3

74.4

74.5

(i) where the authority has published a telephone number for that purpose unless
the authority determines that in any particular case or class of case notification
may not be given by telephone; or
(ii) in any case or class of case where the authority determines that notice may be
given by telephone; or
(c) by any other means which the authority agrees to accept in any particular case,
within a period of 21 days beginning with the day on which the change occurs, or as soon as
reasonably practicable after the change occurs, whichever is later.

The duty imposed on a person by sub-paragraph (1) does not extend to notifying

(a) changes in the amount of council tax payable to the authority;

(b) changes in the age of the applicant or that of any member of his family;

(c) in the case of an applicant in receipt of a relevant benefit, changes in circumstances

which affect the amount of the benefit but not the amount of the reduction under the
authority’s scheme to which he is entitled, other than the cessation of that entitlement to
the benefit.

For the purposes of sub-paragraph (3)(c) “relevant benefit” means income support, an
income-based jobseeker's allowance or an income-related employment and support
allowance or universal credit.

Notwithstanding sub-paragraph (3)(b) or (c) an applicant is required by sub-paragraph (1) to
notify the authority of any change in the composition of his family arising from the fact that
a person who was a member of his family is now no longer such a person because he has
ceased to be a child or young person.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete3 D33 90




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Sections 75- 90

Decisions, decision notices and awards of Council Tax Support

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaageg BAD3

91




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

75.0 Decisions by the auth«:rity20

75.1 An authority must make a decision on an application under its scheme within 14 days of
paragraphs 4 and 7 and Part 1 of Schedule 7 of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme
(Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012 being satisfied, or as soon as reasonably
practicable thereafter.

76.0 Notification of decision”

76.1 The authority must notify in writing any person affected by a decision made by it under its
scheme;

(a) in the case of a decision on an application, forthwith or as soon as reasonably practicable
thereafter;
(b) in any other case, within 14 days of that decision or as soon as reasonably practicable
thereafter.

76.2 Where the decision is to award a reduction, the notification under sub-paragraph (1) must
include a statement;

(a) informing the person affected of the duty imposed by paragraph 9 of Schedule 8 the

Council Tax Reduction Scheme (Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012 (duty to notify
change of circumstances) to notify the authority of any change of circumstances;

(b) explaining the possible consequences (including prosecution) of failing to comply with

that duty; and

(c) setting out the circumstances a change in which might affect entittement to the

reduction or its amount.

76.3 Where the decision is to award a reduction, the notification under sub-paragraph (1) must
include a statement as to how that entitlement is to be discharged.

76.4 In any case, the notification under sub-paragraph (1) must inform the person affected of the
procedure by which an appeal may be made and must refer the person to the provisions in
the authority’s scheme relating to the procedure for making an appeal.

76.5 A person affected to whom the authority sends or delivers a notification of decision may,
within one month of the date of the notification of that decision request in writing the
authority to provide a written statement setting out the reasons for its decision on any
matter set out in the notice.

76.6 The written statement referred to in sub-paragraph (5) must be sent to the person
requesting it within 14 days or as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter.

76.7 For the purposes of this paragraph a person is to be treated as a person affected by a
decision of the authority under its scheme where the rights, duties or obligations of that
person are affected by that decision and the person falls within sub-paragraph (8).

76.8 This sub-paragraph applies to—

(a) the applicant;
(b) in the case of a person who is liable to pay council tax in respect of a dwelling and is
unable for the time being to act;

(i) a deputy appointed by the Court of Protection with power to claim, or as the

* Inserted by Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012
* Inserted by Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dygglete3 2B 92




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

case may be, receive benefit on his behalf; or

(ii) in Scotland, a judicial factor or any guardian acting or appointed under the

Adults with Incapacity (Scotland) Act 2000(3) who has power to apply or, as the
case may be, receive benefit on the person’s behalf; or

(iii) an attorney with a general power or a power to apply or, as the case may be,
receive benefit, has been appointed by that person under the Powers of Attorney
Act 1971, the Enduring Powers of Attorney Act 1985 or the Mental Capacity Act
2005 or otherwise,

(c) a person appointed by the authority to act for a person unable to act.

77.0 Time and manner of granting council tax support22

77.1 Where a person is entitled to a reduction under this authority’s scheme in respect of his
liability for the authority's council tax as it has effect in respect of a chargeable financial
year (“the chargeable year”), the authority must discharge his entitlement;

(a)
(b)

by reducing, so far as possible, the amount of his liability to which regulation 20(2) of
the Council Tax (Administration and Enforcement) Regulations 1992 refers; or

where;

(i) such a reduction is not possible; or

(ii) such a reduction would be insufficient to discharge the entitlement to a reduction
under the authority’s scheme; or

(iii) the person entitled to the reduction is jointly and severally liable for the council
tax and the authority determines that such a reduction would be inappropriate, by
making payment to him of the amount of reduction to which he is entitled, rounded
where necessary to the nearest penny.

77.2 The authority must notify the person entitled to a reduction under this scheme of the
amount of that reduction and how his entitlement is to be discharged in pursuance of
paragraph (1).

77.3 In a case to which paragraph (1)(b) refers;

(a)

(b)

if the amount of the council tax for which he remains liable in respect of the
chargeable year, after any reduction to which sub-paragraph (1)(a) refers has been
made, is insufficient to enable his entitlement to a reduction under the authority’s
scheme in respect thereof to be discharged, upon the final instalment of that tax
becoming due any outstanding reduction;

(i) must be paid to that person if he so requires; or

(ii) in any other case must (as the authority determines) either be repaid or credited
against any subsequent liability of the person to make a payment in respect of the
authority's council tax as it has effect for any subsequent year;

if that person has ceased to be liable for the authority's council tax and has
discharged the liability for that tax, the outstanding balance (if any) of the reduction
under the authority’s scheme in respect thereof must be paid within 14 days or, if
that is not reasonably practicable, as soon as practicable thereafter

in any other case, the reduction under the authority’s scheme must be paid within
14 days of the receipt of the application at the offices of the authority or, if that is
not reasonably practicable, as soon as practicable thereafter.

77.4 For the purposes of this paragraph “instalment” means any instalment of the authority's
council tax to which regulation 19 of the Council Tax (Administration and Enforcement)
Regulations 1992 refers (council tax payments).

22 Inserted by Council Tax Reductions Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaage@ BDB, 93




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

78.0  Persons to whom support is to be paid **

78.1 Subject to section 80 (payment on death) and paragraph (2), any payment of the amount of
a reduction under paragraph 14(1)(b) must be made to that person.

78.2 Where a person other than a person who is entitled to a reduction under this authority’s
scheme made the application for the reduction and that first person is a person acting
pursuant to an appointment or is treated as having been so appointed, the amount of the
reduction may be paid to that person.

79.0  Shortfall in support / reduction®

79.1 Where, on the revision of a decision allowing a reduction under an authority’s scheme to a
person, it is determined that the amount allowed was less than the amount to which that
person was entitled, the authority must either;

(a) make good any shortfall in reduction which is due to that person, by reducing so far as
possible the next and any subsequent payments he is liable to make in respect of the
council tax of the authority as it has effect for the chargeable financial year until that
shortfall is made good; or

(b)  where this is not possible or the person concerned so requests, pay the amount of
any shortfall in reduction due to that person within 14 days of the revision of the
decision being made or if that is not reasonable practicable, as soon as possible
afterwards.

80.0  Payment on the death of the person entitled”

80.1 Where the person entitled to any reduction under this scheme has died and it is not
possible to award the reduction which is due in the form of a reduction of the council tax
for which he was liable, the authority must make payment of the amount of the reduction
to his executor or administrator in accordance with regulation 58(4) of the Council Tax
(Administration and Enforcement) Regulations 1992.

81.0 Offsetting

81.1 Where a person has been allowed or paid a sum of council tax support under a decision which is
subsequently revised or further revised, any sum allowed or paid in respect of a period covered
by the subsequent decision shall be offset against arrears of entitlement under the subsequent
decision except to the extent that the sum exceeds the arrears and shall be treated as properly
awarded or paid on account of them.

82.0 Payment where there is joint and several liability*®

82.1 Where;
(a) a person is entitled to a reduction under the authority’s scheme in respect of his liability
for the authority’s council tax as it has effect in respect of a chargeable financial year;
(b) the person entitled to the reduction is jointly and severally liable for the council tax; and

* Inserted by Council Tax Reductions Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012
** Inserted by Council Tax Reductions Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012
* Inserted by Council Tax Reductions Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012
** Inserted by Schedule 8 of the Council Tax Reductions Scheme (Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglet€3 D6 94




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

82.2

823

(c) the authority determines that discharging his entitlement by reducing the amount of his
liability to which regulation 20(2) of the Council Tax (Administration and Enforcement)
Regulations 1992(7) refers would be inappropriate,

it may make a payment to him of the amount of the reduction to which he is entitled,
rounded where necessary to the nearest penny.

Subject to sub-paragraph (3) any payment made under sub-paragraph (1) must be made to
the person who is entitled to the reduction.

Where a person other than a person who is entitled to a reduction under the authority’s
scheme made the application and that first person is a person acting pursuant to an
appointment or is treated as having been so appointed, the amount of the reduction may be
paid to that person.

83 — 87 Not used

88.0

88.1

89.0

90.0

Diminution of notional capital

Where notional capital has been used in the calculation of Council Tax Support. Further
calculations may be undertaken every thirteen weeks to reduce the notional capital by the
amount of council tax support that would have been awarded if the notional capital had not
been taken into account in the calculation.

Not used

Not used

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaag# RP7 95




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Sections 91 — 94

Collection, holding and forwarding of information for Council Tax Support purposes

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dogqnlete3 DS

96




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

91.0

91.1

91.2

92.0

921

92.2

93.0

931

94.0

94.1

Use of information from and to the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) and Her
Majesty’s Revenues and Customs (HMRC)

The authority will use information provided by the DWP and HMRC for the purposes of council
tax support, council tax liability, billing, administration and enforcement as outlined within
Schedule 2 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 as amended by the Local Government
Finance Act 2012.

Where required by the relevant department and where required by law, the authority will share
information obtained for Council Tax Support with the DWP or HMRC as appropriate.

Collection of information

The authority may receive and obtain information and evidence relating to claims for council tax
support, the council may receive or obtain the information or evidence from—

(a) persons making claims for council tax support;

(b) other persons in connection with such claims;

(c) other local authorities; or

(d)  central government departments including the DWP and HMRC

The authority may verify relevant information supplied to, or obtained.

Recording and holding information

The authority may

(a) may make a record of such information; and

(b) may hold that information, whether as supplied or obtained or recorded, for the purpose
of forwarding it to the person or authority for the time being administering council tax support.

Forwarding of information

The authority may forward it to the person or authority for the time being administering claims
to or awards of council tax support to which the relevant information relates, being

(i) a local authority;

(ii) a person providing services to a local authority; or

(iii) a person authorised to exercise any function of a local authority relating to council tax
support.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 126 97




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Sections 95 - 98

Revisions, Written Statements, Termination of Council Tax Support

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dognlete3 B3

98




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

95.0
95.1

96.0
96.1

96.2

97.0
97.1

98.0
98.1

98.2

Persons affected by Decisions

A person is to be treated as a person affected by a relevant decision of the authority here that

person is;

a. an applicant;

b. in the case of a person who is liable to make payments in respect of a dwelling and is
unable for the time being to act
(i) a Deputy appointed by the Court of Protection with power to claim, or as the case may
be, receive benefit or support on his behalf,
(i) in Scotland, a tutor, curator, judicial factor or other guardian acting or appointed in
terms of law administering that person’s estate, or
(iii) an attorney with a general power or a power to receive benefit or support appointed by
the person liable to make those payments under the Powers of Attorney Act 1971, the
Enduring Powers of Attorney Act 1985 or the Mental Capacity Act 2005 or otherwise;

c.a person appointed by the authority under this policy;

Revisions of Decisions

Subject to the provisions in this policy, a relevant decision (‘the original decision) may be revised
or further revised by the authority, which made the decision where the person affected makes
an application for a revision within;

(i) one month of the date of notification of the original decision; or

(ii) such extended time as the authority may allow.
The authority may revise or further revise that original decision at any time. Where further
information is required from the person affected, the authority shall request such information
and evidence as it feels is reasonable. Such information must be supplied within;

i) one month of the date of notification of the additional information; or

(ii) such extended time as the authority may allow

Written Statements

Subject to the provisions in the policy, the authority may upon a written request issue a written
statement to a person affected to further explain the decision of the authority in relation to
Council Tax Support. The request must be received within one month of the date of the
notification being issued by the authority.

Terminations

The authority may terminate support in whole or in part the Council Tax Support where it
appears to the authority that an issue arises whether;

a. the conditions for entitlement to Council Tax Support are or were fulfilled; or

b. a decision as to an award of such a support should be revised or superseded.

The authority may terminate, in whole or in part the Council Tax Support where it appears to
the authority that an issue arises whether;

a. the conditions for entitlement to Council Tax Support are or were fulfilled; or

b. a decision as to an award of such a support should be revised or superseded.

Where the person fails to provide information to the authority as requested in relation to any
matter relating to their liability for Council Tax

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 233 99




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Section 99

Appeals against the authority’s decisions

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dognlete3 333

100




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

99.0

99.1

99.2

99.3

Procedure by which a person may make an appeal against certain decisions of the
authority”’

.A person who is aggrieved by a decision of the authority, which affects;

(a) the person’s entitlement to a reduction under its scheme, or

(b) the amount of any reduction to which that person is entitled,

may serve a written notice on the authority stating the matter by which, and the grounds
on which, he is aggrieved.

The authority must
(a)  consider the matter to which the notice relates;
(b)  notify the aggrieved person in writing;
(i) that the ground is not well founded, giving reasons for that belief; or
(ii) that steps have been taken to deal with the grievance, stating the steps taken.

Where, following notification under sub-paragraph (2)(b)(i) or (ii), the person is still
aggrieved, or if the authority fails to notify the person aggrieved in accordance with sub-
paragraph (2)(b) within two months of the service of his notice, he may appeal to the
valuation tribunal under section 16 of the 1992 Act.

* Inserted by Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaage@ 233 101




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Section 100

Procedure for applying for a discretionary reduction

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dognlete3 328

102




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

100.0 Procedure for an application to the authority for a reduction under section 13A(1)(c) of the
1992 Act™

100.1  An application to the authority for a reduction under section 13A(1)(c) of the 1992 Act may
be made;
(a) in writing,
(b) by means of an electronic communication in accordance this scheme or
(c) where the authority has published a telephone number for the purpose of receiving
such applications, by telephone.

100.2  Where;

(a) the authority has made a determination under section 13A(1)(c) in relation to a
class of case in which liability is to be reduced; and
(b) a person in that class would otherwise be entitled to a reduction under its scheme,

that person’s application for a reduction under the authority’s scheme may also be
treated as an application for a reduction under section 13A(1)(c)

** Inserted by Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaag# 135 103




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Section 101 — 106A*°

Electronic Communication

23 Inserted by Council Tax Reductions Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012

104

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Doqnlete3 3%




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

101.0
1011

102.0

102.1

102.2

102.3

102.4

102.5

102.6

102.7

102.8

103.0

103.1

104.0

104.1

Interpretation

In this Part;

“information” includes an application, a certificate, notice or other evidence; and

“official computer system” means a computer system maintained by or on behalf of an
authority for sending, receiving, processing or storing of any information.

Conditions for the use of electronic communication

The authority may use an electronic communication in connection with applications for, and
awards of, reductions under its scheme.

A person other than the authority may use an electronic communication in connection with
the matters referred to in paragraph (1) if the conditions specified in paragraphs (3) to (6)
are satisfied.

The first condition is that the person is for the time being permitted to use an electronic
communication by an authorisation given by means of a direction of the Chief Executive of

the authority.

The second condition is that the person uses an approved method of;

(a) authenticating the identity of the sender of the communication;

(b) electronic communication;

(c) authenticating any application or notice delivered by means of an electronic
communication; and

(d) subject to sub-paragraph (7), submitting to the authority any information.

The third condition is that any information sent by means of an electronic communication is
in a form approved for the purposes.

The fourth condition is that the person maintains such records in written or electronic form
as may be specified in a direction given by the Chief Executive of the authority.

Where the person uses any method other than the method approved of submitting any
information, that information is to be treated as not having been submitted.

In this paragraph “approved” means approved by means of a direction given by the Chief
Executive of the authority for the purposes of this section.

Use of intermediaries

The authority may use intermediaries in connection with;

(a) the delivery of any information by means of an electronic communication; and

(b) the authentication or security of anything transmitted by such means,

and may require other persons to use intermediaries in connection with those matters.

Effect of delivering information by means of electronic communication

Any information which is delivered by means of an electronic communication is to be
treated as having been delivered in the manner or form required by any provision of an
authority’s scheme on the day the conditions imposed;

(a) by this section; and

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 137 105




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

104.2

104.3

105.0

105.1

106.0

106.1

106.2

106.3

(b) by or under an enactment,
are satisfied.

The authority may determine that any information is to be treated as delivered on a
different day (whether earlier or later) from the day provided for in sub-paragraph (1).

Information may not be taken to have been delivered to an official computer system by
means of an electronic communication unless it is accepted by the system to which it is
delivered.

Proof of identity of sender or recipient of information

If it is necessary to prove, for the purpose of any legal proceedings, the identity of—
(a) the sender of any information delivered by means of an electronic communication to an
official computer system; or
(b) the recipient of any such information delivered by means of an electronic
communication from an official computer system,
the sender or recipient, as the case may be, is to be presumed to be the person whose name
is recorded as such on that official computer system.

Proof of delivery of information

If it is necessary to prove, for the purpose of any legal proceedings, that the use of an
electronic communication has resulted in the delivery of any information this is presumed to
have been the case where;

(a) any such information has been delivered to the relevant authority, if the delivery of that
information has been recorded on an official computer system; or

(b) any such information has been delivered by the relevant authority, if the delivery of that
information has been recorded on an official computer system.

If it is necessary to prove, for the purpose of any legal proceedings, that the use of an
electronic communication has resulted in the delivery of any such information, this is
presumed not to be the case, if that information delivered to the relevant authority has not
been recorded on an official computer system.

If it is necessary to prove, for the purpose of any legal proceedings, when any such
information sent by means of an electronic communication has been received, the time and
date of receipt is presumed to be that recorded on an official computer system.

106A.0 Proof of content of information

106A.1 If it is necessary to prove, for the purpose of any legal proceedings, the content of any

information sent by means of an electronic communication, the content is presumed to be
that recorded on an official computer system.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglet€33% 106




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Section 107

Counter Fraud and Compliance

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaageg B39

107




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

107.0 Counter Fraud and compliance

107.1 In order to protect the finances of the authority and also in the interests of all council taxpayers,
the authority will undertake such actions as allowed by law to;
a. Prevent and detect fraudulent claims and actions in respect of Council Tax Support;
b. Carry out investigations fairly, professionally and in accordance with the law; and
c. Ensure that sanctions are applied in appropriate cases

107.2 The authority believes that it is important to minimise the opportunity for fraud and;
a.  will implement rigorous procedures for the verification of claims for council tax

support;
will employ sufficient Officers to fulfil the authority’s commitment to combat fraud;
will actively tackle fraud where it occurs in accordance with this policy;
d.  will co-operate with the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP), Her Majesty’s

Revenues and Customs and take part in joint working including prosecutions; and
e. willin all cases seek to recover all outstanding council tax.

n o

107.3  The authority shall put into place such administrative policies, procedures and processes as
are necessary to ensure that the actions outlined within paragraph 107.1 and 107.2 can be
carried out successfully. In particular the authority shall undertake actions provided by the
Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Detection of Fraud and Enforcement) (England) Regulations
2013

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete3 163 108




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Schedule 1

Applicable Amounts (Living Allowances)

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaageg 343

109




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Personal Allowance

Personal Allowance

1 The amounts specified in column (2) below in respect of each person or couple specified in
column (1) shall be the amounts specified for the purposes the main scheme;

Column 1 Column 2
Person or Couple
1. A Single applicant who; £71.70
a) is entitled to main phase employment and
support allowance

b) is aged not less than 25 £71.70
c) is aged not less than 18 but less than 25 £56.80
2. Llone Parent £71.70
3. Couple; £112.55

a) Where the applicant is entitled to the main
phase of employment and support allowance

b) Where one member is aged not less that 18 £112.55
c) Polygamous Addition £40.85

For the purposes of paragraph 1 an applicant is entitled to main phase employment and support
allowance if;

a. Paragraph 17 or 18 is satisfied in relation to the applicant; or

b. The applicant is entitled to a converted employment and support allowance

2 (1) The amount specified in column (2) below in respect of each person specified in column (1)
shall, for the relevant period specified in column (1), be the amounts specified for the purposes
of the main scheme

Column 1 Column 2
Child or Young Person
Person in respect of the period— £65.62

(a) beginning on that person’s date of birth and
ending on the day preceding the first Monday in
September following that person’s sixteenth
birthday;

(b) beginning on the first Monday in September £65.62
following that person’s sixteenth birthday and
ending on the day preceding that person’s twentieth
birthday.

(2) In column (1) of the table in paragraph (1), “the first Monday in September” means the
Monday which first occurs in the month of September in any year.

Family Premiums

3. (1) The amount for the purposes of this scheme in respect of a family of which at least one
member is a child or young person shall be
a. where the applicant is a lone parent to whom sub-paragraph (3) of Schedule 3 of the

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dogpnlete3 4133 110




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Housing Benefit Regulations 2006 applies, £22.20;
b. in any other case, £17.40;

Premiums

4,

Except as provided in paragraph 5, the premiums specified this Schedule shall, for the purposes
of this scheme, be applicable to an applicant who satisfies the condition specified in paragraphs
4 to 16 in respect of that premium.

Subject to paragraph 6, where an applicant satisfies the conditions in respect of more than one
premium in this this Schedule, only one premium shall be applicable to him and, if they are
different amounts, the higher or highest amount shall apply.

(1) The following premiums, namely—

severe disability premium to which paragraph 10 applies;
an enhanced disability premium to which paragraph 11 applies;
a disabled child premium to which paragraph 12 applies; and a
d. carer premium to which paragraph 13 applies,
may be applicable in addition to any other premium which may apply under this Schedule

0T w

(1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2), for the purposes of this Schedule, once a premium is applicable

to an applicant under this Part, a person shall be treated as being in receipt of any benefit for

a. in the case of a benefit to which the Social Security (Overlapping Benefits) Regulations
1979 applies, any period during which, apart from the provisions of those Regulations, he
would be in receipt of that benefit; and

b. any period spent by a person in undertaking a course of training or instruction provided or
approved by the Secretary of State under section 2 of the 1973 Act or by Skills
Development Scotland, Scottish Enterprise or Highlands and Islands Enterprise under or
section 2 of the Enterprise and New Towns(Scotland) Act 1990 for any period during which
he is in receipt of a training allowance.

(2) For the purposes of the carer premium, a person shall be treated as being in receipt of

carer’s allowance by virtue of sub-paragraph (1)(a) only if and for so long as the person in

respect of whose care the allowance has been claimed remains in receipt of attendance

allowance, or the care component of disability living allowance at the highest or middle rate

prescribed in accordance with section 72(3) of the Act or the daily living component of the

personal independence payment under the Welfare Reform Act 2012 or an AFIP.

Disability Premium

The condition (s) to be met is contained in Schedule 3 (12) Housing Benefit Regulations 2006

Additional Condition for the Disability Premiums

9.

The condition (s) to be met is contained in Schedule 3 (13) Housing Benefit Regulations 2006

Severe Disability Premiums

10.

The condition (s) to be met is contained in Schedule 3 (14) Housing Benefit Regulations 2006

Enhanced Disability Premium

11.

The condition (s) to be met is contained in Schedule 3 (15) Housing Benefit Regulations 2006

Disabled Child Premium

12.

The condition (s) to be met is contained in Schedule 3 (16) Housing Benefit Regulations 2006

Carer Premium

13.

The condition (s) to be met is contained in Schedule 3 (17) Housing Benefit Regulations 2006

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# BA3 111




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Persons in receipt of concessionary payments

14.  For the purpose of determining whether a premium is applicable to a person under paragraphs
8 to 13, any concessionary payment made to compensate that person for the non-payment of
any benefit mentioned in those paragraphs shall be treated as if it were a payment of that
benefit.

Persons in receipt of benefit for another

15.  For the purposes of this Schedule, a person shall be regarded as being in receipt of any benefit
if, and only if, it is paid in respect of him and shall be so regarded only for any period in respect
of which that benefit is paid.

Amounts of Premium

16. For the purposes of this Schedule, the following amounts shall apply;

Premium Amount
Disability Premium £31.00
a. where the applicant satisfies the condition in
paragraph 12(a) of Schedule 3 Housing Benefit
Regulations 2006

b. where the applicant satisfies the condition in £44.20
paragraph 12(b) of Schedule 3 Housing Benefit
Regulations 2006

Severe Disability Premium £59.50

a. where the applicant satisfies the condition in
paragraph 14(2)(a) of Schedule 3 Housing Benefit
Regulations 2006

b. where the applicant satisfies the condition in £59.50
paragraph 14(2)(b) of Schedule 3 Housing Benefit
Regulations 2006

i. in a case where there is someone in receipt of
carer’s allowance or if he or any partner satisfies
that condition only by virtue of paragraph 14(5);

ii. in a case where there is no one in receipt of £119.00
such an allowance
Disabled Child Premium £57.89 in respect of each child or

young person in respect of whom
the condition specified in
paragraph 16 of Part 3 of Schedule
3 Housing Benefit Regulations
2006

Carer Premium £33.30 in respect of each person
who satisfies the condition
specified in paragraph 17 of Part 3
of Schedule 3 Housing Benefit
Regulations 2006

Enhanced Disability Premium (a) £23.45in respect of each child
or young person in respect of
whom the conditions specified in
paragraph 15 of Part 3 of Schedule
3 Housing Benefit Regulations
2006 are satisfied;

(b) £15.15 in respect of each
person who is neither—

(i)a child or young person; nor

(ii) a member of a couple or a

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dgglet€3 2128 112




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

polygamous marriage, in respect
of whom the conditions specified
in paragraph 15 are satisfied;

(c) £21.75 where the applicant is a
member of a couple or a
polygamous marriage and the
conditions specified in paragraph
15 of Part 3 of Schedule 3 Housing
Benefit Regulations 2006 are
satisfied in respect of a member of
that couple or polygamous
marriage.

The components
17. The condition (s) to be met is contained in Schedule 3 (21 -24) Housing Benefit Regulations 2006

18. The amount of the work-related activity component is £28.45. The amount of the support
component is £34.80

Transitional Addition

19. The applicant is entitled to the transitional addition calculated in accordance with paragraph 30
of Schedule 3 of the Housing Benefit Regulations 2006 where the applicant or the applicant’s
partner meets the conditions contained within paragraphs 27 — 29 of Schedule 3 of the Housing
Benefit Regulations 2006

Amount of transitional addition

20. The amount of any transitional addition is calculated in accordance with paragraphs 30 and 31
of Schedule 3 of the Housing Benefit Regulations 2006

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# RBA5, 113




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Doqnlete3 A%

Schedule 2

Not Used

114




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Schedule 3

Sums to be disregarded in the calculation of earnings

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaageg B47

115




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

1. In the case of an applicant who has been engaged in remunerative work as an employed earner
or, had the employment been in Great Britain, would have been so engaged—
(a) where—

(i) the employment has been terminated because of retirement; and

(i) on retirement he is entitled to a retirement pension under the Act, or is not
so entitled solely because of his failure to satisfy the contribution
conditions,

any earnings paid or due to be paid in respect of that employment, but only for a

period commencing on the day immediately after the date on which the

employment was terminated;

(b) where before the first day of entitlement to council tax support the
employment has been terminated otherwise than because of retirement, any
earnings paid or due to be paid in respect of that employment except—

(i) any payment of the nature described in
(aa) paragraph 25.1(e), or

(bb) section 28, 64 or 68 of the Employment Rights Act 1996 (guarantee
payments, suspension from work on medical or maternity grounds);
and

(ii) any award, sum or payment of the nature described in

(aa) paragraph 25.1(g)or(h),or

(bb) section 34 or 70 of the Employment Rights Act 1996 (guarantee
payments and suspension from work: complaints to employment
tribunals),
including any payment made following the settlement of a complaint
to an employment tribunal or of court proceedings;

(c) where before the first day of entitlement to council tax support—

(i) the employment has not been terminated, but
(ii) the applicant is not engaged in remunerative work,

any earnings paid or due to be paid in respect of that employment except any
payment or remuneration of the nature described in paragraph 1(b)(i) or (ii)
(bb) or paragraph 25.1(i), or (j).

2. In the case of an applicant who, before first day of entitlement to council tax support;

(a)  bhas been engaged in part-time employment as an employed earner or, where the
employment has been outside Great Britain, would have been so engaged had the
employment been in Great Britain; and

(b) has ceased to be engaged in that employment, whether or not that employment
has been terminated,
any earnings paid or due to be paid in respect of that employment except;

(i) where that employment has been terminated, any payment of the nature
described in paragraph 1(b)(i) or (ii)(bb);

(i) where that employment has not been terminated, any payment or
remuneration of the nature described in paragraph 1(b)(i) or (ii)(bb) or paragraph
25.1(i), (i) or (j)-

2A. In the case of an applicant who has been engaged in remunerative work or part- time
employment as a self-employed earner or, had the employment been in Great Britain would

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete3A S 116




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

have been so engaged and who has ceased to be so employed, from the date of the cessation of
his employment any earnings derived from that employment except earnings to which
paragraph 27.3 and paragraph 27.4 (earnings of self-employed earners) apply.

3. (1) In a case to which this paragraph applies and paragraph 4 does not apply, £20; but
notwithstanding section 15 (calculation of income and capital of members of an
applicant’s family and of a polygamous marriage) if this paragraph applies to an applicant
it shall not apply to his partner except where, and to the extent that, the earnings of the
applicant which are to be disregarded under this paragraph are less than £20.

(2) This paragraph applies where the applicant’s applicable amount includes an amount by
way of the disability premium, severe disability premium, work-related activity
component or support component.

(3)  This paragraph applies where
(a) he is a member of a couple and his applicable amount includes an amount by way
of the disability premium; and
(b) he or his partner has not attained the qualifying age for state pension credit and
at least one is engaged in employment.

(4)—5) Not used
4, In a case where the applicant is a lone parent, £25.

5. (1) In a case to which neither paragraph 3 nor paragraph 4 applies to the applicant and,
subject to sub-paragraph (2), where the applicant’s applicable amount includes an
amount by way of the carer premium, £20 of the earnings of the person who is, or at any
time in the preceding eight weeks was, in receipt of carer’s allowance or treated in
accordance with this policy as being in receipt of carer’s allowance.

(2)  Where the carer premium is awarded in respect of the applicant and of any partner of
his, their earnings shall for the purposes of this paragraph be aggregated, but the amount
to be disregarded in accordance with sub-paragraph (1) shall not exceed £20 of the
aggregated amount.

6. Where the carer premium is awarded in respect of an applicant who is a member of a couple
and whose earnings are less than £20, but is not awarded in respect of the other member of the
couple, and that other member is engaged in an employment;

(a)  specified in paragraph 8(1), so much of the other member’s earnings as would not when
aggregated with the amount disregarded under paragraph 5 exceed £20;

(b)  other than one specified in paragraph 8(1), so much of the other member’s earnings
from such other employment up to £10 as would not when aggregated with the amount
disregarded under paragraph 5 exceed £20.

7. In a case where paragraphs 3, 5, 6 and 8 do not apply to the applicant and he is one of a couple
and a member of that couple is in employment, £10; but, notwithstanding section 15
(calculation of income and capital of members of applicant’s family and of a polygamous
marriage), if this paragraph applies to an applicant it shall not apply to his partner except where,
and to the extent that, the earnings of the applicant which are to be disregarded under this
paragraph are less than £10.

8. (1) In a case where paragraphs 3, 4, 5 and 6 do not apply to the applicant, £20 of earnings
derived from one or more employments as—

(a) as a part-time fire-fighter employed by a fire and rescue authority constituted by a

scheme under section 2 of the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 or a scheme to
which section 4 of that Act applies;

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# BA49 117




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

(2)

(b) a part-time fire-fighter employed by a fire and rescue authority (as defined in section
1 of the Fire (Scotland) Act 2005(a)) or a joint fire and rescue board constituted by an
amalgamation scheme made under section 2(1) of that Act;

(c) an auxiliary coastguard in respect of coast rescue activities;

(d) a person engaged part-time in the manning or launching of a life boat;

(e) a member of any territorial or reserve force prescribed in Part | of Schedule 6 to

the Social Security (Contributions) Regulations 2001;

but, notwithstanding section 15 (calculation of income and capital of members of

applicant’s family and of a polygamous marriage), if this paragraph applies to an

applicant it shall not apply to his partner except to the extent specified in sub-paragraph

(2).

If the applicant’s partner is engaged in employment;

(a)  specified in sub-paragraph (1), so much of his earnings as would not in aggregate
with the amount of the applicant’s earnings disregarded under this paragraph
exceed £20;

(b)  other than one specified in sub-paragraph (1), so much of his earnings from that
employment up to £10 as would not in aggregate with the applicant’s earnings
disregarded under this paragraph exceed £20.

9. Where the applicant is engaged in one or more employments specified in paragraph 8(1), but
his earnings derived from such employments are less than £20 in any week and he is also
engaged in any other employment so much of his earnings from that other employment, up to
£5 if he is a single applicant, or up to £10 if he has a partner, as would not in aggregate with the
amount of his earnings disregarded under paragraph 8 exceed £20.

10. In a case to which none of the paragraphs 3 to 9 applies, £5.

10A. (1)
(a)

(b)
(c)

Where;

the applicant (or if the applicant is a member of a couple, at least one member of that
couple) is a person to whom sub-paragraph (5) applies;

the Secretary of State is satisfied that that person is undertaking exempt work as defined
in sub-paragraph (6); and

paragraph 12 does not apply,

the amount specified in sub-paragraph (7) (‘the specified amount’).

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

Where this paragraph applies, paragraphs 3 to 10 do not apply; but in any case where the
applicant is a lone parent, and the specified amount would be less than the amount
specified in paragraph 4, then paragraph 4 applies instead of this paragraph.

Notwithstanding section 15 (calculation of income and capital of members of applicant’s
family and of a polygamous marriage), if sub-paragraph (1) applies to one member of a
couple (‘A’) it shall not apply to the other member of that couple (‘B’) except to the
extent provided in sub-paragraph (4).

Where A’s earnings are less than the specified amount, there shall also be disregarded so
much of B’s earnings as would not when aggregated with A’s earnings exceed the
specified amount; but the amount of B’s earnings which may be disregarded under this
sub-paragraph is limited to a maximum of £20 unless the Secretary of State is satisfied
that B is also undertaking exempt work.

This sub-paragraph applies to a person who is;

(a) in receipt of a contributory employment and support allowance;
(b)  in receipt of incapacity benefit;
(c) in receipt of severe disablement allowance; or

(d) being credited with earnings on the grounds of incapacity for work or limited
capability for work under regulation 8B of the Social Security (Credits) Regulations
1975

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete3 503 118




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

(6)  ‘Exempt work’ means work of the kind described in;
(a) regulation 45(2), (3) or (4) of the Employment and Support Allowance

Regulations; or (as the case may be)
(b) regulation 17(2), (3) or (4) of the Social Security (Incapacity for Work) (General)
Regulations 1995,
and, in determining for the purposes of this paragraph whether an applicant or a
member of a couple is undertaking any type of exempt work, it is immaterial whether
that person or their partner is also undertaking other work.

(7)  The specified amount is the amount of money from time to time mentioned in any
provision referred to in sub-paragraph (6) by virtue of which the work referred to in sub-
paragraph (1) is exempt (or, where more than one such provision is relevant and those
provisions mention different amounts of money, the highest of those amounts).

11. Any amount or the balance of any amount which would fall to be disregarded under paragraph
19 or 20 of Schedule 4 had the applicant’s income which does not consist of earnings been
sufficient to entitle him to the full disregard thereunder.

12. Where an applicant is on income support, an income-based jobseeker’'s allowance or an
income-related employment and support allowance, his earnings.

13. Any earnings derived from employment, which are payable in a country outside the United
Kingdom for such period during which there is a prohibition against the transfer to the United
Kingdom of those earnings.

14. Where a payment of earnings is made in a currency other than Sterling, any banking charge or
commission payable in converting that payment into Sterling.

15.  Any earnings of a child or young person.

16. (1) In a case where the applicant is a person who satisfies at least one of the conditions set out
in sub-paragraph (2), and his net earnings equal or exceed the total of the amounts set out in
sub-paragraph (3), the amount of his earnings that falls to be disregarded under paragraphs 3 to
10A of this Schedule shall be increased by £17.10.

(2) The conditions of this sub-paragraph are that—
(a) the applicant, or if he is a member of a couple, either the applicant or his partner, is a
person to whom regulation 20(1)(c) of the Working Tax Credit Regulations applies; or
(b) the applicant—
(i) is, or if he is a member of a couple, at least one member of that couple is aged at
least 25 and is engaged in remunerative work for on average not less than 30 hours
per week; or
(ii) is a member of a couple and
(aa) at least one member of that couple, is engaged in remunerative work for
on average not less than 16 hours per week; and
(bb) his applicable amount includes a family premium; or
(iii) is a lone parent who is engaged in remunerative work for on average not less
than 16 hours per week; or
(iv) is, or if he is a member of a couple, at least one member of that couple is
engaged in remunerative work for on average not less than 16 hours per week; and;
(aa) the applicant’s applicable amount includes a disability premium, the work-
related activity component or the support component ;
(bb) where he is a member of a couple, at least one member of that couple
satisfies the qualifying conditions for the disability premium or either of the
components referred to in sub-head (aa) above and is engaged in remunerative
work for on average not less than 16 hours per week; or

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 153 119




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

(3)

(4)

The following are the amounts referred to in sub-paragraph (1);

(a) the amount calculated as disregardable from the applicant’s earnings under
paragraphs 3 to 10A of this Schedule;

(b) the amount of child care charges calculated as deductible under paragraph
17(1)(c); and

()  £17.10

The provisions of section 6 shall apply in determining whether or not a person works for
on average not less than 30 hours per week, but as if the reference to 16 hours in
paragraph (1) of that section were a reference to 30 hours.

17.  In this Schedule ‘part-time employment’ means employment in which the person is engaged on
average for less than 16 hours a week.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete3 533 120




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Schedule 4

Sums to be disregarded in the calculation of income other than earnings

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qaageg B53

121




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

A2.

A3.

2A.

10.

11.

12.

Any amount paid by way of tax on income, which is to be taken into account under section 30
(calculation of income other than earnings).

Any payment made to the claim and in respect of any travel or other expenses incurred, or to be
incurred, by him in respect of his participation in the Mandatory Work Activity Scheme.

Any payment made to the applicant in respect of any travel or other expenses incurred, or to be
incurred, by him in respect of his participation in the Employment, Skills and Enterprise Scheme,
but only for 52 weeks beginning with the date of receipt of the payment.

Any payment in respect of any expenses incurred or to be incurred by an applicant who is—

(a) engaged by a charitable or voluntary organisation, or

(b)  volunteer,
if he otherwise derives no remuneration or profit from the employment and is not to be treated
as possessing any earnings under paragraph 32.8 (notional income).

Any payment in respect of expenses arising out of the applicant’s participation in a service user
group.

In the case of employment as an employed earner, any payment in respect of expenses wholly,
exclusively and necessarily incurred in the performance of the duties of the employment.

Where an applicant or partner is on income support, an income-based jobseeker’s allowance or
an income-related employment and support allowance the whole of his income shall be
disregarded

Where the applicant is a member of a joint-claim couple for the purposes of the Jobseekers Act
and his partner is on an income-based jobseeker’s allowance, the whole of the applicant’s
income.

Where the applicant, or the person who was the partner of the applicant on 31st March 2003,
was entitled on that date to income support or an income-based jobseeker’s allowance but
ceased to be so entitled on or before 5th April 2003 by virtue only of regulation 13 of the
Housing Benefit (General) Amendment (No. 3) Regulations 1999 as in force at that date, the
whole of his income.

Any disability living allowance or personal independence payment

Any concessionary payment made to compensate for the non-payment of;
(a) any payment specified in paragraph 7 or 10;

(b)  income support;

(c) an income-based jobseeker’s allowance.

(d) an income-related employment and support allowance.

Any mobility supplement under article 20 of the Naval, Military and Air Forces Etc. (Disablement
and Death) Service Pensions Order 2006 (including such a supplement by virtue of any other
scheme or order) or under article 25A of the Personal Injuries (Civilians) Scheme 1983or any
payment intended to compensate for the non-payment of such a supplement.

Any attendance allowance.
Any payment to the applicant as holder of the Victoria Cross or of the George Cross or any

analogous payment.
(1) Any payment—

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dygglete3 528 122




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

(a) by way of an education maintenance allowance made pursuant to;
(i) regulations made under section 518 of the Education Act 1996 (payment of
school expenses; grant of scholarships etc);
(i) regulations made under section 49 or 73(f) of the Education (Scotland) Act
1980 (power to assist persons to take advantage of educational facilities);
(iii) directions made under section 73ZA of the Education (Scotland) Act 1980 and
paid under section 12(2)(c) of the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act
1992

(b) corresponding to such an education maintenance allowance, made pursuant to;
(i) section14 or section181 of the Education Act 2002(power of Secretary of State
and National Assembly for Wales to give financial assistance for purposes related
to education or childcare, and allowances in respect of education or training); or
(i) regulations made under section 181 of that Act; or

(iii) in England, by way of financial assistance made pursuant to section 14 of the
Education Act 2002.

(2)  Any payment, other than a payment to which sub-paragraph (1) applies, made pursuant
to;
(a) regulations made under section 518 of the Education Act 1996;
(b)  regulations made under section 49 of the Education (Scotland) Act 1980; or
(c) directions made under section 73ZA of the Education (Scotland) Act 1980 and paid

under section 12(2)(c) of the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992,

in respect of a course of study attended by a child or a young person or a person who is in
receipt of an education maintenance allowance or other payment made pursuant to any
provision specified in sub-paragraph (1).

13. Any payment made to the applicant by way of a repayment under regulation 11(2) of the
Education (Teacher Student Loans) (Repayment etc.) Regulations 2002.

14 (1)  Any payment made pursuant to section 2 of the 1973 Act or section 2 of the Enterprise
and New Towns (Scotland) Act 1990 except a payment;

(a) made as a substitute for income support, a jobseeker’s allowance, incapacity benefit,
severe disablement allowance or an employment and support allowance;

(b)  of an allowance referred to in section 2(3) of the 1973 Act or section 2(5) of the
Enterprise and New Towns (Scotland) Act 1990; or

(c) intended to meet the cost of living expenses which relate to any one or more of the
items specified in sub-paragraph (2) whilst an applicant is participating in an education,
training or other scheme to help him enhance his employment prospects unless the
payment is a Career Development Loan paid pursuant to section 2 of the 1973 Act and
the period of education or training or the scheme, which is supported by that loan, has
been completed.

(2)  The items specified in this sub-paragraph for the purposes of sub-paragraph (1)(c) are
food, ordinary clothing or footwear, household fuel or rent of the applicant or, where the
applicant is a member of a family, any other member of his family, or any council tax or
water charges for which that applicant or member is liable.

15 (1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2), any of the following payments;

(a)  acharitable payment;

(b)  avoluntary payment;

(c) a payment (not falling within sub-paragraph (a) or (b) above) from a trust whose
funds are derived from a payment made in consequence of any personal injury to
the applicant;

(d)  apayment under an annuity purchased;

(i) pursuant to any agreement or court order to make payments to the
applicant; or
(ii)  from funds derived from a payment made,

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# R585 123




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

16.

17.

18.

19.

in consequence of any personal injury to the applicant; or

(e)  a payment (not falling within sub-paragraphs (a) to (d) received by virtue of any
agreement or court order to make payments to the applicant in consequence of
any personal injury to the applicant.

(2)  Sub-paragraph (1) shall not apply to a payment, which is made or due to be made by—
(a) a former partner of the applicant, or a former partner of any member of the
applicant’s family; or
(b)  the parent of a child or young person where that child or young person is a
member of the applicant’s family.

100% of any of the following, namely

(a) a war disablement pension (except insofar as such a pension falls to be disregarded
under paragraph 9 or 10);

(b) a war widow's pension or war widower’s pension;

(c) a pension payable to a person as a widow, widower or surviving civil partner under any
power of Her Majesty otherwise than under an enactment to make provision about
pensions for or in respect of persons who have been disabled or have died in
consequence of service as members of the armed forces of the Crown;

(d)  aguaranteed income payment;

(e) a payment made to compensate for the non-payment of such a pension or payment as is
mentioned in any of the preceding sub-paragraphs;

(f) a pension paid by the government of a country outside Great Britain which is analogous
to any of the pensions or payments mentioned in sub-paragraphs (a) to (d) above;

(g) pension paid to victims of National Socialist persecution under any special
provision made by the law of the Federal Republic of Germany, or any part of it, or
of the Republic of Austria.

Subject to paragraph 35, £15 of any;
(a) widowed mother’s allowance paid pursuant to section 37 of the Act;
(b) widowed parent’s allowance paid pursuant to section 39A of the Act.

(1)  Any income derived from capital to which the applicant is or is treated under section 41
(capital jointly held) as beneficially entitled but, subject to sub- paragraph (2), not income
derived from capital disregarded under paragraphs 1, 2, 4, 8, 14 or 25 to 28 of Schedule 5.
(2) Income derived from capital disregarded under paragraphs 2, 4 or 25 to 28 of Schedule 5 but
only to the extent of—
(a) any mortgage repayments made in respect of the dwelling or premises in the
period during which that income accrued; or
(b) any council tax or water charges which the applicant is liable to pay in respect of
the dwelling or premises and which are paid in the period during which that
income accrued.
(3) The definition of ‘water charges’ in paragraph 2(1) shall apply to sub-paragraph (2) of this
paragraph with the omission of the words ‘in so far as such charges are in respect of the
dwelling which a person occupies as his home’.

Where the applicant makes a parental contribution in respect of a student attending a course at
an establishment in the United Kingdom or undergoing education in the United Kingdom, which
contribution has been assessed for the purposes of calculating—

(a) under, or pursuant to regulations made under powers conferred by, sections 1 or 2 of the
Education Act 1962 or section 22 of the Teaching and Higher Education Act 1998(c), that
student’s award;

(b) under regulations made in exercise of the powers conferred by section 49 of the
Education (Scotland) Act 1980, that student’s bursary, scholarship, or other allowance under
that section or under regulations made in exercise of the powers conferred by section 73 of that
Act of 1980, any payment to that student under that section; or

(c)  the student’s student loan,

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete3 56 124




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

an amount equal to the weekly amount of that parental contribution, but only in respect of the
period for which that contribution is assessed as being payable.

20. (1) Where the applicant is the parent of a student aged under 25 in advanced education who
either;
(a) is not in receipt of any award, grant or student loan in respect of that education;
or
(b) is in receipt of an award under section 2 of the Education Act 1962 (discretionary
awards) or an award bestowed by virtue of the Teaching and Higher Education Act 1998,
or regulations made thereunder, or a bursary, scholarship or other allowance under
section 49(1) of the Education (Scotland) Act 1980, or a payment under section 73 of that
Act of 1980,
and the applicant makes payments by way of a contribution towards the student’s
maintenance, other than a parental contribution falling within paragraph 19, an amount
specified in sub-paragraph (2) in respect of each week during the student’s term.
(2) For the purposes of sub-paragraph (1), the amount shall be equal to—
(a) the weekly amount of the payments; or
(b) the amount by way of a personal allowance for a single applicant under 25 less the
weekly amount of any award, bursary, scholarship, allowance or payment referred
to in sub-paragraph (1)(b),
whichever is less.

21. Any payment made to the applicant by a child or young person or a non- dependant.

22.  Where the applicant occupies a dwelling as his home and the dwelling is also occupied by a
person other than one to whom paragraph 21 or 23 refers and there is a contractual liability to
make payments to the applicant in respect of the occupation of the dwelling by that person or a
member of his family—
(a) where the aggregate of any payments made in respect of any one week in respect of
the occupation of the dwelling by that person or a member of his family, or by that
person and a member of his family, is less than £20, the whole of that amount; or
(b) where the aggregate of any such payments is £20 or more per week, £20.

23. (1)  Where the applicant occupies a dwelling as his home and he provides in that dwelling
board and lodging accommodation, an amount, in respect of each person for which such
accommodation is provided for the whole or any part of a week, equal to—

(a) where the aggregate of any payments made in respect of any one week in respect
of such accommodation provided to such person does not exceed £20.00, 100 per cent.
of such payments;

(b) where the aggregate of any such payments exceeds £20.00, £20.00 and 50 per
cent. of the excess over £20.00.

(2)  In this paragraph, ‘board and lodging accommodation” means accommodation provided
to a person or, if he is a member of a family, to him or any other member of his family, for
a charge which is inclusive of the provision of that accommodation and at least some
cooked or prepared meals which both are cooked or prepared (by a person other than
the person to whom the accommodation is provided or a member of his family) and are
consumed in that accommodation or associated premises.

24. (1) Any income in kind, except where regulation 30(11)(b) (provision of support under
section 95 or 98 of the Immigration and Asylum Act in the calculation of income other than
earnings) applies.

(2)  The reference in sub-paragraph (1) to ‘income in kind’ does not include a payment to a
third party made in respect of the applicant which is used by the third party to provide
benefits in kind to the applicant.

25.  Any income which is payable in a country outside the United Kingdom for such period during

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# R’57 125




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

which there is a prohibition against the transfer to the United Kingdom of that income.

26. (1) Any payment made to the applicant in respect of a person who is a member of his
family—
(a) pursuant to regulations under section 2(6)(b), 3 or 4 of the Adoption and Children
Act 2002 or in accordance or with a scheme approved by the Scottish
Ministers under section 51A of the Adoption (Scotland) Act 1978(b)
(schemes for payments of allowances to adopters); or in accordance with an
Adoption Allowance Scheme made under section 71 of the Adoption and
Children (Scotland) Act 2007 (Adoption Allowances Schemes)
(b)not used
(ba) which is a payment made by a local authority in pursuance of section 15(1)
of, and paragraph 15 of Schedule 1 to, the Children Act 1989 (local authority
contribution to a child’s maintenance where the child is living with a person
as a result of a residence order) or in Scotland section 50 of the Children Act
1975 (payments towards maintenance of children);
(c) which is a payment made by an authority, as defined in Article 2 of the Children
Order, in pursuance of Article 15 of, and paragraph 17 of Schedule 1 to, that
Order (contribution by an authority to child’s maintenance);
(d)in accordance with regulations made pursuant to section 14F of the Children Act
1989(c) (special guardianship support services);
(2)  Any payment, other than a payment to which sub-paragraph (1)(a) applies, made
to the applicant pursuant to regulations under section 2(6)(b), 3 or 4 of the Adoption and
Children Act 2002.

27. Any payment made to the applicant with whom a person is accommodated by virtue of

arrangements made

(a) by alocal authority under—
(i) section 23(2)(a) of the Children Act 1989 (provision of accommodation and
maintenance for a child whom they are looking after),
(ii) section 26 of the Children (Scotland) Act 1995 (manner of provision of
accommodation to child looked after by local authority), or
(i) regulations 33 or 51 of the Looked After Children (Scotland)Regulations 2009
(fostering and kinship care allowances and fostering allowances); or

(b) by a voluntary organisation under section 59(1)(a) of the Children Act 1989 (provision of

accommodation by voluntary organisations).

28.  Any payment made to the applicant or his partner for a person (‘the person concerned’), who is
not normally a member of the applicant’s household but is temporarily in his care, by—

(a)  a health authority;

(b) a local authority but excluding payments of housing benefit made in respect of the
person concerned;

(c) a voluntary organisation;

(d)  the person concerned pursuant to section 26(3A) of the National Assistance Act 1948;

(e) a primary care trust established under section 16A of the National Health Service Act
1977 or established by an order made under section 18(2)(c) of the National Health
Service Act 2006; or

(f) a Local Health Board established under section 16BA of the National Health Service Act
1977 or established by an order made under section 11 of the National Health Service
(Wales) Act 2006

29. Any payment made by a local authority in accordance with section 17, 23B, 23C or 24A of the
Children Act 1989 or, as the case may be, section 12 of the Social Work (Scotland) Act 1968
or section 22, 29 or 30 of the Children (Scotland) Act 1995 (provision of services for

children and their families and advice and assistance to certain children).

29A. (1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2), any payment (or part of a payment) made by a local authority

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete35% 126




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

30.

31.

32.

33.

34,

35.

36.

in accordance with section 23C of the Children Act 1989(e) or section 29 of the Children
(Scotland) Act 1995(local authorities’ duty to promote welfare of children and powers to grant
financial assistance to persons in, or formerly in, their care) to a person (‘A’) which A passes on
to the applicant.
(2) Sub-paragraph (1) applies only where A;

(a) was formerly in the applicant’s care, and

(b)is aged 18 or over, and

(c)continues to live with the applicant.

(1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2), any payment received under an insurance policy taken out to
insure against the risk of being unable to maintain repayments;
(a) on a loan which is secured on the dwelling which the applicant occupies as his
home; or
(b) under a regulated agreement as defined for the purposes of the Consumer Credit
Act 1974 or under a hire-purchase agreement or a conditional sale agreement as defined
for the purposes of Part 3 of the Hire-Purchase Act 1964.
(2) A payment referred to in sub-paragraph (1) shall only be disregarded to the extent that the
payment received under that policy does not exceed the amounts, calculated on a weekly basis,
which are used to—
(a)  maintain the repayments referred to in sub-paragraph (1)(a) or, as the case may be, (b);
and
(b) meet any amount due by way of premiums on—
(i) that policy; or
(ii) in a case to which sub-paragraph(1)(a) applies, an insurance policy taken out to insure
against loss or damage to any building or part of a building which is occupied by the
applicant as his home and which is required as a condition of the loan referred to in sub-

paragraph (1)(a).

Any payment of income which, by virtue of section 36 (income treated as capital) is to be
treated as capital.

Any social fund payment made pursuant to Part 8 of the Act (the Social Fund) or any local
welfare fund provision

Any payment under Part 10 of the Act (Christmas bonus for pensioners).

Where a payment of income is made in a currency other than sterling, any banking charge or
commission payable in converting that payment into sterling.

The total of an applicant’s income or, if he is a member of a family, the family’s income and the
income of any person which he is treated as possessing under paragraph 15.2 (calculation of
income and capital of members of applicant’s family and of a polygamous marriage) to be
disregarded under paragraph 47.2(b) and paragraph 48.1(d) (calculation of covenant income
where a contribution assessed, covenant income where no grant income or no contribution is
assessed), paragraph 51(2) (treatment of student loans), paragraph 52(3) (treatment of
payments from access funds) and paragraphs 16 and 17 shall in no case exceed £20 per week.

(1)  Any payment made under or by any of the Trusts, the Fund, the Eileen Trust, MFET
Limited, the Skipton Fund, the Caxton Foundation or the Independent Living Fund (2006).
(2) Any payment by or on behalf of a person who is suffering or who suffered from haemophilia
or who is or was a qualifying person, which derives from a payment made under or by any of the
Trusts to which sub-paragraph (1) refers and which is made to or for the benefit of—
(a) that person’s partner or former partner from whom he is not, or where that
person has died was not, estranged or divorced or with whom he has formed a civil
partnership that has not been dissolved or, where that person has died, had not been
dissolved at the time of that person’s death;
(b) any child who is a member of that person’s family or who was such a member and

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 158 127




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

37.

38.

who is a member of the applicant’s family; or
(c) any young person who is a member of that person’s family or who was such a
member and who is a member of the applicant’s family.

(3) Any payment by or on behalf of the partner or former partner of a person who is suffering
or who suffered from haemophilia or who is or was a qualifying person provided that the
partner or former partner and that person are not, or if either of them has died were not,
estranged or divorced or, where the partner or former partner and that person have formed a
civil partnership, the civil partnership has not been dissolved or, if either of them has died,
had not been dissolved at the time of the death, which derives from a payment made under
or by any of the Trusts to which sub-paragraph (1) refers and which is made to or for the
benefit of;

(a) the person who is suffering from haemophilia or who is a qualifying person;

(b) any child who is a member of that person’s family or who was such a member and

who is a member of the applicant’s family; or

(c) any young person who is a member of that person’s family or who was such a

member and who is a member of the applicant’s family.

(4) Any payment by a person who is suffering from haemophilia or who is a qualifying person,
which derives from a payment under or by any of the Trusts to which sub-paragraph (1) refers,
where;
(a) that person has no partner or former partner from whom he is not estranged or
divorced or with whom he has formed a civil partnership that has not been dissolved, nor
any child or young person who is or had been a member of that person’s family; and
(b) the payment is made either;
(i) to that person’s parent or step-parent, or
(i) where that person at the date of the payment is a child, a young person or a
student who has not completed his full-time education and has no parent or step-parent,
to his guardian,
but only for a period from the date of the payment until the end of two years from that
person’s death.
(5) Any payment out of the estate of a person who suffered from haemophilia or who was a
qualifying person, which derives from a payment under or by any of the Trusts to which sub-
paragraph (1) refers, where;
(a) that person at the date of his death (the relevant date) had no partner or former
partner from whom he was not estranged or divorced or with whom he has formed a
civil partnership that has not been dissolved, nor any child or young person who was or
had been a member of his family; and
(b)  the payment is made either
(i) to that person’s parent or step-parent, or
(ii) where that person at the relevant date was a child, a young person or a
student who had not completed his full-time education and had no parent or step-
parent, to his guardian,
but only for a period of two years from the relevant date.

(6) In the case of a person to whom or for whose support payment referred to in this paragraph
is made, any income which derives from any payment of income or capital made under or
deriving from any of the Trusts.

(7) For the purposes of sub-paragraphs (2) to (6), any reference to the Trusts shall be construed
as including a reference to the Fund, the Eileen Trust, MFET Limited, the Skipton Fund, the
Caxton Foundation and the London Bombings Relief Charitable Fund.

Any housing benefit or council tax benefit

Any payment made by the Secretary of State to compensate for the loss (in whole or in part) of
entitlement to housing benefit.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglet€3 603 128




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

39. -40. not used

41.

42.

43.

45.

47.

48.

48A.

Any payment to a juror or witness in respect of attendance at a court other than compensation
for loss of earnings or for the loss of a benefit payable under the benefit Acts.

Not used

Any payment in consequence of a reduction of council tax under section 13 or section 80 of the
1992 Act (reduction of liability for council tax).

Not used

(1) Any payment or repayment made—
(a) as respects England, under regulation 5, 6 or 12 of the National Health Service
(Travel Expenses and Remission of Charges) Regulations 2003 (travelling expenses and
health service supplies);
(b) as respects Wales, under regulation 5, 6 or 11 of the National Health Service
(Travelling Expenses and Remission of Charges) (Wales) Regulations 2007 (travelling
expenses and health service supplies);
(c) as respects Scotland, under regulation 3, 5 or 11 of the National Health Service
(Travelling Expenses and Remission of Charges) (Scotland) (No. 2) Regulations 2003
(travelling expenses and health service supplies).
(2) Any payment or repayment made by the Secretary of State for Health, the Scottish Ministers
or the Welsh Ministers, which is analogous to a payment or repayment, mentioned in sub-
paragraph (1).

Any payment made to such persons entitled to receive benefits as may be determined by or
under a scheme made pursuant to section 13 of the Social Security Act 1988 in lieu of vouchers
or similar arrangements in connection with the provision of those benefits (including payments
made in place of healthy start vouchers, milk tokens or the supply of vitamins).

Any payment made by either the Secretary of State for Justice or by the Scottish Ministers
under a scheme established to assist relatives and other persons to visit persons in custody.

(1)Where an applicant’s applicable amount includes an amount by way of a family premium,
£15 of any payment of maintenance, other than child maintenance, whether under a court
order or not, which is made or due to be made by the applicant’s former partner, or the
applicant’s partner’s former partner.

(2) For the purpose of sub-paragraph (1) where more than one maintenance payment falls to be
taken into account in any week, all such payments such be aggregated and treated as if they
were a single payment.

(3) A payment made by the Secretary of State in lieu of maintenance shall, for the purpose of
sub-paragraph (1), be treated as a payment of maintenance made by a person specified in sub-
paragraph (1).

(1) Where an applicant is in receipt of;

e Support Component of Employment and Support Allowance (ESA); or

® Enhanced Disability Premium (EDP); or

e Enhanced Disability Premium for Dependants; or

¢ Disability Child Premium for Dependents (DCP); or

o Severe Disability Premium (SDP)
Any payment of child maintenance made or derived from a liable relative where the child or
young person in respect of whom the payment is made is a member of the applicant’s family,
except where the person making the payment is the applicant or the applicant’s partner.
(2) In paragraph (1)
‘child maintenance’ means any payment towards the maintenance of a child or young person,

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 263 129




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

49,

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55

55A.

56.

including any payment made voluntarily and payments made under;

(a)  the Child Support Act 1991;

(b)  the Child Support (Northern Ireland) Order 1991;

(c) a court order;

(d)  aconsent order;

(e) a maintenance agreement registered for execution in the Books of Council and Session or
the sheriff court books;

‘liable relative’ means a person listed in regulation 54 (interpretation) of the Income Support
(General) Regulations 1987, other than a person falling within sub-paragraph (d) of that
definition.

Not used.

Any payment (other than a training allowance) made, whether by the Secretary of State or any
other person, under the Disabled Persons (Employment) Act 1944 to assist disabled persons to
obtain or retain employment despite their disability.

Any guardian’s allowance.

(1) If the applicant is in receipt of any benefit under Parts 2, 3 or 5 of the Act, any increase in
the rate of that benefit arising under Part 4 (increases for dependants) or section 106(a)
(unemployability supplement) of the Act, where the dependant in respect of whom the increase
is paid is not a member of the applicant’s family.

(2) If the applicant is in receipt of any pension or allowance under Part 2 or 3 of the Naval,
Military and Air Forces Etc. (Disablement and Death) Service Pensions Order 2006, any increase
in the rate of that pension or allowance under that Order, where the dependant in respect of
whom the increase is paid is not a member of the applicant’s family.

Any supplementary pension under article 23(2) of the Naval, Military and Air Forces Etc.
(Disablement and Death) Service Pensions Order 2006 (pensions to surviving spouses and
surviving civil partners) and any analogous payment made by the Secretary of State for Defence
to any person who is not a person entitled under that Order.

In the case of a pension awarded at the supplementary rate under article 27(3) of the Personal
Injuries (Civilians) Scheme 1983(a) (pensions to widows, widowers or surviving civil partners),
the sum specified in paragraph 1(c) of Schedule 4 to that Scheme.

(1) Any payment which is
(a) made under any of the Dispensing Instruments to a widow, widower or
(b)surviving civil partner of a person;
(i) whose death was attributable to service in a capacity analogous to service as a
member of the armed forces of the Crown; and
(ii) whose service in such capacity terminated before 31st March 1973; and equal
to the amount specified in article 23(2) of the Naval, Military and Air Forces Etc.
(Disablement and Death) Service Pensions Order 2006.
(2) In this paragraph ‘the Dispensing Instruments’ means the Order in Council of 19th December
1881, the Royal Warrant of 27th October 1884 and the Order by His Majesty of 14th January
1922 (exceptional grants of pay, non-effective pay and allowances).

Any council tax support or council tax benefit to which the applicant is entitled.
Except in a case which falls under sub-paragraph (1) of paragraph 16 of Schedule 3, where the

applicant is a person who satisfies any of the conditions of sub-paragraph (2) of that
paragraph, any amount of working tax credit up to £17.10

56A.-56B. Not used

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete36%3 130




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

Any payment made under section 12B of the Social Work (Scotland) Act 1968, or under sections
12A to 12D of the National Health Service Act 2006 (direct payments for health care) or under
regulations made under section 57 of the Health and Social Care Act 2001 (direct payments).

(1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2), in respect of a person who is receiving, or who has received,
assistance under the self-employment route, any payment to that person—
(a) to meet expenses wholly and necessarily incurred whilst carrying on the commercial
activity;
(b) which is used or intended to be used to maintain repayments on a loan taken out
by that person for the purpose of establishing or carrying on the commercial activity,
in respect of which such assistance is or was received.
(2) Sub-paragraph (1) shall apply only in respect of payments, which are paid to that person
from the special account

(1) Any payment of a sports award except to the extent that it has been made in respect
of any one or more of the items specified in sub-paragraph (2).

(2) The items specified for the purposes of sub-paragraph (1) are food, ordinary clothing
or footwear, household fuel or rent of the applicant or where the applicant is a member
of a family, any other member of his family, or any council tax or water charges for which
that applicant or member is liable.

(3) For the purposes of sub-paragraph (2) “food’ does not include vitamins, minerals or
other special dietary supplements intended to enhance the performance of the person in
the sport in respect of which the award was made.

Where the amount of subsistence allowance paid to a person in a reduction week exceeds the
amount of income-based jobseeker's allowance that person would have received in that
reduction week had it been payable to him, less 50p, that excess amount.

In the case of an applicant participating in an employment zone programme, any discretionary
payment made by an employment zone contractor to the applicant, being a fee, grant, loan or
otherwise.

Any discretionary housing payment paid pursuant to regulation 2(1) of the Discretionary
Financial Assistance Regulations 2001

(1)Any payment made by a local authority or by the Welsh Ministers to or on behalf of the
applicant or his partner relating to a service which is provided to develop or sustain the capacity
of the applicant or his partner to live independently in his accommodation.

(2) For the purposes of sub-paragraph (1) ‘local authority’ includes, in England, a county council.

Where an applicant is in receipt of;
e Support Component of Employment and Support Allowance (ESA); or
¢ Enhanced Disability Premium (EDP); or
e Enhanced Disability Premium for Dependants; or
o Disability Child Premium for Dependents (DCP); or
o Severe Disability Premium (SDP)
Any amount of Child Benefit

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# B63 131




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Schedule 5

Capital to be disregarded

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dogplete3 628

132




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

A2.

A3.

The dwelling together with any garage, garden and outbuildings, normally occupied by the
applicant as his home including any premises not so occupied which it is impracticable or
unreasonable to sell separately, in particular 5, in Scotland, any croft land on which the dwelling
is situated; but, notwithstanding section 15 (calculation of income and capital of members of
applicant’s family and of polygamous marriage), only one dwelling shall be disregarded under
this paragraph.

Any payment made to the applicant in respect of any travel or other expenses incurred, or to be
incurred, by him in respect of his participation in the Mandatory Work Activity Scheme but only
for 52 weeks beginning with the date of receipt of the payment.

Any payment made to the applicant in respect of any travel or other expenses incurred or to be
incurred, by him in respect of his participation in the Employment, Skills and Enterprise Scheme
but only for 52 weeks beginning with the date of receipt of the payment but only for 52 weeks
beginning with the date of receipt of payment.

Any premises acquired for occupation by the applicant, which he intends to occupy as his home
within 26 weeks of the date of acquisition or such longer period as is reasonable in the
circumstances to enable the applicant to obtain possession and commence occupation of the
premises.

Any sum directly attributable to the proceeds of sale of any premises formerly occupied by the
applicant as his home which is to be used for the purchase of other premises intended for such
occupation within 26 weeks of the date of sale or such longer period as is reasonable in the
circumstances to enable the applicant to complete the purchase.

Any premises occupied in whole or in part—
(a) by a partner or relative of a single applicant or any member of the family as his
home where that person has attained the qualifying age for state pension credit or is
incapacitated;
(b) by the former partner of the applicant as his home; but this provision shall not
apply where the former partner is a person from whom the applicant is estranged or
divorced or with whom he had formed a civil partnership that has been dissolved.

Where an applicant is on income support, an income-based jobseeker’s allowance or an
income-related employment and support allowance, the whole of his capital but only where in
the applicant or partner is in receipt of;

. Support Component; or
) Enhanced Disability Premium (EDP); or
. Enhanced Disability Premium for Dependants; or

) Disability Child Premium for Dependents (DCP); or

) Severe Disability Premium (SDP)

within either their the Council Tax Reduction, income support, income based -jobseeker’s
allowance or income—related employment and support allowance.

Where the applicant is a member of a joint-claim couple for the purposes of the Jobseekers Act
1995 and his partner is on income-based jobseeker’s allowance, the whole of the applicant’s
capital.

Any future interest in property of any kind, other than land or premises in respect of which the
applicant has granted a subsisting lease or tenancy, including sub- leases or sub-tenancies.

(1) The assets of any business owned in whole or in part by the applicant and for the purposes
of which he is engaged as a self-employed earner, or if he has ceased to be so engaged, for such

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# BG5 133




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

period as may be reasonable in the circumstances to allow for disposal of any such asset.

(2) The assets of any business owned in whole or in part by the applicant where—
(a) he is not engaged as a self-employed earner in that business by reason of some
disease or bodily or mental disablement; but
(b) he intends to become engaged or, as the case may be, re-engaged as a self-
employed earner in that business as soon as he recovers or is able to become engaged or
re-engaged in that business;

for a period of 26 weeks from the date on which the claim for council tax support is
made, or is treated as made, or, if it is unreasonable to expect him to become engaged or
re-engaged in that business within that period, for such longer period as is reasonable in
the circumstances to enable him to become so engaged or re-engaged.

(3) In the case of a person who is receiving assistance under the self-employment route, the
assets acquired by that person for the purpose of establishing or carrying on the commercial
activity in respect of which such assistance is being received.

(3) In the case of a person who has ceased carrying on the commercial activity in respect of
which assistance was received as specified in sub-paragraph (3), the assets relating to that
activity for such period as may be reasonable in the circumstances to allow for disposal of
any such asset.

9. (1)  Subject to sub-paragraph (2), any arrears of, or any concessionary payment made to
compensate for arrears due to the non-payment of;
(a) any payment specified in paragraphs 7, 9 or 10 of Schedule 4;
(b)  anincome-related benefit under Part 7 of the Act;
() anincome-based jobseeker’s allowance;
(d) any discretionary housing payment paid pursuant to regulation 2(1) of the Discretionary
Financial Assistance Regulations 2001;
(e)  working tax credit and child tax credit
8§} an income-related employment and support allowance

but only for a period of 52 weeks from the date of the receipt of arrears or of the concessionary
payment.

(2) In a case where the total of any arrears and, if appropriate, any concessionary payment
referred to in sub-paragraph (1) relating to one of the specified payments, benefits or
allowances amounts to £5,000 or more (referred to in this sub-paragraph and in sub-paragraph
(3) as “the relevant sum’) and is

(a) paid in order to rectify or to compensate for, an official error as defined in

regulation 1(2) of the Decisions and Appeals Regulations; and

(b) received by the applicant in full on or after 14th October 2001,

sub-paragraph (1) shall have effect in relation to such arrears or concessionary payment either
for a period of 52 weeks from the date of receipt, or, if the relevant sum is received in its
entirety during the award of council tax support, for the remainder of that award if that is a
longer period.

(3) For the purposes of sub-paragraph(2),’the award of council tax support’ means—

(a) the award in which the relevant sum is first received (or the first part thereof
where it is paid in more than one instalment); and

(b) where that award is followed by one or more further awards which, or each of
which, begins immediately after the end of the previous award, such further award
provided that for that further award the applicant;

(i) is the person who received the relevant sum; or

(ii) is the partner of the person who received the relevant sum, or was that person’s
partner at the date of his death.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglet€36% 134




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

14A.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Any sum

(a) paid to the applicant in consequence of damage to, or loss of the home or any personal
possession and intended for its repair or replacement; or

(b)  acquired by the applicant (whether as a loan or otherwise) on the express condition that
it is to be used for effecting essential repairs or improvement to the home, which is to be
used for the intended purpose, for a period of 26 weeks from the date on which it was so
paid or acquired or such longer period as is reasonable in the circumstances to effect the
repairs, replacement or improvement.

Any sum—
(a) deposited with a housing association as defined in section 1(1) of the Housing
Associations Act 1985 or section 338(1) of the Housing (Scotland) Act 1987 as a
condition of occupying the home;
(b) which was so deposited and which is to be used for the purchase of another
home,
for the period of 26 weeks or such longer period as may be reasonable in the circumstances to
enable the applicant to complete the purchase.

Any personal possessions except those which have been acquired by the applicant with the
intention of reducing his capital in order to secure entitlement to council tax support or to
increase the amount of that support.

The value of the right to receive any income under an annuity or the surrender value (if any) of
such an annuity.

Where the funds of a trust are derived from a payment made in consequence of any personal
injury to the applicant or applicant’s partner, the value of the trust fund and the value of the
right to receive any payment under that trust.

(1) Any payment made to the applicant or the applicant’s partner in consequence of any
personal injury to the applicant or, as the case may be, the applicant’s partner.

(2) But sub-paragraph (1)
(a) applies only for the period of 52 weeks beginning with the day on which the
applicant first receives any payment in consequence of that personal injury;
(b) does not apply to any subsequent payment made to him in consequence of that
injury (whether it is made by the same person or another);
(c) ceases to apply to the payment or any part of the payment from the day on which
the applicant no longer possesses it;
(d) does not apply to any payment from a trust where the funds of the trust are
derived from a payment made in consequence of any personal injury to the applicant.
(3) For the purposes of sub-paragraph (2)(c), the circumstances in which an applicant no longer
possesses a payment or a part of it include where the applicant has used a payment or part of it
to purchase an asset.

(4) References in sub-paragraphs (2) and (3) to the applicant are to be construed as including
references to his partner (where applicable).

The value of the right to receive any income under a life interest or from a life rent.

The value of the right to receive any income, which is disregarded under paragraph 13 of
Schedule 3 or paragraph 25 of Schedule 4.

The surrender value of any policy of life insurance.

Where any payment of capital falls to be made by instalments, the value of the right to receive

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# RBE7 135




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

19.

19A.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

any outstanding instalments.

Any payment made by a local authority in accordance with section 17, 23B, 23C or 24A of the
Children Act 1989 or, as the case may be, section 12 of the Social Work (Scotland) Act 1968 or
sections 22, 29 or 30 of the Children (Scotland) Act 1995 (provision of services for children and
their families and advice and assistance to certain children).

(1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2), any payment (or part of a payment) made by a local authority
in accordance with section 23C of the Children Act 1989 or section 29 of the Children (Scotland)
Act 1995 (local authorities’ duty to promote welfare of children and powers to grant financial
assistance to persons in, or formerly in, their care) to a person (‘A’) which A passes on to the
applicant.

(2) Sub-paragraph (1) applies only where A;
(a)  was formerly in the applicant’s care, and
(b)  isaged 18 or over, and
(c) continues to live with the applicant.

Any social fund payment made pursuant to Part 8 of the Act.

Any refund of tax which falls to be deducted under section 369 of the Income and Corporation
Taxes Act 1988 (deduction of tax from certain loan interest) on a payment of relevant loan
interest for the purpose of acquiring an interest in the home or carrying out repairs or
improvements to the home.

Any capital which, by virtue of sections 31 or 51 (capital treated as income, treatment of
student loans) is to be treated as income.

Where any payment of capital is made in a currency other than sterling, any banking charge or
commission payable in converting that payment into sterling.

(1)  Any payment made under or by the Trusts, the Fund, the Eileen Trust, MFET Limited, the
Independent Living Fund (2006), the Skipton Fund, the Caxton Foundation or the Charitable
Fund.

(2) Any payment by or on behalf of a person who is suffering or who suffered from haemophilia
or who is or was a qualifying person, which derives from a payment made under or by any of the
Trusts to which sub-paragraph (1) refers and which is made to or for the benefit of—
(a) that person’s partner or former partner from whom he is not, or where that
person has died was not, estranged or divorced or with whom he has formed a civil
partnership that has not been dissolved or, where that person has died, had not been
dissolved at the time of that person’s death;
(b) any child who is a member of that person’s family or who was such a member and
who is a member of the applicant’s family; or
(c) any young person who is a member of that person’s family or who was such a
member and who is a member of the applicant’s family.

(3) Any payment by or on behalf of the partner or former partner of a person who is suffering or
who suffered from haemophilia or who is or was a qualifying person provided that the partner
or former partner and that person are not, or if either of them has died were not, estranged or
divorced or, where the partner or former partner and that person have formed a civil
partnership, the civil partnership has not been dissolved or, if either of them has died, had not
been dissolved at the time of the death, which derives from a payment made under or by any of
the Trusts to which sub-paragraph (1) refers and which is made to or for the benefit of—

(a) the person who is suffering from haemophilia or who is a qualifying person;

(b) any child who is a member of that person’s family or who was such a member and

who is a member of the applicant’s family; or

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglet€36% 136




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

(c) any young person who is a member of that person’s family or who was such a
member and who is a member of the applicant’s family.

(4) Any payment by a person who is suffering from haemophilia or who is a qualifying person,
which derives from a payment under or by any of the Trusts to which sub-paragraph (1) refers,
where—
(a) that person has no partner or former partner from whom he is not estranged or
divorced or with whom he has formed a civil partnership that has not been dissolved,
nor any child or young person who is or had been a member of that person’s family;
and
(b) the payment is made either;
(i) to that person’s parent or step-parent; or
(i) where that person at the date of the payment is a child ,a young person or a student
who has not completed his full-time education and has no parent or step-parent, to his
guardian,
but only for a period from the date of the payment until the end of two years from that
person’s death.

(5) Any payment out of the estate of a person who suffered from haemophilia or who was a
qualifying person, which derives from a payment under or any of the Trusts to which sub-
paragraph (1) refers, where
(a) that person at the date of his death (the relevant date) had no partner or former
partner from whom he was not estranged or divorced or with whom he had formed a
civil partnership that had not been dissolved, nor any child or young person who was or
had been a member of his family; and
(b) the payment is made either;
(i) to that person’s parent or step-parent; or
(ii) where that person at the relevant date was a child, a young person or a
student who had not completed his full-time education and had no parent or step-
parent, to his guardian,
but only for a period of two years from the relevant date.

(6) In the case of a person to whom or for whose support payment referred to in this paragraph
is made, any capital resource which derives from any payment of income or capital made under
or deriving from any of the Trusts.

(7) For the purposes of sub-paragraphs (2) to (6), any reference to the Trusts shall be construed
as including a reference to the Fund, the Eileen Trust, MFET Limited the Skipton Fund , the
Caxton Foundation, and the London Bombings Relief Charitable Fund.

25. (1) Where an applicant has ceased to occupy what was formerly the dwelling occupied as the
home following his estrangement or divorce from, or dissolution of his civil partnership with, his
former partner, that dwelling for a period of 26 weeks from the date on which he ceased to
occupy that dwelling or, where the dwelling is occupied as the home by the former partner who
is a lone parent, for so long as it is so occupied.

(2) In this paragraph ‘dwelling’ includes any garage, garden and outbuildings, which were
formerly occupied by the applicant as his home and any premises not so occupied which it is
impracticable or unreasonable to sell separately, in particular, in Scotland, any croft land on
which the dwelling is situated.

26. Any premises where the applicant is taking reasonable steps to dispose of those premises, for a
period of 26 weeks from the date on which he first took such steps, or such longer period as is

reasonable in the circumstances to enable him to dispose of those premises.

27.  Any premises which the applicant intends to occupy as his home, and in respect of which he is
taking steps to obtain possession and has sought legal advice, or has commenced legal

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# 3G9 137




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

proceedings, with a view to obtaining possession, for a period of 26 weeks from the date on
which he first sought such advice or first commenced such proceedings whichever is the earlier,
or such longer period as is reasonable in the circumstances to enable him to obtain possession
and commence occupation of those premises.

Any premises which the applicant intends to occupy as his home to which essential repairs or
alterations are required in order to render them fit for such occupation, for a period of 26
weeks from the date on which the applicant first takes steps to effect those repairs or
alterations, or such longer period as is necessary to enable those repairs or alterations to be
carried out.

Any payment made by the Secretary of State to compensate for the loss (in whole or in part) of
entitlement to housing benefit.

Not used
The value of the right to receive an occupational or personal pension.
The value of any funds held under a personal pension scheme

The value of the right to receive any rent except where the applicant has a reversionary interest
in the property in respect of which rent is due.

Any payment in kind made by a charity or under or by the Trusts, the Fund, MFET Limited, the
Skipton Fund, the Caxton Foundation or the Independent Living Fund (2006).

Any payment made pursuant to section 2 of the 1973 Act or section 2 of the Enterprise and New
Towns (Scotland) Act 1990, but only for the period of 52 weeks beginning on the date of receipt
of the payment.

Not used.

Any payment in consequence of a reduction of council tax under section 13 or, as the case may
be, section 80 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (reduction of liability for council tax),
but only for a period of 52 weeks from the date of the receipt of the payment.

Any grant made in accordance with a scheme made under section 129 of the Housing Act 1988
or section 66 of the Housing (Scotland) Act 1988 (schemes for payments to assist local

housing authority and local authority tenants to obtain other accommodation) which is to be
used—

(a) to purchase premises intended for occupation as his home; or

(b) to carry out repairs or alterations which are required to render premises fit for

occupation as his home,
for a period of 26 weeks from the date on which he received such a grant or such longer period
as is reasonable in the circumstances to enable the purchase, repairs or alterations to be
completed and the applicant to commence occupation of those premises as his home.

Any arrears of supplementary pension which is disregarded under paragraph 53 of Schedule 4
(sums to be disregarded in the calculation of income other than earnings) or of any amount
which is disregarded under paragraph 54 or 55 of that Schedule, but only for a period of 52
weeks from the date of receipt of the arrears.

(1)  Any payment or repayment made—
(a) as respects England, under regulation 5, 6 or 12 of the National Health Service
(Travel Expenses and Remission of Charges) Regulations 2003 (travelling expenses and
health service supplies);
(b) as respects Wales, under regulation 5, 6 or 11 of the National Health Service

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete3 763 138




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

(Travelling Expenses and Remission of Charges) (Wales) Regulations 2007 (travelling

expenses and health service supplies);

(c) as respects Scotland, under regulation 3, 5 or 11 of the National Health Service

(Travelling Expenses and Remission of Charges) (Scotland) (No. 2) Regulations 2003

(travelling expenses and health service supplies),

but only for a period of 52 weeks from the date of receipt of the payment or repayment.

(2) Any payment or repayment made by the Secretary of State for Health, the Scottish Ministers
or the Welsh Ministers, which is analogous to a payment, or repayment mentioned in sub-
paragraph (1), but only for a period of 52 weeks from the date of the receipt of the payment or
repayment.

41. Any payment made to such persons entitled to receive benefits as may be determined by or
under a scheme made pursuant to section 13 of the Social Security Act 1988 in lieu of vouchers
or similar arrangements in connection with the provision of those benefits (including payments
made in place of healthy start vouchers, milk tokens or the supply of vitamins), but only for a
period of 52 weeks from the date of receipt of the payment.

41A. Any payment made under Part 8A of the Act (entitlement to health in pregnancy grant).

42. Any payment made either by the Secretary of State for Justice or by Scottish Ministers under a
scheme established to assist relatives and other persons to visit persons in custody, but only for
a period of 52 weeks from the date of the receipt of the payment.

43.  Any payment (other than a training allowance) made, whether by the Secretary of State or any
other person, under the Disabled Persons (Employment) Act 1944 to assist disabled persons to
obtain or retain employment despite their disability.

44, Not used

45.  Any payment made by a local authority under section 3 of the Disabled Persons (Employment)
Act 1958 to homeworkers assisted under the Blind Homeworkers’ Scheme.

46. (1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2), where an applicant satisfies the conditions in section 131(3)
and (6) of the Act (entitlement to alternative maximum council tax support), the whole of his
capital.

(2) Where in addition to satisfying the conditions in section 131(3) and (6) of the Act the
applicant also satisfies the conditions in section 131(4) and (5) of the Act (entitlement to the
maximum council tax support), sub-paragraph (1) shall not have effect.

47. (1) Any sum of capital to which sub-paragraph (2) applies and
(a) which is administered on behalf of a person by the High Court or the County Court
under Rule 21.11(1) of the Civil Procedure Rules 1998 or by the Court of Protection;
(b)  which can only be disposed of by order or direction of any such court; or
(c) where the person concerned is under the age of 18, which can only be disposed of by
order or direction prior to that person attaining age 18.
(2)  This sub-paragraph applies to a sum of capital which is derived from;
(a) an award of damages for a personal injury to that person; or
(b)  compensation for the death of one or both parents where the person concerned is
under the age of 18.

48. Any sum of capital administered on behalf of a person in accordance with an order made under
section 13 of the Children (Scotland) Act 1995, or under Rule 36.14 of the Ordinary Cause Rules
1993 or under Rule 128 of those Rules, where such sum derives from
(a) award of damages for a personal injury to that person; or
(b) compensation for the death of one or both parents where the person concerned is under
the age of 18.

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# KP3 139




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

49. Any payment to the applicant as holder of the Victoria Cross or George Cross.
50. Notused

51. In the case of a person who is receiving, or who has received, assistance under the self-
employment route, any sum of capital which is acquired by that person for the purpose of
establishing or carrying on the commercial activity in respect of which such assistance is or was
received but only for a period of 52 weeks from the date on which that sum was acquired.

52. (1)  Any payment of a sports award for a period of 26 weeks from the date of receipt of that
payment except to the extent that it has been made in respect of any one or more of the items
specified in sub-paragraph (2).

(2) The items specified for the purposes of sub-paragraph (1) are food, ordinary clothing or
footwear, household fuel or rent of the applicant or, where the applicant is a member of a
family, any other member of his family, or any council tax or water charges for which that
applicant or member is liable.

(3) For the purposes of sub-paragraph (2) ‘food’ does not include vitamins, minerals or other
special dietary supplements intended to enhance the performance of the person in the sport in
respect of which the award was made.

53. (1) Any payment;

(a) by way of an education maintenance allowance made pursuant to—
(i) regulations made under section 518 of the Education Act 1996;
(ii) regulations made under section 49 or 73(f) of the Education (Scotland) Act 1980;
(iii) directions made under section 737ZA of the Education (Scotland) Act 1980 and paid
under section 12(2)(c) of the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992;

(b)  corresponding to such an education maintenance allowance, made pursuant to;
(i) section 14 or section 181 of the Education Act 2002 (power of Secretary of State and
National Assembly for Wales to give financial assistance for purposes related to education
or childcare, and allowances in respect of education or training); or
(ii) regulations made under section 181 of that Act ;

or in England, by way of financial assistance made pursuant to section 14 of the Education
Act 2002.

(2) Any payment, other than a payment to which sub-paragraph (1) applies, made pursuant to;
(a) regulations made under section 518 of the Education Act 1996;
(b)  regulations made under section 49 of the Education (Scotland) Act 1980; or
(c) directions made under section 73ZA of the Education (Scotland) Act 1980 and paid
under section 12(2)(c) of the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992,
in respect of a course of study attended by a child or a young person or a person who is in
receipt of an education maintenance allowance or other payment made pursuant to any
provision specified in sub-paragraph (1).

53A.-53B. Not used
54. In the case of an applicant participating in an employment zone programme, any discretionary
payment made by an employment zone contractor to the applicant, being a fee, grant, loan or

otherwise, but only for the period of 52 weeks from the date of receipt of the payment.

55.  Any arrears of subsistence allowance paid as a lump sum but only for the period of 52 weeks
from the date of receipt of the payment.

56. Where an ex-gratia payment of £10,000 has been made by the Secretary of State on or after 1st

February 2001 in consequence of the imprisonment or interment of—
(a) the applicant;

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Digglete3 733 140




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

57. (1)

(b) the applicant’s partner;
(c) the applicant’s deceased spouse or deceased civil partner; or
(d) the applicant’s partner’s deceased spouse or deceased civil partner,

by the Japanese during the Second World War, £10,000.

Subject to sub-paragraph (2), the amount of any trust payment made to an applicant or a

member of an applicant’s family who is

(2)

(3)

(4)

(a) a diagnosed person;

(b) the diagnosed person’s partner or the person who was the diagnosed person’s
partner at the date of the diagnosed person’s death;

(c) a parent of a diagnosed person, a person acting in place of the diagnosed person’s
parents or a person who was so acting at the date of the diagnosed person’s
death; or

(d)  a member of the diagnosed person’s family (other than his partner) or a person
who was a member of the diagnosed person’s family (other than his partner) at
the date of the diagnosed person’s death.

Where a trust payment is made to;

(a) a person referred to in sub-paragraph (1)(a) or (b), that sub-paragraph shall
apply for the period beginning on the date on which the trust payment is made
and ending on the date on which that person dies;

(b) a person referred to in sub-paragraph (1)(c), that sub-paragraph shall apply
for the period beginning on the date on which the trust payment is made and
ending two years after that date;

(c) a person referred to in sub-paragraph (1)(d), that sub-paragraph shall apply
for the period beginning on the date on which the trust payment is made and
ending—

(i) two years after that date; or

(ii) on the day before the day on which that person—

(aa) ceases receiving full-time education; or

(bb) attains the age of 20,

whichever is the latest.

Subject to sub-paragraph (4), the amount of any payment by a person to whom a trust

payment has been made or of any payment out of the estate of a person to whom a trust

payment has been made, which is made to an applicant or a member of an applicant’s
family who is—
(a) the diagnosed person’s partner or the person who was the diagnosed
person’s partner at the date of the diagnosed person’s death;
(b) a parent of a diagnosed person, a person acting in place of the diagnosed
person’s parents or a person who was so acting at the date of the diagnosed
person’s death; or
(c) a member of the diagnosed person’s family (other than his partner) or a
person who was a member of the diagnosed person’s family (other than his
partner) at the date of the diagnosed person’s death,
but only to the extent that such payments do not exceed the total amount of any
trust payments made to that person.

Where a payment as referred to in sub-paragraph (3) is made to—

(a) a person referred to in sub-paragraph (3)(a), that sub-paragraph shall apply
for the period beginning on the date on which that payment is made and ending
on the date on which that person dies;
(b) a person referred to in sub-paragraph (3)(b), that sub-paragraph shall apply
for the period beginning on the date on which that payment is made and ending
two years after that date; or
(c) person referred to in sub-paragraph (3)(c), that sub-paragraph shall apply
for the period beginning on the date on which that payment is made and
ending—

(i) two years after that date; or

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme qbrag# RP3R 141




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

58.

59

60.

61.

62.

(ii) on the day before the day on which that person
(aa) ceases receiving full-time education; or
(bb) attains the age of 20,
whichever is the latest.
(5) In this paragraph, a reference to a person—
(a) being the diagnosed person’s partner;
(b)being a member of a diagnosed person’s family;
(c) acting in place of the diagnosed person’s parents,
at the date of the diagnosed person’s death shall include a person who would have been
such a person or a person who would have been so acting, but for the diagnosed person
residing in a care home, an Abbeyfield Home or an independent hospital on that date.

(6) In this paragraph— ‘diagnosed person’ means a person who has been diagnosed as
suffering from, or who, after his death, has been diagnosed as having suffered from,
variant Creutzfeld- Jakob disease;

‘relevant trust’ means a trust established out of funds provided by the Secretary of State
in respect of persons who suffered, or who are suffering, from variant Creutzfeld-Jakob
disease for the benefit of persons eligible for payments in accordance with its provisions;
“trust payment’ means a payment under a relevant trust.

The amount of any payment, other than a war pension, to compensate for the fact that the
applicant, the applicant’s partner, the applicant’s deceased spouse or deceased civil partner or
the applicant’s partner’s deceased spouse or deceased civil partner

(a) was a slave labourer or a forced labourer;

(b) had suffered property loss or had suffered personal injury; or

(c) was a parent of a child who had died,
during the Second World War.

(1)  Any payment made by a local authority, or by the Welsh Ministers, to or on behalf of the

applicant or his partner relating to a service, which is provided to develop or sustain the capacity
of the applicant or his partner to live independently in his accommodation.

(2) For the purposes of sub-paragraph (1) ‘local authority’ includes in England a county council.

Any payment made under regulations made under section 57 of the Health and Social Care Act
2001 or under section 12B of the Social Work (Scotland) Act 1968, or under section 12A to 12D
of the National Health Service Act 2006 (direct payments for health care).

Any payment made to the applicant pursuant to regulations under section 2(6)(b), 3 or 4 of the
Adoption and Children Act 2002.

Any payment made to the applicant in accordance with regulations made pursuant to section
14F of the Children Act 1989 (special guardianship support services).

Bath & NE Somerset Draft Council Tax Reduction Scheme Dgglet€3 728 142




Agenda Item 11

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | Council

MEETING th

DATE: 13" November 2014

TITLE: Treasury Management Monitoring Report to 3ot
' September 2014

WARD: All

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix 1 — Performance Against Prudential Indicators

Appendix 2 — The Council’'s Investment Position at 30" September 2014

Appendix 3 — Average monthly rate of return for 1% 6 months of 2014/15

Appendix 4 — The Council's External Borrowing Position at 30" September 2014
Appendix 5 — Arlingclose’s Economic & Market Review Q2 of 2014/15

Appendix 6 — Interest & Capital Financing Budget Monitoring 2014/15

Appendix 7 — Summary Guide to Credit Ratings

Appendix 8 — Proposed amendments to the 2014/15 Treasury Management Strategy

1 THEISSUE

1.1 In February 2012 the Council adopted the 2011 edition of the CIPFA Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice, which requires the Council
to approve a Treasury Management Strategy before the start of each financial
year, review performance during the year, and approve an annual report after the
end of each financial year.

1.2 This report gives details of performance against the Council's Treasury
Management Strategy and Annual Investment Plan 2014/15 for the first six
months of 2014/15.

2 RECOMMENDATION
The Council agrees that:

2.1 the Treasury Management Report to 30" September 2014, prepared in
accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Code of Practice, is noted

2.2 the Treasury Management Indicators to 30" September 2014 are noted.

2.3 The proposed amendments to the 2014/15 Treasury Management Strategy set
out in paragraphs 5.19-23 and Appendix 8 are approved.

Page 375



3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

3.1 The financial implications are contained within the body of the report.
4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL
4.1 These are detailed in paragraphs 2.1 — 2.3 above.

5 THE REPORT

Summary

5.1 The average rate of investment return for the first six months of 2014/15 is 0.43%,
which is 0.04% above the benchmark rate.

5.2 The Council’'s Prudential Indicators for 2014/15 were agreed by Council in February
2014 and performance against the key indicators is shown in Appendix 1. All
indicators are within target levels, with the exception of one voluntary indicator,
measuring the liquidity of the council’s investments, as detailed in 5.13 and
Appendix 1(8).

Summary of Returns

5.3 The Council’s investment position as at 30" September 2014 is given in Appendix
2. The balance of deposits as at 30" June 2014 and 30™ September 2014 are also
set out in the pie charts in this appendix.

5.4 The Council is the accountable body for the West of England Revolving Investment
Fund (RIF) and received grant funding of £57 million at the end of the 2011/12
financial year. The Council acts as an agent and holds these funds on behalf of the
West of England Local Enterprise Partnership until they are allocated in the form of
repayable grants to the constituent Local Authorities to meet approved
infrastructure costs. Since these funds are invested separately from the Council’s
cash balances and have been placed short term with the Debt Management Office
and other Local Authorities, they are excluded from all figures given in this report.
The current value of the fund is £44.8 million.

5.5 Gross interest earned on investments for the first six months totalled £81k. Net
interest, after deduction of amounts due to Schools, the West of England Growth
Points, CHC and other internal balances, is £43k. Appendix 3 details the
investment performance, showing the average rate of interest earned over this
period was 0.43%, which was 0.04% above the benchmark rate of average 7 day
LIBID +0.05% (0.39%).

Summary of Borrowings

5.6 No new borrowing has taken place in the first half of 2014/15. The Council’s total
borrowing was £70 million as at the 30" September 2014. The Council’s Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR) as at 31%' March 2014 was £153 million with a
projected total of £215 million by the end of 2014/15 based on the capital
programme approved at February 2014 Council. This represents the Council’s
underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure, and demonstrates that the
borrowing taken to date relates to funding historical capital spend.

Page 376



5.7 Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, £8 million of borrowing was arranged
on 2" October with two Local authorities for a two year period. The borrowing was
undertaken to replenish cash-flow used to fund a specific commercial estate
investment opportunity.

5.8 Following Local Government Reorganisation in 1996, Avon County Council’s
residual debt is administered by Bristol City Council. All successor Unitary
Authorities make an annual contribution to principal and interest repayment, for
which there is a provision in the Council’s revenue budget. The amount of residual
debt outstanding as at 31 March 2014 apportioned to Bath & North East Somerset
Council is £14.54m. Since this borrowing is managed by Bristol City Council and
treated in the Council’s Statement of Accounts as a deferred liability, it is not
included in the borrowing figures referred to in paragraph 5.6.

5.9 The borrowing portfolio as at 30" September 2014 is shown in Appendix 4.
Strategic & Tactical Decisions

5.10 As shown in the charts at Appendix 2, investments continue to be focussed on
UK banks and building societies that have either already or are likely to receive
support from the UK Government should they experience financial difficulties. To
increase diversification, the Council invests in AAA rated Money Market funds, with
a balance of £3.7m invested in these as at 30th September 2014.

5.11 The Council continues to not hold any direct investments with banks in countries
within the Eurozone reflecting both on the underlying debt issues in some Eurozone
countries and the low levels of interest rates. The Council’s investment
counterparty list does not currently include any banks from Portugal, Ireland,
Greece, Spain and ltaly.

5.12 The Council’s average investment return is running slightly above the budgeted
level of 0.35%.

5.13 The Council has adopted a voluntary indicator of its exposure to liquidity risk,
which is that the amount of cash available from maturing investments, to meet
unexpected payments within a rolling three month period without additional
borrowing, should not fall below £15m. The liquidity balance figure on 30th
September 2014 was below the indicator (£9.85m). This was due to delaying the
planned borrowing by a week in order to take advantage of short term inter-
authority rates dropping at the beginning of each month. This borrowing of £8m
was arranged on 2nd October at a lower cost than the market was offering during
the previous weeks.

Future Strategic & Tactical Issues

5.14 Our treasury management advisors economic and market review for the second
quarter 2014/15 is included in Appendix 5.

5.15 The Bank of England base rate has remained constant at 0.50% since March
2009. The stronger economic growth seen in the UK over the past six months is
likely to use up spare capacity more quickly than previously assumed and the
Council’s treasury advisors, Arlingclose, have brought forward their estimate of the
timing for the first rise in Bank Rate to Q3 2015.

Page 377



5.16 In their opinion, in addition to two MPC members having voted for a rate rise in
August and September, the rhetoric from MPC members has certainly become
more hawkish, but the lack of inflationary signals is expected to allow policymakers
to hold off monetary tightening for longer than the market currently expects.
However, the near-term risk is that the Bank Rate could rise sooner than
anticipated.

5.17 The benefits of the Council’s current policy of internal borrowing are monitored
regularly against the likelihood that long term borrowing rates are forecast to rise in
future years. The focus is now on the rate of increase and the medium-term peak
and, in this respect, the current forecast is that rates will rise slowly and to a lower
level than in the past.

5.18 Future borrowing is therefore likely to be driven by a need to maintain an
appropriate working cash balance rather than any immediate changes to interest
rates.

5.19 The UK is implementing the final bail-in provisions of the EU Bank Recovery and
Resolution Directive to commence in January 2015, a year ahead of most other
countries. Credit rating agencies have stated they plan to review EU banks’ ratings
in line with each country’s implementation of the directive. Many UK banks have
standalone ratings in the “BBB” category, with uplifts for potential government
support taking them into the “A” category. Arlingclose advise there is therefore a
realistic risk that some major UK banks’ credit ratings will fall below A- this financial
year if this uplift is removed.

5.20 The Council has two broad options to respond to this risk:

a) amend the Treasury Management Strategy to allow investment in lower rated UK
banks, or

b) prepare to invest without using any of the major UK banks.

5.21 Although it may be possible to operate without these banks, by investing more
money in Money Market Funds, for example, Arlingclose have stated that they may
continue to advise on investments in the major UK banks if they become rated
BBB+.

5.22 ltis therefore recommended that the Council is asked to respond by amending
the 2014/15 Treasury Management Strategy in line with the changes shown at
Appendix 8 in order to be able to respond to the changes that may occur in January
2015.

5.23 The s.151 Officer will consider the investment advice provided by Arlingclose at
the time of any ratings change, should it occur, before any investments are made
with potentially affected UK counterparties.

Budget Implications

5.24 A breakdown of the revenue budget for interest and capital financing and the
forecast year end position based on the period April to September is included in
Appendix 6. This is currently forecast to remain on target for 2014/15.

Page 378



5.25 This position will be kept under review during the remainder of the year, taking
into account the Council’s cash-flow position and the timing of any new borrowing
required.

6 RATIONALE

6.1 The Prudential Code and CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management
requires regular monitoring and reporting of Treasury Management activities.

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
7.1 None.
8 CONSULTATION

8.1 Consultation has been carried out with the Cabinet Member for Community
Resources, Section 151 Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer.

8.2 Consultation was carried out via e-mail.
9 RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1 The Council’s lending & borrowing list is regularly reviewed during the financial
year and credit ratings are monitored throughout the year. All lending/borrowing
transactions are within approved limits and with approved institutions. Investment
and Borrowing advice is provided by our Treasury Management consultants
Arlingclose.

9.2 The CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice
requires the Council nominate a committee to be responsible for ensuring
effective scrutiny of the Treasury Management Strategy and policies. The
Corporate Audit Committee carries out this scrutiny.

9.3 In addition, the Council maintains a risk register for Treasury Management
activities, which is regularly reviewed and updated where applicable during the

year.
Contact person Tim Richens - 01225 477468 ; Mark Angus - 01225 477180
Tim_Richens@bathnes.gov.uk Mark Angus@bathnes.gov.uk
Background 2014/15 Treasury Management & Investment Strategy
papers
1% Quarter Treasury Performance Report (Cabinet)

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an
alternative format

Page 379




APPENDIX 1
Performance against Treasury Management Indicators agreed in Treasury
Management Strategy Statement

1. Authorised limit for external debt

These limits include current commitments and proposals in the budget report for capital
expenditure, plus additional headroom over & above the operational limit for unusual cash
movements.

2014/15 2014/15 Actual
Prudential as at 30" Sep.
Indicator 2014
£000 £000
Borrowing 215,000 70,000
Other long term liabilities 2,000 0
Cumulative Total 217,000 70,000

2. Operational limit for external debt
The operational boundary for external debt is based on the same estimates as the
authorised limit but without the additional headroom for unusual cash movements.

2014/15 2014/15 Actual
Prudential as at 30" Sep.
Indicator 2014
£000 £000
Borrowing 177,000 70,000
Other long term liabilities 2,000 0
Cumulative Total 179,000 70,000

3. Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure
This is the maximum amount of total borrowing which can be at fixed interest rate, less any
investments for a period greater than 12 months which has a fixed interest rate.

2014/15 2014/15 Actual
Prudential as at 30™ Sep.
Indicator 2014
£000 £000
Fixed interest rate exposure 177,000 50,000*

* The £20m of LOBO’s are quoted as variable rate in this analysis as the Lender has the option to change
the rate at 6 monthly intervals (the Council has the option to repay the loan should the rate increase).

4. Upper limit for variable interest rate exposure

While fixed rate borrowing contributes significantly to reducing uncertainty surrounding
interest rate changes, the pursuit of optimum performance levels may justify keeping
flexibility through the use of variable interest rates. This is the maximum amount of total
borrowing which can be at variable interest rates.

Page 380



2014/15 2014/15 Actual
Prudential as at 30" Sep.
Indicator 2014
£000 £000
Variable interest rate exposure 127,000 20,000

5. Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over 364 days

This is the maximum amount of total investments which can be over 364 days. The
purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses
by seeking early repayment of its investments.

2014/15 2014/15 Actual
Prudential as at 30" Sep.
Indicator 2014
£000 £000
Investments over 364 days 50,000 0

6. Maturity Structure of borrowing
This indicator is set to control the Council’'s exposure to refinancing risk.

Upper Lower 2014/15 Actual
Limit Limit as at 30" Sep.
2015
% % %
Under 12 months 50 Nil 29
12 months and within 24 months 50 Nil 0
24 months and within 5 years 75 Nil 0
5 years and within 10 years 100 Nil 0
10 years and above 100 Nil 71

* The CIPFA Treasury management Code now requires the prudential indicator relating to Maturity of Fixed
Rate Borrowing to reference the maturity of LOBO loans to the earliest date on which the lender can require
payment, i.e. the next call date (which are at 6 monthly intervals for the £20m of LOBO’s). However, the
Council would only consider repaying these loans if the Lenders exercised their options to alter the interest
rate.

7. Average Credit Rating

The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by monitoring
the weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio. A summary guide to credit
ratings is set out at Appendix 7.

2014/15 2014/15 Actual
Prudential as at 30" Sep.
Indicator 2014
Rating Rating
Minimum Portfolio Average Credit Rating A AA

Page 381




8. Liquidity

The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring
the amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments within a rolling three month
period, without additional borrowing.

2014/15 2014/15 Actual
Prudential as at 30" Sep.
Indicator 2014
Total cash available within 3 months £15m £9.85m

The above indicator is a voluntary indicator the Council has chosen to maintain. The
liquidity balance figure on 30™ September 2014 was below the indicator (£9.85m). This
was due to delaying the planned borrowing by a week in order to take advantage of short
term inter-authority rates dropping at the beginning of each month. This borrowing of £8m
was arranged on 2" October at a lower cost than the market was offering during the
previous weeks.

APPENDIX 2

The Council’s Investment position at 30" September 2014
The term of investments, from the original date of the deal, are as follows:

Balance at 30™
Sep. 2014
£000’s
Notice (instant access funds) 4,850
Up to 1 month 0
1 month to 3 months 0
Over 3 months 5,000
Total 9,850

The investment figure of £9.850 million is made up as follows:

Balance at 30™
Sep. 2014
£000’s
B&NES Council -8,401
B&NES CHC 9,572
West Of England Growth Points 688
Schools 7,991
Total 9,850

The Council had an average net positive balance of £37.7m (including Growth Points &
B&NES CHC Funding) during the period April 2014 to September 2014.

Page 382




Chart 1: Council Investments (£9.85m) as
at 30t Sept 2014

Foreign Banks
£0.6m 6%

UK Banks £5.5m
56%

Money Market
Funds £3.8m
38%

Chart 2: Council Investments (£37.0m) as
at 30t June 2014

Building UK Banks
Societies £5.0m £10.8m29%
14%

Foreign Banks
£7.0m 19%

Money Market
Funds £14.2m
38%

Page 383



Chart 3: Council Investments per Lowest
Equivalent Long-term Credit Ratings
(£9.85m) 30" Sept 2014

AAA Rated
£3.8m 38%

BBB+ Rated
£0.5m 5% .
AA- Rated
£0.6m 6%

A Rated £5.0m
51%
Chart 4: Council Investments per Lowest
Equivalent Long-term Credit Ratings
(£37.0m) 30" June 2014

AAA Rated
£14.2m38%

BBB+ Rated

o \

A Rated
£15.0m41%

AA- Rated
£7.0m 19%

Page 384



APPENDIX 3

Average rate of return on investments for 2014/15

April | May | June | July | Aug | Sep | Average
% 9 % % % % for
Period
Average rate of 040 | 043 | 044 | 047 | 042 | 042 0.43%
interest earned
Benchmark = 039 | 0.39 | 040 | 0.39 | 040 | 040 | 0.39%
Average 7 Day
LIBID rate +0.05%
(source:
Arlingclose)
Performance +0.01 | +0.04 | +0.04 | +0.08 | +0.02 | +0.02 | +0.04%
against Benchmark
%
APPENDIX 4
Councils External Borrowing at 30" September 2014
LONG TERM Amount Start Maturity Interest
Date Date Rate
PWLB 10,000,000 15/10/04 15/10/35 4.75%
PWLB 5,000,000 12/05/10 15/08/35 4.55%
PWLB 5,000,000 12/05/10 15/08/60 4.53%
PWLB 5,000,000 05/08/11 15/02/31 4.86%
PWLB 10,000,000 05/08/11 15/08/29 4.80%
PWLB 15,000,000 05/08/11 15/02/61 4.96%
KBC Bank N.V* 5,000,000 08/10/04 08/10/54 4.50%
KBC Bank N.V* 5,000,000 08/10/04 08/10/54 4.50%
Eurohypo Bank* 10,000,000 27/04/05 27/04/55 4.50%
TOTAL 70,000,000
TEMPORARY NIL
TOTAL 70,000,000 4.71%

*All LOBO’s (Lender Option / Borrower Option) have reached the end of their fixed interest
period and have reverted to the variable rate of 4.50%. The lender has the option to
change the interest rate at 6 monthly intervals, however at this point the borrower also has

the option to repay the loan without penalty.

APPENDIX 5

Economic and market review for July to September 2014 (provided by Arlingclose)

Growth and Inflation: The recent strong performance of the UK economy continued with
output growing at 0.8% in Q1 2014 and at 0.9% in Q2. The services sector once again
grew strongly. On the back of strong consumption growth, business investment appeared
to be recovering quickly, albeit from a low base. The annual CPI inflation rate fell to 1.5%

year-on-year in August.

Page 385




Revisions to the GDP methodology, now compliant with the European System of
Accounting 2010, mean that growth is now estimated to be 2.7% above its pre-recession
peak in Q1 2008 rather than just 0.2% higher, the general theme being that the recession
was not as deep and the recovery was earlier than initially estimated. In anticipation of
these revisions, the MPC has forecast growth at 3.4% in 2014.

Unemployment: The labour market continued to improve, with strong employment gains
and the headline unemployment rate falling to 6.2%. However, earnings growth remained
very weak, rising just 0.6% for the three months May-July 2014 when compared to the
same period a year earlier. The growth in employment was masked by a large humber of
zero-hour contracts and involuntary part-time working.

UK Monetary Policy: The MPC made no change to the Bank Rate of 0.5% and
maintained asset purchases at £375bn. However, there was a marked shift in tone from
the Bank of England’s Governor and other MPC members. In his Mansion House speech
in June Governor Mark Carney warned that interest rates might rise sooner than financial
markets were expecting. Following some mixed messages from Governor Carney later in
the summer, the minutes of the August and September MPC meetings revealed a split
vote with regards to the Bank Rate. lan McCafferty and Martin Weale voted to increase
Bank Rate by 0.25%, arguing economic circumstances were sufficient to justify an
immediate rise. The MPC emphasised that when Bank Rate did begin to rise, it was
expected to do so only gradually and would likely remain below average historical levels
for some time to come.

In the Bank of England’s August Inflation Report the Bank forecast growth to be around
3%% in 2014, easing back thereafter to around its pre-crisis historical average rate.
Inflation was forecast to remain at, or slightly below, 2% before reaching the target at the
end of the 2-year forecast period.

The Bank’s Financial Policy Committee also announced a range of measures to cool the
UK’s housing market to avert the potential of spiralling house prices derailing a sustainable
economic recovery. Key recommendations included lenders stress-testing mortgage
applicants can cope with a 3% rise in interest rates; putting a 15% cap on the number of
mortgages at more than 4.5 times the borrower’s income; and a separate Treasury pledge
banning anyone applying for a loan through the Help to Buy scheme borrowing more than
4.5 times their income. The Prudential Regulation Authority also announced that it intends
to consult on capital requirements for mortgages.

The result of the Scottish referendum in the end was close, but not as close as many
believed it might be. However, the political upheaval set in motion (the Prime Minister’s
linking of a more devolved Scotland to giving greater powers to English MPs over English-
only legislation, the prospect of Scotland’s potential freedom to raise taxes not being
replicated elsewhere in the UK) is arguably likely to be just as problematic in the run-up to
and beyond next year’s general election.

Eurozone inflation continued to fall towards zero (HICP inflation registered just 0.3% in
September), and there was mounting evidence that the already feeble recovery was losing
pace. The unemployment rate remained stubbornly high at 11.5%. The European Central
Bank lowered its official benchmark interest rate from 0.15% to 0.05%. The rate it pays on
commercial bank balances held with it was also cut further into negative territory from -
0.1% to -0.2% and the Marginal Lending Facility rate cut further to 0.3%. The ECB also
announced a programme of acquiring Asset Backed Securities (ABS) from banks in an
effort to encourage lending which was viewed as being one step away from full blown

Page 386



Quantitative Easing (QE) adopted by the US, UK and Japanese central banks. The
minutes of the Bank of England’s MPC meeting in September noted that “weakness in the
euro area had been the most significant development during the month” and that, if it led
once again to uncertainty about the sustainability of euro-area public and external debt, it
could damage confidence and disrupt financial markets

There was no change from the US Federal Reserve as the central bank kept policy on its
current track with a reduction in asset purchases by $10 billion per month. Asset
purchases are expected to end by October 2014, expectations therefore turned towards
the timing of rate increases. The US economy rebounded strongly in Q2 with annualised
growth of 4.6%.

Market reaction: Gilt yields have continued to decline and hit a financial year low at the
end of August, before ticking upwards in the run up to the Scottish referendum. What has
driven yields lower is a combination of factors but the primary drivers have been the
escalation of geo-political risk within the Middle East and Ukraine alongside the slide
towards deflation within the Eurozone (EZ).

APPENDIX 6

Interest & Capital Financing Costs — Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (April to September)

YEAR END FORECAST
Forecast
. Budgeted Forecast overor
April to September 2014 Spend or Spend or  (under)
(Income) (Income) spend | ADV/FAV
£'000 £'000 £'000
Interest & Capital Financing
- Debt Costs 3,862 3,862 0
- Internal Repayment of Loan Charges (8,182) (8,182) 0
- Ex Avon Debt Costs 1,388 1,388 0
- Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 6,120 6,120 0
- Interest on Balances (110) (110) 0
Sub Total - Capital Financing 3,078 3,078 0
APPENDIX 7
Summary Guide to Credit Ratings
Rating Details
AAA Highest credit quality — lowest expectation of default, which is unlikely to be

adversely affected by foreseeable events.

AA Very high credit quality - expectation of very low default risk, which is not likely to
be significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events.

Page 387



A High credit quality - expectations of low default risk which may be more
vulnerable to adverse business or economic conditions than is the case for
higher ratings.

BBB Good credit quality - expectations of default risk are currently low but adverse
business or economic conditions are more likely to impair this capacity.

BB Speculative - indicates an elevated vulnerability to default risk, particularly in the
event of adverse changes in business or economic conditions over time.

B Highly speculative - indicates that material default risk is present, but a limited
margin of safety remains. Capacity for continued payment is vulnerable to
deterioration in the business and economic environment.

CCC Substantial credit risk - default is a real possibility.

CcC Very high levels of credit risk - default of some kind appears probable.

C Exceptionally high levels of credit risk - default is imminent or inevitable.

RD Restricted default - indicates an issuer that has experienced payment default on

a bond, loan or other material financial obligation but which has not entered into
bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership, liquidation or other formal
winding-up procedure, and which has not otherwise ceased operating.

D Default - indicate san issuer that has entered into bankruptcy filings,
administration, receivership, liquidation or other formal winding-up procedure, or
which has otherwise ceased business.

APPENDIX 8
Proposed amendments to the 2014/15 Treasury Management Strategy
Approved Investment Counterparties

The Council may invest its surplus funds with any of the counterparties in the flowing table,
subject to the cash and time limits shown:

Counterparty Cash limit | Time limit
AAA
10 years
AA+
AA £15m each
UK Banks and other organisations and securities AA- S years
whose lowest published long-term credit rating from
Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s is: A+ 2
years
A £10m each
A- £5m each 18 months
BBB+ | £5m each 100 days

Non-Specified Investments

Any investment not meeting the definition of a specified investment is classed as non-
specified. The Council does not intend to make any investments denominated in foreign

Page 388



currencies, nor any that are defined as capital expenditure by legislation, such as company
shares. Non-specified investments will therefore be limited to long-term investments, i.e.
those that are due to mature 12 months or longer from the date of arrangement, and
investments with bodies and schemes not meeting the definition on high credit quality.
Limits on non-specified investments are shown below.

£m
Total long-term investments 50
Total investments without credit 15
ratings or rated below A-
Total investments in foreign 0
countries rated below AA+
TOTAL 60

Security: average credit rating
The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by monitoring
the weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio.

2014/15

Minimum Portfolio average credit rating A-

Page 389



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 390



Agenda Item 12

Motion from the Independent Group
To be moved by Clir June Player
This Council notes:

¢ Research indicates that within Bath 2,833 dwellings are occupied as student HMOs, thus
housing around 11,300 students, many of which are suitable for occupation as family
dwellings. This figure excludes purpose built accommodation & on-campus provision which
contain hundreds of units of accommodation within the City. (B&NES Local Plan: Student
Numbers & Accommodation Requirements 2011-2029)

¢ Both of these markets have expanded and are very lucrative private student lettings.

e 7% of Bath’s dwellings is estimated to be occupied as student HMOs, which is significantly
higher than most other towns/cities. (B&NES Local Plan: Student Numbers &
Accommodation Requirements 2011-2029)

¢ Many family homes have been converted which have priced out other buyers and has
diminished the ‘normal’ housing stock in the City.

e These properties currently pay —
No Council Tax or
No Business Rates

« Following changes to the Local Government Funding system, introduced in 2013/14, there
will no longer be additional Government Grant funding for future increases in HMO/purpose
built Student accommodation numbers. In fact this Government grant to Councils is already
being reduced and will continue to be so. This is a situation that is likely to continue until
Government is able to balance its books.

e The Universities housing needs are forecast to grow by 3,200 by 2021 and stabilise
thereafter to 2029.

e From our two Universities in 2014/15 we have approx. 16,300 students who need
accommodation within our area. (68.4% of total enrolment).

e As the number of HMOs/purpose built student accommodation expand every year, the
residents and businesses of B&NES are having to subsidise these lucrative private sector
‘businesses’.

e The land used for student purpose built blocks is land that could have been used for
employment land/much needed houses, both of which would generate an income to the
Council for services.

The time has come for this situation to be reviewed. Whether Council Tax, Business Rates or
both should be applied is open to debate. But, somewhere, a contribution to the services that are
received should be made by students and/or property owners.

Local Residents, Local Businesses and Local Councils are unable to continue to subsidise these

HMOs or purpose built student blocks.

The Council resolves to: Page 391



Ask our two MPs to lobby their parties in Government for changes in the current legislation.

Wirite to Central Government to have the legislation changed.

Wirite to all other University Cities asking them to lobby their MPs for changes in the
legislation as they too are being affected in the same way as B&NES.

Page 392



Officer briefing note providing factual information on the subject matter of the

Council Motion from the Independent Group

Classification of properties between Domestic & Commercial

The Valuation Office Agency (VOA) is an executive Agency of HM Revenues
and Customs and they have the responsibility for valuing properties for the
purposes of council tax (domestic properties) and non-domestic rates
(commercial properties).

The VOA is governed by legislation which dictates the classification of a
particular property and whether it ultimately attracts a liability for Council Tax
or Business rates. The key to whether a property is deemed domestic or
commercial relies on the definition of a dwelling as defined within Section 3 of
the Local Government Finance Act 1992

A dwelling is referenced from the now repealed General Rate Act 1967 in
which it is defined as a hereditament which is used wholly for the purposes of
a private dwelling or private dwellings.

The Valuation Office Agency has determined that student accommodation is a
residential dwelling, and is entered onto the council tax valuation lists
accordingly.

Any household that consists solely of full-time students (that is students
studying for at least 21 hours each week for a calendar or academic year) is
exempt from paying council tax.

Council Funding

Up to 2013/14, the Local Government Funding system did recognise, to a
degree, the exemption of student dwellings from paying Council Tax via a
‘resource equalisation” adjustment mechanism.

In simple terms, an authority with lots of student exemptions would have a
lower Council Tax base and therefore generate lower Council Tax income
from which to fund services, so this would be “equalised” through higher
government grant funding.

By way of illustration, based on 2,833 dwellings occupied as student HMO'’s,
assuming these were all Band C rated properties for Council Tax purposes,
the Council could have been receiving around £3m in Council Tax if these
were not treated as exempt dwellings. The government grant calculations are
extremely complex and it is no longer possible to track through specific
elements of funding.

Page 393



e The grant position was effectively fixed in 2013/14 following changes to the
Local Funding System and the element of “resource equalisation” will not be
updated until government undertakes the next “reset”, currently planned for
2020. Therefore the Council’s general grant funding will continue to reduce in
line with government spending reductions.

Changes in Legislation

¢ Any change in the position highlighted above in respect of Council Tax and
Business Rates chargeable on Student Accommodation would require
Government to agree to amend the relevant legislation.

Relevant Housing Statistics

e Within B&NES there are around 6,310 HMOs (B&NES House Condition
Survey 2012)

e Research indicates that within Bath 2,833 dwellings are occupied as student
HMOs, housing around 11,300 students. This figure excludes purpose built
accommodation & on-campus provision. (B&NES Local Plan: Student
Numbers & Accommodation Requirements 2011-2029)

o 7% of the city stock is estimated to be occupied as student HMOs which is
significantly higher than most other towns/cities. (B&NES Local Plan: Student
Numbers & Accommodation Requirements 2011-2029)

¢ The Universities housing needs are forecast to grow by 3,200 by 2021 and
stabilise thereafter to 2029. Most of this demand will be met by purpose built
accommodation & on-campus provision.

e Article 4 Planning Directive introduced to mitigate against the concentration of
HMOs being experience in some areas & additional HMO licensing introduced
to improve housing conditions within the sector.

Page 394



Agenda Item 13

Council 13 November, 2014

The Living Wage

Labour Group to move:

1

Council notes that, when it last considered this matter on 14 November, 2013 it was
agreed “to keep low pay under annual review during each future budget round”.

Council believes that paying the Living Wage not only benefits employees but also
employers and the wider economy, and that the Living Wage has the support of all
three main political parties.

Council agrees:

3

to ensure that all Bath and North East Somerset Council employees are paid at least
the Living Wage as soon as practicable and by no later than April 2015 and refers
this matter to the Employment Committee, and further agrees that any financial
implications resulting from this are considered as part of the Medium Term Service
and Resource Planning process;

to sign up for accreditation as a Living Wage Employer with the Living Wage
Foundation; and therefore:

a) refers the procurement aspects of this to Cabinet for consideration; and

b) uses its influence as a major local employer and provider of services to urge
other local employers to pay the Living Wage.

Page 395



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 396



Agenda Item 14

Council 13 November, 2014

The Financial Transaction Tax

Labour Group to move:

Council notes that:

1

local government will see real term cuts in central grant of 43% over the 2010
Comprehensive Spending Review period, meaning a cut of £20bn in annual grant
by 2016;

extending the current Financial Transaction Tax on shares to other asset classes
such as bonds and derivatives could raise £20bn of additional revenue in the UK a
year; and

at least 11 European nations including France, Germany, Italy and Spain are
moving ahead with FTTs on shares, bonds and derivatives estimated to
raise £30bn a year.

Council believes that:

4

revenues from the FTT could help repair the damage caused by cuts in public
services since 2010;

local government deserves to receive a significant proportion of FTT revenues,
making an important contribution to both capital and revenue expenditure such as
reversing cuts to council tax benefits; and that

whilst an FTT might have a negligible effect on jobs in the City of London,
investing FTT revenues in a smart and progressive way would see a significant
increase in employment levels in other sectors.

Council resolves that:

7

the UK government be urged to extend the current FTT on shares to other asset
classes, such as bonds and derivatives;

a letter should be written on behalf of this Council by all four Group Leaders to the
Prime Minister, Deputy Prime Minister, Leader of the Opposition, Chancellor and
Shadow Chancellor of the Exchequer, and Secretary of State for Communities and
Local Government stating this council’s support for extending FTTs; and

a further letter should be written to the local MPs outlining this Council’s position.

Page 397



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 398



Agenda Item 15

Bath & North East Somerset Council

NOTE TO COUNCIL ON BEHALF OF CLLR ROBIN MOSS, AS CHAIR OF THE
RESOURCES POLICY DEVELOPMENT & SCRUTINY PANEL MEETING ON 29
SEPTEMBER 2014

SUBJECT: The Policy Loan of £500k in Wilmington Farm Solar Array

DATE: Council Meeting, 13 November 2014

PURPOSE: To provide background information only to councillors on the
recent Single Member Decision to invest a policy loan of £500k in the
Wilmington Farm Solar Array, following a call-in of that decision to the
Resources Policy Development & Scrutiny Panel, subsequently dismissed.

BACKGROUND

In 2011, the Council signed a Co-operation Agreement, following Cabinet
approval, with local community enterprise, Bath & West Community Energy
(BWCE) in order to help achieve a range of Council policy objectives and to
pilot a new way of working with and for the community, to achieve maximum
community benefit.

The Council made policy commitments in the B&NES Sustainable Community
Strategy 2009 and in the B&NES Environmental Sustainability & Climate
Change Strategy 2012-15 to support the development of renewable energy in
the area through: leading by example, partnership working and community
enablement.

BWCE was set up in 2010 by local people to develop community-based
renewable energy and energy efficiency projects within B&NES (and later
across a wider local area). It is an Industrial and Provident Society
established for the benefit of the community and registered with the FCA.

Part of the trigger for this response from the community was the setting of
ambitious renewable energy targets in the B&NES Core Strategy. These are:
stated in Policy CP 3 Renewable Energy: 110MWe of electricity and 165MWth
of heat. BWCE is committed to delivering 25% of those targets.

By July 2014, BWCE had raised over £2.2 m of investment in renewable
energy, with a large proportion coming from community share offers. Ninety
percent of the share-holders are B&NES residents.

After paying their community investors a 7% return each year for the last three
years, all surplus profit is invested in the independent charity, Bath & West
Low Carbon Community Fund, for investment in local low carbon projects. To

Page 399



date, £20k has been contributed, with much larger sums planned as more
renewable energy projects are installed.

The renewable energy projects installed so far include solar panel installations
on the roofs of six B&NES schools, providing free electricity and an
educational resource to those schools.

The BWCE model, using Community Share Offers, means that local people
have the opportunity to invest relatively small sums in local energy schemes
with a good return on investment. Combined with BWCE’s commitment to
working with local businesses, using local labour and following the Council’s
‘Think Local’ procurement policy, the economic benefits of the renewable
energy projects are all retained locally.

BWCE are the only organisation delivering local renewable energy projects in
B&NES utilising a community benefit model.

In 2012, BWCE was awarded Best Community Enterprise in the SW Green
Energy Awards.

In 2013, Bath & North East Somerset Council was awarded Most Proactive
Public Sector Body in the SW Green Energy Awards, largely because of our
work to support the development of community energy in B&NES through
BWCE.

In 2014, the government published its first national Community Energy
Strategy. B&NES Council’s work with BWCE is cited as an exemplar case
study in the strategy.

In September 2014 BWCE were awarded Best Organisation in the national
Community Energy Awards.

THE GREEN INVESTMENT & JOBS FUND

The Council’'s Green Investment & Jobs Fund (£1m) was approved by Council
in February 2014 for ‘Investment of a policy loan in local renewable energy
projects to further a range of Council policy objectives, whilst generating a
source of income for the Council and contributing to the creation of ‘green’
Jjobs.’

Significant lead-in time is required to develop renewable energy projects and
the intention behind the Fund was to invest it in local projects during 2014-
2015 financial year.

As the only organisation delivering such projects in B&NES, with a community
benefit model, and with a current pipeline of projects and with a strong
relationship already established via the Cooperation Agreement, it was
inevitable that the Council would work with BWCE to find appropriate projects
to invest in that would maximise benefit to the community.

Page 400



THE FACTS BEHIND THE DECISION TO INVEST IN BWCE’S WILMINGTON
FARM SOLAR ARRAY

e In August 2014, following 18 months of discussion with BWCE, Clirs Crossley
and Bellotti agreed in principle the idea of making a policy loan of £500k from
the Green Investment & Jobs Fund into BWCE’s proposed Wilmington Farm
Solar Array, in order to help to overcome a market barrier to bank investment
in small-scale community energy projects and to support the community share
offer, subject to satisfactory completion of due diligence.

¢ Via a Single Member Decision, confirmed on 29 September 2014, they
authorised the Divisional Director for Strategy & Performance to authorise the
loan once satisfactory due diligence was completed and subject to relevant
terms and conditions.

o Satisfactory due diligence was completed by the end of September and paid
for by BWCE.

¢ The investment represents half of the Council’s approved budget for
investment in 2014-15. The agreed rate of interest the Council will charge
BWCE is 6.5%, which has been confirmed by Treasury Advisors as an
appropriate rate for this market and therefore compliant with State Aid and
Local Authority Accounting Regulations. After the cost of borrowing, the
Council will achieve an estimated return on investment of 2.5%. The loan will
be fully repaid in 15 years.

e A Special Purpose Vehicle is being set up for the B&NES investment and will
ensure that the investment is secured on the asset (ie the solar panels). In
the event of the failure of BWCE for whatever reason, the relevant asset
would revert to the Council.

e The solar project has received planning permission and has been designed to
minimise impact on the local natural environment.

e The Council’s investment will fund c20% of the scheme and provide leverage
to BWCE for raising the remaining scheme costs through the current
Community Share Offer.

e The £500k policy loan should yield approximately £250k over the 20 year life
of the solar array (minimum) for the Bath & West Low Carbon Community
Fund. There are currently no other local organisations or renewable energy
installers offering both full local retention of the economic benefit of renewable
energy projects and investment of all surplus profit back into the local
community.

o Based on the SW renewable energy agency’s calculations (Regen SW), it is
suggested that around 2000 jobs could arise in B&NES if the SW target set by
Regen SW is met. The Council’s investment will help firstly to secure the five
jobs at BWCE and will contribute to the predicted future job creation that will
flow from the delivery of more local renewable energy projects.

Page 401



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 402



BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET

RESOURCES POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANEL

Monday, 29th September, 2014

Present:- Councillors Colin Barrett, Paul Myers, Nigel Roberts, Robin Moss (Chair) (In
place of John Bull), Rob Appleyard (In place of Roger Symonds), Tim Warren (In place of
Charles Gerrish) and Francine Haeberling (In place of Barry Macrae)

Also in attendance: Councillor David Bellotti — Cabinet Member for Community Resources;
Councillor Paul Crossley — Council Leader and Councillor Liz Richardson — Call-in Lead
Member

38

39

40

41

42

43

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting.

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chairman drew attention to the emergency evacuation procedure.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Councillor John Bull (Chairman) sent his apologies and was substituted by Councillor
Robin Moss.

Councillor Roger Symonds (Vice Chair) sent his apologies and was substituted by
Councillor Rob Appleyard.

Councillor Charles Gerrish sent his apologies and was substituted by Councillor Tim
Warren.

Councillor Barry Macrae sent his apologies and was substituted by Councillor
Francine Haeberling.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were none.

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN
There was none.

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS,

STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF
THIS MEETING

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 29th September, 2014

Page 403



44

Statements and questions received are included under item 7.
POLICY LOAN OF £500K IN WILMINGTON FARM SOLAR ARRAY

Statement from Lead Call-in member — Councillor Liz Richardson (a copy of the full
text of this presentation is held on the minute book)

Councillor Richardson explained that the call-in is not about objecting to a solar
energy farm but only whether the loan is a wise and prudent use of tax payers
money. She outlined the three main reasons for calling in the decision:

Why was the due diligence not completed before the decision was made?
Why were other options not considered for the use of this money?

Why are there no figures on how many ‘green jobs’ will actually be created
from this allocation from the fund?

She added that she felt that more information is required on this and urged the Panel
to uphold the Call-in.

Questions from the Panel to the Lead Call-in Member

Councillor Nigel Roberts asked if the Lead Call-in member had put the questions to
the relevant officers including the 151 officer. Councillor Richardson explained that
she had but did not get the answer to all of her questions.

Statement from Cabinet Member for Community Resources — Councillor David
Bellotti (a copy of the full text of this presentation is held on the minute book)

Councillor Bellotti stated that The Green Investment & Jobs Fund (£1m) was
approved by Council in February 2014 and pointed to the Council's renewable
energy targets and policies. He explained that this decision had been made subject
to due diligence as is usual Council practice. He stated that he felt the loan
represents a reasonable and prudent investment. Councillor Bellotti gave examples
of other authorities lending at 5% which compared favourably with the loan to BWCE
(Bath & West Community Energy) and also to the Government encouraging Local
Authorities to borrow from the public loan works board to fund energy projects. He
went on to report that the due diligence had now been completed and that PWC
(Price WaterHouse Cooper) had judged the business case as reasonable and
Arlinghouse had approved.

Questions from the Panel to the Cabinet Member

Councillor Francine Haeberling asked if it is right for the Council to invest money
when a number of Councillors are investors in the project. Councillor Bellotti replied
that it is a business decision. He further explained that he is not an investor in this
company but had contributed to other bodies and would hope that this would not
preclude him from supporting them in other ways.

Councillor Barrett asked who made the first approach regarding the loan and if the
Council are committed to further investment. Councillor Bellotti explained that a co-
operation agreement was signed in 2011 between the Council and BWCE and this

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 29th September, 2014

Page 404



proposal had come up as a result of this agreement. He further explained that there
was still £500k in the budget and no further commitments.

Councillor Tim Warren asked how many local jobs would be provided as a result of
the project. Councillor Bellotti explained that the £1m approved by Council was for
green investment as well as jobs. He explained that the local farm needs to diversify
like other farms and this project would provide many more years of business
securing all the jobs there currently. Also jobs in manufacturing would be provided.
Councillor Warren asked how many agricultural jobs will be lost due to the land not
being cultivated, he also stated that he did not think sheep could still graze the land
among the panels. Councillor Bellotti explained that he had observed solar farms in
Cornwall with sheep grazing.

Councillor Warren asked if any alternatives have been considered. Councillor Bellotti
responded that a co-operation agreement exists with BWCE and he is unaware of
anyone else who has formed a company such as this, they are unique in that profits
are put back into the community.

Councillor Warren asked about the life of solar panels. Councillor Bellotti explained
that they have a residual value and the Council would have first call upon them. On
taking advice from the 151 officer, he further explained that if the company folds, the
Council would step in and take over the project.

Councillor Warren stated that, as the due diligence report had been received on
Thursday 25" September, this was outside the call-in period. Councillor Moss noted
that there was an issue with the timetable for the call-in and the due diligence
deadlines.

Councillor Myers asked if there were any other options to spend the green fund.
Councillor Bellotti explained that there are very few choices for the Council to invest
in energy, if individual households are invested in, the number of residents who
would benefit from this would fall well below that of the project with BWCE. He
explained that BWCE is the only community interest based company in Bath and
North East Somerset and if any other such companies came up, he would look at it.
He added that the £1m in the Capital Programme approved in this area cannot be
used for revenue projects such as toilets.

Councillor Myers asked if the Council is making the loan because it wishes to or
because the project could not go ahead without the loan. Councillor Bellotti
explained that BWCE is a local Community Benefit Company with many local
shareholders who are our residents. He stated that the Council was only putting
forward 20% of the project costs.

Statement from the Council Leader — Councillor Paul Crossley

Councillor Crossley explained that the £1m budget for green investment fits in with a
number of Council strategies and is also about community engagement. He
explained that he has no shares in BWCE but thinks it is a good model. He explained
how it had been exhilarating to see people at the share offer launches and explained
that the Council and investors will get their money back. He further explained that
BWCE is rated as the best energy company in the Country. He stated that he had no

3
Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 29th September, 2014

Page 405



problem answering questions on the decision but hoped that the Panel dismiss the
call-in.

Questions from the Panel to the Leader

Councillor Warren stated that the decision papers are thin and there is not much
information in them. Councillor Crossley stated that he did not agree and he felt they
had all the information they needed to make the decision.

Councillor Haeberling stated that a number of elected members would gain due to
this investment by the Council and she feels uncomfortable with this. Councillor
Crossley stated that he took a counter view, he is delighted that some Councillors
have invested, we all invest in the pension fund and this is the same model. He
stated that he felt there is no conflict, there is a cooperation agreement, it is all above
board and we should be celebrating. The Chairman Councillor Moss reminded all
present that any Councillors with financial interests in BWCE have withdrawn from
the Panel meeting today and arranged for substitute members to sit on the Panel. He
confirmed that the Panel members considering this call-in have no investments in
BWCE.

Councillor Barrett stated that if the project is due to start in December, where is the
democracy. Councillor Crossley responded that democracy is all around this
decision, the Council approved the budget, it is in line with Council policies on which
there has been wide discussion. He stated that the loan is based on democratic
decisions at all stages. The Chairman Councillor Moss added that the fact that the
Panel is hearing the call-in shows that the democratic process is working.

Councillor Myers stated that it is his job as a scrutiny panel member to ask
questions. He asked if the statement that BWCE is the best in the country is an
opinion or an official status. Councillor Crossley explained that the company had won
‘Best Performing Energy Company’ at the Community Organisations Awards this
year which is country wide.

Items from the Public and Councillors

William Hobhouse (a copy of the full text of this presentation is appended to these
minutes and held on the minute book)

Mr Hobhouse made a statement in support of the loan and urged the Panel to
dismiss the call in.

Nicolette Boater (a copy of the full text of this presentation is appended to these
minutes and held on the minute book)

Ms Boater made a statement supporting the call-in process on this decision.

Pete Capener — Chair of Bath and West Community Energy (a copy of the full text of
this presentation is appended to these minutes and held on the minute book)

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 29th September, 2014
Page 406



Mr Capener made a statement providing some background on BWCE and
supporting the approval of the loan.

Panel members asked the following questions:

Councillor Warren stated that he was not against BWCE, he asked how many
permanent local jobs were involved. Mr Capener responded that he employs 3-4 full
time equivalents, the project would safeguard these jobs and grow.

Councillor Warren asked what banks had been approached. Mr Capener explained
he had been to a number of banks.

Councillor Warren asked how the community would benefit from the project. Mr
Capener responded that the Council will receive good commercial return and a
surplus which could go into Council revenue projects.

Councillor Warren asked what the £700k would be used for. Councillor Crossley
responded that discussions had been started about how the fund will be allocated.

Councillor Barrett asked if Curo had been approached. Councillor Crossley
explained the ‘Energy at Home Programme’.

Philip Haile (a copy of the full text of this presentation is appended to these minutes
and held on the minute book)

Mr Haile made a statement stating that he felt the scrutiny on the decision was not
unreasonable but that he felt the decision should not be delayed.

Nick Francis (a copy of the full text of this presentation is appended to these minutes
and held on the minute book)

Mr Francis made a statement about the decision of his church to disinvest in any
companies involved in fossil fuel extraction and take up investments in renewable
energy. He urged the panel to dismiss the call-in.

Councillor David Martin (a copy of the full text of this presentation is appended to
these minutes and held on the minute book)

Councillor Martin made a statement supporting the loan and stating that he felt the
call-in request had been satisfactorily answered. He urged to panel to dismiss the
call-in so that the project can proceed in a timely manner.

Mr WR Cudlipp (a copy of the full text of this presentation is appended to these
minutes and held on the minute book)

Mr Cudlipp asked some questions and the Chairman referred to the circulated
answers.

The Chairman referred to another set of questions (from Helen Dudden) and
answers circulated.

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 29th September, 2014
Page 407



The Chair announced a 10 minute adjournment.

When the Panel reconvened, the Chairman asked Panel members if they had any
further comments or questions before the closing statements.

Councillor Tim Warren stated that he had found the meeting to be very informative,
although he had had some concerns with the process. He stated that he felt BWCE
are a good company and he did not want to delay the project. He proposed that the
call-in be dismissed and that a report be sent for information to the November (2014)
Council meeting. Councillor Francine Haeberling seconded the proposal.

Closing statement — Cabinet Member for Community Resources

Councillor Bellotti explained that he has been happy to provide information at this
meeting and is grateful to the Conservative group for not holding up the
implementation of the decision. He referred again to the budget of £1m being agreed
by Council and relevant Council policies. He noted other Council’s lending at lower
rates of interest and also the Government policy on green energy projects. He
concluded that he had made the decision based on a business and finance point of
view and was happy to provide more information. He stated that he is grateful that
the call-in is likely to be dismissed.

Closing statement — Lead Call-in Councillor

Councillor Richardson thanked all present and welcomed the open and democratic
discussion. She stated that it would have been useful to have had more information
before today as there had been a lot of unanswered questions. She concluded that
the majority of questions had been answered and was comfortable with the call-in
being dismissed.

The Chair stated that each panel member would be given 3 minutes to make
comments and indicate their decision:

Councillor Warren stated that his one concern is the due diligence period and the
call-in timeline. He stated that he had not once wanted to stop the solar farm being
built.

Councillor Nigel Roberts stated that he is in favour of dismissing the call-in. He
thanked all who contributed.

Councillor Haeberling stated that she was grateful that this discussion had been had
in public and now that all the information is available, there is cross party agreement.
She added that she remained concerned that some Councillors will be benefitting
from this decision.

Councillor Barrett stated that he felt the call-in had been essential and given the
opportunity to debate and come to the right answer.

Councillor Myers stated that he felt some concerns over the process and stated that
the call-in had been an education.

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 29th September, 2014
Page 408



Councillor Appleyard stated that the call-in had been a useful exercise. He stated
that Councillors can get information from officers and Cabinet Members outside of
meetings. He added that the Council had a strong ‘Declarations of Interest’ regime
and that it is up to individual Councillors to declare their interests.

The Chairman Councillor Moss stated that there had been interesting debate and a
balance is needed between this process and the need to make timely decisions. He
explained that a report to Council will mean information heard today will be
disseminated. He agreed that Councillors can speak to officers outside of meetings
but noted that members of the public cannot always do that. He stated that he would
be concerned if Councillors could not invest for example in Credit Unions. He asked
if the system is right in that the call-in process is not always in line with due diligence
processes. He added that this green project is a good use of £500k.

Decision

On a recommendation from Councillor Tim Warren, seconded by Councillor
Francine Haeberling, it was agreed to:

1. Dismiss the call-in (the decision shall then take effect immediately); and

2. Report to Council (November 2014) on the Panel’s deliberations and
decision (Information Only report).

The meeting ended at 12.15 pm

Chair(person)

Prepared by Democratic Services

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 29th September, 2014
Page 409



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 410



	Agenda
	4 MINUTES - 11TH SEPTEMBER 2014
	8 Getting Around Bath - a new Transport Strategy for Bath
	Transport strategy - Appendix A - the Strategy
	Transport strategy - Appendix B - consultation findings

	9 Licensing Act 2003 - Review of the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy
	Licensing policy Annex A - consultation responses
	Licensing policy Annex B - 2014 Revised Statement of Licensing Policy
	Licensing policy Annex B 2014 Code of Best Practice for Licensed Premises
	Licensing policy Annex C Impacts of the Night Time Economy in B&NES

	10 Local Council Tax Support Scheme (CTS) 2015-16
	Local council tax support scheme - appendix

	11 Treasury Management Monitoring Report to 30th September 2014
	12 Motion from the Independent group - Houses in Multiple Occupation
	Officer Briefing Sheet - Independent group motion

	13 Motion from the Labour group - Living Wage
	14 Motion from the Labour group - Financial Transaction Tax
	15 Referral from Resources Policy Development & Scrutiny Panel
	Resources call-in Panel minutes


